STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING
7/20/2021 10:00 AM

26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

AGENDA

This meeting will be held in person and the public is welcome to attend.

Storey County Board of County Commissioners are hosting a teleconference meeting this month.
Members of the public who wish to attend the meeting remotely, may do so by accessing the following
meeting on Zoom.com. Public comment may be made by communication through zoom.

*Join Zoom Meeting: https://zoom.us/i/597519448 Meeting ID: 597 519 448

Dial by your location
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)
+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose)
+1 253215 8782 US
+1 301 715 8592 US
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)
+1 929 205 6099 US (New York)
Meeting ID: 597 519 448
Find your local number: https:/ /zoom.us/u/adi9WjdtNr

For additional information or supporting documents please contact the
Storey County Clerk’s Office at 775-847-0969.

JAY CARMONA ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY

CLAY MITCHELL
VICE-CHAIRMAN

LANCE GILMAN VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Members of the Board of County Commissioners also serve as the Board of Fire Commissioners for
the Storey County Fire Protection District, Storey County Brothel License Board, Storey County
Water and Sewer System Board and the Storey County Liquor and Gaming Board and during this
meeting may convene as any of those boards as indicated on this or a separately posted agenda.




All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Any member
of the Board or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed,
and acted upon separately during this meeting. Pursuant to NRS 241.020 (2)(d)(6) Items on the
agenda may be taken out of order, the public body may combine two or more agenda items for
consideration, and the public body may remove an item from the agenda or delay discussion
relating to an item on the agenda at any time. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the
time allotted for each individual to speak.

All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless
marked otherwise.

L. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
3. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:
Consideration and possible approval of the Agenda for July 20, 2021.
4. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:
Consideration and possible approval of the Minutes for June 1, 2021.

CONSENT AGENDA

=

I Consideration and possible action, approval of business license first readings:
A. Aardvark, Incorporated - Contractor / 3532 Gracia Del Dios Dr ~ Reno, NV
B. Akal Construction, Inc. - Contractor / 1024 Iron Point Rd. Ste. 1046 ~ Folsom,

- Am Quip Systems, LLC - Contractor / 1315 Greg St. # 114 ~ Sparks, NV

D DRYCO Construction, Inc. - Contractor / 42745 Boscell Rd. ~ Fremont, CA

E Fastway Xpress, Inc. - Transportation / 1425 Maritime St. ~ Oakland, CA

F. Giant Roofing LLC - Contractor / 75 Bank St. Ste 7 ~ Sparks, NV

G. High Country Propane Inc. - Out of County / 1262 Dupont Ct. ~ Manteca, CA
H High Priority Construction - Contractor / 11935 Chesapeake Dr. ~ Reno, NV

I Omboli Interiors Inc. - Contractor / 4200 Rewana Way # 505 ~ Reno, NV

] PHC Builders - Contractor / 1351 Tule Peak Cir. ~ Carson City, NV

K Sierra View Realty - Home Business / 1625 Main St. ~ Virginia City, NV

L Tippmann Design Build, LLC - Contractor / 4218 Hobson Ct. ~ Ft. Wayne, IN

Il Consideration and possible action, approval of claims in the amount of $2,461,706.40

[IT  Consideration and possible approval of Unsecured Bill Correction for Valeo North
America, Inc. Valeo is an approved partner of Tesla for 100% abatement of taxes.




IV Consideration and possible approval of the August 3, 2021 Storey County Board of
County Commissioners regularly scheduled meeting being held at the Virginia
Township Justice Court located at 800 South C Street, Virginia City, Nevada.

6. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action):

7. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports
8. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)

9. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

The Board will deliberate and may take action regarding approval of a settlement
agreement with employee Mitchell Hammond.

10.  DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible action on Special Use Permit Amendment 2000-217-A2-
2021 request by the applicant Basalite Concrete Products, LLC,, to increase the annual
mining capacity from the 2017 Storey County approved 500,000 tons per year to
1,200,000 tons per year. The project includes additional equipment to be added to the
site that will assist in processing the additional material being generated including
silos that may exceed 75-feet in height. The property is located at 1150 N. Pinenut
Road, Mark Twain area, Storey County, Nevada, APNs 004-291-09, 13, 25, 45 and 47.

11.  DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Discussion/ For Possible Action: Special Use Permit 2021-31 by Storey County Public
Works. The applicant requests a special use permit to allow for a 5-foot setback along
the north property line for a proposed garage structure associated with Storey County
Fire Station #72. The property is located within the Virginia City Highlands at 2610
Cartwright Road, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 003-041-
02.

12Z; PUBLIC HEARING AT 11:00AM (No Action):

Hold a public hearing on the fair market value of the appraised land associated with
Assessor’s Parcel Number 005-061-52 pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS)
244.2795.

13.  DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible action to consider comments received on the public
hearing related to the fair market value of the appraised land associated with
Assessor’s Parcel Number 005-061-52 pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS)
244.2795 and give direction to staff to proceed with an easement utilizing the
appraisal and public comments as appropriate.




14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22,

RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
BOARD

DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Promotional Badge pinning for Battalion Chief Jim Morgan and Fuels Management
Officer Chris Barton. This item will be continued to the July 20, 2021 Board of County
Commissioners Meeting.

DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible action to approve disposal by means of auction, donation,
or sale of surplus District fire apparatus and equipment.

DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible approval of an increase in the awarded money to the
Storey County Fire Protection District for fuels reduction from NV Energy in the
amount of $875,702.67 over the duration of the 3-year agreement.

DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible action to approve a contract between the Carson City and
the Storey County Fire Protection District for use of the Regional Fire Training
Facility.

RECESS TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS

DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Presentation, discussion, and direction regarding suggested ClearGov financial
transparency addition to the County website not to exceed $8,500.00

DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible action, accept donation to Storey County at no-cost vacant
land including surface rights only located at 347 South “G” Street (Assessor Parcel
Number 001.134.02; Lot 5, Block 179, Range “G”, Virginia City, Nevada, filed June 6,
1865, in the office of the Storey County Recorder), Virginia City, Storey County,
Nevada, and as further described in the enclosed exhibits.

DISCUSSION/FOR POSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible action to approve and authorize the County Manager to
sign an 18-month contract between Storey County and Lakota HRM, LLC a Nevada
limited liability company to provide labor relations guidance and administration,




interpret and guide application of labor agreements and personnel policies; perform
and oversee administrative investigations; and ensure due process and discipline are
administered in compliance with union agreements and personnel policies.

23, DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Update, discussion, and provide direction to county staff and lobbyists regarding SCR
11 (formerly BDR 1109 and 1148) interim legislative committee to study Innovation
Zone draft legislation, and other properly related matters.

24.  DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Annual review and evaluation of the performance of Austin Osborne, County
Manager for the time period of July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021. The Board may,
without further notice, take administrative action against Austin Osborne, County
Manager, if the Board determines that such administrative action is warranted after
considering the character, alleged misconduct, professional competence, or physical
or mental health of Mr. Osborne. At the end of the annual performance evaluation, the
Board may modify existing goals and objectives of the County Manager’s job;
determine whether or not to provide a merit increase, bonus, or other compensation
adjustment; take adverse administrative action up to and including termination; or
any other such action deemed warranted by the Board.

23, DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible approval of Business License second readings:

A, Atypical Consulting and Events - Out of County / 18124 Wedge Pkwy. #156 ~
Reno, NV

B Big Bear Springs - General / 162 S. C St. ~ Virginia City, NV

i Dad’s Family Automotive LLC - General / 351 N. C St. ~ Virginia City, NV

D EC Construction, LLC - Contractor / 105 E. Parr Blvd. ~ Reno, NV

E. Gomez Roofing LLC - Contractor / 14 Grosh Ave. ~ Dayton, NV

F: Refined Technologies, Inc. - Out of County / 480 Wildwood Forest Dr. Ste. 400
~ Spring, TX

G. Tahoe Rim Realty - General / 915 C St. ~ Virginia City, NV

H.  The Biggest Little Vape Shop - General / 440 USA Pkwy. Ste. 104 ~ Sparks, NV
I. The Boldt Company - Contractor / 2525 N. Roemer Rd. ~ Appleton W1

26.  PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)
27.  ADJOURNMENT OF ALL ACTIVE AND RECESSED BOARDS ON THE AGENDA

NOTICE:
e Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.
* Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding
the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969.




¢ [tems may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

e Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be limited
to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item upon
which action will be taken on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the
agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the
Board. Please limit vour comments to three minutes.

e Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color,
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.

* Inaccordance with Federal civil rights law and U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) civil
rights regulations and policies, the USDA, its Agencies, offices, and employees, and
institutions participating in or administering USDA programs are prohibited from
discriminating based on race, color, national origin, religion, sex, gender identity (including
gender expression), sexual orientation, disability, age, marital status, family/ parental status,
income derived from a public assistance program, political beliefs, or reprisal or retaliation for
prior civil rights activity, in any program or activity conducted or funded by USDA (not all
bases apply to all programs). Remedies and complaint filing deadlines vary by program or
incident.

Persons with disabilities who require alternative means of communication for program
information (e.g., Braille, large print, audiotape, American Sign Language, etc.) should contact
the responsible Agency or USDA’s TARGET Center at (202) 720-2600 (voice and TTY) or
contact USDA through the Federal Relay Service at (800) 877-8339. Additionally, program
information may be made available in languages other than English.

To file a program discrimination complaint, complete the USDA Program Discrimination
Complaint Form, AD-3027, found online at

http:/ /www .ascr.usda.gov/complaint_filing_cust.html and at any USDA office or write a
letter addressed to USDA and provide in the letter all of the information requested in the form.
To request a copy of the complaint form, call (866) 632-9992. Submit your completed form or
letter to USDA by:

(1) mail: U.S. Department of Agriculture
Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights
1400 Independence Avenue, SW
Washington, D.C. 20250-9410;

(2) fax: (202) 690-7442; or

(3) email: program.intake@usda.gov.

USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and lender.

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners” Office in
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440.




CERTIFICATION OF POSTING

[, Vanessa Stephens , Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before 07/14/2021; Virginia City
Post Office at 132 S C St, Virginia City, NV, the Storey County Courthouse located at 26 S B St,
Virginia City, NV, the Virginia City Fire Department located at 145 N C St, Virginia City, NV, the
Virginia City Highlands Fire Department located a 2610 Cartwright Rd, VC Highlands, NV and
Lockwood Fire Department located at 431 Canyon Way, Lockwood, NV. This agenda was also
posted to the Nevada State website at https:/ /notice.nv.gov/ and to the Storey County website at
https:/ / www.storeycounty.org/agendacenter.




Storenyounty Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

! Meetiné date: 7/20/2021 10:33 AM - " Estimate of Time _Required: 5 minutes
BOCC Meeting 7
Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

« Title: Consideration and possible approval of the Agenda for July 20, 2021.

*  Recommended motion: Approve or amend as necessary.

* Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens

Department: Contact Number: 775-847-0969

+ Staff Summary: None

* Supporting Materials: See attached
» Fiscal Impact: None

» Legal review required: False

* Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name:

County Manager Other Agency Review:

*  Board Action:

] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification

L
| [ ] Denied [ | Continued




Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

' Meeting date: 7/20/2021 10:33 AM - ' Estimate of Time Required: 5 minutes
- BOCC Meeting
Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

« Title: Consideration and possible approval of the Minutes for June 1, 2021.

*  Recommended motion: Approve or amend as necessary.

* Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens

Department: Contact Number: 775-847-0969

+ Staff Summary: None
* Supporting Materials: See attached

» Fiscal Impact: None

* Legal review required: False

* Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name:

County Manager Other Agency Review:

* Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification

[ ] Denied [ ] Continued




STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING

JUNE 1, 2021 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

MEETING MINUTES
JAY CARMONA ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
CLAY MITCHELL
VICE-CHAIRMAN
LANCE GILMAN VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Roll Call: Chairman Carmona, Vice-Chairman Mitchell, Commissioner Gilman, County Manager
Austin Osborne, Clerk/ Treasurer Vanessa Stephens, Fire Chief Jeremy Loncar, Community Relations
Director Lara Mather, Water/Sewer Project Manager Mike Nevin, Public Works Director Jason
Wierzbicki, Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis, Project Manager Mike Northan, Emergency
Management Director Joe Curtis, Comptroller Jennifer McCain, Human Resources Director Tobi
Whitten, Community Chest Director Erik Schoen, Employee Relations Jeanne Greene, Senior Planner
Kathy Canfield, IT Director James Deane, Sheriff Antinoro, Communications Manager Becky Parson,
Recorder Marney Hansen-Martinez, Community Development and Fire Marshal Martin Azevedo,
Tourism Department Katie Demuth, Justice of the Peace Eileen Herrington

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
Meeting was called to order by Chairman Carmona at 10:00 A.M.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Commissioner Carmona led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for June 1, 2021.
County Manager Osborne asked to continue item 8 to June 15, 2021.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, make a motion to approve the Agenda for June 1, 2021, Action:
Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman Mitchell, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote:
Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of Minutes for March
16, 2021.

Public Comment: None




Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, make a motion to approve the Minutes for March 16, 2021,
Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman Mitchell, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman,
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

5. CONSENT AGENDA
I Consideration and possible approval of claims in the amount of $415,638.32.

II Consideration and possible action, approval of business license first readings:
A. Facilities Engineering - Out of County / 900 E. Orangefair Ln., Anaheim, CA
B. Guckenheimer Services LL.C - Out of County / 1017 Central Parkway North, Ste. 100,
San Antonio, TX
C. Howard Street Home - General / 120 N. Howard St., Virginia City, NV
D. Karaki Paining, LLC - Contractor / 172 Edith Lane, Dayton, NV
E. Subway - General / 420 USA Pkwy Ste 102, McCarran, NV

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve today's Consent Agenda, Action: Approve,
Moved by: Vice Chairman Mitchell, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried
by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

6. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

Louise Pena, Rainbow Bend resident: A current action of the HOA Board went against the
homeowners and appointed Larry Huddleson as the HOA liaison to the County. Most of the people
did not vote for Larry Huddleson, therefore we do not give up our rights to speak to any County and
he is not representing all the people in Rainbow Bend, only a small group. She hopes the County
Commissioners and Manager take that into effect. This is a step to try to negotiate with the County to
rent to the GID, the Sheriff, any department they want into lots A and B. She hopes the Commission
will consider all homeowners as having a voice - not just a small group.

Mr. Osborne: He is not aware of an official liaison - he has always "liaised" with various people in
Rainbow Bend HOA, as well as in Lockwood.

Jennifer Agnew, Lockwood resident: As far as she is concerned, the HOA does not speak on her
behalf to the County. As a homeowner she can reach out (to the County) herself. The Commission
and County Manager's Office are very open. Regarding the Board action appointing Mr. Huddleson
into a position - Official Liaison for the Board - she does not even know what it is he is doing with the
HOA Board and with the County. She would like the County to understand that the homeowners
and residents of Lockwood are still there and would like to hear directly from (the County).

7. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval, update, discussion,
and provide direction to county staff and lobbyists regarding upcoming bills and legislation affecting
Storey County including, but not limited to, SB 98 proposing Storey County’s membership into the
Carson Water Subconservancy District, AB 90 two-year interim study regarding regional impacts,
and SCR 11 (formerly BDR 1109 and 1148) one-year interim study on Innovation Zone draft
legislation, and other properly related matters.

Commissioner Gilman recused himself from discussion and vote related to SCR 11, Innovation Zone.

2




County Manager Osborne reviewed various bills/legislation:

e SCR11, Innovation Zone: Has been turned into an interim study to take place between now
and the New Year. Committee meetings will be held each month. It has been requested that
the counties are represented on the committee. In addition, it appears that tribal interests,
natural resources, unions, innovation and technology components (stakeholders) would be on
the committee. (The County) will be involved one way or another through the process. The
position of this (Storey County) Board has been expressed to the legislators throughout this
year.

Assembly Woman Teresa Benitez-Thompson indicated she wanted to engage in discussion
regarding impacts from economic development in the Northern Nevada region - focused on
Storey County. This is fine - (the County) was going to do a study anyway.

Chairman Carmona thanked Mr. Osborne, Vice Chairman Mitchell, and staff, for all the time they
have been spending (at the Legislature). Their efforts are not un-noticed - it is extremely important
especially with the Innovation Zone.

Vice Chairman Mitchell: A "mild" concern was that several amendments offered he felt were
appropriate. One was extension of the finish date for the study. Others include tribal
considerations, infrastructure - more than just water, and impact on schools. Those were not accepted
and that is concerning. He feels the committee will be able to overcome those shortcomings.

e AB90, has died. Any company coming into Storey County would have had to go to regional
planning in all surrounding areas to be approved for impacts. Innovation Zones will provide
a little of AB90.

o AB424 - Requiring bail hearings within 48 hours. This will require court hearings on
weekends - having staff, equipment, and other needs. We were unable to get this changed.
It was extended for a year before becoming effective, which will allow for budgeting and to
prepare accordingly. This will have a substantial financial impact on the County.

No public comment.

e SBY8 - Carson Water Subsconservancy District membership: Passed. The County will now
have eligibility for grant funding and other projects - particularly the Mark Twain Flood
Project.

No public comment.

e AB341 - Cannabis Lounges. Passed, however it is discretionary. The County can prohibit
cannabis lounges.
No public comment.

e SB448 - NVEnergy Green-link project: Passed. Creates a redundancy power grid and solar
feed throughout the State. It provides electric car infrastructure such as along sections of
highways 50 and 395.

No public comment.
e ABI116 - Passed. Traffic tickets will now be civil - no longer criminal.
Public comment:
o Sheriff Antinoro: Thinks there will be more traffic problems - this takes "the teeth" out
of it.
o Judge Herrington: There are many traffic violations that will remain misdemeanors -
this is not all traffic violations.
3




Judge Herrington commented regarding AB424:
» The big deal is it's 48 hours and they wouldn't move it to non-judicial days. One change, it
does not go into effect until July 1, 2022. It will allow for telephonic or remote bail hearings. It
adds to the responsibilities of the JP in Storey County.

Mr. Osborne continued:
e Mail-in ballot: Passed. Also, Nevada will be going from a caucus to a primary election.
» The American Recovery, or Rescue, Program was sorted out. Storey County will receive
somewhere around $1 million. Lara Mather is working hard to figure out where it's coming
from and where it's going. This may help (the County) with infrastructure projects.

Vice Chairman Mitchell: Moving the primary may be "wishful thinking". He does not think the
national parties will let it stand. An unintended consequence of taking the caucus away will mean a
lot less attention from Presidential candidates, less media buys - those kind of things.

A full presentation of the work on various Bills will be presented at the June 15" Commission
meeting.

8. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of the acceptance
of renewal proposal from Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool (POOL) and approval of payment
from fiscal year 2021-2022 funds.

Continued to June 15, 2021.

9. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action/No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports
Sheriff Antinoro:
» AB286 - Gun Bill (ghost guns) has been delivered to the Governor for signature. No more
"home-made" guns from a kit. Expansion of gun-free zones had been removed but was
"snuck" back in under an emergency measure - SB452. The Bill has died.

Fire Chief Loncar:
o The Fuels Management Officer position has been filled internally. They will be interviewing
the next two weeks for all positions in hopes of having all of the NVEnergy staff working by
the end of the month.

Jason Wierzbicki, Public Works Director:
e Road projects, including patch work and slurry seal on Cartwright and at TRI, have been
completed.

DispatchManager Becky Parsons:
¢ Transition for their radios will be done on June 23, They have started moving equipment to
the new building.

Emergency Management Director Joe Curtis:
e Being June 1%, they are waiting for a formal statement on from the Governor regarding Covid
status.




The County has a current total of 111 Covid cases - 8 active showing, it's probably less. One
new case since early May. The County's positivity rate still shows 5.8% - a little high due to a
statistical problem they have had all along. Except for the one case, there hasn't been a new
case in quite a while.

The Quad-County total as of March 2021, is 12,817 cases. 206 still active; 227 deaths.

The population for the 4 counties is 168,693. We're dealing with a lot of people.

Unless things change, this will be the last week for emailing Covid statistics.

We're at point where we can relax a bit. There have been a lot of tourists on weekends and we
have weathered that. This does not seem to have had an effect on our statistics, or the regions.

Vice Chairman Mitchell: He noticed in some media sources that they have picked up the "quirk" in
the vaccination reporting for the County. Is there any information on that? Is there a way to get a
little more accurate numbers?

Mr. Curtis: We do not produce the statistics - the State does.

Vice Chairman Mitchell is concerned that the opinion may form that we are not participating in
vaccinations and that there is an elevated risk.

Mr. Curtis: It's based on who "receives it to administer it", not who receives it "in the arm". It all goes
to Carson City for the four counties. The other counties do not look right either.

Community Relations Coordinator Lara Mather:

Regarding the statistics, she has reviewed what is provided to the County. An issue she found
is the statistics list the County's population for 12 years old and up. With those numbers
included, it appears our percentage is actually lower than it is. Percentage based on the graph
numbers provided by the State shows we are about 14% fully vaccinated. Reviewing the
numbers we are aware of, it is believed that we are at about 33%. Sharing zip codes with other
counties is unfortunate.
Today is the last scheduled vaccination pod in the county. It is possible more may be
scheduled, but at this time they are not. Gethealthycarsoncity.org has information regarding
vaccination locations. Pharmacies, health clinics, and doctors' offices are now doing
vaccinations.
Under a Historic Preservation Grant, four graduate students will be going throughout the
historic district - July 7" through August 6'" - mapping historic structures. Through a grant,
[Pads are being provided to the students. A map has been loaded into the [Pads identifying all
structures that need to be recorded. Data collected will include what structures are made of,
what the roof is made out of, the window style, and so on. Photos can be taken and attached
to the data. Each day the students will go to the Comstock Historic District to verify records to
insure information being logged in is correct. The students will be stopping in front of
businesses and private residences gathering information. They will not go on to property.
On behalf of the Senior Center:

o Everyone is reminded they are fully open.

o For residents in Lockwood - Rainbow Bend area, transportation to the VCTC

merchants and resident's barbeque is available.




Project Manager Mike Northan:

They are close to having a fire alarm agreement in place for the V&T Freight Depot. The fence
around the building is being taken down and junk is being removed. Weeds are being cleared.
The building will then be available for limited use.

The IT addition (in the Divide building) is moving along very well.

Preliminary design for the Lockwood Senior Center is underway.

He hopes to soon present a budget and plans for traffic signal maintenance in TRI and to bring
both signals under a uniform maintenance and repair program.

Katie Demuth, VCTC:

They have had a couple of great weekends with the Chili Cookoff and Memorial Day Cruise.
"Street Vibes" Spring Rally is this weekend. This is looking to be bigger than normal.

The County Bar-b-que/Welcome Back event will be June 11", Shuttles will be provided for
the various communities. This is a free event - starting at 4PM.

Looking at 4" of July - there will be the normal parade, fireworks, and entertainment during
the day.

Water/Sewer Project Manager Mike Nevin:

Hillside Water Tanks project:

o Work was completed on SR 342 before cold weather last week. Eventually they will
grind and re-pave the section where the old valve was removed. There will be detours
around the area when that takes place.

o The new electrical and SCADA system at the site have been completed and are now on-
line.

o All links have been restored between the site and the wastewater treatment plant.

o Work on tank 2 should be complete this week. Then the sandblasters can do their work.

o X-rays of the wells, as required, has been completed. They are waiting for results.

Gold Hill Wastewater Treatment Plant project:

o On track to receive the building this month - delivery anticipated about June 17t

o NDEP conducted an inspection of the project and were very pleased with progress
despite Covid and disruption in the supply chain.

o NVEnergy has had difficulties with permits, which are required to work in and around
the highway. It was expected last Friday - they will follow up on this.

Comptroller Jennifer McCain:

They are working on augments and transfers allowing adjustments to the current budget for
unforeseen expenses or changes in priorities for the up-coming year. Transfers will be done
within General Fund departments.

As of the current date, the General Fund has taken in $18,809,988. This is $585,000 over budget
for revenue. Budgeted expenses were $18,019,961 - current expenses are $13,925,000 - 22%
below budget. The current year is looking good, with a few minor changes to be made to
insure everyone is within budget.

Vice Chairman Mitchell asked if these current numbers are anticipated to change. Or, is this what
we're expected to end the year with?




Ms. McCain: Thinks there will be minor expense changes. Each department has been asked to advise
if they have any large purchases to be made in June. Only a couple have responded. Revenue comes
in all month with some revenue in July that is bounced back.

Vice Chairman Mitchell: Any idea of why the increased revenue and decreased expenses?

Ms. McCain: In part, the decreased expenses is due to everyone being very conservative during the
pandemic. All departments had been asked to be very conscious of spending not knowing what was
going to happen. This is department heads paying attention to what they are doing.

IT Director James Deane:

» New staff member, Nick Fonzo, started today.

* A new microwave link is being added from the Divide Building to Public Works. A second
link will be added to make it redundant, and also make the water treatment plant and new IT
facility redundant also.

e AllIT equipment has been moved to the new dispatch location.

Community Development Director and Fire Marshal Martin Azevedo:
¢ The Community Development Strategic Plan draft has been completed.
¢ Reminder - we are in wildland fire season. There have been a few fires throughout the state.
There was a brush fire at Pyramid Lake due to fireworks. Another fire was at the State line on
Hwy 580 due to a campfire. Everyone be careful - it is very dry.

Community Chest Director Erik Schoen:
¢ Summer and after school programs are in abeyance this week. Staff are working on summer
programs which start in full next week. There are 60-65 students enrolled, including a number
of middle school students. This should be an active summer with every week having it's own
theme and focus.

County Manager Austin Osborne:

e All department strategic plans are drafted and ready to be presented to the Board for
consideration and discussion. There are a couple of the appointed offices left.

 Still working on the 2024 Capital Improvement Plan. All departments are going through the
list and adding anything they think they may need. This should be ready in August for Board
consideration.

e Regarding earlier comments about Lockwood - we have listened to every comment that comes
in out there. There have been Town Halls, meetings with Canyon GID, Lockwood LCC,
Rainbow Bend Homeowners Association, as well as with individuals. There have been phone
calls. People have expressed interest in what they would like to see in Lockwood as far as
satellite community services. He consistently hears they would like a senior center,
community center, and those services to be provided where it is. They like the area - it's a
neutral area where people can enjoy County services, etc. LCC people don't need to go to
Rainbow Bend; Rainbow Bend people don’t have to go to LCC.

There has been talk about having a satellite office in Lockwood - with DMV one day, the
County Manager there one day, and other County offices could be there a day or so. The
possibility of replacing the Sheriff's sub-station building with a more appropriate building has

7




also been discussed. People seem to like the idea of having offices at the community center as
well. Adding on to the building would get expensive and it takes away parking,.

The Sheriff's Office seems to be a palatable idea. Annexing the Rainbow Bend clubhouse is
still on the table for discussion. From community workshops, people are leaning the other
direction for a neutral place where people could go. There will be more Town Halls.

The next Town Hall in Mark Twain will be Thursday, June 10th at 5:15 PM. Lockwood will be
next - services and satellite offices can be discussed at that time.

Commissioner Gilman: It is so rewarding to see all the time, effort, and focus spent on the outlying
communities. We have been working on the process in Lockwood for a long time - and in Mark
Twain also. This is "stair-stepping" to a lot of improvement and focus on the County as a whole.

Chairman Carmona agrees.

Clerk/Treasurer Vanessa Stephens:
o The diesel tax went into effect in March. The first batch of revenue from the State brought in
$32,217.30. The old tax for the same month was $24,047.06. It seems this will be a pretty good
source of revenue.

10. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)
Vice Chairman Mitchell:
e Participated in the Memorial Day cruise. It was a great turnout and was very positive.

11. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval to award a contract to
the successful bidder for propane fuel delivery service to county tanks in accordance with the
submitted bids.

Mike Northan, Project Coordinator: The County's current contract with Ferrellgas has expired.
Bidders have been solicited to provide fuel delivery service to county tanks. Four companies
submitted bids. Changes to terms and conditions were made increasing the incentive for smaller
companies to participate. Mr. Northan reviewed the conditions of the contract. Purchase of tanks is
being considered. Prices for seismic valves were solicited - this may be a separate purchase in the
future. Four companies submitted bids. Comstock Propane is the apparent low-bid.

Mr. Northan reviewed the rates proposed by Comstock Propane which are substantial savings over
the County's current contract. Comstock Propane and High Sierra Propane are both good candidates
for the contract. Staff recommends Comstock Propane.

Public Comment: None
Commissioner Gilman said this highlights the value of competitive bidding.

Vice Chairman Mitchell noted that Comstock is the most competitive in the direct price per gallon.

Ferrellgas is willing to offer a somewhat better rate for County residents. He thought if there was a
way to leverage the volume of business the County does to the benefit of residents, that would be a
good use of time. While it is not a huge difference in what is being offered by High Sierra and

8




Comstock, it is slightly better as a direct benefit to the residents - but offset by a higher price to the
County.

Chairman Carmona: He has been a user of Ferrellgas and they have been fine. He appreciates these
(companies) willingness to give residents a break. Does Comstock have any other fees, as Ferrell
normally does- for minimum deliveries or surcharges?

Mr. Northan: Not as far as he knows. [t's based on what is in the bid documents. No taxes and no
additional fees were specified. He will have to verify.

Mr. Osborne commended Mr. Northan in making this competitive by having these other (companies)
come on-board. Perhaps in the next round we can get that down, or closer to, the employee level.
Regarding fees, new in the contract is if a County tank goes dry, we can charge the company $1,000.
That has happened - it could be catastrophic to a historic building if that happened in the winter.

Vice Chairman Mitchell: He is comfortable accepting staff's recommendation.

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to award the contract for propane fuel delivery and
authorize the County Manager to execute an agreement with Comstock Propane for delivery of
propane to County tanks, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman Mitchell, Seconded by:
Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3).

12. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of Resolution 21-615
regarding the publication of notice of the proposed amendment of a lease of additional office and
parking spaces to TRI General Improvement District (TRIGID) and providing for a public meeting on
July 6, 2021 to consider objections to the amended lease. It is proposed that the existing lease to
TRIGID be amended to provide 160 square feet of additional office space and 180 square feet of
additional parking space at the County Building located at 1705 Peru Drive in the Tahoe Reno
Industrial Center. No additional rental amount above the $900.00 TRIGID is currently paying will be
charged.

Deputy District Attorney Loomis: This is authorization for the County to lease County-owned
property to another governmental entity without a bid process. To do this, the County must adopt a
resolution providing notice of the lease and of a public hearing where objections can be made.
Resolution 21-615 is the proposal to amend the existing lease to TRIGID providing additional space.
The date set for public hearing is July 6, 2021.

Public Comment: None

Vice Chairman Mitchell asked if there is a specific direction (the County) is going with this building -
space availability, need to expand. What if the County needs more space? We are committed to
other governmental entities that share the space. He is just concerned with the long-term and has no
problem providing additional space if the GID needs it.

Mr. Osborne: (The County) has taken note of this. Each of these do have closure - if one party notices
another, there would be a vacation. For the GID, we came out equally - they get the office space they
need and have also done tenant improvements and things that (the County) will be able to use down

9




the road. There have been other tenants who have done improvements. We are looking at
potentially relocating the (adjoining) fire station. This would provide more space for expansion in
that building.

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve Resolution 21-615 providing for the publication
of a notice of notice of the proposed amendment of a lease to TRIGID and setting a public meeting on
the proposed amendment for July 6, 2021, at 10:30am at the County Courthouse located at 26 So. B
Street in Virginia City, Nevada, and authorize the Chairman to sign, Action: Approve, Moved by:
Vice Chairman Mitchell, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

13. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval Resolution 21-616
regarding the publication of notice of the proposed lease of 120 square feet of office and parking
spaces to the State of Nevada, Department of Administration, Division of Public Works (Dept.) on
behalf of the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public and Behavioral Health,
Environmental Health Section (DPBH) and providing for a public meeting on July 6, 2021 to consider
objections to the lease. It is proposed that the lease be for four years subject to an option to renew for
five years and for no rent.

Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis: This is a lease of County office to the State Department of
Health for a location where they can conduct inspections of food trucks, food processing facilities,
and restaurants. The State will save money by having an office in TRI. The space is 120 square feet,
with parking - located on Peru Drive. The property will be provided "free of charge". This
Resolution provides for a date and time to consider objections to the lease.

Public Comment: None

Vice Chairman Mitchell: We might want to take note of this for when the discussion about impact
happens. This is a "small check" on our side.

Mr. Osborne: When the State came to us a few years back, the objective was to serve TRIC employees
and companies who had to go to Carson City for health inspection documentation and permits. Paul
Cohen reached out saying they could provide much better service if they were set up in TRI. They
have been providing wonderful service for vendors out there - including over 48 food trucks.

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to Resolution 21-616 providing for the publication of notice
of proposed lease to the Department on behalf DPBH and setting a public meeting on the proposed
lease for July 6, 2021, at 11:00 AM at the County Courthouse located at 26 So. B Street, Virginia City,
Nevada, and authorize the Chairman to sign, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman Mitchell,
Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary:
Yes=3)

14. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of the annexation of
property owned by EP Minerals into the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center and of an amendment to the
Development Agreement dated February 1, 2000 (Agreement) between Storey County, Tahoe- Reno
Industrial Center LLC and DP Operating Partnership L.P. to allow commercial uses on all of the
property proposed for annexation.

10




Commissioner Gilman, having a pecuniary interest in adjacent properties, recused himself from
discussion and vote on this item.

Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis reviewed changes to this (item) since it was put on the
agenda. The proposed Development Agreement is out. The main change to the Agreement that is in
the packet is in Section 5 - this provision is being eliminated. The only provision in the Agreement
being is addressed is the annexation of the (inaudible)property.

Michael Pagni with EP Minerals: EP has been annexed into the GID for water/sewer service , we are
now looking to be annexed into the development agreement for our properties.

Vice Chair Mitchell: To confirm, the change being from the original version (the Board) was given, is
the elimination of Section 5 from the Amendment - dealing with commercial uses.

Mr. Loomis: Yes.

Vice Chair Mitchell: By annexing in, EP Minerals would be subject to the terms of the Development
Agreement for TRL

Mr. Loomis: Correct.

Kris Thompson, Project Manager for Tahoe Reno Industrial Center: Mr. Loomis reached out to us to
confirm they are "good to go" designating the EP Minerals property eligible for retail and commercial
property. The answer is "yes". Their property is in the premiere retail sector still available for
development. More amenities and retail are needed.

Mr. Osborne: Once a property is annexed into the (Development) Agreement, it is, by default, zoned
Industrial. A company can come to the County and obtain a letter saying this is appropriate for
commercial use, and if TRI Center agrees, the property can be converted to commercial use.

Vice Chair Mitchell: Understands there's a built-in ability to use up to 10% for commercial - this is in
excess of that.

Mr. Loomis: Thinks about 570 acres is the proposed amount of the annexation. About 2% of the
industrial park is used for commercial purposes. Including this property which would not exceed the
10% - there is still a fair amount of property for commercial use outside of this property.

Mr. Osborne: Right now there is a 10% cap for commercial use which seemed appropriate at the
time. There have been talks to reconsider and remove and/or increase the cap. If would be fine if the
entire industrial center was commercial - it brings in sales tax dollars, amenities, there is nothing
disadvantages about it.

Vice Chair Mitchell: Understands use on the specific properties are allowed, such as the Tire Rack

distribution location which also does retail sales. Is it a correct understanding they would be allowed
to annex in 10% for retail?

11




Mr. Loomis: No. 10% of the industrial park can be used for commercial purposes - it is not limited to
10% of any particular parcel. Planning has evaluated the number of parcels dedicated to commercial

- about 2% of the park. If EP Minerals wants to use its entire parcel for commercial, they can ask and

get a letter from Planning authorizing that. They would have to go to the TRI, LLC for concurrence.

Mr. Thompson: Mr. Osborne and Ms. Canfield (Senior Planner) foresaw this situation with the 10%
limitation. TRI is in agreement that, if the 10% needs to be increased, they have no issue. The original
purpose of the 10% was to ensure the arterials would stay available for industrial development.
That's done, so the 10% limitation no longer serves a purpose.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, hereby move to approve the annexation of the property owned
by EP Minerals and to allow commercial zoning on the annexed property, Action: Approve, Moved
by: Vice Chairman Mitchell, Seconded by: Chairman Carmona, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

15. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD

16. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of Memorandum of
Understanding between Storey County Fire Protection District and the Storey County Fire Fighters
Association Local 4227.

Chief Loncar explained there are a few problems with the way the contract was written. The contract
has no means for direct donation - "if you needed sick leave, I couldn't give it to you". If (a person)
runs out of catastrophic leave fund, they have nothing. Another problem is his staff has been split in
half - Battalion Chiefs or office staff - no one else was eligible. This (revised) MOU states if you are a
Fire District employee you may receive direct donation of sick or annual leave, provided you are
injured. Wording regarding long-term injury or catastrophic leave was not changed.

This was presented to the Union - they were completely on-board. This is the MOU that was agreed
to.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Fire Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve the Memorandum of Understanding
between Storey County Fire Protection District and the Storey County Fire Fighters Association Local
4227, outlining changes to Article 8 of the 2019-2022 CBA as it relates to catastrophic leave and sick
leave donation, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman Mitchell , Seconded by: Commissioner
Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

17. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS




18. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of Second Reading,
General Business License for Pilot Thomas Logistics LLC; 201 N Rupert St., Fort Worth Tx, 76107.
Petroleum Products Distribution & Wholesale.

Sheriff Antinoro: Applicant passed all background checks and there is nothing to prohibit them from
getting a license.

Public Comment: None

Vice Chair Mitchell: What causes a business licenses to be considered separate from the Consent
Agenda?

Sheriff Antinoro: The way the ordinance is set up - if it's a privileged or utilities license, it goes to the
Sheriff's Office. This is considered a distributor's license, not a privileged license.

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve the Second Reading, General Business License
for Pilot Thomas Logistics LLC; 201 N Rupert St., Fort Worth Tx, 76107. Petroleum Products
Distribution & Wholesale, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman Mitchell , Seconded by:
Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

19. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of business
license Second Readings:

A. Bart Manufacturing Inc. - Out of County / 3787 Spinnaker Ct., Fremont, CA

B. Bluewater Energy Solutions, Inc. - Out of County / 3330 Cobb Pkwy NW Ste 324 PMB 234,
Acworth, GA

C. Fencing Specialists, Inc. - Contractor / 3500 John Peter Lee St., North Las Vegas, NV

D. Gilliam Construction - Contactor / 5471 Kietzke Ln. Ste. 300, Reno, NV

E. Innovolt Electric, LLC - Contactor / 6247 Dean Martin Dr., Las Vegas, NV

F. Kingpin - Out of County / 8218 Big River Dr., Reno, NV

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve the second reading of business licenses listed
under item #19 - items #A through F, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman Mitchell,
Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary:
Yes=3)

20. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

Louise Pena, Lockwood resident: Thank you to Mr. Osborne and the County Commissioners for
having a professional meeting and getting so much done. Thank you for listening to all of the
homeowners and doing what is best for our county. She is excited for all the changes headed to
Lockwood. Thank you for the hiring of Toni Hilyard. It's exciting to see everything open and the
Community Center "popping". Thank you for all your work.

Jennifer Agnew, Lockwood resident: The Commission, County Manager, and all Departments who
gave updates - the County is in great hands and is in great shape. She enjoyed hearing there is a little

13




excess revenue compared to budget year-to-date. And about 20% less expenses year-to-date. The
County is doing great financially, professionally and she is glad she lives in this county. Thank you
to those who are making that happen.

21. ADJOURNMENT of all active and recessed Boards on the Agenda

Chairman Carmona adjourned the meeting at 11:52 A.M.




‘ Storey C_Olinty Board Vofi(ffounty
Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 7/20/2021 10:33 AM - Estimate of Time Required: 0 -5
- BOCC Meeting ] -
| Agenda Item Type: Consent Agenda
« Title: Consideration and possible action, approval of business license first readings:
» A. Aardvark, Incorporated — Contractor / 3532 Gracia Del Dios Dr ~ Reno, NV
« B. Akal Construction, Inc. — Contractor / 1024 Iron Point Rd. Ste. 1046 ~ Folsom, CA
« C. Am Quip Systems, LLC — Contractor / 1315 Greg St. # 114 ~ Sparks, NV
« D. DRYCO Construction, Inc. — Contractor / 42745 Boscell Rd. ~ Fremont, CA
« E. Fastway Xpress, Inc. — Transportation / 1425 Maritime St. ~ Oakland, CA
» F. Giant Roofing LLC — Contractor / 75 Bank St. Ste 7 ~ Sparks, NV
* G. High Country Propane Inc. — Out of County / 1262 Dupont Ct. ~ Manteca, CA
« H. High Priority Construction — Contractor / 11935 Chesapeake Dr. ~ Reno, NV
* |. Omboli Interiors Inc. — Contractor / 4200 Rewana Way # 505 ~ Reno, NV
» J. PHC Builders — Contractor / 1351 Tule Peak Cir. ~ Carson City, NV
« K. Sierra View Realty — Home Business / 1625 Main St. ~ Virginia City, NV
» L. Tippmann Design Build, LLC — Contractor / 4218 Hobson Ct. ~ Ft. Wayne, IN

»  Recommended motion: None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda) |
move to approve all first readings (if removed from consent agenda by request)

* Prepared by: Ashley Mead

Department: Contact Number: 7758470966
« Staff Summary: First readings of submitted business license applications are normally

approved on the consent agenda. The application are then submitted at the next
Commissioner's meeting for approval.

* Supporting Materials: Sce attached

* Fiscal Impact: None

* Legal review required: False

« Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name:

County Manager Other Agency Review:




Storey County Community Bebelopment

W Loy,

\
Y

110 Toll Road ~ Gold Hill Divide
P O Box 526 ~ Virginia City NV 89440

(775) 847-0966 ~ Fax (775) 847-0935
CommunityDevelopment@storeycounty.org

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s office July 12, 2021
Austin Osborne, County Manager Via Email

Er: Ashley Mcad

Please add the following item(s) to the July 20, 2021 COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda:
FIRST READINGS:

Aardvark, Incorporated — Contractor / 3532 Gracia Del Dios Dr ~ Reno, NV
Akal Construction, Inc. — Contractor / 1024 Iron Point Rd. Ste. 1046 ~ Folsom, CA
Am Quip Systems, LL.C — Contractor / 1315 Greg St. # 114 ~ Sparks, NV
DRYCO Construction, Inc. — Contractor / 42745 Boscell Rd. ~ Fremont, CA
Fastway Xpress, Inc. — Transportation / 1425 Maritime St. ~ Oakland, CA
Giant Roofing LLC - Contractor / 75 Bank St. Ste 7 ~ Sparks, NV

High Country Propane Inc. — Out of County / 1262 Dupont Ct. ~ Manteca, CA
High Priority Construction — Contractor / 11935 Chesapeake Dr. ~ Reno, NV
Omboli Interiors Inc. — Contractor / 4200 Rewana Way # 505 ~ Reno, NV
PHC Builders — Contractor / 1351 Tule Peak Cir. ~ Carson City, NV

. Sierra View Realty — Home Business / 1625 Main St. ~ Virginia City, NV
Tippmann Design Build, LL.C — Contractor / 4218 Hobson Ct. ~ Ft. Wayne, IN

CFRSIEOMEBORR

Ec: Community Development Planning Departiment Shenff's Office
Commissioner’s Office Comptroller’s Office



Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

| Meéting'daté: 7/20/2021 10:33 AM - " Estimate of Time R_equired: 0 min
. BOCC Meeting
Agenda Item Type: Consent Agenda

Title: Consideration and possible action, approval of claims in the amount of

$2.,461,706.40

Recommended motion: Approval of claims as submitted

Prepared by: Cory Y. Wood

Department: Contact Number: 7758471133

Staff Summary: Please find attached claims

Supporting Materials: See attached
Fiscal Impact: N/A

Legal review required: False

Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other Agency Review:

Board Action:

| ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification

[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

O
2



Vendor Number

Vendor Name

Bank Code: AP Bank-AP Bank

405261
406361
100135
404394
100285
403959
406078
100430
100422
403671
100476
404500
100560
404216
403268

100670
100670
405235
405519
405134
100655
404868
403950
99652

404333
403887
406406
404747
406415
404466
406345
4056438
404527
404547
405986
403216
404509
405264
402959
405969
404896
101899
404778
403040
100826
403753
100978
403655
405726
404583
103317
404760
405263

A AND H INSURANCE, INC

Allen, Kenneth J., Jr.
ALSCO INC

American Tower Investments LLC
AVS DEVELOPMENT LTD

BENDER, DEBORAH

Black Anchor Supply Company LLC
BOARD OF REGENTS (COMPT)
BOB BARKER COMPANY INC
BURRELL, SCOTT LEWIS

BURTON'S FIRE INC

CARSON DODGE CHRYSLER INC
CARSON TAHOE REGIONAL HEA
CARSON VALLEY OIL CO INC
CELLCO PARTNERSHIP

“*oid®*
CFOA
CFOA

CHARTWELL STAFFING SERV
Cigna Health and Life Insurance Conr

CMC TIRE INC

COMMUNITY CHEST INC
COMPLETE DOCUM MNGMNT SOL
COMSTOCK CEMETERY FOUNDAT
COMSTOCK CHRONICLE {VC)
COMSTOCK FOUNDATION FOR
COMSTOCK GOLD MILL LLC

Comstock Propane

CROSS FIRE EQUIPMENT & TRAININ!

Czarnocki, Gretta
DAIOHS USA INC
Dajen Inc.

Dianne S. Drinkwater PC

DOS DOGS LLC

ELLIOTT AUTO SUPPLY INC
Farr Construction Corporation
FARR WEST ENGINEERING
FASTENAL COMPANY
FIDELITY SEC LIFE INS CO
FLAG STORE OF NEV INC-THE

Fleetpride, INC

GOLDEN GATE/SET PETROLEUM

GRAINGER
HAT, LTD
HENRY SCHEIN, INC,

HISTORIC FOURTH WARD SCHOOL F
HOT SPOT BROADBAND INC

INTERSTATE OIL CO
151 SERVICES CORP
iT1 Consulting, LLC

JAMES C MCLENNAN MDPC

JBP LILC
JOLCOVER, SCOTT

KANSAS CITY LIFE INS CO

Payment Date

07/02/2021
07/02/2021
07/02/2021
07/02/2021
07/02/2021
07/02/2021
07/02/2021
07/02/2021
07/02/2021
07/02/2021
07/02/2021
07/02/2021
07/02/2021
07/02/2021
07/02/2021
07/02/2021
07/02/2021
07/02/2021
07/02/2021
07/02/2021
07/02/2021
07/02/2021
07/02/2021
07/02/2021
07/02/2021
07/02/2021
07/02/2021
07/02/2021
07/02/2021
07/02/2021
07/02/2021
07/02/2021
07/02/2021
07/02/2021
07/02/2021
07/02/2021
07/02/2021
07/02/2021
07/02/2021
07/02/2021
07/02/2021
07/02/2021
07/02/2021
07/02/2021
07/02/2021
07/02/2021
07/02/2021
07/02/2021
07/02/2021
07/02/2021
07/02/2021
07/02/2021
07/02/2021
07/02/2021

Payment Type Discount Amount
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00
Regular 0.00

Check Register

Packet: APPKT03164 - 2021-07-02 AP Payments cw 6/30 &

7/2/21

By Check Number

Payment Amount

460,073.58
400.00
302.90
684.29
212.40
960.00

1,391.15
6,875.00
160.78
804.25
179.76
362.12
906.00
2,498.14
2,785.68
0.00
400.00
300.00
7,383.00
19,938.03
6,099.06
64,875.00
7,546.85
6,250.00
871.03
108.00
94.50
822.00
5,490.00
500.00
142.80
40.00
2,362.50
1,638.00
953.53
597,673.50
1,273.75
747.54
244.85
29.95
391.54
57.25
483.30
1,272.30
269.36
30,670.50
20.00
2,063.72
27794
3,545.52
500.00
100.77
125.00
1,131.56

Number

103669
103670
103671
103672
103673
103674
103675
103676
103677
103678
103679
103680
103681
103682
103683
103684
103685
103686
103687
103688
103689
103690
103691
103692
103693
103654
103695
103696
103697
103698
103699
103700
103701
103702
103703
103704
103705
103706
103707
103708
103709
103710
103711
103712
103713
103714
103715
103716
103717
103718
103719
103720
103721
103722



Check Register Packet: APPKT03164-2021-07-02 AP Payments cw 6/30 & 7/2/21

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Date Payment Type Discount Amount Payment Amount Number
101040 L N CURTIS & SONS 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 260.00 103723
405517 Lakes Crossing Center-State of Neva 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 170.00 103724
404043 LANDIS, KOP, CARLEVATO, LOOS & ¢ 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 30.00 103725
404091 LEWIS, DEBORAH PRINCE 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 800.00 103726
404557 LIBERTY ENGINE CO NO 1 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 2,500.00 103727
404102 LIQUID BLUE EVENTS LLC 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 2,300.00 103728
404102 LIQUID BLUE EVENTS LLC 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 8,336.57 103729
404102 LIQUID BLUE EVENTS LLC 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 28,137.04 103730
406034 Loper, Riley 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 125.00 103731
405077 MACKAY MANSION 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 840.00 103732
404691 MARK TWAIN COMMUNITY CTR 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 5,000.00 103733
403032 MCCAIN, JENNIFER 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 97.10 103734
405307 Mckechnie, Marla ). 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 2,597.00 103735
103126 MEDICAL PRIORITY DISPATCH 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 6,041.00 103736
405144 MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS INC 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 4,160.00 103737
403426 MUNICIPAL CODE CORP 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 250.00 103738
101228 NEV ADMIN BLDG & GROUNDS 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 7,375.84 103739
101343 NEV DEPT HUMAN RESOURCES 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 1,558.42 103740
101026 NEV LEGISLATIVE COUNSEFI 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 174.96 103741
403632 NEVADA BLUE LTD (RNOQ) 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 93.90 103742
405020 Nevin, Michael E. and Virginia M. 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 4,000.00 103743
405284 Onsolve Intermediate Holding Comg 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 2,625.00 103744
406417 QoSoSharp, LLC 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 1,340.37 103745
404118 OPTUMINSIGHT INC 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 502.50 103746
405127 Q'REILLY AUTO ENTERPRISES LLC 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 797.56 103747
404746 OTIS ELEVATOR COMPANY 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 3,158.88 103748
403895 PETRINI, ANGELO D 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 224.00 103749
405433 Pietro Accardi 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 600.00 103750
405256 PIPER'S OPERA HOUSE 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 272.00 103751
406416 Pratt, Josie 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 500.00 103752
405952 Pre-Sort Center of Stockton, Inc. 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 2,163.00 103753
404134 RAPID SPACE LLC 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 278.67 103754
402937 RAY MORGAN CO INC (CA) 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 95.90 103755
404882 RED ROCK SPRING WATER 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 160.00 103756
101520 RENO PAINT MART 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 192.35 103757
406378 RoadSafe Traffic Systems, Inc 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 750.00 103758
406418 Robinson, Mary J 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 180.00 103759
200395 SAINT MARYS ARTCENTER INC 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 32,000.00 103760
101568 SANI-HUT COMPANY INC 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 730.00 103761
405975 Shaheen Beauchamp Butlders, LLC  07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 862.50 103762
405081 SHERMARK DISTRIBUTORS INC 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 147.00 103763
404187 SHOAF, BRIAN ALLEN 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 69.50 103764
406088 Sierra Funding Inc 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 21.87 103765
404750 SIERRA NEVADA CONTST, INC 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 145,744.39 103766
101630 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 12,388.64 103767
**void** 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 0.00 103768
403957 SILVERLAND USA INC 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 1,000.00 103769
405541 Smith, Jason R 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 880.00 103770
406414 Smith, Lance 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 500.00 103771
404195 SOUTHERN GLAZERS WINE & S 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 2,108.50 103772
101726 ST CO SENIOR CENTER(VC) 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 110,585.50 103773
101745 ST CO WATER SYSTEM 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 6,836.66 103774
405475 Staples Cantract & Commercial, Inc  07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 686.03 103775
401352 STOREY COUNTY JEEP POSSE 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 2,500.00 103776
403892 SUN PEAK ENTERPRISES 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 3,820.00 103777
405244 SUTTON HAGUE LAW CORP Q7/02/2021 Regular 0,00 3,412.50 103778
403971 SYN TECH SYSTEMS INC 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 181.10 103779
405114 TAX MANAGEMENT ASSC INC 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 2,900.00 103780
405124 TERRY, SHIRLEY 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 2,128.00 103781
405185 THATCHER COMPANY 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 2,571.67 103782

404473 The DUBE' GROUP INC 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 1,802,13 103783



Check Register Packet: APPKT03164-2021-07-02 AP Payments cw 6/30 & 7/2/21

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Date Payment Type Discount Amount Payment Amount Number
405010 TIMELY TESTING LTD 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 265.00 103784
403728 UNITED SITE SERVICES OF NEVADA  07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 528.56 103785
101845 US POSTOFFICE (VC) 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 250.00 103786
101845 US POSTOFFICE (VC) 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 150.00 103787
405735 VC Tours LLC 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 1,617.00 103788
403983 VCTC 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 100.00 103789
403983 VvCTC 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 240.00 103790
403894 VIRGINIA & TRUCKEE RR CO, INC. 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 5,388.00 103791
404455 WA STATE DEPT OF CORRECT 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 116.02 103792
405574 Washoe County Forensic Science Din  07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 35,201.00 103793
103080 WATERS SEPTIC TANK SV DBA 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 1,480.00 103794
405794 Wharton Concrete Forming Supply ¢ 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 153.92 103795
404295 WELLS ONE COMMERCIAL CARD Q7/02/2021 Bank Draft 0.00 16,595.63 DFT0000821
Bank Code AP Bank Summary
Payable Payment

Payment Type Count Count Discount Payment

Regular Checks 189 125 0.00 1,713,441.25

Manual Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00

Voided Checks o] 2 0.00 0.00

Bank Drafts 25 1 0.00 16,595.63

EFT's 0 0 0.00 0.00

214 128 0.00 1,730,036.88

Approved by the Storey County Board of Commissioners:

Chairman Commissioner Commissioner

I~ 3.4 24

ptr Date
Cédmptroller

Date
Treasurer

7/1/2021 3:46:40 PM —



Check Register Packet: APPKT03164-2021-07-02 AP Payments cw 6/30 & 7/2/21

Fund Summary
Fund Name Period Amount

999 Pooled Cash Account 7/2021 1,730,036.88
1,730,036.88



Check Register

Packet: APPKT03157 - 2021-06-30 Bank Fee WF Ret Cks cw

By Check Number

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Date Payment Type Discount Amount Payment Amount Number
Bank Code: AP Bank-AP Bank
103220 ON THE SIDE GRAPHICS & SIGNS, LLi 06/30/2021 Regular 0.00 15.00 103668
Bank Code AP Bank Summary
Payable Payment
Payment Type Count Count Discount Payment
Regular Checks = 1 1 0.00 15.00
Manual Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00
Voided Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00
Bank Drafts 0 0 0.00 0.00
EFT's 0 ¢} 0.00 0.00
1 1 0.00 15.00
Approved by the Storey County Board of Commissioners:
Chairman Commissioner Commissioner
I 762
& /?, e N—
=t Date
Comptroller
Date

6/30/2021 9:26:44 AM

Treasurer

Page 1 of 2



Check Register Packet: APPKT03157-2021-06-30 Bank Fee WF Ret Cks cw

Fund Summary
Fund Name Period Amount

999 Pooled Cash Account 6/2021 15.00
15.00



Check Register

Packet: APPKT03120 - 2021-06-30 Reissue Void Cks FY 20/21

By Check Number

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Date Payment Type Discount Amount Payment Amount Number
Bank Code: AP Bank-AP Bank
405235 CHARTWELL STAFFING SERV 06/30/2021 Regular 0.00 5,520.00 103665
406045 Hillebrand, Sheila Marie 06/30/2021 Regular 0.00 50.00 103666
405925 Navitas Credit Corp 06/30/2021 Regular 0.00 154,66 103667
Bank Code AP Bank Summary
4 Payable Payment
Payment Type Count Count Discount Payment
Regular Checks 3 0.00 5,724.66
Manual Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00
Voided Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00
Bank Drafts 0 0 0.00 0.00
EFT's 0 0 0.00 0.00
3 3 0.00 5,724.66
Approved by the Storey County Board of Commissioners:
Chairman Commissioner Commissioner
/i 742
(f e~ 2=
= e
Cémptroller
Date
Treasurer
'6/30/2021 9:30 v ' o ) N N . ) o  Page1of 2

6/30/2021 9:30:55 AM




Check Register Packet: APPKT03120-2021-06-30 Reissue Void Cks FY 20/21

Fund Summary
Fund Name Period Amount

999 Pooled Cash Account 6/2021 5,724.66
5,724.66



Check Register

Packet: APPKTD3163 - 2021-06-30 AP payment LS

By Check Number

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Date Payment Type Discount Amount Payment Amount Number
Bank Code: AP VET-AP V&T
406379 AT&T Corp 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 59.67 1364
405280 Bobula's Septic Service, LLC 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 2,250.00 1365
405658 Cellco 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 148.64 1366
405382 City of Carson 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 81.75 1367
405224 KENNETH L DORR JR SOLE M 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 2,092.50 1368
405670 Law Office of Michael 5. Rowe 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 1,660.00 1369
405622 Sierra Pacific Power 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 261.15 1370
405660 Willaman, Gabriel 07/02/2021 Regular 0.00 4,630.00 1371
Bank Code AP V&T Summary
Payable Payment

Payment Type Count Count Discount Payment

Regular Checks 11 8 0.00 11,183.71

Manual Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00

Voided Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00

Bank Drafts 0 0 0.00 0.00

EFT's 0 t] 0.00 0.00

11 8 0.00 11,183.71

Approved by:

/e T
f -//r/i/ ' S / K M&r/

R
Comptroller Date
Treasurer Date
V&T General Manager Date

6/30/2021 3:19:07 PM Page 1 of 2



Check Register

Fund
221

Name
V&T COMMISSION

Fund Summary

Period
7/2021

Packet: APPKT03163-2021-06-30 AP payment LS

Amount

11,183.71
11,183.71



Check Register

Packet: APPKT03178 - 2021-07-09 PERS 715 LS

By Check Number

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Date Payment Type Discount Amount Payment Amount Number
Bank Code: AP Bank-AP Bank
405456 Public Employees Retirement 07/09/2021 EFT 0.00 47,952.97 10203

Bank Code AP Bank Summary

Payable Payment

Payment Type Count Count Discount Payment
Regular Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00
Manual Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00
Voided Checks 0 1] 0.00 0.00
8ank Drafts o 0 0.00 0.00
EFT's 2 1 0.00 47,952.97

2 1 0.00 47,952.97

Approved by the Storey County Board of Commissioners:

Chairman Commissioner Commissioner
7 ;t/'"‘_.’/ . |
NIV 2722
C “Comptroller Date
Treasurer Date

7/8/2021 3:48:35 PM

Page 1 of 2



Check Register Packet: APPKT03178-2021-07-09 PERS 715 LS

Fund Summary
Fund Name Period Amount

999 Pooled Cash Account 7/2021 47,952.97
47,952.97

7/8/2021 3:48:35 PM Page 2 of 2



Vendor History Report

By Vendor Name

Posting Date Range 07/09/2021 - 07/09/2021
Payment Date Range 07/09/2021 - 07/09/2021

Payable Number Description Post Date 1099 Payment Number Payment Date Amount  Shipping Tax  Discount Net Payment
Item Description Units Price Amount Account Number Account Name Dist Amount
Vendor Set: 01 - Storey County Vendors
405424 - Optum Bank, Member FDIC 12,839.66 0.00 0.00 0.00 12,839.66 12,839.66
CMO000696 HSA Contributions 7/9/2021 DFTO000829 7/9/2021 -50.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -50.00 -50.00
HSA Contributions 0.00 0.00 -50.00 001-29506-000 Insurances -50.00
INVO014674 HSA Contributions 7/9/2021 DFT0000822 7/9/2021 12,764.66 0.00 0.00 0.00 12,764.66 12,764.66
HSA Contributions 0.00 0.00 12,764.66 001-29506-000 Insurances 9,228.66
020-29506-000 Rds-Ins 720.00
090-29506-000 Wtr-Ins 235.40
130-29506-000 Swr-Ins 106.60
230-29506-000 VCTC-ins 443.75
231-29506-000 Pipers-ins 121.25
250-29506-000 Fire-Ins 1,846.96
270-29506-000 FireMutualk-ins 62.04
INV0014675 HSA Contributions 7/9/2021 DFT0000823 7/9/2021 125.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 125.00 125.00
HSA Contributions 0.00 0.00 125.00 001-29506-000 Insurances 125.00
Vendors: (1) Total 01 - Storey County Vendors: 12,839.66 0.00 0.00 0.00 12,839.66 12,839.66
Vendors: (1) Report Total: 12,839.66 0.00 0.00 0.00 12,839.66 12,839.66

f Commissioners:

ard O
Approved by the storey County Bo
Commissioner
Commiss‘noner
o ) 77—
Chairman ) |
s /7 Date

e

//———' Date

7/8/2021 3:21:34 PM Page 1 of 1



Vendor Number

Bank Code: AP Bank-AP Bank

405456
404639
300003
300008
405519

300001
404704
405264
405263

300011
103233
300010
300006
300005
300002

7/8/2021 3:12:45 PM

Check Register

Packet: APPKT03177 - 2021-07-09 PR payment Is

By Check Number

Vendor Name Payment Date Payment Type Discount Amount  Payment Amount Number
Public Employees Retirement 07/09/2021 EFT 0.00 88,914.48 10201
VOYA RETIREMENT INS 07/09/2021 EFT Q.00 10,675.00 10202
AFLAC 07/09/2021 Regular 0.00 1,206.67 103796
AFSCME Union 07/09/2021 Regular 0.00 578.51 103797
Cigna Health and Life Insurance Con 07/09/2021 Regular 0.00 125,637.06 103798
**Void** 07/09/2021 Regular 0.00 0.00 103799
Colonial Life & Accident 07/09/2021 Regular 0.00 103.38 103800
DVM INSURANCE AGENCY 07/09/2021 Regular 0.00 86.43 103801
FIDELITY SEC LIFE INS CO 07/09/2021 Regular 0.00 1,369.79 103802
KANSAS CITY LIFE INS CO 07/09/2021 Regular 0.00 7,318.11 103803
**Void** 07/09/2021 Regular 0.00 0.00 103804
Nevada State Treasurer 07/09/2021 Regular 0.00 4.00 103805
PUBLIC EMPLY RETIREMENT SYSTEN 07/09/2021 Regular 0.00 434,66 103806
State Collection & Disbursement Un 07/09/2021 Regular 0.00 213.43 103807
Storey Co Fire Fighters Assoc 07/09/2021 Regular 0.00 1,250.00 103808
Washington National ins 07/09/2021 Regular 0.00 897.20 103809
Waestern Insurance Specialties 07/09/2021 Regular 0.00 335.39 103810
Bank Code AP Bank Summary
Payable Payment
Payment Type Count Count Discount Payment
Regular Checks 33 13 0.00 139,434.63
Manual Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00
Voided Checks 0 2 0.00 0.00
Bank Drafts 0 0 0.00 0.00
EFT's 6 2 0.00 99,583.48
39 17 0.00 239,024.11
Approved by the Storey County Board of Commissioners:
. issi Commissioner
Chairman Commissioner
[ 0 2 )7
.- / {/n] g .;/\k / ol ‘)7\,(
L) A —- .
[ 7_,!’ — Date
Comptroller
Date
Treasurer
il s === == - Page 1o0f2



Check Register Packet: APPKT03177-2021-07-09 PR payment Is

Fund Summary
Fund Name Period Amount

999 Pooled Cash Account 7/2021 239,024.11
239,024.11



Payroll Check Register

Report Summary
Pay Period: 7/8/2021-7/8/2021

packet: PRPKT01104 - 2021-07-09 Corr Starnes & Forcht LS
Payroll Set: Storey County - 01

Type Count Amount
Regular Checks 0 0.00
Manual Checks 0 0.00
Reversals 0 0.00
Voided Checks 0 0.00
Direct Deposits 2 224.72
Total 2 224.72

Approved by the Storey County Board of Commissioners.

_._____________________._-—

Chairman Commissioner Commissioner
e 4 -
r, / ) 7% , //2 )- (
LN f’ i
t
Comptroller Date
Date

Treasurer

Page 4 of 4

7/8/2021 12:46:30 PM



Payroll Check Register

Report Summary
Pay Period: 6/21/2021-7/4/2021

Packet: PRPKT01103 - 2021-07-09 Payroll Fire Fitness incentive
Payroll Set: Storey County - 01

Type ~ Count Amount
Regular Checks 0 0.00
Manual Checks o] 0.00
Reversals 0 0.00
Voided Checks 0 0.00
Direct Deposits 28 25,249.52
Total 28 25,249.52

Approved by the Storey County Board of Commissioners:

Commissioner Commissioner

Chairman )
Y 7 /2 M
{ s / o — Date
Comptroller
Date
Treasurer

7/8/2021 9:27:45 AM Page 4 of 4




Packet: PRPKT01101 - 2021-07-09 Payroll LS
Payroll Set: Storey County - 01

Type

Regular Checks
Manual Checks
Reversals
Voided Checks
Direct Deposits
Total

175

Amount
2,051.83
0.00

0.00

0.00
386,762.97
388,814.80

Payroll Check Register

Report Summary
Pay Period: 6/21/2021-7/4/2021

Approved by the Storey County Board of Commissioners:

Chairman

/e

Commissioner

Commissioner

/ // A (

Comptroller

Date

Treasurer

7/7/2021 4:25:12 PM

Date

Page 9 of 9



7/12/2021 9:18:08 AM

Type

Regular Checks
Manual Checks
Reversals
Voided Checks
Direct Deposits
Total

Count

= O 0 0O 0 -

Amount
640.37
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
640.37

Payroll Check Register

Report Summary
Pay Period: 7/12/2021-7/12/2021

Approved by the Storey County Board of Commissioners:

Chairman ; Commissioner Commissioner

/ ’/ ,. -i‘ ?

£ L7977 / A ! = =]
{ 71 ,'. ke _ _L{é £ £ il
"Comp{r'oller Date
Treasurer Date

Page 4 of 4



Storey County Board of County

. Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

| Meeti'ng date: 7/20/2021 10:33 AM - " Estimate of Time Réquired: | minute
- BOCC Meeting |
Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

« Title: Consideration and possible approval of Unsecured Bill Correction for Valeo North
America, Inc. Valeo is an approved partner of Tesla for 100% abatement of taxes.

« Recommended motion: Approval

« Prepared by: Jana Seddon - Assessor

Department: Contact Number: 775-847-0961

« Staff Summary: See Attached.

» Due to not returning a Business Personal Property Declaration, an estimate was placed on
the account an billed. Valeo did not realize they needed to turn in a declaration due to the
100% abatement. We agreed to ask for a correction of the 2020-21 bill, but if they did
not comply in future years they would be billed.

* Supporting Materials: See attached

« Fiscal Impact:

« Legal review required: False

* Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name:

County Manager Other Agency Review:

*« Board Action:

| | Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

5L



STOREY COUNTY COURTHOUSE

(11TV 26 South B Street
P.0.Box 494

STOREY COUNTY ASSESSOR Virginia City, NV 89440

(775) 847-0961 Phone
(775) 847-0904 Fax
Assessor@StoreyCounty.org

Junc 28, 2021
Memo to: Storey County Commissioners

Re: Unsecured Tax Bill Correction
Valeo North American, Inc

The following correction needs to be made to Unsecured account # CM001739 for the 2020-21
tax year. The account was over-assessed due to incorrect calculation in system, and it should be
adjusted per NRS 361.768. The assets being adjusted off should have been deleted for this tax
year.

2020-21 ) B Original |  Amended | Adjustment |

Personal Property Acquisition Cost | I 3 .

Personal Property Assessed Value | 4,574,334 | el 4,574,334 |

Improvements Assessed Value | e - |
Abatement (in Assessed Value) 3,161,611 - - 3,161,611

2020-21 Unsecured Tax Bill Amt | $  48,890.10 | § - | $ 48,890.10 ‘

Please approve this correction and advise the Treasurer and/or Assessor to make the change and
issue an amended bill or refund as necessary.

Lhank You.—
e

~
I

.{e}nu Seddon —
Assessor—"
Storey County Assessor’s Office

Storey County Is an Equal Opportunity Provider and Employer



Dot | @ -2021) CMOTg

() Dashboard

{0 Names

© Site Adaress
GURL

£ User Defined 1
) User Defined2
©P0F Images
(& Tas Payments
() Delinquent Case
O Tax Bl

) Notes

Unsecured Notice Date:  06/28/2021 v  04/27/2021 - 1 of 1
Stodey County Treasurer
ol Storey County
Virginia Cily NV 39440 UNSECURED PROPERTY TAXES FOR FISCAL YEAR
freasurer@storeycounty org (2020 - 2021)
(775) 847-0969
| A ——— TAXES FROM JULY 1, 2020 THRU JUNE 30, 2021
[ "~ PROPERTY LOCATION T DE SCRIPTION.
ACCOUNT NO OWNERLOCATON DSTRET DATE
| CHOOIT9 VALEQ NORTH AMERICA, INC 123 06282021
|
VALE(Q NORTH AMERICA, ‘NC WIKE REMTIWNCE PRABLE 10
150 STEPHENSON HWY -~
TROY . MI 48083
Vigaa Cry. NY 83402
ASSESSED VALUATION DISTRIBUTION OF TAX AMOUNTS
Ll U
DESCRIPTION VALUE TAXING ENTITY RATE AMOUNT
Personal Property 457434 GENERAL 17119 2500204
SCHOOL OFER 07500 10.59543
| [Vour Total Tax Abatement amoun! $C400L EBT 21447 20421
| p1esin CAPTAL AQUS 10500 106 %
‘ Account Type. COMMERCIAL PRGP STATE 0.1700 240162
Parcel ¢ 000-000-00 N MEDCAL e w2
\ MD ACCDENT 00150 21191
FRE DSTRCT 0548 769369
| 1 OUTH SERVICE 10045 8258
| CTWED
TOTAL ASSESSED VALUE 457434 MOUSTRIAL GO
TRECOUNTY RALYIA
| [PLESENOTE v C CONV & VISTORS AUTH
| F!-.”ﬁéfﬂ recariad Iater than 10 days after due dale wol ba Ad Valorsm Tolsls 34607 46,3901
| [suzjactta 3 10% penally Please prnt pour Account Number on
| [rour checx
| |Please adwse e Treasurers office of any name or address
| charges
| [PLEASE UAKE REMITTANCE PAVAGLE TO .
| fstore, Couny Treasurer
’[smer D
|

a3 City, NV 89440

Print Tax Bill



Storey County Board of County

' Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

' Meeting date: 7/20/2021 10:33 AM - " Estimate of Time Required: 5 minutes
- BOCC Meeting

Agenda Item Type: Consent Agenda

Title: Consideration and possible approval of the August 3, 2021 Storey County Board of
County Commissioners regularly scheduled meeting being held at the Virginia Township
Justice Court located at 800 South C Street, Virginia City, Nevada.

Recommended motion: Approve as part of the Consent Agenda

Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens

Department: Contact Number: 775-847-0968

Staff Summary: Relocation needed due to a Jury Trial being held in the First Judicial
District Courtroom.

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact: None

Legal review required: False

Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name:

County Manager Other Agency Review:

Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification

[ ] Denied [ ] Continued




Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

' Meeting date: 7/20/2021 10:33 AM - ' Estimate of Time Required: |5 min.
BOCC Meeting
Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

« Title: The Board will deliberate and may take action regarding approval of a settlement
agreement with employee Mitchell Hammond.

«  Recommended motion: | commissioner ( ) move to take  action regarding approval
of a settlement agreement with employee Mitchell Hammond.

* Prepared by: Austin Osborne

Department: Contact Number: 7758470968

» Staff Summary: See agenda.

« Supporting Materials: See attached

* Fiscal Impact: none

* Legal review required: TRUE

*» Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name:

County Manager Other Agency Review:

*»  Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued




Storey Counfy Board of County

| Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

lese 1 ; : — S
Meeting date: 7/20/2021 10:33 AM - Estimate of Time Required: 15
' BOCC Meeting \
Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

Title: Consideration and possible action on Special Use Permit Amendment 2000-217-
A2-2021 request by the applicant Basalite Concrete Products, LLC., to increase the
annual mining capacity from the 2017 Storey County approved 500,000 tons per year to
1,200,000 tons per year. The project includes additional equipment to be added to the
site that will assist in processing the additional material being generated including silos
that may exceed 75-feet in height. The property is located at 1150 N. Pinenut Road,
Mark Twain area, Storey County, Nevada, APNs 004-291-09, 13, 25, 45 and 47.

Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the
Planning Commission, the Findings of Fact under Section 3.A of this report, and other
findings deemed appropriate by the Board of County Commissioners, and in compliance
with the conditions of approval, | (commissioner), move to approve the Second Amended
Special Use Permit 2000-217-A2-2021 request by the applicant Basalite Concrete
Products, LLC., to increase the annual mining capacity from the 2017 Storey County
approved 500,000 tons per year to 1,200,000 tons per year. The project includes
additional equipment to be added to the site that will assist in processing the additional
material being generated including silos that may extend to 170-feet in height. The
property is located at 1150 N. Pinenut Road, Mark Twain area, Storey County, Nevada,
APNs 004-291-09, 13, 25, 45 and 47.

Prepared by: AGENDA SUBMITTER
Department: Contact Number: 7758471144

Staff Summary: See attached Staff Report

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact: None

Legal review required: False

Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name:



26 South B Street, PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440

Storey County

Planning Department
Storey County Courthouse

Phone 775-847-1144 — Fax 775-847-0949
planning@storeycounty.org

To:
From:

Meeting Date:

Meeting Location:

Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Storey County Planning Commission
July 20, 2021

Storey County Courthouse, 26 South “B” Street, Virginia City, Nevada and via
Zoom

Staff Contact: Kathy Canfield

File: Amended Special Use Permit File 2000-217-A2-2021

Applicant: Basalite Concrete Products, LLC — Jeremy Anthony

Property Owner: Pacific Coast Building Products

Property Location: 1150 North Pinenut Road, Mark Twain, Storey County, Nevada

Request: Second Amended Special Use Permit 2000-217-A2-2021 request by the
applicant Basalite Concrete Products, LLC., to increase the annual mining
capacity from the 2017 Storey County approved 500,000 tons per year to
1,200,000 tons per year. The project includes additional equipment to be added
to the site that will assist in processing the additional material being generated
including silos that may extend to 170-feet in height. The property is located at
1150 N. Pinenut Road, Mark Twain area, Storey County, Nevada, APNs 004-291-
09, 13, 25, 45 and 47.

1 Background

A. Site Location. This property is located approximately one mile to the northeast of the

Mark Twain neighborhood in Storey County. The site contains an active surface mining
and processing facility which has been operating at the site since approximately 1946
(75 years). The project area includes land that is owned by the applicant and the Bureau
of Land Management (BLM). No changes to the existing operation on BLM land are
proposed. All proposed areas of new processing equipment will be on land owned by
the applicant.



The applicant received a Special Use Permit from Storey County in 1999 and approval
for an amendment in 2017. The 2017 Amended Special Use Permit allowed for 500,000
tons of mining capacity per year. Access to the site is from Pinenut Road which extends
from the base of the Basalite operations, across the Storey/Lyon County line to Highway
50. The applicant maintains the access road on both their own and BLM land in Storey
County.



Surrounding properties

s

Existing Site and Land Ownership, approximate

Proposed Use. The applicant proposes to increase the mining capacity from the
approved 500,000 tons per year to 1,200,000 tons per year. The growth is expected to
grow incrementally over the next five years or more and will draw from the approved
areas as documented in blue, red and green on the following map. This Second
Amended Special Use Permit is to allow for the increase in capacity, additional
equipment to be placed immediately west of the existing equipment area and to
address the additional height for anticipated silo structures. All other previously
permitted uses and activities at the site will remain in effect.

The applicant is desiring to increase the mining capacity at this location, including
adding additional equipment to allow for further processing of mined aggregate into a
finer material than what is currently occurring. This process would include the
construction of several storage silos, which can have a height up to 160-feet and be 47-
feet in diameter. All other equipment is expected to be well under the 75-foot height
limitation for the 1-2 zoning district. The material will be mined from the existing
approved locations on the applicant’s property and within their mining rights on the
BLM property.



*x J_\a\ i‘fl

-
{

This staff report proposes an authorized height of up to 170-feet, in order to provide a
buffer to allow for modifications during construction and for any potential topography

issues.

yye3 3ibooc)

dew iNoA o) LoGOUDS3P B IIIA
uojie(q ajijeseq

Proposed Development



Existing Operations. Two areas of the project area are currently being mined. The
upper section, referred to as “Little Naturalite” is in rock form (area of blue on Page 4
map) and the lower section, referred to as “Big Naturalite” is in sand and rock form
(green area on Page 4 map). The material is mined from both areas using a Caterpillar
excavator and directly loading it into haul trucks. The operators haul and stockpile the
load at the crushing area located at the lower area adjacent to the feed hopper. When
needed, material is pushed from the lower bench at “Big Naturalite” and fed into the
crushing operation. Using a loader, the crusher operator picks up the load from the
feed hopper pile and feeds the conveyor to the crusher. The processed Naturalite
materials are stockpiled at the lowest landing area where the trucks are loaded,
weighed, and shipped off to their respective destinations. The Amended Special Use
Permit in 2017 allowed for additional mining to occur in the “red” section as shown on
the submitted map and it is anticipated that the increase in mining capacity will occur
from this area.

The site operates year around with maintenance operations taking precedent in the
winter months (December through February). The site’s current production is
approximately 220,000 tons per year, with a maximum allowed by the 2017 Amended
Special Use Permit of 500,000 tons per year.

The mining operations at this site are estimated to have occurred since 1946 (75 years).
The areas to be mined are cleared on an as-needed basis to minimize erosion, dust
hazards and visual impacts. There is no intent to mine or excavate below the flat plain
surface grade.

Approximately 50,000 to 100,000 gallons of water per week are used for dust control for
the mining area, the crushing area and the haul road. Sutro Spring and an onsite well
are the sources of the water for which with the applicant has the use of water rights.
The water from the spring is gravity fed via siphon hose to four 5,000-gallon holding
tanks. Water trucks are loaded from the overhead station filled by the well.

To limit the amount of dust generated, the applicant has implemented the following
measures:

. The speed limit for vehicles in the mine area do not exceed 15 mph and 20 mph
on the haul roads.

. All roads, crushing area and stockpiles are watered in 30 — 60 minute intervals
during operating hours as needed.

. Trucks are loaded with the bucket as low as possible and at a slow rate to avoid
generating dust.

. The truck load is water-sprayed or is tarped before leaving the mine site.

. Fogging water sprayers are located at various points on the plant to maintain

adherence to the Nevada Department of Environmental Protection (NDEP) Air
Quality Permit.

. The mine area has been blasted and benched. The benched mountain face can
now be reached with hydroseeding equipment for dust control and also to
prevent sloughing of the material for both safety and environmental concerns.



\ ;‘ﬁ"

L -
Tg——
il — _>b §u— ]
L]
== | 1[1; 1747 Mok e ———
\k_ Stock Pile ) ——
— e -
S —— —

SR
R Entronce et

To

L
Dayton Pit— Processing Plan! Dc.lor Mine
- -
l_ {
1 ¥ 1T T T S i 2 € T i TR S S S R |




4 - s . . ¥ 4 - € D i3e W =y
o R L T P I WD BT o TS T e )

Circled area approximate location of new equipment

D.

Reclamation Plan. The applicant proposes the same reclamation plan as was

previously approved by Storey County and the Bureau of Land Management (BLM). The
plan is as follows:

1. 280 acres is covered by this reclamation plan.

2. When operations cease, the disturbed area shall be restored and reseeded in
compliance with the Reclamation Standards set forth by Bureau of Land
Management and Storey County. The ultimate condition of the site will be a flat or
sloped not to exceed the natural angle of repose of material in question. Areas with
depression will be backfilled with overburden materials. The remaining slopes will
be in accordance with safe mining practices.

3. The outer berms shall be removed (bladed off) to eliminate the “chute”
configuration of sloping roads, facilitating runoff with erosion.

4. V-ditches and/or drainage pipe shall be constructed if necessary to prevent slope
erosion in accordance with BLM reclamation standards.

5. The disturbed areas shall be reseeded (after ripping or harrowing) and prior to
dragging with chain or similar equipment to cover the seed.

6. Seed types and application rates are as follows:

7.0 pounds/acre — Stream Wheatgrass, Sodar variety.
5.0 pounds/acre — Western Wheatgrass, Arriba variety

2.5 pounds/acre — Sheep Fescue, Covar variety

14.5 pounds/acre total application rate

Seeding method shall be by broadcasting. It will be done in late October or
November.



Traffic. The current traffic in and out of the mine consists of company vehicles hauling
to the Carson City manufacturing location as well as contract carriers hauling material to
other customers which include Basalite facilities in California and outside customers in
Nevada. Basalite has maintained its BLM right of way on North Pinenut Road by
installing a chip seal roadway to eliminate dust and provide a suitable roadway into the
mine site. Trucks that enter the mine come in various sizes and configurations dictated
by the rules that govern where they are travelling. Truck drivers are instructed as to the
procedures Basalite asks them to follow as they approach the Lyon County
neighborhood close to Highway 50 to be safe and courteous to the neighborhood.
Basalite requires the drivers to maintain a safe, conservative speed and ask them not to
use engine brakes south of the power lines as they approach the stop sign at Rainbow
Road so as not to disturb the neighbors.

Currently, the loads fluctuate between 6 and 86 loads per day. With the proposed
capacity, the average daily loads would increase to 113 loads per day at maximum
capacity. These loads would be spread out over the course of the day, with peak
shipping time being between 6:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. Seasonality also impacts the
demand with more activity in the spring, summer and fall months than in the winter
months. The load counts can vary greatly from day to day, depending on customer
demand.

Buildout of the new equipment is expected to take 18 to 24 months. Once completed,

the new capacity limits are not expected to commence immediately.

Load counts averages will vary proportionately with volume shipped. The outlook for
volume demand is forecasted as follows:

2021 - 220,000 tons
2022 — 250,000 tons
2023 - 400,000 tons
2024 - 650,000 tons
2025 - 900,000 tons
e 2026-1,200,000 tons

Special Use Permit. This property is subject to the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance
of Storey County. Although the area of influence of the mine is zoned 12 - Heavy
Industrial, and Forestry, the portion of the mine operations associated with the request
are located on the land zoned 12. No modifications to previously approved activities are
proposed on Forestry zoned land. The I2 - Heavy Industrial zone as stated in Section
17.35.030, “Mining and extraction” are a use subject to a special use permit. The
increased capacity, along with the new processing equipment and the addition of silos
which are expected to be approximately 160-feet in height, are subject to a special use
permit.



Zoning

2 Compatibility and Compliance

A. Compatibility with surrounding uses and zones. The following table documents land
uses, zoning classifications and master plan designations for the land at and surrounding
the proposed project.

Land Use Master Plan Zoning Code
Designation
Applicant’s Land Mining Operations Industrial 12-Heavy Industrial 8
Forestry
Land to the North Vacant & Residence Resources Forestry
Land to the East Vacant Transition from Forestry & Estates

Resources & Estate to
Industrial Professional

Land to the South Vacant & Residential Rural Residential, Forestry & Estates
Estate, Transition from
Resources to Industrial
Professional

Land to the West Vacant Resources, Transition Forestry & Estates
from Estate to
Industrial Professional

B. Compliance with required height limitations. The Storey County Zoning Ordinance
allows for a maximum height of 75 feet for the 12-Heavy Industrial zone. The existing
and proposed development at the site complies with these requirements with the
exception of the proposed silos. The proposed silos, that will hold material processed at
the site, are expected to be up to 160-feet tall and have a 47-foot diameter. The silos



are not occupied space for humans, but for storage of material only. The 12 zoning
district does allow for additional height with a special use permit.

Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) has regulations that typically are applicable for
heights of 200-feet or greater. Sometimes, when close to aviation facilities or routes,
other mitigation measures such as lighting or markings may be required. As a condition
of approval for the construction of the silos, the applicant will be required to
demonstrate compliance with FAA requirements, if any.

Compliance with required setbacks. The Storey County Zoning Ordinance requires a
50-foot setback for the 12-Heavy Industrial zone. The existing development meets this
condition. As a condition of approval, the installation of any new equipment shall
require a Storey County construction permit and demonstration of conformance with
required setbacks at that time. The area indicated on the submitted site plan for the
proposed equipment is approximately 600-feet from the adjacent west property line.
Setbacks are not expected to be a concern for this project.

General use allowances and restrictions. The Storey County Code Section 17.03.150,
Special Uses identifies the administration for the Board and Planning Commission for
allowing special use permits. Approval of a Special Use Permit “must be based on
findings that indicate that the proposed use is appropriate in the location for which it is
approved”. “The approval, approval with conditions, or denial of the Special Use Permit
must be based on findings of fact that the proposed use is appropriate or inappropriate
in the location. The findings listed in Section 3 of this staff report are the minimum to
be cited in an approval.

Conformance with the 2016 Storey County Master Plan. This project is located within

Mark Twain area of Storey County. The Master Plan identifies “mining is a significant
part of the county’s history as well as its current economy. However, if not managed
properly, mining (particularly surface mining) can have devastating impacts on existing
and future residences, businesses, and the local economy. If the potential adverse
impacts of mining are appropriately mitigated through local control, as well as through
collaboration with state and federal officials, community stakeholders, and residents,
mining can be a positive element of the county and the effected communities”. The
Master Plan “recognizes that residents in Mark Twain highly value their rural lifestyle
with minimal traffic, dark skies, safety, and freedom offered by the area. Proposals
to develop land with residential, industrial, or commercial uses should consider
preserving or enhancing the existing rural residential environment and protecting
the long-term well-being of the quarry mine.”

The Master Plan goes on to state “it should be noted that the board with
recommendation by the planning commission allowed Basalite Mine to re-zone the land
immediately surrounding its quarry mine from Estate to Forestry and Heavy Industrial.
The rezone was consistent with the 1994 master plan by further restricting potential
residential growth in Mark Twain in order to lessen the likelihood for residential
encroachment into areas adjacent to the mine.”

10



This mine has been operating in Storey County since 1946 and is a use that the County
supports to continue. The previous actions of Storey County have supported this use
and the County has strived to protect this use from residential encroachment that may
not be compatible with the existing mine activities. While this Special Use Permit is
valid until the year 2037 as stated by Section 17.92 of the Storey County Code and past
approvals, the Master Plan supports the continued use of this mine in perpetuity. Any
future renewals of this permit should be considered appropriate based on the Master
Plan.

F. Compliance with Mineral Exploration, Mining, and Excavation (Chapter 17.92). The
purpose of this chapter is to “recognize and protect both mineral and surface property
rights, provide for mineral exploration, allow for surface mining where appropriate, and
allow and encourage underground mining across the county.” The Basalite mine is
defined as a Large Operation per Section 17.92.140. Large Operations and associated
surface mining are permissible in the Forestry and the 12 zones subject to the Special
Use Permit.

Findings of Fact

A. Motion for approval. The following Findings of Fact are evident with regard to the
requested special use permit when the recommended conditions of approval in Section
4, Recommended Conditions of Approval, are applied.

(1) This approval is for Second Amended Special Use Permit 2000-217-A2-2021, a
request by the applicant Basalite Concrete Products, LLC,, to increase the annual
mining capacity from the 2017 Storey County approved 500,000 tons per year to
1,200,000 tons per year. The project includes additional equipment to be added
to the site that will assist in processing the additional material being generated
including silos that may extend to 170-feet in height. The property is located at
1150 N. Pinenut Road, Mark Twain area, Storey County, Nevada, APNs 004-291-
09, 13, 25, 45 and 47.

(2) The Second Amended Special Use Permit conforms to the 2016 Storey County
Master Plan for the Mark Twain planning area in which the subject property is
located. A discussion supporting this finding for the Special Use Permit is
provided in Section 2.E of this staff report and the contents thereof are cited in
an approval of this Special Use Permit.

(3) The subject property is located within 12-Heavy Industrial and Forestry zoning in
the Mark Twain area of Storey County. The project is identified as Large
Operation per Section 17.92 of the Storey County Zoning Ordinance. A Special
Use Permit is required for both the zoning districts and the Large Operation use.

(4) Granting of the Second Amended Special Use Permit, with the conditions of
approval listed in Section 4 of this report, will not under the circumstances of
the particular case adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of
persons/property in the neighborhood of the subject property and will not be
materially detrimental to the public welfare or materially injurious to property

11



(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

(11)

improvements in the neighborhood or area of the subject property. The project
is expected to meet the safety and health requirements for the subject area.

The Second Amended Special Use Permit will not impose substantial adverse
impacts or safety hazards on the abutting properties or the surrounding area,
and it will comply with all federal, state and county regulations.

The conditions under the Second Amended Special Use Permit do not conflict
with the minimum requirements in the Storey County Zoning Ordinance Section
17.35 - 12 Heavy Industrial Zone, Section 17.32 - F Forestry Zone, Section 17.92
— Mineral Exploration, Mining, and Extraction and Section 17.03.150 Special
Uses.

Certain mineral and surface property rights exist across the county and the
Zoning Ordinance serves to protect those rights. The Zoning Ordinance also
recognizes and serves to abide by the Mining Law of 1872 which provides
mineral property owners the right to mine where the property is a mine patent
pursuant to Title 30 of the United States Code Section 29, or an unpatented
mining claim located pursuant to Section 23, as well as the right to milling and
ancillary uses pursuant to Section 42(a).

The county has a diversified economy including agriculture, commercial,
industrial, tourism, recreation, and mining. Permitted uses under these
categories are found to be economically and socially beneficial to the county,
directly and indirectly, when they are appropriately regulated so that they do
not cause substantial adverse impacts to adjacent uses and are not detrimental
to the health, safety, and general welfare of citizens, property owners, scholars,
and businesses in the county.

The provisions of the Zoning Ordinance serve to address and mitigate potential
adverse impacts that mining and related activities may have on the natural and
historic environment and adjacent land uses (e.g, residential, commercial,
tourism, etc...)as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a
result of the implementation of the provisions and policies of the county master
plan, Title 17, and any other plan, program, map or ordinance adopted or under
consideration, pursuant to an official notice by the county or other
governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide growth and development.

This project is not located within the Virginia City National Historic Landmark,
nor is it part of the Comstock Historic Preservation Area identified in Chapter
17.92 of the Storey County Code.

This mine has been in operation for approximately 75 years. The 2016 Storey

County Master Plan states the mine should be a continued use and Storey
County should protect the long-term well-being of the quarry mine.

12



Motion for denial. Should a motion be made to deny the Special Use Permit request,
the following findings with explanation why should be included in that motion.

(1) This denial is for Second Amended Special Use Permit 2000-217-A2-2021, a
request by the applicant Basalite Concrete Products, LLC., to increase the annual
mining capacity from the 2017 Storey County approved 500,000 tons per year to
1,200,000 tons per year. The project includes additional equipment to be added
to the site that will assist in processing the additional material being generated
including silos that may exceed 75-feet in height. The property is located at
1150 N. Pinenut Road, Mark Twain area, Storey County, Nevada, APNs 004-291-
09, 13, 25, 45 and 47.

(2) The conditions under the Second Amended Special Use Permit conflict with the
minimum requirements in the Storey County Zoning Ordinance Section 17.35 -
12 Heavy Industrial Zone, Section 17.32 - F Forestry Zone, Section 17.92 -
Mineral Exploration, Mining, and Extraction and/or Section 17.03.150 Special
Uses.

(3) The conditions under the Second Amended Special Use Permit do not
adequately mitigate potential adverse impacts on surrounding uses or protect
against potential safety hazards for surrounding use.

4. Recommended Conditions of Approval

All of the following conditions must be met to the satisfaction of the applicable County
Department, unless otherwise stated.

GENERAL PROVISIONS/CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

A.

Purpose and scope.

This approval is for Second Amended Special Use Permit 2000-217-A2-2021, a request
by the applicant Basalite Concrete Products, LLC., to increase the annual mining capacity
from the 2017 Storey County approved 500,000 tons per year to 1,200,000 tons per
year. The project includes additional equipment to be added to the site that will assist
in processing the additional material being generated including silos that may exceed
75-feet in height. The property is located at 1150 N. Pinenut Road, Mark Twain area,
Storey County, Nevada, APNs 004-291-09, 13, 25, 45 and 47.

This Second Amended Special Use Permit (SUP) 2000-217-A2-2021 shall supersede the
2017 Amended Special Use Permit 2000-217-A1-2017. This Second Amended Special
Use Permit is for the purpose of mining 1,200,000 or less tons, addition of processing
equipment, including silos which may extend up to 170-feet in height. All other
modifications previously permitted by Amended Special Use Permit 2000-217-A1-2017,
including identification of new areas of disturbance, a watchman'’s dwelling and
new/replacement of equipment, are included with this amended permit. This permit

13



shall expire November 7, 2037. Exploration and development of the property is also
allowed with this Second Amended Special Use Permit. A map of the acreage and
mining areas is included with this permit (as referenced on Page 4 of the staff report).

The Permit Holder shall sign the permit agreeing to the permit conditions. All conditions
of approval shall be met prior to any modifications of activities at the site identified in
this permit.

Uses ancillary to the principal uses may occur anywhere within the subject
property. Roads and ancillary uses are not counted against the total allowable
disturbance area.

The uses to which this Second Amended Special Use Permit applies shall conform to the
conditions herein, and federal, state, and county regulations. This SUP does not convey
property rights of any sort.

Expiration.

In accordance with Storey County Code 17.92, Second Amended Special Use Permit is
effective until November 7, 2037. The Second Amended Special Use Permit Holder may
submit an application to renew the Second Amended Special Use Permit prior to the
expiration date and in accordance with the county code existing at the time. An
extension of an inactive special use permit may be granted for good cause as allowed by
Chapter 17.03 Administrative Provision. The application for renewal must be submitted
to the Planning Department no less than 30 days before the expiration of this Special
Use Permit. The application shall be treated as a new Special Use Permit application
and its approval or denial will be determined by the Board of County Commissioners
with recommendation by the Planning Commission. The approved Special Use Permit
may contain additional conditions or modified conditions from those in the preceding
Special Use Permit.

Non-compliance and show-cause.

The use on the subject property must comply with federal, state, and county codes and
regulations and the submitted plans and reports, as approved. The Permit Holder shall
be responsible for maintaining the premises and managing operations in accordance
with all conditions and stipulations set forth by this Second Amended Special Use Permit
and all other federal, Nevada State, and Storey County codes and regulations. Failure to
comply with the requirements herein shall elicit a written warning to the Permit Holder
by Storey County on the first and second offense. A third offense may warrant Storey
County to revoke the Second Amended Special Use Permit. Storey County shall reserve
the right to conduct periodic reviews of the Permit Holder's compliance with all
conditions and stipulations of the Second Amended Special Use Permit.

Storey County may refer this Second Amended Special Use Permit to the Board of
County Commissioners for show-cause hearing for revocation based on reasons listed in
this section. The procedures for show-cause will be pursuant to Storey County Code
(SCC) 17.03 (Administrative Provisions). The continuation of uses of a revoked SUP is a
violation of SCC Title 17 (Zoning) and will be punishable as provided for therein or other

14



applicable codes. The SUP may be referred to show-cause for the following reasons:

) Failure to comply with the SUP conditions, or federal, state, and county
regulations, without appropriate remedy;

° Any misrepresentation made in the application for the SUP or in other official
documents, or amendments thereof, submitted to a federal, state, or local
agency;

° Failure to provide notice to the county on violations, disasters, notice of

decisions, and other such correspondence from federal, state, and local
agencies as required in this SUP.

Transfer of rights.

This Second Amended Special Use Permit shall inure to the record owner of the Subject
Property and to the Permit Holder and shall run with the land defined herein. This
Second Amended Special Use Permit, subject to its terms and conditions, may be
transferred by the permit holder, its successors, heirs or assigns. Any/all transfers of
Second Amended Special Use Permit 2000-217-A2-2021 shall be advised in writing to
Storey County Planning Department 90 days prior to assignee taking over operation of
facility. The operators of the facility must sign and accept all stipulations and
requirements of the Second Amended Special Use Permit 2000-217-A2-2021.

Indemnification and insurance.

The Permit Holder warrants that the future use of land will conform to the
requirements of the County of Storey, State of Nevada, and applicable federal
regulatory and legal requirements; further, the Permit Holder warrants that continued
and future use of the land shall so conform. The Permit Holder, its assigns, heirs or
successors, agrees to hold Storey County, its officers, and representatives harmless from
the costs associated with any environmental damage, environmental liability, and
any/all other claims now existing or which may occur as a result of this special use
permit.

The Permit Holder, as well as its assigns, heirs or successors, shall provide proof of
insurance to Storey County and maintain a satisfactory liability insurance for all aspects
of this operation under Second Amended Special Use Permit 2000-217-A2-2021 for a
minimum amount of $5,000,000.00 (five million dollars).

Surface estate protection.

Uses allowed under this SUP shall only occur on properties owned, leased, or otherwise
legally controlled by the Permit Holder. At no time may surface disturbances, e.g.,
grading, equipment staging, and surface subsidence from underground activity, take
place on surface property not owned, leased, or otherwise legally controlled by the
Permit Holder. An exception to this limitation may be made upon the expressed written
permission of the affected property owner(s) as allowed by this SUP and applicable
federal, state, and county regulations. The written permission shall be submitted to the
Building and Planning Departments at least 15 days prior to commencement of the
subject operation.

15



G. Sales tax reporting.
All material and equipment purchased for the project must be received in Storey County
(SC) and the value reported as “County-of-Delivery” on the Nevada Department of
Taxation Form TXR-01.01 ‘Sales/Use Tax Return’. The Permit Holder must also report
the value for all materials and equipment (personal and rented) “used” on this project
as “Use Tax” on TPI-02.01 or TPI-02.02.

H. Permits.
A copy of all Federal and State Permits, including any Federal Aviation Administration
(FAA) that may be associated with the additional height for the proposed silos, shall be
submitted to the Planning Department. As permits are revised and renewed, the Storey
County Planning Department shall receive a copy of all new and/or revised permits.

I Abandonment.
In the event that the use authorized by this Second Amended Special Use Permit is
abandoned for a period of more than twenty-four (24) calendar months from the date
of last producing operations, this permit shall become null and void and a new Special
Use Permit shall be required. In the event of a force Majeure such as and not limited to
a flood, damage or destruction of the access to the site, earthquake, or other events
beyond the control of Storey County and/or the Permit Holder, the period of
abandonment shall not be deemed to commence until such time as the permit holder
may be found to once again have reasonable access to the site. In this connection, the
permit holder shall reasonably attempt to establish access to the site.

J. Nuisances.
As stated in Section 17.12.100(A), noise, smoke, odor, gases, or other noxious nuisances
shall be controlled so as not to become objectionable, or adversely affect the properties
in the vicinity, and shall not be detrimental to the public health, safety and welfare.

K. Separate Permits Required.
This Second Amended Special Use Permit allows for the use of a watchman’s dwelling
and new, replacement and upgrading equipment, however, this Second Amended
Special Use Permit shall not be construed to be the permit for design or construction. A
separate Storey County plan review, fire safety review, and building permit may be
required for the installation of the watchman’s dwelling or equipment.

L. Legal Responsibility.
Issuance of this permit does not convey property rights of any sort or any exclusive
privilege; nor does it authorize any injury to persons or property, any invasion of other
private rights, or any infringement of state or local laws or regulations.

M. Other Documents.
The permit incorporates by reference the Operating and Mining Plan submitted with the
project application. The Permit Holder shall contact Storey County of all modification or
additions to the Operating Plan and Mining Plan

OPERATING PLAN

16



Operating Plan.

The Permit Holder must submit a copy of its operating plan to the SC Fire Protection
District (Fire District), and the Building, Emergency Management, and Planning
Departments for review and approval. The operating plan shall include all the
requirements of this SUP. The elements required in this SUP are not exhaustive; the Fire
District, Planning Department, or other county department, may impose additional
requirements. At a minimum, the plan shall include:

. Basic company, owner, site, and emergency contact information;

® Detailed plot plan of the subject property and the uses therein, including
phasing;

& All elements and supporting documentation included in a Plan of Operation

required by the NDEP or the BLM, as applicable;
. Site evacuation and emergency procedure and emergency contact procedures;

. Comprehensive post-operation reclamation plan as required by the NDEP or
BLM, and the more stringent requirement in this SUP for concurrent and more
thorough post-operations reclamation. The plan shall also include calculations
for determining the amount of reclamation surety bonding applicable to the
requirements of the NDEP, BLM, and this SUP (see Conditions 3.3 - 3.6).

. Process for documentation and reporting to the county environmental permits,
notices, approvals, abatement mandates, and other related actions of other
agencies;

® Management of air, water, stormwater, noxious weeds, wildland fire fuels

management, BMPs, and other environmental elements.

Emergency Management Plan.

The Permit Holder must submit an emergency plan to the Storey County Fire Protection
District and the Emergency Management Department for review and approval. At a
minimum, the elements of the plan must include disaster management, Emergency
Medical Services (EMS) and First-Aid response, transportation, and environmental
protection. Specific items to be included in the plan are as follows. The following list is
not exhaustive; the County may impose additional requirements as necessary.
Requirements of State and federal agencies which fulfill the following may suffice when
documentation thereof is submitted to the Fire District.

° Basic company, owner, site, and emergency contact information
° Plot Plan (detailed drawings) of the site and access points
. Site evacuation and emergency procedure

17



RECLAMATION

Q.

. Emergency contact procedures, including for the NDEP, Dispatch 9-1-1, and
Storey County Emergency Services
Facility shut-down and startup procedure

. Special training and identification of any payment for the Fire District and
Emergency Management to address site specific hazards

. Wildland and structure fire prevention and suppression

. Emergency vehicle access, circulation, and staging

. Dust control and hazard mitigation

] Documenting and reporting of emergency situations, including spills

. Post disaster management, cleanup, and material disposal

. Documenting and reporting of NDEP and other environmental permits and
notices

. Stormwater drainage and detention

. Facility closure

Reclamation.

This section applies to post-operation reclamation of the mine. The operating plan must
contain the minimum elements required by the NDEP, BLM and the elements contained
in this section for the uses on the subject property.

The approved reclamation plan is as follows:

. 280 acres is covered by this reclamation plan.

. When operations cease, the disturbed area shall be restored and reseeded in
compliance with the Reclamation Standards set forth by Bureau of Land
Management and Storey County. The ultimate condition of the site will be a flat
or sloped not to exceed the natural angle of repose of material in question.
Areas with depression will be backfilled with overburden materials. The
remaining slopes will be in accordance with safe mining practices.

. The outer berms shall be removed (bladed off) to eliminate the “chute”
configuration of sloping roads, facilitating runoff with erosion.

. V-ditches and/or drainage pipe shall be constructed if necessary to prevent
slope erosion in accordance with BLM reclamation standards.

& The disturbed areas shall be reseeded (after ripping or harrowing) and prior to
dragging with chain or similar equipment to cover the seed.

. Seed types and application rates are as follows:

7 pounds/acre — Stream Wheatgrass, Sodar variety.
5 pounds/acre — Western Wheatgrass, Arriba variety
2.5 pounds/acre — Sheep Fescue, Covar variety

14.5 pounds/acre total application rate

Seeding method shall be by broadcasting. It will be done in late October or November.
Any modifications to the reclamation plan required by the Bureau of Land Management,

Nevada Department of Environmental Protection or Storey County shall include the
following:

18



(1) Reclamation standards. The Permit Holder shall comply with the minimum post-
operation reclamation requirements administered by the NDEP and BLM. The
Permit Holder shall identify areas in the required NDEP or BLM reclamation plan
where reclamation requirements are less stringent than the standards required
by this SUP. The Permit Holder shall include in its reclamation plan detailed
analyses and descriptions of subject conditions and elements that will be
employed by the Permit Holder meet the more stringent requirements in this

SUP.
(2) Reclamation schedule. The plan must include a reclamation schedule.
(3) Visual rendition. The plan must contain photographic or computer simulated

visuals showing pre-mining surface conditions and estimated conditions
throughout mine phasing and at post-closure.

(4) Grading and contouring. The reclamation plan must show that all surface
disturbances will be graded and contoured to a condition which is safe, stable,
and reasonably flush and consistent with the surrounding undisturbed or fully
reclaimed topography and surface environment.

(5) Re-vegetation. The reclamation and re-vegetation plan required by the NDEP or
BLM must be incorporated into the operating plan. The Permit Holder shall
identify areas in the required NDEP or BLM reclamation plan where re-
vegetation requirements are less stringent than the minimum standards
required by this SUP (i.e., areas within the subject property to which re-
vegetation is not required by the applicable agency). The plan must describe a
comprehensive process, including beyond NDEP and BLM requirements as
needed, by which successful post-operation re-vegetation will occur. The plan
shall conform to the standards for re-vegetation and noxious weed
management for post-mining reclamation established by the NDEP or BLM. The
plan and process by which it is administered shall also be subject to Fire District
requirements and approval. Unless directed otherwise by the Planning
Department, seeding, re-seeding, and planting will take place in the autumn
season during the months of October or November, but not during times of
extreme weather conditions such as snow or sub-freezing conditions.

Reclamation — ancillary uses.

Post-operation reclamation of ancillary use to the mine, mine definition, exploration,
and processing, including, but are not limited to, roads and access; equipment and
vehicle staging, parking, fueling, and maintenance areas; buildings and structures;
topsoil impoundment areas; and drainage and detention systems, shall be performed.
The operating plan must contain the minimum elements required by the NDEP and BLM.
This SUP does not require reclamation of these uses beyond the applicable federal and
state regulations administered by said agencies.

In conformance with NDEP permits existing at the time of this SUP approval, exploration

roads within the subject property will be reclaimed during the project closure period
unless the BLM or SC request that some or all of these roads remain.

19



S.

Reclamation surety.

A surety bond is required for any reclamation with a special use permit for large
operations as stated in subsection 17.92.080.E(15). A surety bond required by a federal
or state agency overseeing the exploration or mining operation will fulfill this
requirement when proof is submitted to the community development department as
required by section 17.92.080 Application Requirements. If no surety bond is required
by a federal or state agency, the Permit Holder must post cash or other appropriate
surety bonding to assure that disturbed land is reclaimed as required by the county
approved operations and reclamation plan. The surety bond must be posted prior to
disturbance of land and must be updated as the operations progress or change. The
amount of the surety bond necessary to fulfill the county requirement may be
determined by a qualified licensed engineer or environmental manage at the expense of
the applicant and will be subject to review by a third-party approved by the county.

Closure.

The Permit Holder shall be responsible for the cost for the closure of this facility as
permitted under Amended Special Use Permit 2000-217-A1-2017. Complete closure
shall consist of providing reclamation that would eliminate all materials or
environmental damage to the existing site or adjacent areas contaminated by
operations.

Post-Closure Monitoring.

In the event that the permit lapses or the use is discontinued or abandoned, the Permit
Holder, its heirs, assigns or successors shall remain responsible for environmental
monitoring and post-closure maintenance. Under no circumstances shall Storey County,
its officers, or representatives bare any cost or responsibility for the deconstruction,
disassembly, or removal of equipment or environmental monitoring or clean-up.

ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROLS

V.

Noise limitation.

At a minimum, noise levels shall conform to the requirements of SCC Chapter 8.04. The
Code limits noise at the property line to 84 decibel (octave range 500-1800). The
property line is hereby defined as the boundaries of the subject property. When it is
determined by SC that additional noise abatement is needed, further reasonable
requirements including, but not limited to, installation of sound-absorbing structures,
earth-fill barriers, and increased separation between machinery and residences, may be
imposed on a case-by-case basis.

Separation requirements.

No new surface disturbances including, mining, mine definition, exploration, and
ancillary uses in may occur within 500’ of an occupied dwelling unit existing at the time
of this Second Amended Special Use Permit approval. The following are exempt from
these requirements:

o Dwellings that are owned by the Permit Holder;

o Dwellings for which affidavits were submitted as part of the application for this

20



SUP, and accordingly are located entirely within the boundaries of the subject
property;

o) When the affected property owner(s) in Storey County submit to the Planning
Department a signed statement that uses associated with the Second Amended
Special Use Permit may occur within the distance limitation.

Hours and days limitations.

Surface activities located within 1,000’ of a C, CR, E, P, or R zone, or any permitted
occupied dwelling use in other zones may only occur between 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.
and Mondays through Fridays. No activity may occur on weekends, and national and
state holidays. The following are exempt from these requirements:

o] Uses existing at the time of approval of this SUP may occur over 24-hours per
day and 365 days per year. Uses include, but are not limited to, mining, mine
definition and exploration, processing, and ancillary uses;

o} Dwellings that are owned by the Permit Holder,;

o Dwellings for which affidavits were submitted as part of the application for this
SUP, and, accordingly, are located entirely within the boundaries of the subject
property;

o When the affected property owner(s) in Storey County submit to the Planning

Department a signed statement that uses associated with the SUP may occur
within the distance limitation. The submitted waiver may extend the hours of
operation limit for mine definition and exploration up to two days in a 30 day
period, provided that the operating times do not occur between 6:00 p.m. and
6:00 a.m., and on Sundays. The waiver shall be non-transferrable and will
become null and void immediately upon the affected property owner(s) written
request to the Planning Department.

Air monitoring and reporting.

Air emissions, including dust and other airborne materials, shall conform to NDEP air
permit standards. Copies of annual reports of environmental quality, necessary to
comply with the requirements of the permit(s) issued by the NDEP Bureau of Air
Pollution Control, shall be submitted to the Building and Planning Departments within
30 days of receipt. Air monitoring conducted by the Permit Holder shall be inclusive
and considerate of potentially impacted residents within 1,000’ of active mining areas
within the subject property. In the event that there is an air discharge in excess of the
standards approved by the NDEP under construction phase or operation phase
permit(s), the Permit Holder shall provide the Building and Planning Departments a copy
of any notice within 24 hours of Permit Holder’s receipt. If the Permit Holder is required
by the NDEP to prepare a report on the event, the Permit Holder shall submit a copy of
the report to the Building and Planning Departments at the same time it is submitted to
the NDEP. There shall be no obnoxious odors released into the air that are a nuisance to
abutting properties.

21



cc.

DD.

Outdoor lighting (non-exempt).

SCC Chapter 8.02 (“Dark Skies”) limits outdoor lighting that may impact adjacent land
uses. Exemptions for “temporary lighting” in the Code (which normally apply to such
activities as road construction, and may appear to apply to mining and processing
operations) will not apply to uses under this SUP. All uses, buildings, structures will be
required to comply with the strictest regulations under the Code (shield lighting) to
ensure minimal impacts to neighbors and the surrounding environment.

Trees and vegetation.

Trees, shrubs, and other vegetation and ground surfaces must be preserved to the
extent feasible. The Permit Holder shall not cause harm or cause to be removed trees of
any type with a trunk of six” in diameter within 75’ of the center-point of natural
waterways. The operating plan shall describe measures that will be taken to protect said
trees.

Invasive species control

Integrated management of invasive weed species (noxious weeds) shall be included in
the operating plan. The plan shall apply to the entire subject property and shall conform
to the applicable state or federal regulations, and the requirements imposed by this SUP
and the Fire District. The Permit Holder shall conform to the plan.

Septic systems.

The Permit Holder may acquire a permit from the State of Nevada and the Storey
County Community Development Department to install septic system(s) and septic
leach-field(s) capable of serving administrative offices, watchman’s dwelling and other
occupied uses not accessible to a municipal sewerage system. The septic systems shall
be removed and reclaimed by the Permit Holder as required by NRS at closure or
removal of the buildings.

Environmental Monitoring. The Permit Holder shall submit to Storey County a copy of
the environmental monitoring requirements applicable to the facility under the
environmental permits issued for the facility.

FIRE & EMERGENCY

EE.

FF.

Site supervision.

Site and staff supervision must comply with Mine Safety and Health Administration
(MSHA) requirements. Supervisors must have knowledge of and immediate access to
fire suppression devices, First-Aid kits, and locked gates. While on the premises, the on-
site supervisor(s) must possess a cellular telephone with adequate signal to send and
receive signals to and from SC emergency services either by dialing 9-1-1, or by direct-
connect 775.847.0950.

Spill reporting.

Any hydrocarbon or chemical spill of or exceeding 25 gallons or 3 cubic-yards shall be
reported immediately to Emergency Dispatch 9-1-1 or SC emergency services
775.847.0950. Additionally, the incident must be immediately reported to the NDEP and
the local jurisdiction, including the Fire District and the Emergency Management,

22



Building, and Planning Departments. The Permit Holder must comply with NDEP clean-
up requirements and provide the Fire District and said county departments a copy of
NDEP completion of remediation immediately. All hazardous materials incident clean-up
and response costs will be borne by the Permit Holder as part of the issuance of this
SUP. Incidents exceeding a standard First-Alarm fire will be billed to the Permit Holder. If
mutual aid is warranted to suppress an incident, those costs will also be funded by the
Permit Holder.

GG. Emergency specialized training.
The Permit Holder must provide and/or pay for any special training for the Fire District
and Emergency Management Department that is necessary for safe operation and
management of emergencies.
TRANSPORTATION
HH. Means and modes of transport.

GENERAL USES

1.

KK.

The Permit Holder shall be responsible to repair damages to any state, county, or
private road, utility, or other infrastructure caused by activities associated with the uses
under this SUP. The repairs must be completed to the satisfaction of Storey County, BLM
and the NDOT, as applicable. The county reserves the right to restrict or prohibit the
use of trucks and heavy equipment on county-owned right-of-ways.

Roadway Maintenance.

If at any time, the traffic index or capacity to accommodate traffic volume and weight
serving the Permit Holder’s operation needs exceeds the limit of the existing road that is
privately owned or located in Lyon County, the Permit Holder and/or parties other than
Storey County are the sole responsible parties to upgrade the road to meet their traffic
requirements.

Safety and security
. Security. Appropriate security shall be maintained to prevent unauthorized

access to potentially hazardous conditions.

° Signage. Warning signs indicating all potentially hazardous conditions shall be
installed at each port of entry and around other potentially hazardous
conditions. Cautionary signs shall be positioned peripheral to area of acidity to
inform individuals entering the area to be safety conscious and aware of
potentially hazardous conditions.

Watchman's dwelling.

The Permit Holder is authorized to place on the subject property a recreational vehicle
(RV) type trailer or manufactured building to serve as temporary living quarters for on-
site security (per File 2000-217-A1-2017). A temporary (one-year) permit from the
Community Development Department must be obtained for this watchman'’s quarters
and the Permit Holder shall submit an application to the Building Department each year
thereafter for the use to remain. The use shall be removed from the premises within 30

23



days of closure of the operation or when operations under this SUP cease to operate for
a period of 24 months or longer.

LL. Survey monument protection.
No government line survey monument may be moved or disturbed (as prohibited by
federal or state law). To the extent practicable, all monument witness corners,
reference monuments, bearing trees and line trees shall be protected against undue
destruction, obliteration, or damage.

CULTURAL RESOURCES

MM. Cultural resources discovery.
Should any prehistoric or historic remains/artifacts be discovered during development
or excavation, work shall temporarily be halted at the specific site and the Building and
Planning Departments shall be notified in order to evaluate the site and, to record and
photograph the site in question.

5. Public Comment
As of July 6, 2021, Staff has not received any comments from the public.
6. Power of the Board

At the conclusion of the hearing, the Board of County Commissioners must take such action
thereon as it deems warranted under the circumstances and announce and record its action by
formal resolution, and such resolution must recite the findings of the Board of County
Commissioners upon which it bases its decision.

7. Proposed Motions

This section contains two motions from which to choose. The motion for approval is
recommended by staff in accordance with the Findings of Fact under Section 3.A of this report.
Those findings should be made part of the approval motion. A motion for denial may be made
and that motion should cite one or more of the findings shown in Section 3.B. Other findings of
fact determined appropriate by the Planning Commission should be made part of either motion.

A. Recommended motion for approval

In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, the
Findings of Fact under Section 3.A of this report, and other findings deemed appropriate
by the Board of County Commissioners, and in compliance with the conditions of
approval, | (commissioner), move to approve the Second Amended Special Use Permit
2000-217-A2-2021 request by the applicant Basalite Concrete Products, LLC., to increase
the annual mining capacity from the 2017 Storey County approved 500,000 tons per
year to 1,200,000 tons per year. The project includes additional equipment to be added
to the site that will assist in processing the additional material being generated including

24



silos that may extend to 170-feet in height. The property is located at 1150 N. Pinenut
Road, Mark Twain area, Storey County, Nevada, APNs 004-291-09, 13, 25, 45 and 47.

Alternative motion for denial

Against the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, but in accordance
with the Findings of Fact under Section 3.2 of this report, and other findings deemed
appropriate by the Board of County Commissioners, | (commissioner), move to deny the
Second Amended Special Use Permit 2000-217-A2-2021 request by the applicant
Basalite Concrete Products, LLC., to increase the annual mining capacity from the 2017
Storey County approved 500,000 tons per year to 1,200,000 tons per year. The project
includes additional equipment to be added to the site that will assist in processing the
additional material being generated including silos that may extend to 170-feet in
height. The property is located at 1150 N. Pinenut Road, Mark Twain area, Storey
County, Nevada, APNs 004-291-09, 13, 25, 45 and 47.

25



Vanessa Stephens

=
From: THOMAS ZACHRY <tbzachry@hughes.net>
Sent: Monday, July 12, 2021 10:49 AM
To: clerk
Subject: Permit Amendment 2000-217-A2-2021

re: Basalite permit ammendment

My name is Tom Zachry. My wife Marna and | live just north of the Basalite mine at Sutro Springs. | was contacted by a Baselite
representative to inform us about this application. | have read the information on line and feel it's impact on us would be minimal. Other
than more traffic on North Pinenut Drive, which is their road, | don't think we will be effected.

Basalite is our closest neighbor and we have had a good relationship for many years, They have helped us many times and we look
forward to having them as friendly neighbors for years to come. We have no objection to things outlined it this use permit change.

Thank you, Tom Zachry

This electronic mail (including any attachments) may be included in the massive amount of messages
which are monitored by the NSA. No privacy should be assumed or expected



St;)rey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

' Meeting date: 7/20/2021 10:33 AM - ' Estimate of Time Required: 10
- BOCC Meeting ‘
Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

» Title: Discussion/For Possible Action: Special Use Permit 2021-31 by Storey County
Public Works. The applicant requests a special use permit to allow for a 5-foot setback
along the north property line for a proposed garage structure associated with Storey
County Fire Station #72. The property is located within the Virginia City Highlands at
2610 Cartwright Road, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 003-
041-02.

+  Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the
Planning Commission, the Findings under section 3.A of the Staff Report, and in
compliance with all Conditions of Approval, | [Commissioner], hereby move to approve
a 5-foot setback along the north property line for a proposed garage structure associated
with Storey County Fire Station #72. The property is located within the Virginia City
Highlands at 2610 Cartwright Road, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number
(APN) 003-041-02.

* Prepared by: AGENDA SUBMITTER
Department: Contact Number: 7758471144
« Staff Summary: See attached Staff Report

* Supporting Materials: Sce attached

* Fiscal Impact: None

» Legal review required: False

* Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name:

County Manager Other Agency Review:

* Board Action:



STOREY COUNTY
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Storey County Courthouse

26 South B Street, PO Box 176, Virginia City, NV 89440 Phone (775)
847-1144 — Fax (775) 847-0949

planning@storeycounty.org

To: Storey County Board of County Commissioners

From: Storey County Planning Department

Meeting Date: July 20, 2021

Meeting Location: Storey County Courthouse, 26 S. B Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada, and via
Zoom

Staff Contact: Kathy Canfield

File: 2021-31

Applicants: Storey County Public Works Department — Mike Northan

Property Owner: Storey County

Property Location: Fire Station #72, 2610 Cartwright Road, Virginia City Highlands, Storey County,

Nevada, APN 003-041-02

Request: The applicant request a special use permit to allow for a 5-foot setback along
the north property line for a proposed garage structure associated with Storey
County Fire Station #72. The property is located within the Virginia City
Highlands at 2610 Cartwright Road, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel
Number (APN) 003-041-02.

1. Background & Analysis

A. Site Location & Background. The proposed location is within the 1-acre Virginia City
Highlands subdivision and is located at the northeast corner of Lousetown Road and
Cartwright Road. The parcel itself is rectangular in shape and is divided by a drainage
channel. The site contains Fire Station #72, which includes the fire station, a separate
residence to house firefighters and garage/storage building.

The existing garage/storage building is currently a multi-purpose building utilized not only
for storage of fire equipment and vehicles but is also used as a community meeting place. It
is desired to upgrade this building to a more functional meeting space, but to do so, a new
garage is needed to store the fire equipment and vehicles. The proposed garage will be
used to relocate the fire equipment and vehicles and allow for the existing garage/storage



building to become a fulltime meeting space. Storey County also owns the property
immediately to the north of the project area. This parcel is zoned Estates E-1 VCH, and is
used for maneuvering of vehicles and access around the fire station site.

Rl T U SIESFIRLY RES ]

CARTIWRIGH TeR[).



A Porfion Sec 32,338 28, T'8N,R2IE

) @

€ X
S |
Ik | - "
|
|
|
-
— sz Lt X ' q
: | =
u .|
1 . '
A
Lodp | ¥
' SN 4
A 1 ;
|

iy ey feg, &

! o —‘-“"a P S e s cmem s e VGG Cty  Highlands Umt |
S P . ] P vy N by 4 m m

Assessor’s Parcel Map

Site Layout



Proposed Project. The applicant proposes to construct a garage structure to house fire
equipment and vehicles. The new building size, location and configuration are governed by
several factors including response time, number of vehicles, vehicle size and response
egress. Four vehicles will be housed in this building, including two fire engines, a patrol
truck and an ambulance. The building is designed to be drive through so that all vehicles
can immediately exit the building in any order as needed. There are other buildings existing
on the site with the same requirements, and the placement of the new garage can not
impede the functions of the other buildings. Proximity to the existing residence was also a
consideration along with site utility availability and proximity.

Use Compatibility and Compliance

A.

Compatibility with surrounding uses and zones. The following table documents land uses,
zoning classification and master plan designations for the land at and surrounding the

proposed project. There are no evident conflicts between the proposed abandonment and
Storey County Title 17 Zoning or the 2016 Master Plan.



Land Use Master Plan Zoning
Applicant’s Land Fire Station Single family estate Public
Land to the North Vacant, owned by Single family estate Estates E-1 VCH
Storey County
Land to the East Vacant, owned by Single family estate Public
School District
Land to the South Vacant residential Single family estate Estates E-1 VCH
Land to the West Vacant residential Single family estate Estates E-1 VCH

Compliance with the Storey County Code. The property is located within a Public zoning
district. The fire station and its accessory structures are an allowed use. The parcel is
approximately one acre in size and is divided by a drainage channel, with most of the
developed portion of the parcel being on the east side of the parcel. The parcel is bordered
by Estates zoning to the north, Public zoning to the east and roadway to the south and west.
Building setbacks adjacent to the Public zoning can be zero, but the rear yard setback
adjacent to the Estates zoning requires 40-feet, unless a special use permit is granted to
allow for less. The applicant has requested a special use permit to allow for a 5-foot rear
yard setback for a proposed garage.

General use allowances and restrictions. Storey County Code 17.03.150, Special Use
Permit, identifies the administration for the Board and Planning Commission for allowing a
special use permit. The approval, approval with conditions, or denial of the Special Use
Permit must be based on findings of fact that the proposed use is appropriate or
inappropriate in the location. The findings listed below are the minimum to be cited in an
approval, with rationale for the findings included below each finding.

(1) Complies with the general purpose, goals, objectives, and standards of the county
master plan, this title, and any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted,
or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the county.

The proposed fire station and the accessory garage is an allowed use for the Public
zoned property. The purpose of the proposed garage is to allow for the current
structure housing fire vehicles and equipment to become a meeting space for the
community. The Master Plan identifies the Virginia City Highlands subdivision as
“single family estate”. The proposed use of the property services the surrounding
residential neighborhood.

(2) The proposal location, size, height, operations, and other significant features will
be compatible with and will not cause substantial negative impact on adjacent
land uses, or will perform a function or provide a service that is essential to the
surrounding land uses, community, and neighborhood.

The special use permit to encroach into the rear yard setback is requested because
of the existing structures located on the parcel and the function of the building.

The building has been placed in this location to allow for the quickest response time
by fire personnel to access equipment. Because of the other structures on the site,
the new garage needed to be located to not block access to any other structure.
Storey County owns the parcel to the north, so the encroachment into the setback
is not a concern at this location as the applicant is also the entity most impacted by
the encroachment.

n



(3) Will result in no substantial or undue adverse effect on adjacent property, the
character of the neighborhood, traffic conditions, parking, public improvements,
public sites or right-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety,
and general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be
developed as a result of the implementation of the provisions and policies of the
county master plan, this title, and any other plans, program, map or ordinance
adopted or under consideration pursuant to an official notice, by the county, or
other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide growth and development.

The garage structure will be located at the northeast corner of the existing fire
station parcel. Storey County owns the property to the north and the Storey County
School District owns the property to the east. The garage will be accessed from an
existing driveway from Cartwright Road, or access across the Storey County owned
property to the north to an existing second driveway access on Cartwright Road.
The use itself services the surrounding Virginia City Highlands subdivision, and the
project is being proposed in order to provide a community meeting space for the
surrounding area.

(4) The proposed use in the proposed area will be adequately served by and will
impose no undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities, or
services provided by the county or other governmental agency having jurisdiction
in the county.

The proposed use is not expected to require any additional governmental services
or negatively impact existing facilities.

Compliance with 2016 Storey County Master.

The Master Plan has identified this area as Single Family Estate. Chapter 3, Land Use, of the
Storey County Master Plan identifies the Highlands as “composed of custom site-built
single-family residences located on large parcels. This pattern is expected to continue in this
area for the foreseeable future.” The proposed project services the surrounding area and

is not expected to impact the character of the area.

Findings of Fact

The Storey County Planning Commission shall cite Findings in a recommended motion for approval,

approval with conditions, or denial. The recommended approval, approval with conditions or denial
of the requested Special Use Permit must be based on Findings. The Findings listed in the following

subsections are the minimum to be cited. The Planning Commission may include additional Findings
in their decision.

A.

Motion for Approval. The following Findings of Fact are the minimum to be cited for a
recommendation of approval or approval with conditions. The following Findings are
evident with regard to the requested Special Use Permit when the recommended conditions
in Section 4 are applied. At a minimum, an approval or conditional approval must be based
on the following Findings:

(1) This approval is to allow for a 5-foot setback along the north property line for a
proposed garage structure associated with Storey County Fire Station #72. The



(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

property is located within the Virginia City Highlands at 2610 Cartwright Road,
Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 003-041-02.

The proposed project complies with the general purpose, goals, objectives, and
standards of the county master plan, this title, and any other plan, program, map, or
ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the county.

The proposal location, size, height, operations, and other significant features will be
compatible with and will not cause substantial negative impact on adjacent land
uses, or will perform a function or provide a service that is essential to the
surrounding land uses, community, and neighborhood.

The proposed project will result in no substantial or undue adverse effect on
adjacent property, the character of the neighborhood, traffic conditions, parking,
public improvements, public sites or right-of-way, or other matters affecting the
public health, safety, and general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in
the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the provisions and
policies of the county master plan, this title, and any other plans, program, map or
ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to an official notice, by the
county, or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide growth and
development.

The proposed use in the proposed area will be adequately served by and will impose
no undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities, or services
provided by the county or other governmental agency having jurisdiction in the
county.

The Special Use Permit conforms to the 2016 Storey County Master Plan for the
Virginia City Highlands in which the subject property is located. A discussion
supporting this finding is provided in Section 2.D of this staff report and the
contents thereof are cited in an approval of this Special Use Permit.

The conditions under the Special Use Permit do not conflict with the minimum
requirements in Storey County Code Sections 17.03.150 - Special Use Permit, 17.12
— General Provisions, and Section 17.15 — Public Zone.

Motion for denial. Should a motion be made to deny the Special Use Permit request, the
following findings with explanation why should be included in that motion.

(1)

(2)

(3)

This denial is for a 5-foot setback along the north property line for a proposed
garage structure associated with Storey County Fire Station #72. The property is
located within the Virginia City Highlands at 2610 Cartwright Road, Storey County,
Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 003-041-02.

The conditions under the Special Use Permit conflict with the minimum
requirements in Storey County Code Sections 17.03.150 - Special Use Permit, 17.12
— General Provisions, and Section 17.40 -E Estates Zone.

The conditions under the Special Use Permit do not adequately mitigate potential
adverse impacts on surrounding uses or protect against potential safety hazards for



surrounding use.
Recommended Conditions of Approval

A. Special Use Permit. This approval is to allow for a 5-foot setback along the north property
line for a proposed garage structure associated with Storey County Fire Station #72. The
property is located within the Virginia City Highlands at 2610 Cartwright Road, Storey
County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 003-041-02.

B. Compliance. The Special Use Permit must comply with Storey County Codes, and submitted
plans and reports, as approved. The Applicant must provide the Community Development
Department site plans drawn to scale prior to obtaining a Building Permit.

€. Requirements. The Permit Holder/Licensee shall apply for any/all required permits and
licenses, including building and fire permits, for the project within 24 months from the date
of final approval of this Special Use Permit, and continuously maintain the validity of those
permits/licenses, or this approval shall be null and void. This permit shall remain valid as
long as the Permit Holder remains in compliance with the terms of this permit and Storey
County, Nevada State, and federal regulations.

D. Distances. The reduced north side yard setback is approved to be 5-feet from the property
line. All other setbacks (proposed or existing) must be in compliance with the Storey
County Code.

E. Easements. The granting of this Special Use Permit will not affect any existing easements on

the subject property. No building may be constructed over an easement, ROW or within a
building setback area not otherwise allowed by this Special Use Permit.

Public Comment
As of July 6, 2021, Staff has received no comments from the public.

Power of the Board

At the conclusion of the hearing, the Board of County Commissioners must take such action thereon
as it deems warranted under the circumstances and announce and record its action by formal
resolution, and such resolution must recite the findings of the Board of County Commissioners upon
which it bases its decision.

Proposed Motions

This Section contains two motions from which to choose. The motion for approval is recommended
by Staff and the Planning Commission in accordance with the findings under Section 3.A of this
report. Those findings shouldbe made part of that motion. A motion for denial may be made and
that motion should cite one ormore of the findings shown in Section 3.B. Other findings of fact
determined appropriate by the Planning Commission should be made part of either motion.



Recommended Motion (motion for approval)

In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, the Findings
under section 3.A of the Staff Report, and in compliance with all Conditions of Approval, |
[Commissioner], hereby move to approve a 5-foot setback along the north property line for
a proposed garage structure associated with Storey County Fire Station #72. The property is
located within the Virginia City Highlands at 2610 Cartwright Road, Storey County, Nevada,
Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 003-041-02.

Alternative Motion (motion for denial)

In accordance with the Findings under section 3.B of this report and other Findings against
the recommendation for approval with conditions by Staff and the Planning Commission, |
[Commissioner], hereby move to deny the applicant’s request to allow for a 5-foot setback
along the north property line for a proposed garage structure associated with Storey County
Fire Station #72. The property is located within the Virginia City Highlands at 2610
Cartwright Road, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 003-041-02.



Meeting date: 7/20/2021 10:33 AM - Estimate of Time Required: 10

Storey County Board of Count)_/'_

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

- BOCC Meeting
Agenda Item Type: Discussion/No Action

Title: PUBLIC HEARING AT 11:00 AM

Hold a public hearing on the fair market value of the appraised land associated with
Assessor’s Parcel Number 005-061-52 pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS)
244.2795.

Recommended motion: None

Prepared by: AGENDA SUBMITTER

Department: Contact Number: 7758471144

Staff Summary: Storey County has been approached by a property owner requesting an
easement across Storey County owned property to construct a rail spur and driveway
encroachment. The property is located within the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center,
McCarran, Storey County, Nevada, located south of Denmark Drive, being Parcel 2017-
28 and having Assessor’s Parcel Number 005-061-52.

At the June 15, 2021, Storey County Board of County Commissioner’s meeting, the
Board approved Anthony J. Wren and Associates to prepare an appraisal of the subject
property to facilitate a proposed easement on the property. Nevada Revised Statutes
(NRS) and the Storey County Code Chapter 2.22.100 requires the Board of County
Commissioners to verify the qualifications of the appraiser selected to perform the
appraisal associated with the easement request.

As only one appraisal was completed for the property, NRS Section 244.2795(a) requires
that a public hearing be held on the matter of the fair market value of the real property.

A copy of the appraisal is attached to this request.

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact: None

Legal review required: False

|2



AN APPRAISAL REPORT
OF

A VACANT PARCEL OF LAND
LOCATED ON
DENMARK DRIVE
TAHOE-RENO-INDUSTRIAL-CENTER
McCARRAN, STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA 89434

APN 005-061-52

A VACANT PARCEL OF LAND
CONTAINING 21.60x AC

OWNER OF RECORD
STOREY COUNTY

FOR THE PURPOSE OF ESTIMATING
VALUE FOR A SITE CONTAINING
21.60+ ACRES
AND
A PE OF 22,141.40+ SF
A PE OF 32,648.37+ SF

A TCE OF 72,096.60+ SF

SUBMITTED BY
ANTHONY J. WREN, MAI, SRA
CERTIFIED GENERAL APPRAISER #A.0000090-CG
P.O. BOX 20867
RENO, NEVADA 89515

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719




AN APPRAISAL REPORT
OF
A VACANT SITE
LOCATED ON
DENMARK DRIVE
TAHOE-RENO-INDUSTRIAL-CENTER
McCARRAN, NV 89434

APN 005-061-52

A VACANT SITE
CONTAINING A TOTAL OF 21.60x AC

PREPARED FOR

KATHY CANFIELD-SENIOR PLANNER
STOREY COUNTY PLANING DEPARTMENT
26 SOUTH "B" STREET
P.O. BOX 176
VIRGINIA CITY, NV 89440

OWNER OF RECORD
STOREY COUNTY

EFFECTIVE DATE OF APPRAISAL

JUNE 19, 2021

DATE OF INSPECTION
JUNE 19, 2021

DATE OF REPORT
July 8, 2021

SUBMITTED BY
ANTHONY J. WREN, MAI, SRA
CERTIFIED GENERAL APPRAISER #A.0000090-CG
P.O. BOX 20867
RENO, NEVADA 89515

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719




ANTHONY J. WREN AND ASSOCIATES
P.0. BOX 20867
RENO, NEVADA 89515
(775) 329-4221

TONY WREN, MAI, SRA SUSAN WREN
CERTIFIED GENERAL APPRAISER EMERITUS RESIDENTIAL APPRAISER
July 8, 2021

Kathy Canfield-Senior Planner
Storey County Planing Department
26 South "B" Street

P.O. Box 176

Virginia City, NV 89440

RE: An Appraisal of APN 005-061-52
Denmark Drive, TRIC, Storey County
A Vacant Site Containing 21.60+ Acres

Kathy Canfield
Senior Planner,

| have made an inspection and analysis of the above-referred property, which is
more specifically described in the following report. The purpose of this report is to
estimate the “as is” market value as of the date of inspection, which was June 19,
2021. Market value “as is” means an estimate of market value of a property in the
condition observed upon inspection and as it physically and legally exists as of the
date of valuation. Market value is defined in the body of the report.

The subject property is appraised as a fee simple estate, subject to the limitations of
eminent domain, escheat, police power, and taxation.

It is my understanding that you need a current appraisal estimating the market value
of the property and values for the easements. The appraisal will be used for
transferring use to the adjoining property owner. | will have an individual value for
each separate easement, but will incorporate all in one appraisal report. Any other
utilization of this report without the prior written consent of the signer of this report is
prohibited.

The intended user of the report is Storey County

The accompanying appraisal report is being prepared in conformance with this
appraiser's understanding of the appraisal requirements of the current Uniform
Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice (USPAP) as adopted by the Appraisal
Standards Board of the Appraisal Foundation, as well as the Supplemental
Standards required by the Appraisal Institute.

The appraiser attests that he has the knowledge and experience to complete this
assignment and has appraised this type of property before.

Real Estate Appraiser & Consultant



| have performed no services, as an appraiser, regarding the property that is the
subject of this report, within a three-year period immediately preceding acceptance
of this assignment.

After analyzing the current market data, a marketing period to sell the property is
considered to be less than 12 months. This is based upon adequate exposure to the
open market as well as competitive pricing.

The following report provides a summary physical description of the subject and a
summary review of the pertinent data analyzed in forming the estimate of value for
the subject property. Based on the examination and study made, | have formed the
opinion that as of June 19, 2021 the effective Date of valuation, the estimated
market value is:

AS OF JUNE 19, 2021

Permanent Easement containing 54,789.77+ sf $47,941.05
Temporary Easement containing 72,096.60+ sf $12,616.91

Sincerely,

210,

/“(.’,’,'/.M%{}fﬁf ( LA LEr

-

Anthony J. Wren MAI, SRA
Certified General Appraiser #A.0000090-CG

Real Estate Appraiser & Consultant



Denmark Drive SUMMARY OF IMPORTANT FACTS

SUMMARY OF IMPORTANT FACTS AND CONCLUSIONS

Name: A Vacant Parcel of Land containing 21.60+ acres
Location: Tahoe-Reno-Industrial-Center

Address: Denmark Drive McCarran, Nevada 89434
Owner of Record: Storey County

Legal Description: No Legal was supplied to the appraised

Assessor's Parcel No.: APN 005-061-52
Zoning: Zoning I-2 (Industrial)
Present Use: Vacant Land

Highest and Best Use: Future Development and/or floodway mitigation

Land Area: 21.60+ ac
Effective Date

of Valuation: June 19, 2021
Date of Inspection: June 19, 2021
Date of Report: July 8, 2021

FINAL ESTIMATE OF VALUE:

As of June 19, 2021
Permanent Easement containing 54,789.77+ sf $47,941.05
Temporary Easement containing 72,096.60+ sf $12,616.91

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719




Denmark Drive TABLE OF CONTENTS

Table of Contents Page
Title Page
Letter of Transmittal

State Map. . . . e 1
Regianal MAD. « « o wmmmm o 2 65 5 0 5 5 5 wvomemms o ¢ @ 5 & 6 6 S domuammaans £ %% 5§ 3 ) ¥ SRHO L L 4 B @8 Y 2
AIOA MBD: o wovwi wrmminm s 555 s 56 8 & EEIERIS B E £ U PSS N E S & WEET R R e 6 AR B G Y @8 3
Tahoe-reno Industnial Cemter MaD: < .vmmes oo s as b6 apmammea 5 885555 5 5 Eaass L5y 5§ 5
AsSessOor's Parcel Map. . . . ... e 6
Subject Property Photographs. . ... ... .. . 12
Limiting CORAMONS. e o 05 6 5 5 5 5 s o 2 @ 6 5 8 5 5 G Oomemmees 5 £ % 5% 5 3 5 6 S5 6 % 52 5 3 15
Purpese of the APPraiSal.c v oo s s s wmein o s g e e 8655 o wman @ o ws s v 6 s 655 Smemes o e s s s 21
Function oftthe ApEraisal, «. s isamemiis s 5 5545 i oG £ E0 835 50 SEEMD s b8 u i g 21
BT o o st w2 2 o 3 5 sovmrimsmsiom 2 413 % 10 s 8 50 seuEMERGA R & 8 £ ¥ T B i e B e B I E NG R s B S EE B 21
Intended USer. . . . . 21
APPraisal RBPOM. « v v o v v o v s @ wmsemes o o 6 v ¢ 05 % 8§ ARG § 6 0 € 8 ¥ 88 R § MIEREE B 0 ¥ E 21
Scoperofthe APEREISAL 5 ;s n e e v s owmmva 155595854 S FULED § LB EES 365 5 BEEBREEREE55 80 21
Effective Date of the Appraisal. . .. ... .. ... e 22
Legal Descriplion. . ... ... e 23
Property Rights Appraised. . .. .. .. . ... 23
DWrer Of REBOFHus s onmmm o o v s w5 1 6 o ammvem ow 65 5 % 5 5 5 5 & SowEeal s & 5 ¥ 9 % % 5 5 5 STsweE @8 ¥ Y G 23
LA AT 55 pa s s 8 HE S B S RGPS S SRS R S A R S S U FRE S WA H g e o E 23
o 1 O e T T R B R e PR 23
Ui S, . . o e e e e e 23
BRI s o 5t 0 4 & 5 5 5 sostvaatzs o 6 % 0 % & & % STPERTAEE 3 B Y 8% 8 5 5 % GECARRIET @ B B W K KA B U T OSSO 6 6 0 23
FIOOU ZOMIEY: & 5 5 s seumers s 5 55 8 85 6 6 SIS EE o s & § 5 555 6 WG F BT 8T F 8 4 SRR S S S ¥ G 25
Flood Zone Ma[. ; cssms 55555 i G s e 55 633588040 AAEE 404 E 8553305 MBI au E 35 28 25
Earthquake Zone. . ... . ... e 26
Three-year Sales History. . . ... ... 26
T DAEAL 5 ¢ 5 5 v v mwraaemmis & 5 % % 5 % 5 % GRS 5 W W R R AR B 8§ W R ¥ 6 R SR E 8 E 27
Special ASSESSIIENTS: /v o s v 5o w s b v @EoEe 65y 3§ F 5 8 5% SWENEE 85 85§ 56555 SOWHEE T EE 8 27
RENG/SPETKS ATSEIMAD. - s i s eisrmmmes 55305 iR G R0 B I 5 0 AT S G 55§ 41
Highest and Best Use Analysis. . . .. . ...t e 45
Highest and Best Use as If Vacant .. . . ... ... . . . 46
Approaches 0 Value.. . . . ... 50
Comiparable Land SaleChart: .« : « a wavmaa s oo n o 0w ww o n wmemms e 50w v 60 5 50 5 smmmse @ 04 9 % 54 & 52
Comparable Land Sales Location Map: .« «ase s s s w s mammms v e s 05 5 55 5 8 w5585 5 4 & 53
SAICEANAINEIS.. . o siwmsisis 5o f 55 255 Pbediad s L NiE AR I E AR AR A F R EE A 61
Summary and Conclusion of Value. . . .. ... .. ... e 66
Description and Valuation of the Temporary Easement. . ........... .. ... ... ... ..... 72
Exposure and Marketing Time Analysis. . . ... ... it T
GOrTIEatON i ¢ o5 un s 25 3 0 o5 5 55 ORI E S ¥ DT 0 0G5 VOB £ 6 E G E B ¥ 6 NG € W R @ 5 78

ABAEHAUN e s i85 5853 T ST SRR B PR EH IR R R R IR E S E s 81

QUALIFICATIONS OF APPRAISER. . . . . e i

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719




Denmark Drive MAPS
STATE MAP
................................................................... [hgp!;hee. PR

“Denio McDerm:tt S Jarbldge Jackpot
Sheldon Mountaln City
MR
ﬁDrouada
Igl—flj Montello_

Wells

= Carlin

FImlay J g
Mountain At
{g3):
Cherry Creeko
NEVADA :
5 Austin Eureka LG
F - & ‘e
i _ Fdllon 5E & :
o (CafsoriCty % == o
e UNITED S TATEA/AS"
§ 4 & {
n;d-' Yerihgton Gabbs oDudc:water
(88"
Hawtharne “Round
B . s e Mountain
y . (95
Brid rt R~
ye ot ‘g\:!po  Warm Springs
< i v
olumne 3 Tonopah 5y Pioche
; T Goldfield
Yozemite NP, JLakes & Caliente /
“Mariposa Bishop Woliet 5.0, JAlamo :
(41) Desert National :
) ‘Peatty  WMidife Range L.
A‘I,Fresno ,1301 Jndependence A Mesquite .4
8 Indian V apallt
Death )
L | F O RNIA Valley N.P. Springs

ford \r’lsalaa

gy (20575 Death Valley -
8 F’or‘terville Y - o inig
Tularen Las Vegasiiy:
I 99}
Lake
\,}yasco Jsabella . DRidg'é’creSt

0 ., Bakersfield o
Copyright’@ 2003 Mcrosoft Corpl andfor its suppliers. Al rightstreserved.

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719




Denmark Drive MAPS

REGIONAL MAP

WalldWalla - EIENa gijings
- m IB RN - (R TR ‘..- LA "
"""""" é'l'w;eri;:ia n
Eugene
o WYOMIN
E: D S TA
att Lake
ity
A H
anta Rosa ® Facramento @Q
: Stockton &
T OAN 3
Francisco )} - - o ceore @ - &
San Jose : . OO e Sk Gall
| . Saf
RZONA i
& :
Los Angeles™, Phoenix ~ :
g o
San Diegog o :
. = ¥ '-"'h. o = '
Ensenacda 3 = Tucson B
BAJA " s T
CALIFORNIA Nodiolesy, ». . | J
Copyright @ 2003 Mcrosoft Corp. andior its suppliers. Al rights reserved. g Cananea g

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 2




Denmark Drive MAPS

AREA MAP

WA S H O E Wadsworlhb

oSun Yalley

N s Silver |
; : Springso 1

‘Iulnunt Rose

_ | New
Washoe : o
CRY \irainia’ L .
8 E irginis P Srsn
. Incline ' Gty - "
: o\c’illage : r

“Kings Beach “. . /Dayton

Vailey A(;ats'on City

be CARSON CITY
TFOrest. ... cooed e

----------------------------------

: Zephyr '; ]
b i Cove Genoa : £
¢ DOUGLAS .

iy .. o i1 v B 2% 2 T TUaa e .

- Minden
?. e

| “South Lake “Oeardnerville :
Tahoe. !

Copyright @ 2003 Mcrosoft Corp. and/or its suppliers. Al rights reserved:

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 3




Denmark Drive MAPS

RENO/SPARKS MAP

3
e
4
!

un Valley

Copynght @ 2003 Mcrosoft Corp. and/for its suppliers. Al rights r:e?er\fed.

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 4




6LLLE
VHS IVIN ‘uaip T Auoyiuy

AT gl - Wagaiag) kg
SN - WG

TUORIEAD IO 5004 JUOIATOpASD TASUrULAeADE
JRICY S0 SEIS ON SBY N ] WNSES E Sy

Eussadad jusadoprag

DINIDE IDMIE DUT ST Taud j0 Raosddy-
WoWSTNIWIS) SnpnITTyul

SINADE IO J0§ SIUOUILALOD ARnDTy

SUCHOTED PUT 509} ‘sucqerBias
WAk pint ) AP01G0 ML 100 SLONEFILL |-

Ruwod Aey Bumono; sa
SIPNPU PUE IDUTLIPIO OFus PIEI0dIadU put
panosdde o jusumesfiy eswdopasgeuy |

NI~ MO,

g

dVYIN 43LN3D TVIHLSNANI ON3H-IJOHVL
dVIN ¥31LN3D TVIHLSNANI ONIH-I0OHVY.L aALQ Hewuaq




9 6LLL#
VHS ‘IVIN ‘uaip T Auoyjuy

“sepansd Agunyoddo wabe ue & Qunod Aascig S p—

ey D o) jo & Lod WNS 0y oy 5T -
Agpqey oN “Aessns v juseardes 1ou se0p Y A TNO Se30dnd sagunsny pue
IWMUSSISE 10) JORERTSY LenoD AM0lg Syl O BN ey JO) pauedaid ) dew By TBION
VOVASN "ALNNOD ASMOLS

5T
DOZ| =4 )
~N
....t....
&
......................................... \f_.l\ =
90-50 3224 'N6LL '} 3 01 T2 008
dVIN 1308Vd S, HOSS3SSV

dVN 1304Vvd S HOSS3SSY aALQ Yewuaq



Denmark Drive AERIAL MAP

AERIAL MAP

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 7




3 BLLLE
VS ‘IVIN ‘usip T Auoyiuy

A

dVIN ¥31N3D TVIHALSNANI ONIY-IOHVL

dVIN 431N3D TVIHLSNANI ONIH-IOHVYL aAuQ Mewuag



0 BlLLLE
WS IVIN ‘uBipp T Auoyiuy

dNdS TIvd 0350d0¥d

L _--:m--'l-

‘d VS 1IN

OZHMIHOE.H
IV #2T'6
mzﬁdu S00e .H..—UHS&

Duwrwos LML) AV

INMMOT uEm_ﬁL

j hzuamﬂ mmuuu«
oz< hzul.nvga.bzu _:uz.:—mun

Y3y INJW3SV3 aAL(Q yewuaq



EASEMENT AREA

Denmark Drive

OF DISTURBANCE |

(12.91 ACRES)

AREA

:
3
:
m
8
&
§
&

PERMANENT ACCESS EASEMENT

AlL SPUR CONNECTION

TO EXISTING RAILROAD

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA

#7719




111 61.L.#
VoS ‘IVIN ‘Usipp T Auoyiuy

dVIA ALINIDIA

%\x\lo&;zgz mm;o_._zuu_u
‘d LHOIMA) 08-—I

Y3dVv LNJW3SVY3 8ALQ Yewuaq



Denmark Drive SUBJECT PROPERTY PHOTOS

SUBJECT PROPERTY PHOTOGRAPHS

View of Denmark Drive

View of Subject Property

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 12




Denmark Drive SUBJECT PROPERTY PHOTOS

SUBJECT PROPERTY PHOTOGRAPHS

View of Subject Property

View of Denmark Drive

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 13




Denmark Drive SUBJECT PROPERTY PHOTOS

SUBJECT PROPERTY PHOTOGRAPHS

View of the Subject Property

View of USA Parkway

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 14




Denmark Drive LIMITING CONDITIONS

LIMITING CONDITIONS
IN ACCEPTANCE OF THIS APPRAISAL ASSIGNMENT AND THE
COMPLETION OF THE APPRAISAL REPORT SUBMITTED HEREWITH, IT
HAS BEEN ASSUMED BY THIS APPRAISER:

1. LIMIT OF LIABILITY:

The liability of Anthony J. Wren & Associates and its employees is limited to the
client only and to the fee actually received by the Appraiser. Further, there is no
accountability, obligation or liability to any third party. If this report is dissem-
inated to anyone other than the client, the client shall make such party aware of
all limiting conditions and assumptions of the assignment and related
discussions. The Appraiser is in no way to be responsible for any costs incurred
to discover or correct any deficiencies of any type present in the property;
physically, financially and/or legally. In the case of limited partnerships or
syndication offerings or stock offerings in real estate, client agrees that if a legal
action is initiated by any lender, partner, part owner in any form of ownership,
tenant, or any other party, the client will hold the Appraiser completely harmless
in any such action from any and all awards or settlements of any type, regardless
of outcome.

2. COPIES, PUBLICATION, DISTRIBUTION, USE OF REPORT:

Possession of this report or any copy thereof does not carry with it the right of

publication, nor may it be used for any other purpose than its intended use; the
physical report(s) remain the property of the Appraiser for the use of the client,
the fee being for the analytical services only.

The Bylaws and Regulations of the Appraisal Institute require each Member and
Candidate to control the use and distribution of each appraisal report signed by
such Member or Candidate. Except as hereinafter provided, the client may
distribute copies of this appraisal report in its entirety to such third parties as the-
client may select; however, selected portions of this appraisal report shall not be
given to third parties without the prior written consent of the signatories of this
appraisal report. Neither all nor any part of this appraisal report shall be
disseminated to the general public by the use of advertising media, public
relations, news, sales or other media for public communication without the prior
written consent of the Appraiser. (See last item in following list for client
agreement/consent).

3. CONFIDENTIALITY:

This appraisal is to be used only in its entirety and no part is to be used without
the whole report. All conclusions and opinions concerning the analysis as set
forth in the report were prepared by the Appraiser whose signature appears on

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 15




Denmark Drive LIMITING CONDITIONS

the appraisal report, unless indicated as "Review Appraiser". No change of any
item in the report shall be made by anyone other than the Appraiser. The
Appraiser and firm shall have no responsibility if any such unauthorized change
is made.

The Appraiser may not divulge the material (evaluation) contents of the report,
analytical findings, or conclusions, or give a copy of the report to anyone other
than the client or his designee as specified in writing except as may be required
by the Appraisal Institute as they may request in confidence for ethics
enforcement, or by a court of law or body with the power of subpoena.

4, INFORMATION USED:

No responsibility is assumed for accuracy of information furnished by work of
others, the client, his designee, or public records. We are not liable for such
information or the work of possible subcontractors. The comparable data relied
upon in this report has been confirmed with one or more parties familiar with the
transaction or from affidavit or other source thought reasonable; all are
considered appropriate for such inclusion to the best of our factual judgment and
knowledge. An impractical and uneconomic expenditure of time would be
required in attempting to furnish unimpeachable verification in all instances,
particularly as to engineering and market related information. It is suggested that
the client consider independent verification as a prerequisite to any transaction
involving sale, lease, or other significant commitment of funds or subject
property.

5. TESTIMONY, CONSULTATION, COMPLETION OF CONTRACT FOR
APPRAISAL SERVICE:

The contract for appraisal, consultation or analytical service is fulfilled and the
total fee is payable upon completion of the report, and/or as agreed upon
between the parties involved. The Appraiser or those assisting in the pre-
paration of the report will not be asked or required to give testimony in court or
hearing because of having made the appraisal, in full or in part, nor engage in
post appraisal consultation with client or third parties except under separate and
special arrangement and at additional fee. If testimony or deposition is required
because of any subpoena, the client shall be responsible for any additional time,
fees, and charges regardless of issuing party.

6. EXHIBITS:

Any sketches, maps, and photographs in this report are included to assist the
reader in visualizing the property and are not necessarily to scale. Site plans are
not surveys unless shown from separate surveyor.

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 16




Denmark Drive LIMITING CONDITIONS

Fi LEGAL, ENGINEERING, FINANCIAL, STRUCTURAL, OR MECHANICAL
COMPONENTS; SOIL QUALITY:

No responsibility is assumed for matters legal in character or nature, nor of any
architectural, structural, mechanical, or engineering nature. No opinion is
rendered as to the title, which is presumed to be good and merchantable. The
property is appraised as if free and clear, unless otherwise stated in the
appraisal report.

The legal description is assumed to be correct as used in this report as furnished
by the client, his designee or as derived by the Appraiser.

Please note that no advice is given regarding mechanical equipment or structural
integrity or adequacy, soils and potential for settlement on drainage, matters
concerning liens, title status and legal marketability and similar matters. The
client should seek assistance from qualified architectural, engineering, or legal
professionals regarding such matters. The lender and owner should inspect the
property before any disbursement of funds. Further, it is likely that the lender or
owner may wish to require mechanical or structural inspections by a qualified
and licensed contractor, civil or structural engineer, architect, or other expert.

The Appraiser has inspected as far as possible, by observation, the land and the
improvements; however, it was not possible to personally observe conditions
beneath the soil or hidden structural or other components. We have not critically
inspected mechanical components within the improvements and no
representations are made herein as to these matters unless specifically stated
and considered in the report. The value estimates considers there being no such
conditions that would cause a loss of value. The land or the soil of the area being
appraised appears firm; however, subsidence in the area is unknown. The
Appraiser does not warrant against this condition or occurrence of problems
arising from soil conditions.

The appraisal is based on there being no hidden, unapparent, or apparent
conditions of the property site, subsoil, or structures or toxic materials which
would render it more or less valuable. No responsibility is assumed for any such
conditions or for any expertise or engineering to discover them. All mechanical
components are assumed to be in operable condition and status standard for
properties of the subject type. Condition of heating, cooling, ventilating, electrical,
and plumbing equipment, is considered to be commensurate with the condition
of the balance of the improvements unless otherwise stated. No judgment may
be made by us as to adequacy of insulation, type of insulation, or energy
efficiency of the improvements or equipment which is assumed standard for the
subject property's age and type.

If the Appraiser has not been supplied with a termite inspection, survey or
occupancy permit, no responsibility or representation is assumed or made for
any costs associated with obtaining same or for any deficiencies discovered

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 17




Denmark Drive LIMITING CONDITIONS

10.

11.

12.

before or after they are obtained. No representations or warranties are made
concerning the above mentioned items.

The Appraiser assumes no responsibility for any costs or consequences arising
due to the need, or the lack of need for flood hazard insurance. An agent for the
Federal Flood Insurance Program should be contacted to determine the actual
need for Flood Hazard Insurance.

LEGALITY OF USE:

The appraisal is based on the premise that there is full compliance with all
applicable federal, state, and local environmental regulations and laws unless
otherwise stated in the report, and that all applicable zoning, building, use
regulations and restrictions of all types have been complied with unless
otherwise stated in the report. It is further assumed that all required licenses,
consents, permits, or other legislative or administrative approvals from all
applicable local, state, federal and/or private authorities have been or can be
obtained or renewed for any use considered in the value estimate.

COMPONENT VALUES:

The allocation of the total valuation in this report between land and
improvements, if included in this report, applies only under the use of the
property which is assumed in this report. The separate valuations for land and
building must not be used in conjunction with any other appraisal and are invalid
if so used.

AUXILIARY AND RELATED STUDIES:

No environmental or impact studies, special market study or analysis, special
highest and best use study or feasibility study has been requested or made
unless otherwise specified in an agreement for services or so stated in the
report.

DOLLAR VALUES, PURCHASING POWER:

The market value estimated and the costs used are as of the date of the
estimate of value. All dollar amounts are based on the purchasing power and
value of the dollar as of the date of the value estimates.

VALUE CHANGE, DYNAMIC MARKET, INFLUENCES, ALTERATION OF
ESTIMATE BY APPRAISER:

The estimated market value, which is defined in the report, is subject to change
with market changes over time. Value is highly related to exposure, time,
promotional effort, terms, motivation and conditions. The value estimate

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA

#7719

18




Denmark Drive LIMITING CONDITIONS

13.

14.

15.

16.

considers the productivity and relative attractiveness of the property physically
and economically in the market place as of the date of value.

In cases of appraisals involving the capitalization of income benefits, the
estimate of market value or investment value or value in use is a reflection of
such benefits and Appraiser's interpretation of income and yields and other
factors derived from general and specific client and market information. Such
estimates are as of the date of the estimate of value and they are thus subject to
change as the market changes.

The "Estimate of Market Value" in the appraisal report is not based in whole or in
part upon the race, color or national origin of the present owners or occupants of
the properties in the vicinity of the property appraised.

The appraisal report and value estimate are subject to change if the physical or
legal entity or the terms of financing are different from what is set forth in this
report.

INCLUSIONS:

Except as specifically indicated and typically considered as a part of the real
estate, furnishings, equipment, other personal property, or business operations
have been disregarded with only the real estate being considered in the value
estimate. In some property types, business and real estate interests and values
are combined but only if so stated within this report.

PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS, CONDITIONED VALUE:

Improvements proposed, if any, on-site or off-site, as well as any repairs
required, are considered for purposes of this appraisal to be completed in a good
and workmanlike manner according to information submitted and/or

considered by the Appraiser. In cases of proposed construction, the appraisal is
subject to change upon inspection of the property after construction is
completed. This estimate of market value is as of the date shown, as proposed,
as if completed and operating at levels shown and projected, unless otherwise
stated.

MANAGEMENT OF THE PROPERTY:

It is assumed that the property which is the subject of this report will be under
typically prudent and competent management, neither inefficient nor
superefficient

FEE:

The fee for this appraisal or study is for the service rendered and not solely for
the time spent on the physical report itself.

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA

#7719




Denmark Drive LIMITING CONDITIONS

17

18.

19.

INSULATION AND TOXIC MATERIALS:

Unless otherwise stated in this report, the Appraiser signing this report has no
knowledge concerning the presence or absence of toxic materials and/or urea-
formaldehyde foam insulation in existing improvements. If such is present the
value of the property may be adversely affected and reappraisal at additional
cost will be necessary to estimate the effects of such.

CHANGES, MODIFICATIONS:

The Appraiser reserves the right to alter statements, analyses, conclusions or
any value estimate in the appraisal if there becomes known to him facts pertinent
to the appraisal process which were unknown when the report was finished.

ACCEPTANCE AND/OR USE OF THIS APPRAISAL REPORT BY THE CLIENT
OR ANY THIRD PARTY CONSTITUTES ACCEPTANCE OF THE ABOVE
CONDITIONS. APPRAISER LIABILITY EXTENDS ONLY TO THE STATED
CLIENT AND NOT TO SUBSEQUENT PARTIES OR USERS, AND THE
LIABILITY IS LIMITED TO THE AMOUNT OF FEE RECEIVED BY THE
APPRAISER.

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA

#7719




Denmark Drive INTRODUCTION

PURPOSE OF THE APPRAISAL
The purpose of this appraisal is to estimate a supportable "as is" market value as
of the effective date of the appraisal, which was June 19, 2021. The purpose is for the
granting the adjoining property owner two permanent easements and a temporary

construction easement for a proposed rail spur. The subject site contain 21.60+ acres.

FUNCTION OF THE APPRAISAL
The appraisal was prepared for Kathy Canfield, Senior Planner, Storey County.
The function is for the purposed granting of two permanent easements and a temporary
construction easement for a proposed rail spur. The appraisal is not to be used in
connection with any loan applications or for lending purposes. Any other use of this

report without the prior written consent of the appraiser is prohibited

CLIENT

The client is Kathy Canfield, Senior Planner, Storey County.

INTENDED USER
It is the appraiser’s understanding that the user of the report is Kathy Canfield,

Senior planner, Storey County.

APPRAISAL REPORT
It is the intention of Anthony James Wren, MAI, SRA, the appraiser, that this
report be an appraisal report. The appraiser has made every effort to comply with
USPAP standards as well as Supplemental Standards of the Appraisal Institute.

SCOPE OF THE APPRAISAL
The appraiser, in preparation of this appraisal assignment, has made a physical
inspection of the subject site and has taken sufficient photographs to adequately depict
the property. The subject neighborhood was inspected by the appraiser to assist the
appraiser in determining the characteristics of the neighborhood. Real estate signs on
both vacant land and improved properties, were noted for later investigation and

confirmation.

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 21




Denmark Drive INTRODUCTION

The valuation of the real estate was made considering the three approaches to
value — the Cost Approach, Direct Sales Comparison Approach, and the Income
Approach. The Cost Approach is not considered to be applicable nor necessary, and
therefore has been omitted from this report. The Income Approach is not considered to
be applicable nor necessary as this is vacant land, and therefore has been omitted from

this report. A Direct Sales Comparison Approach for land only has been included.

MARKET VALUE DEFINITION

"Market Value" means the most probable price which a property should bring in a
competitive and open market under all conditions requisite of a fair sale, the buyer and
seller each acting prudently and knowledgeably and assuming the price is not affected
by undue stimulus, whereby the sale is consummated on a specified date and the title
to the property is passed from the seller to the buyer under the following conditions:

a. The buyer and seller are typically motivated,

b. The buyer and seller are well informed or advised and acting in what they
consider to be their best interests,

&, A reasonable time is allowed to expose the property for sale on the open
market,
d. Payment is made with United States dollars in cash or in terms of financial

arrangements comparable thereto, and

e. The sale price represents the normal consideration for the property and is
unaffected by special or creative financing or sales concessions granted
by any person associated with the sale." '

EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE APPRAISAL
The effective Date of this appraisal is June 19, 2021. All value conclusions
contained herein reflect market conditions as of these Date. The date of inspection was
June 19, 2021.

'Assembly Bill AB #80, effective June 18, 1993

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719

=4
]




Denmark Drive INTRODUCTION

LEGAL DESCRIPTION
The appraiser has not supplied with a legal description of the site. Land area is

as provided by the Storey County Assessors Office.

PROPERTY RIGHTS APPRAISED
The subject property is appraised as a fee simple estate. A fee simple estate is
defined as an absolute ownership unencumbered by any other interest or estate,

subject only to the four powers of government.

OWNER OF RECORD
According to Storey County records, the subject property is currently owned by

Storey County

LAND AREA
The subject property contains one identifiable Assessor's Parcel Number. The

parcel number is 005-061-52 which contains 21.60+ ac.

TOPOGRAPHY

The subject is level to hilly.

ACCESS
The subject property has access from Denmark Drive. Access is considered to

be both typical and adequate.

UTILITIES
The subject site is provided with all available utilities, water, gas, and electricity.
Water and sewer is provided by Storey County. NV Energy provides all electricity and

gas. Telephone is provided by AT&T. Utilities appear to be typical and adequate.

ZONING
The subject property is zoned I-2, which is a heavy industrial zoning

classification. I-2, heavy industrial zoning, allows most all types of industrial and

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 23




Denmark Drive INTRODUCTION

commercial uses. The terms of the development agreement and the zoning ordinance
allow maximum flexibility for land use but provide for a consistent compatible
development theme among the various land use possibilities in the actual project siting.
The project's CC&Rs and this zoning handbook further refine the use allowed in the
development process. In the spirit of performance zoning, any use that complies with
the current zoning and the CC&Rs and any development plan which complies with the

development handbook is permitted to be developed.

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 24




Denmark Drive FLOOD ZONE

FLOOD ZONE
According to the Federal Emergency Management Agency (flood insurance rate
map, community panel #32029C0100D, effective date January 16, 2009), the subject
property is located in an unshaded Flood Zone X, an area of minimal flooding outside

the 100 year flood plan.

FLOOD ZONE MAP

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 7.5




Denmark Drive EARTHQUAKE ZONE

EARTHQUAKE ZONE

According to the current edition of the Uniform Building Code, McCarran, Storey
County, Nevada is located in a Seismic Zone 3. This Zone encompasses areas which
have a number of local faults and where there is a relatively strong probability of
moderate to strong seismic activity.

In an interview with a respected Nevada engineer, it was indicated to this appraiser
that earthquakes of approximately 6.5 on the Richter scale would be associated with a
Seismic Zone 3. It was further indicated to this appraiser that plans for commercial and
residential structures are typically reviewed by a structural engineer due to earthquake
hazards. Based upon a review of the Earthquake Hazards Map prepared by the Nevada
Bureau of Mines and Geology for the McCarran, Storey County, Nevada area, the subject
property is not near any specific fault. There are no faults that appear to pose any
constraints on the development of the subject. Based upon an analysis of available data,
it is this appraiser’'s opinion that the development of the subject property would not be
impacted by earthquake hazards to a greater degree than is typical for the McCarran,
Storey County, Nevada area. The conditions present are quite common throughout the

McCarran, Storey County, Nevada area as well as throughout northern Nevada.

THREE-YEAR SALES HISTORY
The subject property has had transfer within the last three years. The property
was deeded to Storey County for floodway mitigation.

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 20




Denmark Drive TAX DATA

TAX DATA

The subject property contains one Assessor's Parcel Numbers. The assessed
value for the subject property is based upon a 35% assessment ratio of the Assessor's
estimate of the taxable value of the individual subject parcel. The 2021-2022 taxes for
the subject property total were exempt since the parcel is owned by Storey County.

As is discussed in the Area Analysis of this report, the McCarran, Nevada,
Storey County area and the State of Nevada have a very favorable tax rate. There are
no apparent or anticipated increases in taxes in the foreseeable future, nor are there
any anticipated assessments that would affect the subject property. The taxes for the
subject property are typical for the area and do not appear to have any positive or
negative effect on the overall value of the subject improvements. Taxes on the
improvements are considered to be typical for the area and again, do not appear to
have an overall effect on valuation. The following chart sets forth the summary of tax

data for the parcel contained in the subject property.

SUMMARY OF TAX DATA

Assessed Value Total 2021-2022 Taxable
Assessed Taxes Value
AP.N. Land Improvements Value
005-061-52 | $106,897 | $0 $106,897 Exempt $205,420
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS

The appraiser has contacted the Storey County Treasurer's Office to determine if
there are any special assessments against the subject property. As of June 19, 2021, a
representative with the Treasurer's Office indicated to this appraiser that there are no

special assessments levied against the subject property.

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 27




RENO/SPARKS AREA MAP

Denmark Drive

RENO/SPARKS AREA MAP

:
3
k

un Valley

Sun valey Blvd

,
g

‘ista Blv

Y
Copyright @ 2003 Mcroseft Corp. andior its suppliers. Al rghts reserved.

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719




Denmark Drive RENO/SPARKS AREA DESCRIPTION

RENO/SPARKS AREA DESCRIPTION

The Reno-Sparks urban area is Nevada's second largest population center, after
the Las Vegas metro area. The metro area is traversed by the Truckee River, giving
rise to the region's common name as the Truckee Meadows. The Truckee Meadows
encompasses Rattle Snake Mountain at Huffaker Park, following the span of
Steamboat Creek to the southern east end of Washoe and Storey County ending at the
base of the Virginia Highlands. The Truckee Meadows is a north-south basin covering
approximately 94 square miles in western Nevada. It is bounded on the east by the
Virginia Range, on the west by the Carson Range, on the south by the Steamboat Hills,
and on the north by Peavine Peak.

Population
Robust population growth was the dominant feature of the Truckee Meadows'
economy for several decades. The following chart sets forth a summary of the area's

current population and depicts recent population trends.

The 2008 Nevada State Demographer's Forecast of Washoe County Population
(2008 - 2030)*

I' ) Year - __Pc_:EuraiiT_:m” .
[ 08 46986 ,7j
' 2009 436.776
o 2010 o ] 445329 o
S 2011 [ ) 453 875 -
_ 2012 I -
2013 471132
[ 2014 | — aresst |
- N 2015 T 487 936 - J
2016 496,119
2017 ) o 503.940
2018 511,366 -
B 2019 o o 518351 B
2020 | 524944 .
2021 531208 -
- 2022 | sB3yzzt0 -
2023 R o 543,087
- 2024 ' ' 548,709 T
—’" 2025 ' ' - 554134
2026 S 559,373 o
- 2027 [ Y |
T 2028 ) ] 560371 |
[ 020 578,491 *’}
| 2030 | 583612 -

Source: Washoe County and Nevada State Demographer

Robust population growth supported an active and relatively healthy housing
industry for many years. In the early 2000s, building spiked upward, fueled in part by

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 29




Denmark Drive RENQ/SPARKS AREA DESCRIPTION

unsustainable demand from the junk-lending boom. When the sub-prime lending
market collapsed, demand virtually ceased overnight, leaving homebuilders in Reno
with huge inventories of unsold homes and land in various stages of development. The
area has seen a robust recovery over the last few years, starting in about 2014 and

continuing strong on to 2018.

Employment

Employment in the Truckee Meadows was dominated by the gaming industry
from the 1950s. By 1980, Nevada had lost its exclusive franchise on gaming and the
industry started to lose market share to competing locations. However, gaming related
employment was still the area's dominant sector in 1990, when leisure and hospitality
employment (hotels, gaming, and recreation) accounted for approximately 26% of the
area's employment. By 2000, gaming's decline, and the expansion of the area's
non-gaming employment, had decreased the gaming sector share to 22% of total
employment.

The 2008-09 national recession was especially hard on Washoe Valley's key
industry. By 2012, leisure and hospitality employment had dropped to approximately
17.5% of total employment. Because the total number of persons employed in all
sectors declined during the recession, gaming employment's share is calculated on a
smaller employment base. The 2014 statistics reveal a decline in real numbers for the
gaming sector. The total number of leisure and hospitality employees was 42,900 in
1990, but 35,500 in 2014. This represents a real loss of 7,400 jobs or 17.25%.

As of July 2018, the Nevada Department of Employment Security reported
Washoe Valley MSA unemployment at 4.7%, compared to national unemployment of
4.0%. Washoe Valley MSA unemployment peaked at 15.3% in January 2010, at that
time the highest in the nation.

The recovering economy has produced gains in several employment sectors and

2018's employment is an improvement over 2017's total average employment.

Transportation
Reno/Sparks is traversed by Interstate 80, which provides direct freeway access

from Washoe Valley to the San Francisco Bay area in four hours and to Salt Lake City

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 30




Denmark Drive RENO/SPARKS AREA DESCRIPTION

in eight. US Highway 395 traverses the area north-south, and provides direct access to
interior Washington, Oregon and southern California.

The area is served by Reno/Tahoe International Airport, which hosts
approximately ten airlines with about 130 flights per day to and from the airport.
Because Reno/Sparks has a tourist based economy, passenger counts are higher than
is typical for a city of comparable size. Annual passenger counts were around 4.0
million passengers in 2017. Cargo volumes at the Reno/Tahoe International Airport
were up in each of the past four years suggesting that the national recovery is having a
positive impact on the region's warehousing industry. The abundance of distribution
warehouses in the area serve the larger Northern California and western regional

markets and have benefitted from modest recoveries regionally.

Tourism/Gaming

New Jersey voters passed a referendum legalizing gaming in Atlantic City in
1976. Since then, gaming in some form, whether state lotteries or full casino gaming,
has spread across the US. During the same period, Indian gaming has proliferated as
well. There are now few major metropolitan areas in the US that are more than a few
hours' drive from legal gaming venues.

The Reno-Tahoe market in particular has lost market share to California Indian
casinos. Unlike Las Vegas, which is an international gaming destination, the
Reno-Tahoe market is largely regional. Most Reno visitors drive from northern
California. A significant portion of this market is now intercepted at Indian gaming
properties in northern California, several of which rival any of Reno's major gaming
resorts in size and quality.

The Nevada Gaming Control Board has reported that Washoe County Gaming
Revenues reversed their downward trend with small improvements over the past two
years. Clark County revenues have improved in each of the past 4 years but remain 9%
below their peak. State wide, gaming revenues have also improved over the past four
years but remained nearly 12% below their peak. Recently gaming revenues have been
rebounding across the state.

Although tourism and gaming are still important to the local economy, they no

longer dominate it. The last new, ground up casino built in downtown Reno was the

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 31




Denmark Drive RENO/SPARKS AREA DESCRIPTION

Silver Legacy in the early 1990s. A number of old casinos in the downtown core have
been converted to condominiums. Local officials are hopeful that new residential

demand will be the economic engine that drives the rebirth of downtown Reno.

Trade

Reno is the largest city in a relatively sparsely populated region which
encompasses much of northern Nevada, eastern California and southeastern Oregon.
As such, it is a regional trade center. The Reno/Sparks area has two large regional
shopping malls and over 90 neighborhood shopping centers with more than 13,000,000
square feet of retail space. The majority of the area's retail space is scattered
throughout the region's suburban residential neighborhoods.

Beginning in the early to mid-2000s the market saw a rash of retail closings
including the area's two Mervyn's department stores, Gottschalk's department store,
Comp USA, Circuit City, Kmart, Linens and Things, Shoe Pavilion, TGI Fridays,
Southwest Grill and a variety of smaller shops and restaurants. In 2017 retail rents
appeared to firm and vacancies began to drop for the first time in several years.

As of the fourth quarter 2016, overall vacancy rates of 9.4% and total availability
of 15.9% were being reported in a market that is estimated to have more than 17 million
square feet.

Taxable sales increase 4.69% from 2017 to 2108. Retail sales were up in 2018
and were robust in 2016 and 2017. Set forth on the following chart is a summary of the

Leading Economic Index.

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 32




Denmark Drive RENO/SPARKS AREA DESCRIPTION

Reno MSA Leading Economic Index

Latest Period- Prev. Period- Change Prev. Year- Change

Series June 2018 May 2018 Prev. Period Jume 2017  Prev. Year
Taxable Sales (Washoe Co. SA. CPI) 437.754.840  436.042.024 0.39% 418.140.892 4.69%
Taxable Ganmg Reverwe (Washoe Co.. SA. CPI) 43.800.595 43.440.673 0.83% 42.166.432 3.88%
# of Smgle Fammly Homes Sold (Washoe Co.. SA) m 737 -1.06% n7 0.73%
Arport Passengers (RTIA. SA) 344,077 341.596 0.73% 318.326 8.09%
Arport Cargo Lbs. Shipped (RTIA. SA) 12.304.881 12,371.910 -0.54% 13,172,350 -6.59%
Gallons of Gasoline Sold (Washoe & Storey Co , SA) 15.369.375 15,321,733 0.31% 14,846,518 3.52%
Intia]l Clamms for Unemplovment (Nevada. SA) 2,520 2532 -047% 2586 -255%
S&P 500 Index (US, CPI) 1.654 1.608 2.84% 1,512 9.39%
Interest Rate Spread (US) 1.09 128 -1484% 1.15 -5.22%
M2 Money Supply (US. CPI) 8.534 8494  047% 8414 143%
Leading Index Result 138.33 137.99 0.24% 136.69 1.20%

Source: US Department of Labor. Nevada Gammg Control Board. Washoe County Assessor/Center for Regional Studies (UNR), Federal Reserve Bank of
5t. Louss. Nevada Department of Taxation. Nevada Department of Motor Velucles, Reno-Tahoe Intemational Axport (RTIA)
SA-Senes results are seasonally adpsted CPl-Senes results are adpusted for mflation to 1995

Office

The Northern Nevada office market pulled ahead this quarter and is setting up
2019 to be a very productive year. The market posted an increase in positive absorption
to 63,786 square feet and the vacancy rate decreased to 11.7 percent from the 12.3
percent recorded in the first quarter of 2020. Office activity has been strong in the Reno
market with sales dominating the quarter, including many large sales to owner users
and investors. Leasing has remained stable, yet the demand for big blocks of Class A
space with few viable space options, has made expansions for existing tenants difficult
and even more so for tenants looking to enter the Reno market. However, this
phenomenon is causing rumors of new construction to serve the growing demand of
office space.

Rents are unquestionably on the rise as the average asking rental rate at
the close of 2017 was $1.67 per square foot per month full service and this quarter

posted $1.70 per square foot.

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 33




Denmark Drive RENO/SPARKS AREA DESCRIPTION

Historical Vacancy Rates and Asking Lease Rates

20 00w ¥ no

" ro
S.00w% ¢
Va "o
10 DO
1 %0
5.00%
" a0
- —
w020 40Mcts  W0XIT  2020m 3020w A0 oaew 0308

w—\Vacancy Rate ~ Asking Rental Rate

Full service rental rates have increased to $1.70 per square foot as the vacancy rate

has decreased slightly to 11.7 percent, down from 12.3 percent in Q1 2018.

Absorption

Although sales activity led the market, leasing activity was very active as well,
primarily in the Meadowood Submarket which posted a positive absorption of 31,569
square feet for the quarter. Contributing to this absorption was AT&T Inc (HQ) who
signed a lease for 16,559 square feet at 5250 South Virginia Street, as well as Colliers
International who has been temporarily relocated to 5,895 square feet at 5470 Kietzke
Lane, and Gail Willey Landscape Inc has signed a lease for 6,615 square feet at 5690
Riggins Court. In addition, Charles Schwab Financial Services & Brokerage will be
occupying 10,000 square feet on the first floor of the new building located at 5301
Kietzke Lane. The Central / Airport Submarket had significant activity with Charter
Communications leasing 38,904 square feet of office/flex space at 4930 Energy Way.
Reno Sparks Convention and Visitors Authority also renewed a lease of 15,126 square
feet at 4001 South Virginia Street. This submarket's statistics indicate high leasing
activity for smaller offices between 1,000 - 2,000 square feet which seems to be in high
demand at this time. It is also worth mentioning, although leasing activity remains high,
the asking rate has remained low in the Central / Airport Submarket at an average of
$1.26 per square foot per month full service, proving this is a desired submarket for
smaller and lower-cost driven tenants. The Downtown Submarket posted positive net
absorption of 19,985 square feet which included a lease transaction of 9,871 square
feet at 245 East Liberty Street to North Nevada Hopes. The Reno Sparks Chamber of

Commerce relocated into 5,932 square feet from the first floor to the third floor at 1

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 4




Denmark Drive RENO/SPARKS AREA DESCRIPTION

California Avenue, leaving the first floor vacant. This submarket continues to be
attractive to tenants, although the average price per square foot full service has
increased from $1.83 per square foot per month in Q2 2017 to $1.94 per square foot

per month this quarter.

Historical Net Absorption vs. Completions

80,000 -
70,000

50,000
40,000 +—
30,000 |
20,000
10,000

{10,000) +
(20,000)

3Q 2016 4Q 2016 1Q 2017 2Q 2017 3Q 2017 4Q 2017 1Q 2018 2Q 2018

Il Net Absorption B New Completions

Sales

As mentioned earlier, office sales have really dominated the market this quarter.
The 106,130 square foot office building at 5190 Neil Road sold for $14,875,000
($140.16 PSF) in May to The Lansing Companies LLC/ REO Disposition LLC. This
property was purchased as a value-add opportunity based on the 50 percent occupancy
rate, while the superior location in the Meadowood Submarket provides additional
upside. 236 W 6th Street was sold in April to St Mary's Medical Building LLC. The
38,456 square foot medical office building transacted for $5,500,000 or $143.02 PSF.
In addition, 6995 Sierra Center Parkway sold for $5,500,000 ($275.81PSF) to Western

Exchange Services LLC. This building is fully occupied by Stantec on a triple net lease.

Construction

There are rumors of future construction in South Reno to provide large blocks of
space currently not available in our market. Tenants looking for 20,000 square feet and
up have a very difficult time finding options, especially in Class A buildings. We

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 35




Denmark Drive RENO/SPARKS AREA DESCRIPTION

anticipate buildings that can accommodate 20,000 - 40,000 square foot users will be
successful as there are currently no options in the market. The highly desired 5520
Kietzke Lane building constructed by McKenzie is now open. Nearby, Urology of
Nevada's building is completed and Charles Schwab's office on Kietzke Lane is also

completed.

Industry

The second quarter of 2018 made an impact in all areas of the industrial market,
and activity remains at an all-time high. The existing product inventory continues to
diminish as new companies to the market continue to absorb space. The business
climate in Northern Nevada is becoming more widely recognized. This along with a one
day drive time to over 60,000,000 million people seems to be resonating with
companies across the United States, specifically California's larger users. Those larger
users usually cannot wait for a building to be built and will look to other neighboring

markets such as, Northern and Southern California, Phoenix, and Salt Lake City.

Absorption

Gross absorption for the quarter posted 1.75 million square feet, which is a
healthy statistic for the Northern Nevada market. Net absorption was weakened by the
departure of some large tenants that returned 566,000 square feet (Amazon
consolidation of Diapers.com space) and a 300,000 square foot space occupied by
Belnick. Five transactions closed this month between 100,000 - 200,000 square feet
and eight transactions between 10,000 - 20,000 square feet. In all, there were thirty

transactions for the quarter with an average deal size of 58,548 square feet.

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 16




Denmark Drive RENO/SPARKS AREA DESCRIPTION

Historical Vacancy Rates and Asking Lease Rates

12.00% 80 60
$0 50
8.00% 1 {
$0 30
4.00% ¢ {
t $0.20
0.00% | s010
30 4Q Q 20 30 4G [*] 20
2016 2016 2017 2017 2017 2007 208 2018
— \Vacancy Rate Asking Renta' Rate

As vacancy decreases in high demand size ranges, rental rates are slowly starting to

increase.

Inventory

There are several larger spaces coming to the market in North Valleys and the
Tahoe Reno Industrial Center with completions scheduled for the end of 2018.
Panattoni Development is under way with a 271,000 square foot speculative project in
the Airport Submarket with the ability to provide for space sizes between 8,000 to
50,000 square feet. This project will provide for some much needed relief in that size
range, especially in this location. Existing product within the McCarran loop continues to
tighten in all size ranges. Kin Properties has started the repositioning of 1402 S.
McCarran (old Sears/Kmart) with an anticipated delivery date of April 1, 2019. This will
provide a 1.3 million square foot building divisible into 100,000 square foot units up to

the entire building.

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 29




Denmark Drive RENO/SPARKS AREA DESCRIPTION

Vacancy

Vacancy now posts 5.22 percent market-wide and is the tightest Northern
Nevada market in years. There are only four vacancies between 200,000 - 600,000
square feet. Removing those options brings vacancy to 3.57 percent, which is more
representative of what tenants are feeling when looking for space. Tahoe Reno
Industrial Center and Fernley post the highest vacancy in three large buildings at 7.45
percent. There is roughly 1.26 million square feet of sublease space available in nine
spaces and removing those from the market creates a direct vacancy rate of 3.75

percent.

Historical Vacancy

18.00%
16.00% 15.68% 15.54%
- 14.70%
T
. 13.80%
14.00%

12.00% {//l/ \\
/ 10.43%

\
10.00% ‘/; o \\hfifzq‘ ,J/,/J“\\\\\
.

B.29%
8.00% 8.60%
6 DO% 5.51%

——

5.22%
4 00%

2.00%

0.00%

2007
2004
2009
2010
2on
2012
2m3
2014
2015
2018
20mr
200

Lease Rates

Our market continues to see rental rate growth, but nothing overly significant. A
50,000 square foot space has gone from $0.32/square foot/month NNN to $0.37/square
foot/month NNN in a three year period. While that is strong, it is not the 40 percent plus
growth other markets have seen. Low rental rates is a driving factor in new companies
relocating to our area, however, it is becoming difficult for developers who have to

underwrite significant growth in construction costs

Construction

Construction costs continue to increase, making it difficult for developers to

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 38




Denmark Drive RENO/SPARKS AREA DESCRIPTION

underwrite new construction. Fully entitled land parcels with manageable development
costs seem to be few and far between. The few are trying to push pricing, but
developers can only stomach so many costs before they throw their hands up. The City
of Reno seems to be throwing their own curve balls in North Valleys. Some of the
biggest concerns on their agenda include mitigating storm water runoff, keeping a close
eye on inbound effluent into their sewer system, and issues related to rapid growth in

this particular submarket.

Water Rights

North Valleys seem to be the big discussion in water rights right now. Truckee
Meadows Water has no more retail water rights, unless users fall within the Truckee
Meadows, Stead treatment facility. The next best option is Vidler whose pricing is five
times as much ($36,000 per AF). Independent water right holders seem to be well in

tune and this poses another hurdle for development.

New Development

New industrial construction by Panattoni, Dermody Properties, Scannell
Properties, and Conco continue to move forward. The Reno Sparks market will see
another two million square feet of industrial product added in 2018, with 1.2 million

slated for 2019 and other potential projects lined up.

Infrastructure/Community

Washoe County and the Cities of Reno and Sparks are the three local municipal
services providers. All three entities saw significant employment reductions during the
2008-09 recession, and none has managed to return to pre-recession budget and
employment levels. Although local governments have improved their financial resources
since the depths of the recession, budgets are still tight.

Metro area water service is provided by the Truckee Meadows Water Authority
(TMWA). NVEnergy provides electric power and natural gas throughout the region.
Public sewage disposal is provided by the Reno/Sparks Joint Regional Sanitation
District. Trash removal is handled by contract carriers in the cities of Reno and Sparks

and in Washoe County.

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 39




Denmark Drive RENO/SPARKS AREA DESCRIPTION

A county-wide school district includes all public schools. The University of

Nevada, Reno and Truckee Meadows Community College provide higher education.

Conclusion

Rapid population growth was the driver of the local and statewide economy from
the 1960s until 2006, when the housing boom ended with a crash. From the late 1990s
through 2005, Nevada rarely fell out of the top one or two fastest-growing states in the
country. Las Vegas's gaming-driven population growth made it a national center for real
estate speculation and development.

Northern Nevada had a brief casino boom in the 1970s and early 1980s, but
most of the area's population increase was fueled by growth of the industrial sector,
lifestyle choices made by California retirees, and growth in retail and "back-office"
functions. During the residential market hyper-boom from about 2003 to 2005,
construction employment was the driving factor. Reno's construction-fueled economy
created a period of prosperity that masked underlying weakness: construction as the
primary industry, without an underlying economic engine of non-construction job growth,
has a short cycle. During the market's most frenzied years, both private developers and
local governments, flush with profits and tax revenues, made bets on future growth and
revenue streams that have not been realized. Coping with actual population loss and
declining economic activity has been the major challenge of the last several years in
much of Nevada. After a two to three-year period of declining employment, massive
personal and business bankruptcies and foreclosures, and profound retrenchment of
state and local government, the 2018 economy is in the midst of a seemingly sustained
rebound.

Truckee Meadows is climbing its way back to more robust employment growth
and more vigorous economic activity. Home prices are increasing, and there is a sense
of optimism from the construction sector. Retail sales have increased. The regional
population is again on the increase. Vacant holes in shopping centers are starting to

refill. The general outlook is one of optimism

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 40




Denmark Drive NEIGHBORHOOD MAP

NEIGHBORHOOD MAP

i e Vil B S
S Y S Vil 3
ity t - F _:’ 5

15 miLcs \Jo

1
¥
1
1

fa] Tie REmO-TanDE
- i Y ANMTENNATIONAL
1 =1 Ammg R
== Waihngen
== "
arww oy M
- i vy = 2 A
7 ] P

ey
aVA

o & etomn
am 1
L 2

O o
- 3 famtema l.’li :

)
- Vi o S manat
Sooantmer v & < 2
o an
Plossint Yalley ol \ ¥

! i 2 L
Wimiem Viime ¢/ Rae ks Hill Mime

“rce

Copyright @ 2003 Micrasofl Corp_and/or its suppliers All nghls reserved - ek | R | ——

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719

41




Denmark Drive NEIGHBORHOOD DESCRIPTION
NEIGHBORHOOD DESCRIPTION

Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center

The subject neighborhood is located within Storey County and is approximately
15 miles east of the Reno/Sparks area and approximately 15 miles west of the
community of Fernley. The subject neighborhood is situated along the Interstate 80
corridor between the Patrick and Tracy interchanges. There is a newer interchange at
USA Parkway and Interstate 80, within the easterly portion of the subject neighborhood.
The Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center is a portion of the former Asamera Ranch, a
102,000+ acre tract of private land owned by one of the project master developers.
Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center LLC comprises approximately 54% of the land area of
Storey County. Storey County is a sparsely populated rural Nevada county. Tahoe-
Reno Industrial Center currently consists of approximately 6,000 acres zoned for
industrial use and may expand in the future, subject to Storey County approval.

Major geographic landmarks include the Truckee River and the Virginia and Pah
Rah Mountain ranges, which are characterized by large canyons, steeply sloping
topography, and numerous rock outcroppings. Vegetation in the subject neighborhood
consists of sagebrush, native grasses, and riparian growth including stands of mature
cottonwood trees along the Truckee River. Interstate 80 and the Union Pacific Railroad
pass through the heart of the subject neighborhood. Interstate 80 lies north of and
roughly parallel to the Truckee River. The Union Pacific Railroad parallels the Truckee
River, crossing the river at various points throughout the subject neighborhood.
Interstate 80 is a limited access major transcontinental highway which services the
western United States. The Union Pacific Railway is used primarily for freight service.

The Reno/Sparks area, over the last decade, has experienced strong growth
which has resulted in an increased demand for vacant land in the outlying areas. This is
most clearly demonstrated by the growth surge in such areas as Stead, Golden Valley,
and Spanish Springs. Additional growth and development is being experienced in the
Fernley area as well as along the Interstate 80 corridor in the subject neighborhood. As
the metropolitan areas continue to grow and reach build-out, the trend toward

development in outlying areas is expected to remain strong.

The Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center is self-contained, having its own water supply

and sewer system. Electric and gas services are immediately available within the park.

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 42




Denmark Drive NEIGHBORHOOD DESCRIPTION

Portions of this industrial park are rail served.

Anchor tenants in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center include, ACH Foam
Technologies, Barrick Goldstrike Mines, Battery Systems, Inc, Blockchains,
Chewy.com, EdgeCore Internet Real Estate, FedEx Supply Chain, Inc, Fulcrum Sierra
Biofuels, LLC, Google, James Hardie Building Products, Jet.com, Kuehne & Nagel,
Mars Petcare US, Panasonic Energy of North America, Petsmart, PPG Architectural
Finishes, Inc, Schluter Systems, L.P., Switch, Tesla Electric Avenue, Thrive Market,
Inc., Tire Rack, US Ordnance, In., Wal-Mart Distribution Center, Zulily, Inc, 1-800
Flowers.com. Other tenants in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center include, Ashern
Rentals, Inc, American Arms Delta, American Red Cross, Ames Construction, Inc,
Ampuls, Inc, AP Stainless Manufacturing, Aqua Metals Reno, Inc, Armagh Metal
Packaging USA, Inc, Asia Union Electronic Chemicals, Associated Concrete Pumping,
Associated Crane & Oil Field Logistics, JAZZ Incorporated Reno, Benco Dental Supply
Company, Bl Nutraceuticals, Inc, Bush Industries, Inc, Cascade Drilling LP, Chart, Inc,
Chicken Hawk Transport, LLC, Commscope, Inc. of North Caroline, Community Care
Services, LLC, Comstock Builders, Conco Storage, LLC, Consolidated Asset
Management Services, Contract Flooring & Interiors Services, Conus Transportation,
Desert Ordnance, LLC, Desert Valley Dental of TRI, Inc, Duraflex International Corp.,
Dynamic Isolation Systems, Inc, Dynarex Corporation, E M M Equipment & Properties,
LLC, Eagle Picher Filtration & Minerals, Easy Rooter, First National Collection Bureau,
Food Bank of Northern Nevada, Golden Gate/SET Petroleum, Gopher Construction,
H&T Nevada, LLC, Harris Industrial Gases, Insurance Auto Auction, J. C.’'s Xpress, Joy
Engineering, Kunaki, LLC, L. Lance Gilman Commercial Real Estate, Laborers
Training Fund for Northern Nevada, Lainer One, LP, Lambertson Industries, Inc, MDB
Trucking, LLC, MEPT USA Parkway Distribution Center, LLC, MNBOO, LLC, Nevada
Distribution Services, NEVCAL Trucking, Northern Nevada Rebar, Northern Nevada
Rebar, Panasonic Procurement Corporation, Petrosolutions, LLC, Philly’'s NV, Pioneer
Nut Company, LLC, Port of Subs, Prologis, Propak Logistics, Quidsi Logistics, Radial,
Inc, Raindance Enviroscape, RANDA Accessories, Reno Engineering Corp — TR,
Renown Health, Rich Doss, Inc, Ritchie Brothers Auctioneers, Roc-Tek Corporation,
Rod Hall Events, LLC, SACO Defense, Saginaw Control & Engineering, Schwabe No
America, Inc.- Natures W, Scougal Rubber Corporation, Shore Management &

Development, Sierra Tree Care, LLC, Silver State Minerals, LLC, Southland Industries,

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 43




Denmark Drive NEIGHBORHOOD DESCRIPTION
SSUSA West, Stampede Construction, Inc, Stormo Properties, LLC, Studio 6 Hotel &
Recharge Bar, Subway, TMW Technologies, LLC, Tachikara USA, Inc., Thybar
Corporation, TNT Auction of Nevada, Inc, Vortex Steel, Inc, W. G. Yates & Sons

Construction Company, Wartsila North America, Inc, Western Nevada Transport,
Western Pacific Express, LLC, XPO Logistics

Residential development near the subject neighborhood includes the Rainbow
Bend subdivision located several miles to the west. This area also includes two trailer
parks, the Hillside Elementary School, Louise Pri Park, and various other mobile homes
and single-family residences. The Rainbow Bend area has approximately 1,200
residences. Existing commercial and industrial utilizations in the Rainbow Bend area
include a gravel pit, a landfill, a small processing plant, and a small grocery store/bar.

The Tracy and Pinion Power Plants are situated in the central portion of the
neighborhood and include numerous electrical transmission lines, electrical generating
power plants and other facilities. The Dove substation is located southeast of the Tracy
power plant. Ferrick Gold Strike Mines has built an additional power plant to the east of
the Dove substation. The Naiwa Power Plant is located south of Waltham Way within
the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center project.

Typical community services are available in the subject neighborhood. Police
protection is provided by the Storey County Sheriff's Department. Fire Station No. 1 is
located in the western portion of the subject neighborhood on Waltham Way.

In summary, the subject neighborhood is a rural location, generally located along
the Interstate 80 corridor between the Reno/Sparks area and Fernley. Much of the
subject neighborhood consists of large tracts of land and the development consists
primarily of large industrial utilizations as well as electrical generating power plants.
With the expansion and growth of the Reno/Sparks and Fernley areas, and with
diminishing supply of vacant land in the urban areas, this development trend is

expected to continue.

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 44




Denmark Drive HIGHEST AND BEST USE
HIGHEST AND BEST USE ANALYSIS

The term "highest and best use," as used in this appraisal report, has been

defined as:

"the reasonably probable and legal use of vacant land or improved property,

which is physically possible, appropriately supported, financially feasible, and

that results in the highest value." ?

Implied in this definition is that the determination of highest and best use takes
into account the contribution of a specific use to the community and community
development goals, as well as the benefits of that use to individual property owners. An
additional implication is that the determination of highest and best use results from the
appraiser's judgment and analytical skills. In other words, the use determined from
analysis represents an opinion, not a fact to be found.

In appraisal practice, the concept of highest and best use represents the premise
on which value is based. The use should take the highest advantage of the attributes of
the property while neutralizing, to the greatest possible extent, any negative
characteristics. At the same time, the use should operate within the limits of approved
and justified investment.

In arriving at an estimation of the highest and best use for the subject property,
the appraiser has followed a four point analysis, as set out below:

1. Legally Permissible — The uses that are legally permitted by private
restrictions, zoning, building codes, historic district controls and
environmental regulations on the site.

2. Physically Possible — The use to which it is physically possible to put the
site in question.

3. Financially Feasible — The possible and permissible uses that will produce
a net income, or return, equal to or greater than the amount needed to
satisfy operating expenses, financial obligations and capital amortization.

4. Maximally Productive — Of the financially feasible uses, the use that
produces the highest residual land value consistent with the rate of return

warranted by the market for that use is the highest and best use.

“The Appraisal of Real Estate, 12" Edition, page 318, published by the Appraisal Institute 2001

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 45




Denmark Drive HIGHEST AND BEST USE
HIGHEST AND BEST USE AS IF VACANT

Legally Permissible

The first consideration of the highest and best use of the subject property is the
legally permissible uses of a property as if vacant. Primarily, this is directed at the
zoning of the property; the covenants, conditions, and restrictions of the property; and
the development standards of the subdivision in which the subject property is located.

The subject property is located in Storey County and is subject to its current
zoning ordinances. The subject property is currently zoned -2, which is considered a
heavy industrial utilization. Permitted uses under this zoning ordinance are
predominantly industrial in nature. The appraiser is aware that the subject property is
encumbered by easements. These easements were analyzed to determine their impact
on potential property uses. Due to the location of these easements, it was concluded
that the easement encumbrances do not impact the use or the development of the
subject property.

The subject property is located in what is commonly known as the Tahoe-Reno-
Industrial-Center. The TRI Center has developed CC&Rs in conformance with the local
zoning ordinance in conjunction with the planners of Storey County. Those protective
covenants, conditions, and restrictions do not appear to have a negative impact on the
subject site as if vacant.

The zoning and complementary CC&Rs are common to the neighborhood in
which the subject is located. There are no other deed restrictions or legal
encumbrances which further constrain the legally permissible uses of the subject site.
Based on the legal characteristics of the property, specifically the current zoning, it is
this appraiser's opinion that future development of an industrial nature would be

appropriate for the subject site.

Physically Possible

The next step in estimating the subject site's highest and best use is to
determine which legally permissible use(s) is physically possible for the subject
property. This analysis considers the physical characteristics of the site as well as
surrounding land uses which might influence the potential use. As explained in the Site
Analysis section of this report, the subject site contains one identifiable Assessor Parcel

Number that has a total acreage of 21.60+ acres. This parcel is large enough to satisfy

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 46




Denmark Drive HIGHEST AND BEST USE

a number of industrial utilizations.

The appraiser has also examined the surrounding properties in the neighborhood
and trends in the immediate area in order to gain insight as to physical constraints
experienced upon other similar sites. The surrounding sites enjoy the same positive
attributes as the subject site and basically the same physical characteristics, which are
basically industrial in nature.

Surrounding land use relates to the principle of conformity. This principle holds
that "real property value is created and sustained when the characteristics of a property
conform to the demands of its market."® Inherently in this principle is a compatibility of
land uses in an area, as well as a reasonable degree of homogeneity. From a
compatibility standpoint it is most likely that the subject site as vacant would be
developed with a commercial utilization because of the fact that this type of use blends
well with the surrounding neighborhood.

In conclusion, the physical aspects of the subject site best lend themselves to

some type of an industrial development.

Financially Feasible

The legally permissible and more specifically, the physically possibility and
compatible considerations, narrow the subject site's potential development alternatives
to future industrial/commercial utilizations. The next consideration is that of financial
feasibility, specifically whether or not a commercial utilization as indicated by the legally
permissible and physically possible considerations is profitable at this time. In other
words, do the potential benefits from the operation of the selected uses outweigh the
cost of constructing such a project?

According to the Area Analysis, it is indicated that other industrial and
commercial properties in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center have done well within the
last few years. As the economy of the area continues to grow in conjunction with
continued increases in population, it would be reasonable to assume there will be a
need for additional commercial utilizations. In order to determine whether or not an

industrial/commercial use would be feasible to build today, the appraiser has analyzed

‘The Appraisal of Real Estate, 12" Edition, published by the Appraisal Institute, 2001, page 319

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 47




Denmark Drive HIGHEST AND BEST USE

construction costs of typical properties in the area, as well as the amount of
development within the area. There are several vacant sites throughout the Tahoe-
Reno Industrial Center that are similar in usability to that of the subject property. In the
neighborhood, several of these sites have sold and have been developed with large
industrial uses or commercial uses over the last few years, indicating a high demand
and a quick increase in growth in the immediate area. Due to the rapid development
within the area, it is felt that the highest and best of the subject site as vacant would be
for development with a commercial utilization. The physical and legal characteristics
would allow flexibility in the development of the site. Numerous types of commercial
uses would be appropriate for the site.

In conclusion, the financially feasible use of the subject site, as if vacant, is for
an industrial development since there appears to be a strong demand for commercial

development within the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center.

Maximally Productive Use

The final step in estimating the highest and best use is to determine which uses
among the feasible uses would produce the highest net return or the highest net
present value to the property. This analysis also focuses on the most appropriate
density, type of finish, and other building attributes that are more specific than the use
of the property.

The property use that meets the legal, physical, and financially feasible criteria
was estimated to be for commercial utilization. Because of the topography, location,
and access, it is the appraiser's opinion that the most likely use of the subject property
would be for future development with an industrial utilization.

The site is large enough and shaped accordingly to meet all setback
requirements. There is no indication as to the type or size of buildings that should be
built on the subject property. However, it is felt that many uses could be developed to
meet the maximally productive use of the subject site, which is as an industrial use

within the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center.

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 48




Denmark Drive HIGHEST AND BEST USE

Conclusion, As If Vacant
Based on the preceding analysis of the legally permissible, physically possible,
financially feasible, and maximally productive uses, it is the appraiser's opinion that the

highest and best use of the subject site is for an industrial utilization.

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 49




Denmark Drive APPROACHES TO VALUE
APPROACHES TO VALUE

In the appraisal of real estate, there are three basic traditional approaches for

estimating property values. The three approaches are: Direct Sales Comparison
Approach (also referred to as the Market Approach), the Cost Approach and the
Income Approach. The final step in estimating a property's "market value" (i.e., the most
probable selling price), is to correlate the value estimate of the three approaches into a
single value estimate.

THE COST APPROACH

This approach is based on the proposition that an informed purchaser would pay

no more than the cost of producing a substitute property with the same utility as the
subject property. It is particularly applicable when the property being appraised involves
relatively new improvements which represent the highest and best use for the land, or
when unique or specialized improvements are located on the site for which there exists
no comparable properties on the market. The Cost Approach has been eliminated from
this report since the property is a vacant lot.

INCOME APPROACH

This approach is based on the proposition that a property is worth no more than

the capitalized value of the income stream that the property is capable of generating.
The procedure converts anticipated benefits (dollar income), to be derived from the
ownership of property into a value estimate. The Income Approach has not been
utilized because the subject property is vacant.

DIRECT SALES COMPARISON APPROACH

This approach is based on the proposition that an informed purchaser would

pay no more for a property than the cost to him of acquiring an existing property with
the same utility. It is applicable when an active market provides sufficient quantities of
reliable data which can be verified from authoritative sources. Adjustments extracted
from the market are applied to the comparable sales for any differences that exist
between the sales and the subject. The categories of adjustment include, but are not
limited to, location, access, size, shape, market conditions at the time of sale and the

terms of the sale.

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 S0




Denmark Drive DIRECT SALES COMPARISON APPROACH

DIRECT SALES COMPARISON APPROACH - LAND ONLY

Site valuation is typically estimated by using the Direct Sales Comparison
Approach. Similar sites competing in the Storey County market sector are compared
with the subject. Adjustments are applied to the comparable site sales for any
differences that exist between the sales and the subject. The categories of adjustment
include, but are not limited to, location, access, size, shape, market conditions at the
time of sales, and terms of the sale. Because of the type and quality of the sales found,
adequate actual paired sales cannot be made to ascertain exact adjustments.
Therefore, for purposes of this report, a qualitative and not a quantitative analysis will
be made. Therefore plus (+) and minus (-) signs will be used in these adjustments.
These adjustments are not intended to be exact but to help lead the appraiser and the
reader to an overall conclusion of value for the subject property.

The following pages contain an abstract of the most recent site sales

comparable to the subject property.

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 51




Denmark Drive

COMPARABLE LAND SALES CHART

COMPARABLE LAND SALE CHART

Sale
No.

APN
Address

Sale Date

Sale Price

Land Area

Zoning

Price/SF

Use

005-051-29
1200 USA PKWY
McCarran, NV

02-07-18

$2,060,000

18.40% ac

$2.57

Industrial

005-061-26
2555 Peru
McCarran, NV

02-26-19

$1,183,961

12.08% ac

$2.25

Industrial

005-021-42
1025 Waltham Way
McCarran, NV

02-30-19

$2,651,279

25.93+% ac

$2.35

Industrial

004-091-84
Waltham Way
McCarran, NV

02-10-20

$738,016

14.46+ ac

$1.17

Industrial

005-021-80
240 Wild Horse
McCarran, NV

02-18-21

$1,000,000

10.23+ ac

$2.24

Industrial

005-111-75
1655 Milan Drive
McCarran, NV

02-26-21

$1,963,140

20.03+ ac

$2.25

Industrial

Subject

005-061-52
Denmark Drive
McCarran, NV

DoV
6-19-21

21.60+ ac

Industrial

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA

#7719

I




-
\
-

i uejiy
9 #3®s

| ¥ERES
AN ‘syedg o Lo v g

YELES
AN "Syieds
1q niad §557

7 # 9eg

‘Oq%

YEYES Ao weuzny

dVIAN NOILVOOT S3TVS ANV 319VHVdINOD

PSS S [y SoRdaRS ST I0/PUE UOREISEI0D YoSOIN 2108864 (d) PUE & LDUAGOS]

wewiem Szot

6LLLE
VS IVIN ‘usim T Auoyuy

PEPES
AN ‘syeds
iq uohue)

SSI0H P 09T
s # 9les|

€ # 9|eg

dVIW NOILVYOO1 S3TVS 318vdVdNOD

aAL(Q Yewuaqg



Denmark Drive

COMPARABLE SALES DATA

COMPARABLE LAND SALE #1

County: Storey APN: 005-051-29 Type: Vacant land
Location:  Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center

Address: 1200 USA Parkway, McCarran, NV

Grantor: Blue Water Holdings Corporation

Grantee: 1200 USA PKWY LLC

Deed Date: 01-01-2018 Recording Date: 02-07-18
RPTT: $8,069.00 Doc. No.: 127218

Legal Description: Retained in Appraiser’s file

Size: 801,504.00+ sf or 18.40+ ac Zoning: I-2

Land Use: VacantLand Utilities: Extended to site
Access: Paved, good Topography: Rolling

Sale Price: $2,060,000 Unit Price: $2.57 per sf
Financing: Cash to seller

Verified with: Public Records

By Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA 7-21

PIn. Sec. 34 & 38, 120N, RIZE .
Por. Sec. 24 3, TION, R22E = 05-08

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA

#7719




Denmark Drive COMPARABLE SALES DATA

COMPARABLE LAND SALE #2

County: Storey APN: 005-061-26 Type: Vacant land
Location: Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center

Address: 2555 Peru, McCarran, NV

Grantor: Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center LLC

Grantee: Lima Land Company LLC

Deed Date: 02-25-19 Recording Date: 02-26-19
RPTT: $4,617.60 Doc. No.: 129172
Legal Description: Retained in Appraiser's file

Size: 526,204.80+ sf or 12.08% ac Zoning: |-2

Land Use: Vacant Land Utilities: Extended to site
Access: Paved, good Topography: Rolling

Sale Price: $1,183,961 Unit Price: $2.25 per sf
Financing: Cash to seller

Verified with: Public Records

By Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA 6-21

Pin. Sec. 2,3, 108 11, TI9N, R22E
MDBAM 0506

STOREY COUMTY, M VADA

T T mes W BOETEG for The w3 O e Borwy County AtsSaser b Mastacmant
ittt e R L Lo —————e—
 meured e 60 e wocursoy ot v

A —— Bharary Consety i o o cppmorturelly o ade:

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 55




Denmark Drive

COMPARABLE SALES DATA

COMPARABLE LAND SALE #3

County: Storey APN: 005-021-42 Type: Vacant land
Location:  Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center

Address: 1025 Waltham Way McCarran, NV

Grantor: RVW Holdings, LLC

Grantee: 1025 Waltham Way, LLC

Deed Date: 110,375.85 Doc. No.: 130995
Legal Description: Retained in Appraiser’s file

Size: 1,129,510.80+ sf or 25.93+ ac Zoning: -2

Land Use: Vacant Land Utilities: Extended to site
Access: Paved, good Topography: Rolling

List Price: $2,651,279 Unit Price: $2.35 per sf
Financing: Cash to seller

Verified with: Pubic records
By Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA 7-21

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA

#7719




Denmark Drive COMPARABLE SALES DATA

COMPARABLE LAND SALE #4

County: Storey APN: 004-091-84 Type: Vacant land
Location:  Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center

Address:  McCarran, NV

Grantor: Waltham Road Industrial LLC

Grantee: Sierra Pacific Power Company

Deed Date: 02-07-20 Recording Date: 02-10-20
RPTT: $2,817.15 Doc. No.: 131209

Legal Description: Retained in Appraiser’s file

Size: 629,877.60+ sf or 14.46+ ac Zoning: -2

Land Use: Vacant Land Utilities: Extended to site
Access: Paved, good Topography: Rolling

List Price: $738,016 Unit Price: $1.17 per sf

Financing: Cash to seller

Verified with: Public records
By Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA 7-21

S1/2 T20N, R22E, MDBAM, POR. SEC. 2 & 3, TI9N, R22E, M.D.BAM, 004_09

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 57




Denmark Drive COMPARABLE SALES DATA
COMPARABLE LAND SALE #5

County: Storey APN: 005-021-60 Type: Vacant land
Location: Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center

Address: 240 Wild Horse Canyon Road, McCarran, NV
Grantor: Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC

Grantee: Harinder Singh

Deed Date: 02-11-21 Recording Date: 02-18-21
RPTT: $3,937.00 Doc. No.: 133514

Legal Description: Retained in Appraiser’s file

Size: 445,618.80+ sf or 10.23+ ac Zoning: -2

Land Use: Vacant Land Utilities: Extended to site
Access: Paved, good Topography: Rolling

List Price: $1,000,000 Unit Price: $2.24 per sf

Financing: Cash to seller

Verified with: Public records
By Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA 7-21

(3]

NEVADA

STOREY COUNTY,
Mty Thin g is regarsd for Do uae of e Siarey Courty Ausevsnr s prassament
e sty e pepoRes ONLT. B doss. nof repeeser! 3 sureey. Mu hatiny S Cou! 1
B Ernomad 4 Pa @ ey O b Lraty of B0 GMa dei-btatnd Teren. STOREY COUNTY

Brerw) Lourty m 00 bqual opret oy e

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 S8




Denmark Drive COMPARABLE SALES DATA
COMPARABLE LAND SALE #6

County: Storey APN: 005-111-75 Type: Vacant land
Location: Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center
Address: 1655 Milan Drive, McCarran, NV

Grantor: Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC

Grantee: Stericycle Inc.

Deed Date: 02-16-21 Recording Date: 02-26-21
RPTT: $7,695.21 Doc. No.: 133566

Legal Description: Retained in Appraiser's file

Size: 872,596.80+ sf or 20.03+ ac Zoning: I-2

Land Use: Vacant Land Utilities: Extended to site
Access: Paved, good Topography: Rolling

List Price: $1,963,140 Unit Price: $2.25 per sf

Financing: Cash to seller

Verified with: Public records
By Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA 7-21

Sec 36, T20N, R22E 05-11
Sec. 31 & Ptn, 32, T20N. R23E
/ Pin. Sec. 1 A 2, T18N, R22F
]

Ptn. Sec. 6, T1ON, R23E
R22E R23E  MoBaM (85
e ¥

-
BK
4./
L
e
STOREY COUNTT, REVADA
e ettt
- I ot frepresent 1 survey. STOREY COUNTY
- il ATIN - R22E R23E

el Ronrey Conmty in el Aapamtenty peosaite:

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 59




Denmark Drive LAND SALES ANALYSIS
COMPARISON FACTORS
FOR CURRANT VALUE AS OF 3-08-2020

Property Rights
This appraisal considers the subject’s fee simple interest. All the properties
utilized in this report involved the fee simple and no adjustments were considered to be

necessary.

Terms
Sales or listings will be adjusted to cash or terms reasonably equivalent to cash.
Terms reasonably equivalent to cash are based upon normal financing terms for

properties of comparable highest and best use.

Time
Sales will be analyzed for appreciation or depreciation from the date of the sale

to the date of the appraisal.

Location

Adjustments may consider value differences attributed to location.

Utility
Adjustments may consider the physical shape, topography, street frontage or

other factors of a parcel that influence value.

Zoning

Sales will be adjusted according to their zoning classification.

Size

Adjustments consider if size affects value.

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 00




Denmark Drive LAND SALES ANALYSIS
SALES ANALYSIS

For purposes of this report, the sales have been broken into a unit price per

square foot. Buyers and sellers of vacant land in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center
area typically analyze sales of potential properties on a price per square foot basis
similar to that of the subject property. Therefore, this analysis is being made on a price
per square foot basis. After a thorough research of the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center
and Storey County areas and specifically the surrounding areas around the subject
property, the most recent sales were found and analyzed. These sales occurred
between February 2018 and February 2021. The sales ranged in size from 10.23+ ac
to 25.93+ ac, as compared to the subject’'s 21.60+ ac. The price per square foot of
these sales ranged from a low of $1.17 to a high of $2.57. The comparable properties
utilized in this analysis will be compared and correlated to the subject property based
on several different adjustment criteria. These include property rights, terms, time,
location, utility, zoning, and overall size. The sales will be analyzed based on an overall
price per square foot, which is most often analyzed in the local market for commercial
and industrial land sales in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center. An upward adjustment is
made to the comparables’ prices per square foot when the subject is superior to the
sale. Likewise, a downward adjustment is made for the comparables’ price per square

foot when the subject is inferior to the sale.

Property Rights Conveyed
This appraisal considers the subject’s fee simple interest. All the sales utilized in
this report involved the transfer of fee, and no adjustments were considered to be

necessary.

Terms
All sales sold for cash or short-term deeds. All sales were considered to be cash

to seller; therefore, there will be no adjustment for terms of sale.

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 61




Denmark Drive LAND SALES ANALYSIS

Time (Marketing Conditions)

The sales occurred between February 2018 and February 2021. As indicated in
the Area Analysis section of this report and the Highest and Best Use, it has been
indicated that the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center area has undergone a significant
economic increase within the last few years. Sales in 2018 and 2021 are considered to
be the most current available. Only a limited amount of land sales of large parcels
similar to the subject property occurred at any given time in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial
Center that are felt to be comparable. Therefore, these sales are considered to be
contemporary indicators for the subject’s value. There has been a limited amount of
sales activity between 2018 and the current date. However, there has been several
smaller (under one acre) sales indicating a demand for development in the Reno/Tahoe
area as well as a large amount of very large acreage sold within the last couple of
years. All sales are considered to be current therefore, no further adjustment for time is

considered necessary.

Location

Overall, location is a very important aspect in any sale. The subject property is
located within the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center. All six sales are also located in the
same area as the subject property and considered to have similar locations as the subject
property. Each sale is somewhat similar to the subject property, no further adjustment for

location is considered necessary.

Utility

Under utility, adjustments may be considered for physical shape, topography,
street frontage, and other factors of a parcel that influence value. Utility of the subject
property is felt to be inferior to that of the sales utilized in this report. This section of the
adjustments will also consider adjustments for utilities. All six sales in this report have
the availability of public water and sewer and are similar to the subject property. All
sales are considered to be superior in utility, therefore requiring no further adjustment. It
should also be noted in this section that the subject property, as well as all properties
within the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, have water rights appurtenant to each parcel,

therefore, no further adjustments for water rights are necessary either.

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 62




Denmark Drive LAND SALES ANALYSIS

Zoning
The subject property is currently zoned commercial by the Tahoe-Reno Industrial

Center master plan. All sales within this report, are considered to have similar zoning.

Size

The subject site contains a total of 21.60+ ac. The sales in this report range
from 10.23% ac up to 25.93% ac. The sales are felt to be the most current and best
indicators for industrial utilization within the area. Sale # 1 contains 18.40+ ac smaller
than the subject requiring a downward adjustment. Sale # 2 contains 12.08+ ac smaller
than the subject requiring a downward adjustment. Sale # 3 contains 25.93+ ac larger
than the subject requiring an upward adjustment. Sale # 4 contains 14.46+ ac smaller
than the subject requiring a downward adjustment. Sale # 5 contains 10.23+ ac smaller
than the subject requiring a downward adjustment. Sale # 6 contains 20.03+ ac similar

to the subject requiring no adjustment.

Other Adjustments

Sale #1 is located within the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center. It is further identified
as APN 005-051-29. The physical address of this sale is 1200 USA Parkway,
McCarran, NV. This property was sold by Bluwater Holdings Corporation. The property
was purchased by 1200 USA PKWY, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company. The
meeting of the minds occurred January 1, 2018. The sale was recorded February 18,
2018. This sale was recorded with Document No. 127218. This site contains 18.40+ ac
or 801,504+ sf and is zoned I-2. The reported sales price was $2,060,000 indicating a
price of square foot of $2.57. In comparison to the subject property, this is considered
to be a high indicator.

Sale #2 is located in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center. It is further identified as
APN 005-061-26. The physical address of this sale is 2555 Peru Drive, McCarran,
Nevada. This property was sold by Reno-Tahoe Industrial Center LLC, a Nevada
limited liability company. The property was purchased by Lima Land Company, a
Nevada Limited Liability Company. The meeting of the minds occurred on February 25,
2018 and the sale was recorded on February 26, 2019. This sale was recorded with
Document No. 129172. This sale contains 12.08+ ac or 526,204.80+ sf and is zoned I-

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 63




Denmark Drive LAND SALES ANALYSIS

2. The reported sales price was $1,183,961 indicating a price per square foot of $2.25.

Overall, this is considered to be a high indicator.

Listing #3 is located in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center. This listing is further
identified as APN 005-021-42. The physical address of this listing is 1025 Waltham
Way, McCarran, Nevada. This property was sold by RVW Holdings, a Nevada limited
liability company. The property was purchased by 1025 Waltham, LLC a Nevada
limited liability company. The meeting of the minds occurred December 24, 2019. The
sale was recorded December 30, 2019. This sale was recorded with Document No.
1330995. This site contains 25.93+ ac or 1,129,510.80+ sf and is zoned I-2. The
reported sales price was $2,651,279 indicating a price of square foot of $2.35. In

comparison to the subject property, this is considered to be a high indicator.

Listing #4 is located in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center. This listing is further
identified as APN 004-091-84. The physical address of this listing is Waltham Way,
McCarran, Nevada. This property was sold by Waltham Road Industrial, LLC, a
Nevada limited liability company. The property was purchased by Sierra Pacific Power
Company. The meeting of the minds occurred February 07, 2020. The sale was
recorded February 10, 2020. This sale was recorded with Document No. 131209. This
site contains 14.46+ ac or 629,877.60+ sf and is zoned |-2. The reported sales price
was $738,016 indicating a price of square foot of $1.17. In comparison to the subject

property, this is considered to be a low indicator.

Sale #5 is located in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center. This listing is further
identified as APN 005-021-60. The physical address of this listing is 240 Wild Horse
Canyon Road, McCarran, Nevada. This property was sold Reno-Tahoe Industrial
Center LLC, a Nevada limited liability company. The property was purchased by
Harinder Singh a singe man as his sole and separate property. The meeting of the
minds occurred February 11, 2921. The sale was recorded February 18, 2021. This
sale was recorded with Document No. 133514. This site contains 10.23+ ac or
445,618.80+ sf and is zoned I-2. The reported sales price was $1,000,000 indicating a

price of square foot of $2.24. In comparison to the subject property, this is considered

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 64




Denmark Drive LAND SALES ANALYSIS

to be a high indicator.

Sale #6 is located in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center. This listing is further
identified as APN 005-111-75. The physical address of this listing is 1655 Milan Drive,
McCarran, Nevada. This property was sold Reno-Tahoe Industrial Center LLC, a
Nevada limited liability company. The property was purchased by Stericycle Inc. a
Delaware Corporation. The meeting of the minds occurred February 16,2021. The sale
was recorded February 26, 2021. This sale was recorded with Document No. 133566.
This site contains 20.03+ ac or 872,506.80+ sf and is zoned I-2. The reported sales
price was $1,963,140 indicating a price of square foot of $2.25. In comparison to the

subject property, this is considered to be a high indicator.

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 635




Denmark Drive SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION OF VALUE

SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION OF VALUE

All sales utilized in this report were felt to be similar to each other and as similar
as possible to the subject property. The adjustments are considered to be relatively
large. In the before condition, the sales ranged from a low of $1,17 per square foot to
$2.57 a square foot. It is felt that the subject property falls well within these indicators.
Appropriate adjustments have been considered for property rights, terms, time,
location, utilities, zoning, and size. A summary of adjustments for the price per square

foot is as follows.

SUMMARY OF ADJUSTMENTS FOR PRICE PER SQUARE FOOT

Sale | Unadjust. | Prop. | Terms | Time | Location Utility Zoning Size Overall
No. Unit Rights Adjust.
Price

1 $2.57 0 0 0 0/- - 0 - »

2 $2.25 0 0 0 0/- - 0 - -

3 $2.35 0 0 0 0/- - 0 + -

4 $1.17 0 0 0 0/- - 0 = +

5 $2.24 0 0 0 0/- - 0 2

6 $2.24 0 0 0 0/- - 0 0

The value indications derived from the comparable sales are reconciled into a
single value indication by arranging the five sales in an array relative to the subject
property. The sales considered superior to the subject property are Sale #1, Sale #2,
sale #3, sale # 5 and Sale #6, while Sale #5 is considered inferior. Following is an

indication of how the subject property fits within this array.

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 66




Denmark Drive SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION OF VALUE

Comparable Price/SF Overall Comparability
Sale #1 $2.57 Superior

Sale #2 $2.25 Superior

Sale #3 $2.35 Superior

Sale #6 $2.25 Superior

Sale #5 $2.24 Superior

Subject Property
Sale #4 $1.17 Inferior

As can be seen from the above chart, the subject property appears to fit well
within these sales. These sales were selected because of their comparability and
location to the subject property. As indicated, in the before condition the sales ranged
from a low of $1.17 to a high of $2.57 per square foot. The subject is felt to fall within
these indicators. It appears that the subject fits best between Sale #4 at $1.17 per
square foot and Sale #5 at $2.24 a square foot.

Therefore, based on the above analysis of the data contained in this report, and
consideration given to the definition of value contained in this report and the fact that
the subject is inferior to most comparables, most weight is given to Sale #4 and Sale #5
and will be rounded to $1.75 a square foot.

Therefore, it is this appraiser’'s opinion that the subject’'s 940,896.00+ square feet
has a current market value of 940,896.00+ sf x $1.75 a square foot indicates a value of
$1,646,568 which will be rounded to $1,650,000.

Indicated Value: $1,650,000

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 67




Denmark Drive PERMANENT EASEMENT VALUATION

PERMANENT EASEMENT VALUATION ANALYSIS

EASEMENT AND ENCROACHMENT AREA TABLE

1. PERMANENT PAVEMENT ENCROACHMENT AND ACCESS EASEMENT AREA = 2214140 SF (0.508 ACRES)
2 TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT AREA® = 126,886.43 SF (2912 ACRES)
3 PERMANENT RAIL ACCESS EASEMENT AREA = 32,648 37 SF (0.750 ACRES)

"NOTE INCLUDES PERMANENT PAVEMENT ENCROACHMENT ACCESS EASEMENT AND
PERMANENT RAIL ACCESS EASEMENT

Permanent Easement for a Rail Spur

PE - 22,141.40sf + 32,648.37 = 54,789.77

In a preceding section of this report, the estimated land value of the subject
property was estimated to be $1.75 per square foot. This $1.75 per square foot will be
extended to this section of the report. The permanent pavement encroachment access
easement and permanent rail access easement is for a 54,789.77+ sf area.

The purpose of this analysis is to establish the value of a 54,789.77+ sf
permanent pavement encroachment access easement and permanent rail access
easement and to recommend compensation for its acquisition. The easement is located
on the western portion of the subject site.

Fee simple ownership is typically viewed as absolute ownership, or full
ownership subject only to certain universal limitations. This ownership is said to include
the full “bundle of rights” inherent in the ownership of real estate. This “bundle of rights”
includes the right to use real estate, to sell it, to lease it, to enter it, to give it away, or to
choose to exercise all or none of these rights.

The easement that will be granted to the adjoining property owner will not restrict
the property owner’s right to sell, lease, give away, or otherwise convey the real estate.
However, it will impose some physical and legal restrictions on the use and
development of the subject. In determining the value of the easement, it is necessary to
explore the impact of the easement on the “bundle of rights” that comes with fee
ownership. After the imposition of the easement, the owner of the underlying parcel will
have something less than the total “bundle of rights” typically associated with the

ownership.

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 68




Denmark Drive PERMANENT EASEMENT VALUATION

Building Location

The easements will preclude construction of permanent structures within the
area encumbered. In the case of the subject, this will be a minor inconvenience due to
the location of the site of the easement at the western portion of the site which is
currently not developed. This easement does not affect any existing improvements and
for most practical purposes this area will be able to be utilized in the after condition in
the same form as it is in its current condition with the exception that no improvements
can be constructed in the after condition. As a result of the easement, the grantee, the
adjoining property owner, will have the right to remove or clear all buildings, fences,
brush, landscaping, trees, etc. within the easement area at their discretion. Additionally,
after the acquisition of the easement, the property owner will be constrained from
constructing any buildings, fences, or other structures in the easement area due to the
fact that this 54,789.77+ sf area will be totally utilized by the adjoining property owner
for a rail spur. In other words, this area is totally eliminated for use of future

development by the current owner.

Maintenance Access

As a result of the easement, the adjoining property will have, at all times, the
right to enter the property for the purpose of constructing, altering, maintaining,
inspecting, repairing, reconstructing and operating the utility facility constructed within
the right-of-way area. Although it is expected that these incursions will be infrequent,

the easement provides unlimited access.

Summary

Overall, much of the utility of the land in the easement area will be lost to the
owner of the underlying fee. While the easement will not restrict the owner’s right to
sell, lease, give away, convey or develop the parcel, there will be an impact on the
owner’s right to use the area to be encumbered by the easement. In essence, with the
exception of the right to traverse the area, the property owner is restricted from
incorporating the area encumbered into their larger holding. They cannot build
buildings, fences, or otherwise restrict access to the area. Additionally, the grantee, the

adjoining property owner, has reserved the right to clear or remove all brush,

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 69




Denmark Drive PERMANENT EASEMENT VALUATION

improvements, and landscaping at their discretion.

This project appears to create a utility corridor that will have little use to the
owner of the underlying fee. Overall, | conclude that along the continuum of impacts
that include at one end a property unaffected by the easement to a property which is
involved in a total take, the burden of the easements ranks somewhere at the middle of
the burdened area since the property owner does have similar use before and after
being utilized in its current condition.

Permanent easements are usually valued at somewhere between 0 and 100% of
the fee simple value of the property. The appraiser has researched numerous articles
within the appraisal field libraries to ascertain whether or not there is a definitive answer
as to what percentage that fee should be. In reading these articles as well as in
conversations with the purchasers of easements, sellers of easements, and other
appraisers familiar with the valuation of easements, the appraiser has found no set
definitive answer as to the amount fee actually being acquired. The most consistent
answer is somewhere in mid range, or 50% of value, if in fact the property owner retains
ownership of the property and has some usage. This percentage is arguably considered
higher or lower, depending on whether or not the easement is for an underground use,
an overhead use, or both. In the case of the subject property, the use by the adjoining
property for an easement is for a rail spur which eliminates most use by the current
owner. Given no other definitive market information, it is the appraiser’s opinion that a
permanent easement for an underground utility of 50% of the fee value is appropriate,
leaving the property owner 50% value for future utilization. Therefore, for purposes of
this report, the permanent easement for a rail spur will be valued at 50% of its fee
simple interest value.

In the preceding analysis, the value of the larger parcel was estimated at $1.75
per square foot. The easement which is proposed for the subject contains 54,789.77+
sf, indicating a value of $95,88210.

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 70




Denmark Drive PERMANENT EASEMENT VALUATION

Estimated Value of the Easement
(54,789.77+ sf @ $1.75/sf = $95,882.10 + 2 = $47,941.05) $47.941.05

Recommendation of Just Compensation for a
Permanent Easement: $47,941.05.

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 21




Denmark Drive TEMPORARY EASEMENT

DESCRIPTION AND VALUATION OF THE TEMPORARY EASEMENT

EASEMENT AND ENCROACHMENT AREA TABLE

1. PERMANENT PAVEMENT ENCROACHMENT AND ACCESS EASEMENT AREA = 22,141.40 SF (0.508 ACRES)
2 TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT AREA* = 126,886 43 SF (2912 ACRES)
3. PERMANENT RAIL ACCESS EASEMENT AREA = 32648 37 SF (0750 ACRES)

*NOTE. INCLUDES PERMANENT PAVEMENT ENCROACHMENT ACCESS EASEMENT AND
PERMANENT RAIL ACCESS EASEMENT

TE - 126,886.43 sf - 54,789.77 = 72,096.60sf

The adjoining property owner will be acquiring one temporary construction
easement for the purposes of facilitating the required rail spur work. The easement is
located on the western portion of the subject site. The temporary easement contains
72,096.60+ sf. The reader is referred to various maps found throughout this report to
better visualize the temporary construction easement area. According to information
provided by the client, they will require this easement for one year. The specific date of
commencement has not been established or provided to the appraiser. It is not known
exactly when the easement will begin but it is assumed some time within the next one

or two years. However, the property owners will be paid as of a current date.

As part of the entire subject ownership, the land area within the proposed
temporary easement was felt to have a similar unit value as the subject’s larger parcel.
In a preceding section of this report, an appropriate per unit value for the larger parcel
was estimated to be $1.75 a square foot. Applying this per unit value of $1.75 a square
foot of land area for the temporary construction easement being acquired results in an
indicated fee of this site as part of the entire subject ownership of $126,169.05.

72,096.60+ sf x $1.75/sf = $126,169.05

The easement required by the adjoining property owner will allow them to utilize

the 72,096.60+ sf for a one-year period until the end of construction. At the end of the

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7711 193




Denmark Drive TEMPORARY EASEMENT

lease, the land will revert back to the subject property owner. This analysis assumes
that the land reverting back to the property owner will be in the same condition as it was
before the acquisition of the easement. Essentially, the adjoining property owner
through acquisition of this temporary easement, is seeking to lease the land for one
year. To establish an indication of an appropriate rental rate, this appraiser reviewed a
number of land leases in the Reno/Sparks area. Most of these leases were for long-

term intervals and illustrate rates ranging from 8% to 12%.

For purposes of this analysis, an analysis of a fair market rental rate will be
based on the analysis of returns generated by land leases and availability of alternative
income generating investments. Additionally, this appraiser has conducted several
interviews with land owners and real estate brokers known to buy, sell, and lease
vacant land. Based upon a review of the land leases available to this appraiser and
interviews with a wide variety of real estate professionals, it was indicated that rental
rates are typically based upon a triple net term. The triple net term, in the case of land
leases, would involve the tenant being responsible for taxes, insurance, maintenance,
and other miscellaneous expenses related to the ownership of the property. For
purposes of this analysis, the fair market rental rate being estimated therefore would be
based on a triple net term lease.

One method of analyzing the rate of return required on a real estate investment
involves the analysis of alternative investments. According to the Valuation Insights
and Perspectives for Professional Real Estate Appraisers, dated First Quarter
2021, published by the Appraisal Institute, current economic indicators indicate that
five-year U.S. Treasury bonds were yielding -1.59%, ten-year bonds were yielding -
1.06%, and 30-year bonds were yielding -0.37%. Corporate Aaa bonds were yielding
2.44% and Baa corporate bonds were yielding 3.64%.

In considering the rate of return which would be applicable to the subject
property, consideration must be given to the fact that real estate typically involves
somewhat of a degree of risk and significantly less liquidity than available to an investor
in bonds and other financial market institutions. Real estate does, however, involve the

potential for future appreciation and may in some cases offer tax benefits. Because of

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7711 73




Denmark Drive TEMPORARY EASEMENT

the risk involved in the investment of real estate, the rate of return available on the
financial investments described above are felt to be lower than the rates of return
required to attract an investment on the subject real estate.

In interviews with representatives of the Airport Authority of Washoe County, as
well as the City of Reno and Washoe County, it was indicated to this appraiser that they
typically hope to achieve a 10% rate of return on land leases. This rate of return is well
within the range illustrated by the comparables analyzed and therefore is felt to be
reasonable.

To further support a land lease value the appraiser has gathered the information

in the following chart.

Comparable Rental Rates on Ground Leases

Leate Efeclve  Current Het Curren! Land »
Comp Lesses/Losmr Loste Anmyal 5 Fi Rent Ve Relurm
Mo LoocaSon ) APN Ciate Reat = per OF per IF par F Comrments
1 o172 % 200 155 $13 S1200 0TS 150 loam wih oo 2040 apian
Y osan NN Groara Loass
AAA To are
620 osed o 2 § 129 lard vake
CA0V1Z  B13TR 103257 o 500

woan 4 0MCo Diag "ot vakec
ae - FRO

Rero NV ! sotion of APN 012-284.01

Oeot Seore ' Damoree Vilage LLC 050101 355 %60 3726 a8 31600
morae Rarch Fakway 2010 rert 2.32ac)
NV RPN 140010 42

CEMADS $MIENW 4D T TR 00 A% T oaa

I 000 WO D ®  §500 1600w Was s
P N

A portion of this information was provided by Patrick J. Leeds SR/WA an
appraiser with the Nevada Department of transportation. Mr Leeds indicated that he
obtained the information in lease number 1 from the property owner Michael M.
Moreland. | reverified the information with Mr. Moreland on 2-09-2013. Mr. Moreland
indicated that the lease started at $3,100 a month for the first two years. The lease

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7711 74




Denmark Drive TEMPORARY EASEMENT

increased to $3,500 for the next three years and $3,850 for the next five years (where it
is currently). After that the lease will increase at 10% per year. | have verified leases 2
and 3 with David Mieding the Washoe County Airport's Real Estate Supervisor. Mr.
Mieding, indicated that lease number 3 was negotiated in good faith and signed in early
2011 but fell through when Reno Aviation Partners got into financial problems and
bowed out of the contact in October 2012. Leases 4 and 5 have been verified with a
local appraiser William Kimmel MAI, who had personal knowledge of the lease
information. Mr Leeds also indicted that the Kohl's lease had not changed per Mitch
King with Kohl's. | have verified lease 6 with David Mieding the Washoe County
Airport’'s Real Estate Supervisor. He indicated that this lease was for 30 years starting
in 1996. The current Rate is $0.86 a year, with 3% increases. Leases number 7 and 8
were verified with Heather Edmunson, Land Agent with Truckee Meadows Water
Authority, (TMWA). Lease number 7 is currently month to month, while lease number 8
is year to year. It is typical for land lease to see 3% annual increases. These land
leases are all true NNN with the tenant paying all expanses including taxes. For the
purpose of this report we are looking for a rate of return for a Temporary Easement,
minimal expenses will be incurred during the lease period. No taxes will be paid by the
lessee, therefore these land leases should be increased by 100 to 200 bases points to
reflect the lack of expenses. This would indicate rates of return between 9.33% and
18.00%.

Based upon an analysis of the available data, it is this appraiser’s opinion that an
appropriate rate of return for the 72,096.60+ sf of land area to be encumbered with a
temporary construction easement will be 10%. Applying a 10% rate of return to the
$1.75 per square foot for a one-year period results in an indicated $12,616.91 per year
for one year economic rent of the land within the temporary easement area of
72,096.60z sf. This is for a one-year period.

As noted previously, the adjoining prpoerty owner is seeking to lease the site for
one years. The indicated rent is felt to be an appropriate value for a one-year temporary
construction easement being acquired.

Indicated Value of 72,096.60% sf T.E.
$12,616.91

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7711 135




Denmark Drive EXPOSURE AND MARKETING TIME ANALYSIS

EXPOSURE AND MARKETING TIME ANALYSIS

The appraiser has been asked to consider the probable ex posure time for the
subject. Exposure time is the market period that would reasonably be anticipated for the
subject property prior to the date of value necessary for the subject if it had in fact been
marketed for sale. USPAP requires the appraiser to address exposure time. Exposure
time, again, is that time that would have been necessary to expose the subject property
on the open market in order to have consummated a sale at the value conclusion.

Marketing time is that time that would be necessary to consummate a sale on the
subject property at the final value conclusion, assuming it was first placed on the market
on the effective date of valuation. In a stable market, exposure and marketing time are
generally synonymous.

The appraiser has interviewed several real estate agents in the Reno/Sparks
areas who have been active in commercial real estate for the last several years. These
individuals indicate that properties such as the subject would have a high demand if
they were placed on the market for sale. In all cases, it was indicated to the appraiser
that the property should be able to be sold if reasonably marketed and priced in a six to
twelve month period.

Based upon those discussions, it would appear as though a typical exposure

time for the subject property should be in the range of 6 to 12 months.

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7711 76




Denmark Drive CERTIFICATION

CERTIFICATION

| certify that, to the best of my knowledge and belief:

1.

The statements of fact contained in this report are true and correct;

The reported analyses, opinions, and conclusions are limited only by the
reported assumptions and limiting conditions, that are my personal, impartial,

and unbiased professional analyses, opinions, and conclusions;

I have no present or prospective interest in the property that is the subject of this

report and | have no personal interest with respect to the parties involved;

| have no bias with respect to the property that is the subject of this report or to

the parties involved with this assignment;

My engagement in this assignment was not contingent upon developing or

reporting predetermined results;

My compensation for completing this assignment is not contingent upon the
development or reporting of a predetermined value or direction in value that
favors the cause of the client, the amount of the value opinion, the attainment of
a stipulated result, or the occurrence of a subsequent event directly related to the

intended use of this appraisal;

My reported analysis, opinions and conclusions were developed, and this report
has been prepared in conformity with the requirements of the Code of
Professional Ethics and Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice of the
Appraisal Institute. As well as the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal
Practice as adopted by the Appraisal Foundation. The opinions, and

conclusions were developed, and this report has been prepared in conformity

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA

#7719

17




Denmark Drive CERTIFICATION

10.

11.

12.

with the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice;

| have made a personal inspection of the property that is the subject of this

report;

No one provided significant real property appraisal assistance to the person

signing this certification;

The use of this report is subject to the requirements of the Appraisal Institute

relating to the review by its duly authorized representatives;

As of the date of this report, |, Anthony J. Wren MAI, SRA have completed the

requirements of the continuing education program of the Appraisal Institute.
| have performed no services as an appraiser, regarding the property that is the
subject of this report within the three-year period immediately preceding

acceptance of this assignment.

The estimate of value of the herein described property as of the effective Date of

value, which is June 19, 2021 the value for the subject property is:

AS OF June 19, 2021

Permanent Easement of 54,789.77+ sf $47,941.05
Temporary Easement of 72,096.60+ sf $12,616.91

-1

f Lt £
PSS B

//_,- //I‘."_'/f ',‘;l}{j‘f g &

{

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
Certified General Appraiser #A.0000090-CG

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA

#7719

78




Denmark Drive

ADDENDUM

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719

ADDENDUM

79




Denmark Drive QUALIFICATIONS OF THE APPRAISER

QUALIFICATIONS OF APPRAISER

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719




Denmark Drive QUALIFICATIONS OF THE APPRAISER

QUALIFICATIONS OF
ANTHONY J. WREN, MAI, SRA
REAL ESTATE APPRAISER

PROFESSIONAL DESIGNATIONS:

MAI — Member Appraisal Institute* 1991
SRPA — Senior Real Property Appraiser® 1987
SRA - Senior Residential Appraiser* 1984

* These are no longer consider to be acronyms by the Appraisal Institute

PROFESSIONAL INVOLVEMENT:

® Re-Appointed by the Governor of Nevada to serve on the Nevada
State Board of Taxation, Current Member 11/19 to 10/23
® Appointed by the Governor of Nevada to serve on the Nevada
State Board of Taxation, Current Member 5/16 to 10/19
® Appointed by the Governor of Nevada to serve on the Nevada
State Board of Equalization, Chairman as of January 2009 3/08 to 3/12
Reappointed to a new term and Chair 3/12 to 10/15
® Appointed by the Governor of Nevada to serve on the Nevada
Commission of Appraisers 9/94 to 6/97 and 7/97 to 6/00
o President, Commission of Appraisers of Real Estate, State of Nevada (1996,1998)
® Expert Witness for Nevada District Court, Washoe, Storey, Clark and Elko Counties
® Member of the Appraisal Institute, National Board of Realtors, and Reno/Carson/Tahoe
Board of Realtors
L ] Over 44 years of Appraisal Experience
APPRAISAL LICENSE: Nevada Certified General Appraiser
#A.0000090-CG
REAL ESTATE BROKERAGE: Nevada Real Estate Brokerage Licensed Broker

Anthony J. Wren #B.0023456.INDV.

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 il




Denmark Drive QUALIFICATIONS OF THE APPRAISER

OFFICES HELD: Member Young Advisory Council SREA,

San Diego & San Francisco, CA 1989 & 1991

Education Chairman, Reno/Tahoe/Carson Chapter

Appraisal Institute

Board of Directors, Reno/Carson/Tahoe Chapter Appraisal Institute

President, Reno/Carson/Tahoe Chapter 189

First Vice President, Reno/Carson/Tahoe
Chapter 189

Secretary, Reno/Carson/Tahoe Chapter 189

President, Reno/Carson/Tahoe Chapter 189

Appraisal Instruction

Several USPAP Update Courses taught through
Business Practices and Ethics

15-Hour National USPAP

Comparison Valuation of Small, Mixed-Use Properties
Income Valuation of Small, Mixed-Use Properties
15-Hour National USPAP Course

15-Hour Standards of Professional Practice (Seattle, WA)
7-Hour National USPAP Update (Las Vegas, NV)

7-Hour National USPAP Update (Chicago, IL)

7-Hour National USPAP Update (Reno, NV)

USPAP Update 2003 — Standards & Ethics for Professionals

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719

1993

1993-2007

1988-1989

1987-1988

1986-1987

2000

2020
2020
2018
2011
2011
03/23/07
03/22/07
03/02/07
04/15/05
02/24/05
09/05/03

jil




Denmark Drive QUALIFICATIONS OF THE APPRAISER

Business Practices and Ethics 07/25/03
7-Hour National USPAP Update Course 05/02/03
15-Hour National USPAP 03/22/03
Appraisal Procedures 05/19/01
Sales Comparison Valuation of Small, Mixed-Use Properties 03/31/01
Standards of Professional Practice, Part B (USPAP) 02/10/01
Income Valuation of Small, Mixed-Use Properties 02/19/00
Standards of Professional Practice, A, B, & C, USPAP 1992-2003

Reno, NV, Casper, WY, Eugene, OR, Sacramento, CA, Las Vegas, NV

Income Valuation of Small Mixed Use Properties

(Reno, NV) 1998

(Casper, WY) 1999

(Sacramento, CA) 1999

Residential Case Study, Course 210 (Las Vegas, NV) 10/97

Alternative Residential Reporting Forms (Buffalo, WY) 9/97

(Polson, MT) 9/97

Data Confirmation and Verification (Richland, WA) 11/96

(Riodoso, NM) 09/96

(Reno, NV) 03/96

(Savannah, GA) 12/95

Understanding the Limited Appraisal (Savannah, GA) 12/95
(Tucson, AZ) 09/94

110 “Real Estate Appraiser Principles” (Minneapolis, MN) 07/99

(Sacramento, CA) 05/95

(Wenatchee, WA) 09/94

(St. Louis, MO) 02/94

(Las Vegas, NV) 05/94

URAR Update (Casper, WY) 01/94

(Reno, NV) 12/93

1A2 Basic Valuation Procedures (Las Vegas, NV) 05/92

Course 207B, Income Valuation Appraising (Reno, NV) Fall 1989

Truckee Meadows Community College (Reno, NV) Spring 1989

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 iv




Denmark Drive QUALIFICATIONS OF THE APPRAISER

APPRAISAL COURSES AUDITED:
Case Studies in Real Estate Valuation
Cost Valuation of Small, Mixed-Use Properties

Income Valuation of Small Mixed-Use Properties

Sales Comparison Valuation of Small, Mixed-Use Properties

APPRAISAL COURSES SATISFACTORILY CHALLENGED:

A1: Course 1210 Residential Case Studies

A1: Course 410 Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice
A1: Course 420 Ethics of the Professional Appraisal Practice
A1: Course 420 Ethics of the Professional Appraisal Practice
SREA: Course 301 Special Applications of Real Estate Analysis
SREA: Course 202 Applied Income Property Valuation

SREA: Course 201 Principles of Income Property Appraising
SREA: Course 101 An Introduction to Appraising Real Property
SREA: Course 102 Applied Residential Property Valuation

Classes Taken Online

Introduction to the Uniform Dataset (2 hours)

USPAP Instructor Recertification Course 2018-2019 (4 hours)
USPAP Instructor Recertification Course 2016-2017 (4 hours)
USPAP Instructor Recertification Course 2014-2015 (4 hours)

Classes Attended

Uniform Appraisal Standard For Federal Land Acquisition
2018-2019 Instructors Recertification Course (USPAP)
Architectural Styles and the UAD

Constructing the Profession Report

FHA SFR Appraising - Handbook 4000.1

Comprehensive Square Foot Calculations

2016-2017 USPAP Instructor Recertification Course

Business Practice and Ethics Instructor Training

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719

2019
2018
2016
2014

2017
2017
2017
2017
2017
2017

1991
1988

1993)
1991)
1991)
1991)
1989)
1985
1984
1983
(1983

—~ e e s e e

R . s

2015
2015




Denmark Drive QUALIFICATIONS OF THE APPRAISER

Tahoe Litigation Conference 2014
Evaluating Residential Construction 2014
Appraisal Review General 2012
Uniform Appraisal Standards for Federal Land Acquisitions (Phoenix, AZ) 12/17 & 18/09
Valuation of Easements and Other Partial Interests (Reno, NV) 12/04/09

General Market Analysis and Highest & Best Use (Las Vegas, NV)
08/31/09 - 09/03/09

Introduction to International Valuation Standards  (Online) 08/01/31 - 08/31/09
Valuation of Green Residential Properties Phoenix, AZ) 02/19/09
REO Appraisal: Appraisal of Residential Property Foreclosures (Las Vegas, NV) 10/11/08
Forecasting Review 10/10/08
AQB Awareness Training for Appraisal Institute Instructors (Online) 08/15/07
Committee CE Credit (Chapter Level) 12/31/09
AQB USPAP Instructor Recertification Course (Dedham, MA) 02/24/07
AQB USPAP Instructor Recertification Course (Tucson, AZ) 12/04/04
Water Rights in Nevada 2/01/03
Training & Development Conference 08/26/03
AQB USPAP Instructor Recertification (San Francisco, CA) 10/30/02
Appraisal Continuing Education 12/10/02
Property Flipping and Predatory Lending Seminar 10/17/01
2001 USPAP Update for Instructors & Regulators-CA (San Diego, CA) 12/09/00
Lake Tahoe Case Studies in Commercial Highest & Best Use (Sacramento, CA) 10/20/00
Supporting Sales Comparison Grid Adjustments for

Residential Properties (Reno, NV) 09/29/00
Case Studies in Commercial Highest and Best Use (Reno, NV) 07/28/00
Tools For Teaching Excellence, Day 1 07/09/00
USPAP Update for Instructors and Regulators (Las Vegas, NV) 07/08/00
Tools For Teaching Excellence, Day 2 07/10/00
Residential Consulting 03/31/00
Residential Consulting 2000
FHA's Home buyer Protection Plan & the Appraisal Process Seminar 1991
Affordable Housing Valuation Seminar 1997
Alternative Residential Reporting Forms 1986
Business Valuation Part 1 1996
Understanding Limited Appraisals — General 1995

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719 Vi




Denmark Drive

QUALIFICATIONS OF THE APPRAISER

Data Confirmation & Verification Methods

Mandatory Faculty Workshop

Appraising 1- to 4-Family Income Properties
Investment Techniques with the HP-17/191l Calculator
Fair Lending and the Appraiser

Mock Trial

Electronic Spreadsheet Workshop

Basic Argus Training (Spreadsheets)

Investment Techniques with the HP-17/19Il Calculator
FNMA URAR Update

Maximizing the Value of an Appraisal Practice
Litigation Valuation

101 “Instructors Clinic

Comprehensive Appraisal Review

Meetings Attended

Committee Credit — National

FORMAL EDUCATION:

University of Texas at Arlington (No Degree)
Casper College (No Degree)

Peacock Military Academy (High School)

Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
#7719

1995
1995
1995
1994
1994
1994
1994
1994
1994
1993
1993
1992
1990
1990

12/31/00

1974
1973
1972

yii




Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 7/20/2021 10:33 AM - : Estimate of Time Required: 15
BOCC Meeting l

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action )

Title: Discussion/Possible Action: To consider comments received on the public hearing
related to the fair market value of the appraised land associated with Assessor’s Parcel
Number 005-061-52 pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 244.2795 and give
direction to staff to proceed with an easement utilizing the appraisal and public comments
as appropriate.

Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff, I,
(commissioner), move to acknowledge the fair market value as listed in the appraisal
completed by Anthony J Wren and Associates dated July 8, 2021, for real property
identified as Parcel Number 2017-28, Assessor’s Parcel Number 005-061-52, located
within the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada and direct
staff to utilize the fair market value in determining a proposed easement for the property.

In accordance with the recommendation by staff, I, (commissioner), move to
acknowledge the fair market value as listed in the appraisal completed by Anthony J
Wren and Associates dated July 8, 2021, for real property identified as Parcel Number
2017-28, Assessor’s Parcel Number 005-061-52, located within the Tahoe-Reno
Industrial Center, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada and direct staff to utilize the fair
market value in determining a proposed easement for the property.

Prepared by: AGENDA SUBMITTER

Department: Contact Number: 7758471144

Staff Summary: Storey County has been approached by a property owner requesting an
easement across Storey County owned property to construct a rail spur and driveway
encroachment. The property is located within the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center,
McCarran, Storey County, Nevada, located south of Denmark Drive, being Parcel 2017-
28 and having Assessor’s Parcel Number 005-061-52.

|5



At the June 15, 2021, Storey County Board of County Commissioner’s meeting,
the Board approved Anthony J. Wren and Associates to prepare an appraisal of the
subject property to facilitate a proposed easement on the property. Nevada Revised
Statutes (NRS) and the Storey County Code Chapter 2.22.100 requires the Board of
County Commissioners to verify the qualifications of the appraiser selected to perform
the appraisal associated with the easement request.

As only one appraisal was completed for the property, NRS Section 244.2795(a) requires
that a public hearing be held on the matter of the fair market value of the real property.
Upon conclusion of the public hearing, the Board will consider the appraisal and received
public comments and give staff direction on proceeding with development of an easement
for use of the public land for a rail spur and driveway encroachment.

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact: None

Legal review required: False

Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other Agency Review:

Board Action:

[ ] Approved Approved with Modification

L]
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued




Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

" Meeting date: 7/6/2021 10:00 AM - " Estimate of Time Required: 15
- BOCC Meeting 7 ) .
Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action
« Title: Promotional Badge pinning for Battalion Chief Jim Morgan and Fuels
Management Officer Chris Barton. This item will be continued to the July 20, 2021
Board of County Commissioners Meeting.
*  Recommended motion: N/A

* Prepared by: Jeremy Loncar

Department: Contact Number: 775-847-0954

+ Staff Summary: In fire service tradition, a badge pinning and when applicable, a reciting
of the oath should occur to celebrate the the accomplishments of our staff and publicly
recognize them. Traditionally the spouse, significant other, family member, or friend is
awarded the opportunity to place the new badge on the recently promoted or hired
member.

+ Supporting Materials: See attached

« Fiscal Impact: N/A

* Legal review required: False

* Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name:

County Manager Other Agency Review:

« Board Action:

Approved Approved with Modification
PP
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued




Storey County Board of Coﬁnty

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 7/20/2021 10:33 AM - " Estimate of Time Required: 5 Minutes
' BOCC Meeting

Agenda Item Type: Discussjon/!’o-sjsiblc Agtibn

Title: Consideration and possible action to approve disposal by means of auction,
donation, or sale of surplus District fire apparatus and equipment.

Recommended motion: | (Fire Commissioner) move to approve the disposal of two
surplus Fire apparatus and brush truck skid unit by means of auction, donation, or sale.

Prepared by: AGENDA SUBMITTER

Department: Contact Number: 775-847-0954

Staff Summary: | am requesting approval to reduce our fleet by means of sale, auction,

or donation of the following vehicles;

1986 International Series 1 ( Reserve Brush Truck) Vin IHTLFTVNIGHAS52207
1996 HME Type 1 Fire Engine Vin 44KFT4280TWZ1892

Brush Truck skid unit (tank & pump

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact: n/a

Legal review required: False

Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name:

County Manager Other Agency Review:

Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification

[ ] Denied | ] Continued

1%



JB) STOREY COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
145 North C Street
P.O. Box 603
Virginia City, NV 89440
(775) 8470954 Phone e (775) 847 0987 Fax

July 7%, 2021

To: Storey County Fire Board

From: Jeremy Loncar
Fire Chief
Storey County Fire Protection District

Re: Surplus Vehicles

| am requesting approval to reduce our fleet by means of sale, auction, or donation of the
following vehicles:

1986 International Series 1 brush truck Vin 1FMNU41S7YEB90892

This vehicle has not been utilized in over 3 years and currently sits unstocked and
not in service. It is mechanically sound, however acquiring parts to keep this running is
becoming more difficult and with replacement apparatus coming, it serves no value to
the district.

1996 HME Type 1 Engine Vin 44KFT4280TWZ18192

This Engine as well as a matching engine, were acquired from Truckee Meadows
Fire Protection District in 2019. We have utilized this engine to assist with parts on two
similar engines that we own and because we were able to utilize this engine for a parts
vehicle, we currently do not need it within our fleet. The overall costs to bring this unit up
to a condition where it could be utilized would far exceed its value.

Brush Skid Unit (pump & tank)

This skid unit consists of a tank and pump that was recently removed from a type
5 brush truck. This unit is mechanically sound but has no application within the Fire
District.

All the above listed vehicles are in various stages of repair or simply utilized as parts
vehicles. Itis my intention to donate the 1986 International and send the HME Type 1
engine and brush skid unit to auction.

Thank you for your time and consideration and if you have any questions or comments,
please feel free to contact me at (775) 847-0954.



STOREY COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

145 North C Street
P.O. Box 603
Virginia City, NV 89440
775) 847-0954 Phone e (775) 847-0987 Fax

Cordially/. — - )
( ="
. B

Jeremy Loncar
Fire Chief
Storey County Fire Protection District



Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 7/20/2021 10:33 AM - Estimate of Time Required: 5 Minutes
BOCC Meeting
Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action o
+ Title: Consideration and possible approval of an increase in the awarded money to the
Storey County Fire Protection District for fuels reduction from NV Energy in the amount
of $875,702.67 over the duration of the 3-year agreement.

»  Recommended motion: | (Fire Commissioner) move to approve the proposed changes
and increase in funding from NV Energy to Storey County Fire Protection District in the
amount of $875,702.67 for additional fuels reduction staff, operating expenses, and
equipment.

*  Prepared by: AGENDA SUBMITTER

Department: Contact Number: 775-847-0954

+  Staff Summary: We have been in discussions with NV Energy to increase the amount of
funding to obtain more equipment and personnel for fuels reduction. NV Energy has
agreed to increase our current awarded amount of $1,915,014 to $2,790,716.67. This
increase is funding will be used to fill various fuels positions previously approved by the
board and to purchase a chip truck that will allow us to haul away chipped fuels from the
project site. Other changes to the agreement are within the billing schedule and misc.
operating expenses.

«  Supporting Materials: See attached

» Fiscal Impact: Increase revenue of $875,702.67

» Legal review required: False

*  Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name:

County Manager Other Agency Review:

* Board Action:

177



Storey County Fire
Protection District

Hazardous Fuels Management & Stand-by
Services Proposal for

NV Energy



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF WORK

Storey County Fire Protection District (“SCFPD” or “Contractor”™) will conduct the hazardous fuels
management and stand-by services described in this Scope of Work for NV Energy (“NV Energy” or
“Company”) and on a “time and materials basis” in amounts set forth in Exhibits B and C. Company,
and Contractor individually may be referred to as a “Party” and collectively as “Parties.”

This Contract represents cooperative and pre-emptive implementation of the requirement to eliminate
fire hazards. Services to be performed by SCFPD will consist primarily of vegetation management of
ground fuels, such as clearing brush and other debris, as well as timber stand reduction in a limited
capacity, within NV Energy service territory to reduce fire hazards and create combustible free space.
SCFPD will also provide stand-by services when NV Energy is engaged in high fire risk activities.

1. SCFPD will conduct vegetation management of ground fuels/vegetation utilizing various types of
fuel removal techniques within company's electric service territory and electrical assets including,
without limitation, powerline right of ways (ROW), transmission and distribution (T&D) lines, and
around company's infrastructures in accordance with local Community Wildfire Protection Plans,
Authority Having Jurisdiction fuel treatment requirements and 2018 International Wildland-Urban
Interface Code (IWUIC) Appendix A requirements to reduce the threat of wildfire and improve the
capabilities to control such fires. The Parties will work together v implement appropriate and effective
maintenance treatment to prevent the growth of noxious or flammable weeds within the ROWs. SCFPD
crews funded through this agreement may be used outside of NV Energy infrastructure zones as nceded
and determined by SCFPD.

2. SCFPD will provide National Wildfire Coordinating Group 310-1 qualified stand-by and stand-by
resources as requested when NV Energy is engaged in high fire risk activities. Additionally, SCFPD

may provide qualified resources to conduct wildland training to other field personnel. The following

resources may be made available at the discretion of SCFPD:  4-person suppression module, engines
(Type I1I/V/VI), dozers/heavy equipment, and/or single resource personnel (i.e. fire linc supervisors,

Incident Management Team members, etc.).

3. SCFPD will employ one Wildland Fuels Management Officer to work as a liaison/project coordinator
with NV Energy. This person will be Red Carded as an RXB3 (prescribed firing boss), Crew Boss,
Engine Boss and Type 2 or greater faller. The purpose of this position will be to assist in the planning,
communication, reporting, progress mapping, logistics, and effective/efficient implementation of
services outlined in this Scope of Work (SOW).

4. NV Energy and SCFPD will meet and conter in prepaning a schedule of projects to be performed.
SCEPD will perform the work as agreed to by the Parties. When an area is finished, NV Energy will
inspect and “sign off” on the project when it 1s accepted. SCFPD will not provide a guarantee or
warranty that, by performing the work in this SOW, fires or injuries to persons or property, will be
prevented. There is no warranty or liability by SCFPD for the work performed prior to or after NV
Energy’s “sign off,” and SCFPD does not waive the liability limitations in NRS Chapter 41.

5. SCFPD will perform the work on a “time and materials basis” and may start or stop work at its
discretion. However, SCFPD will assure that the fuels Module spend a minimum or 175 days per year
actively working on fuels reduction through NV Energy Right-of-way, unless actively engaged in

2



firefighting or stand by operations at the request of NV Energy with a cumulative total greater than 86
days per calendar year.

6. SCFPD will implement “pole grubbing™ to create a combustible-free space around poles, in
accordance with 2018 IWUIC Appendix A, and maintain such work annually throughout the duration of
an executed agreement. Upon completion of the first phase of implementation and/or expiration of the
original executed agreement, SCFPD will establish an annual contract with NV Energy to conduct
maintenance services. SCFPD will work closely with companies to implement appropriate and most
effective maintenance treatment to prevent the growth of noxious or flammable weeds within the
ROW’s.

7. Upon execution of this contract, SCFPD shall obtain pricing for, 1-Type 6 wildland fire apparatus, a
flat deck trailer for a skid steer, a CAT 299D3 skid steer forestry masticator, and provide the pricing to
NV Energy See Exhibit D. Upon acceptance of pricing by NV Energy, NV Energy shall advance to
SCFPD the amount needed to purchase the listed items and SCFPD shall purchase them. Items
permanently mounted to the vehicles and equipment such as air compressors, fire extinguishers,
toolboxes, etc., shall be considered a part of the vehicle or equipment.

8. Equipment hours will be tracked, and billable rates subtracted from initial NV Energy funding
amounts until equipment is paid off or until the cancellation/end of this agreement. At the time of
termination of this agrecment, SCFPD will reimburse NV Energy the remaining purchase balance or
will return the equipment if any balance is left on the vehicle pay off amounts. Once the vehicles and
equipment are paid off, they shall become the sole property of SCFPD. Current vehicles and equipment
owned by SCFPD will be tracked and billed the same as newly acquired equipment for repayment of
money utilized to secure new vehicles and equipment until all money has been reimbursed to NV
Energy.

9. Upon completion of the first phase of implementation and/or expiration of the original 3-year-term of
the Contract, the Parties will enter into negotiations in an attempt to reach an agreement for maintenance
services.



EXHIBIT B
PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The proposed project treats approximately 259 miles of transmission and distribution lines throughout
Storey County (see following map). The work is combined mechanical treatment (mastication) and hand
treatment (hand crews), performed by specified personnel in this Scope of Work.

Treatment Areas include (but not limited to):
» Top priority areas
e Transmission and Distribution lines along Hwy 341 corridor, from 5 Mile Flat to the top of 7
Mile Canyon (including Geiger Summit and Bailey Canyon within Storey County)
e Transmission and Distribution lines within the Virginia City Highlands
» Additional priority areas
¢ Transmission and Distribution Lines in the 6 Mile Canyon area
e Transmission lines in Long Valley
e Transmission and Distribution lines around Tracy Clark Generation Plant and Tahoe-Reno
Industrial Center
¢ Distribution lines within the Gold Hill area

Treatment includes 10’ - 30” clearance to mineral soil around poles and a 40 wide continuous shaded
fuel break underneath lines. Wider breaks and fuel reduction outside of the NV Energy Right of Way
will be conducted when appropriate and where landowners agree and sign Right of Entry/ Hold
Harmless Agreements.

Treatments will start along the highest prionty lines as identified by NV Energy and SCFPD. The
majority of the above listed treatment areas would connect to create a continuous fuels management
prescription that would serve a large portion of NV Energy infrastructure throughout Storey County.
Fire history within the county is extensive, and has occurred in all of the listed treatment areas. Previous
fires have occurred in all fuel types within the county; from grass and brush, to mixed-conifer with litter
understory. Creating fuel breaks and clearing poles will have a direct impact on fire spread and intensity
within the treatment areas.

In addition to elements proposed in the scope of work, SCFPD will provide program oversight and
overhead vehicles.

Daily reports tracking production will be kept on site for six years. Monthly reporting of expenditures
and production will occur by the 25th of each month utilizing the following form. This report will be
submitted to NV Energy.



EXHIBIT C
PRICING SCHEDULE
2020 BILLING RATES

All rates based on actual cost to SCFPD. Billed rate will be at the actual cost and may be different than
the rate quoted in this document.

APPARATUS RATES
Equipment utilized at the request of NV Energy will be billed based on actual hours used. Personnel

and equipment will be billed for hours worked as indicated on crew reports and will include travel time.
Rates below include personnel costs.

1. Structure Engine - Type | $250.00/hr.
2. Brush Engine — Type III $200.00/hr.
3. Water Tender $170.00/hr.

4. Patrol Truck — Type V/VI  $150.00/hr.

5. Excavator Masticator $250.00/hr.
6. Skid Steer Masticator $220.00/hr.
7. Transport & Trailer $110.00/hr.
8. Dozer $150.00/hr.
9. Dozer Tender $85.00/hr.
10. Command Vehicle $50.00/day.
11. Utility vehicle (pickup) $45.00/day.
12.UTV $150.00/day.
13. Chipper/ Chip Truck $ 40.00/hr.

All vehicles will track, document, and bill actual mileage based on IRS rate per mile to NV Energy.



PERSONNEL RATES

All personnel are charged consistent with the Department’s current labor agreements and/or resolutions
as approved by the Board. Backfill (for 56-hour personnel only) personnel and their invoice amounts
will be shown on the same invoice as incident personncl. Backfill dates will be noted.

1. Chief Officer $73/hr
2. Captain $68/hr
3. Firefighter/Paramedic $52/hr
4. Firefighter $46/hr
5. Wildland Fire Crewmember $22/hr
6. Wildland Fire Crew Lead $28/hr.
7. Heavy Equipment Operator $47/hr
BILLING ADDRESS

Storey County Fire Protection District
145 N C Street

P.O Box 603

Virginia City, NV 89440

CONTACT INFORMATION

Jeremy Loncar, Fire Chief
(775) 399-1746

Shane Dixon, Battalion Chief
(775) 287-5643

Chris Barton, Fuels Management Officer
(775) 250-0967

Tiffany Pieretti, Administrative Office
(775) 847-0954

DUNS NUMBER
959435876

TAX ID NUMBER
EIN # 88-6000134

STATION LOCATIONS

Station 71 — 145 N C Street, Virginia City, Nevada 89440
Station 72 - 2610 Cartwright Road, Reno, Nevada 89521
Station 74 — 431 Canyon Way, Sparks, Nevada 89434
Station 75 — 1705 Peru Drive, Mc¢Carran, Nevada 89434



EXHIBIT D
7 PERSON CREW & EQUIPMENT

Fuels Reduction Crew — 1 Year Fuels Reduction Crew of 5§

Year one Hourly | Annual Annual 1.5 | Benefits Annual Pay Grade
rate Regular Max INS/PERS | Total
Pay
FMO ~137.84 | 78,711.50 | 7,000 '51,872.03 | 137,583.53 | 140
WL Fuels Specialist 26.52 | 55,168.03 | 7,000 41,524.67 103,692.70 | 127
WL Engine Boss 24.63 | 51,229.01 | 7,000 39,793.47 | 98,022.48 | 124
Heavy Fire Equip. Oper. 24.63 | 51,229.01 | 7,000 39,793 .47 98,022.48 124
WL Crew Member 16.56 | 34,444.80 | 4.000 32,416.81 70.861.61 108
WL Crew Member 16.56 | 34.444.80 | 4,000 32,416.81 70.861.61 108
WL Crew Member 16.56 | 34,444 .80 | 4,000 32.416.81 70,861.61 108
Storey County FPD Fuels Management Personnel Total: $ 649,906.02
Original PO amount authorized for personnel: $ 409,182.00
Difference requested for PO revision: $ 240.724.02

EqukiiJ-l_ne"htl,- Rentals, and Operating expenses

Annual Administrative/HR/Payroll cost 30,000 annually
Annual operating costs equipment maintenance 50,000 annually
PPE, tools, Ipads, HT radios 40,000 first year 12,000 year 2-3
1 Type 5 firefighting vehicles 200,000 one time | )
| 24 ft deck over gooseneck trailer for skid steer | 15,000 one time e
CAT 299D3 skid steer forestry masticator | 153,000 one time
CAT 2137mm Industrial Grapple Rake 4961 one time
Chip Truck (Unknown Make- TBD) 95,000 one time
Storey County FPD Fuels Management Operating/ Equipment : $ 587.961.00 Year1
$  92,000.00 Annual
Original PO amount authorized for personnel: $ 468,000.00 Year 1
$ 8000.00 Annual
Difference requested for PO revision: S 119961.00 Yearl
$ 4,000.00 Annual

* PO Revision difference in total reflects the costs for the purchase of a chip truck, an industrial
grapple rake for the skid steer, and increased equipment/ PPE cost for additional personnel.

All items to be purchased by NV Energy will remain property of Storey County Fire Protection
District from time of purchase.




Original Contract total costs paid by NV Energy

Y carly totals

Year | operating & Equip.

Year 2 equip. costs

Year 3 operating & Equip.

$468,000 $88,000 $88.,000
Year | personnel Year 2 Personnel Year 2 Personnel
$409,182.00 $423,504 $438,328

3-year contract total:

$ 1915014

Proposed PO Revision Contract total costs paid by NV Energy
Yearly totals

Year | operating & Equip.

Year 2 equip. costs

Year 3 operating & Equip.

$587,961.00 - $92,000 $92,000
Year | personnel Year 2 Personnel Year 2 Personnel
$649,906.02 $672,653.36 $696,196.29

3-year contract total:
PO Revision Difference:

$ 2,790,716.67
$ 875,702.67




Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

' Meeting date: 7/20/2021 10:33 AM - ' Estimate of Time Required: 5 Minutes

BOCC Meeting

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

Title: Consideration and possible action to approve a contract between the Carson City
and the Storey County Fire Protection District for use of the Regional Fire Training
Facility.

Recommended motion: [ (Fire Commissioner) move to approve the Regional Fire
Training Facility Use Contract between Carson City and Storey County Fire Protection
District and authorize the Fire Chief to sign the contract.

Prepared by: Tiffany Pieretti

Department: Contact Number: 775-847-0954

Staff Summary: This agreement is a yearly update and renewal from a previously signed
agreement. This agreement will allow the fire district to use the Regional Fire Training

Facility located at 2400 College Parkway in Carson City, NV 89706 for specialized fire
training. This contract outlines terms of use and all associated fees as necessary.

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact: n/a

Legal review required: False

Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other Agency Review:

Board Action:

| ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification

[ ] Denied [ ] Continued




REGIONAL FIRE TRAINING FACILITY USE
CONTRACT No. 21300019 - Storey County Fire Protection District

This CONTRACT No. 21300019, REGIONAL FIRE TRAINING FACILITY USE AGREEMENT,
is made by and between Carson City, a consolidated municipality, a political subdivision
of the State of Nevada, hereinafter referred to as the "CITY," and Storey County Fire
Protection District, hereinafter referred to as the "USER." USER and CITY may be
individually referred to as “Party” and collectively referred to as “Parties.”

1. CONTRACT TERM:

This Contract shall be effective beginning on the date it is fully executed by the Parties, and it
expires June 30, 2022, unless sooner terminated by either Party as specified in this Contract.
This Contract may be terminated by either Party with or without cause by giving the other Party
thirty (30) calendar days written notice of the intent to terminate and specifying the date upon
which the termination will be effective.

2. NOTICE:

2.1 All notices or other communications required or permitted to be given under this Contract
shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if delivered personally in hand,
by e-mail, by telephonic facsimile with simultaneous regular mail, or by certified mail, return
receipt requested, postage prepaid on the date posted, and addressed to the other Party at the
address specified below.

2.2 Notice to the USER shall be addressed to:

Storey County Fire Protection District
Jeremy Loncar, Fire Chief

P.O. Box 603

Virginia City, NV 88440
775-847-0954

Email: Jloncar@storeycounty.org

2.3  Notice to the CITY shall be addressed to:

Carson City Purchasing and Contracts

Carol Akers, Purchasing and Contracts Administrator
201 North Carson Street, Suite 2

Carson City, NV 89701

775-283-7362/ FAX 887-2286

cakers@carson.org

Page 1 of 16



REGIONAL FIRE TRAINING FACILITY USE
CONTRACT No. 21300019 — Storey County Fire Protection District

| For P&C Use Only
l GL expires

AL expires
( WC expires

J
3. FIRE TRAINING FACILITY USE:

The USER shall have use of the FIRE TRAINING FACILITY located at 2400 College Parkway,
Carson City, Nevada, hereinafter referred to as the “FACILITY” during the times and dates
agreed upon by CITY and the USER.

The USER accepts all risk associated with the use of the FACILITY.

At the conclusion of the use, the CITY and the USER shall inspect the FACILITY to determine
its condition. Should there be any damage to the FACILITY beyond normal wear and tear by the
USER, the USER shall pay for the repair of the FACILITY.

Any lost, stolen, or damaged articles or equipment shall be the responsibility of the USER.

Valuables shall not be kept in the classroom or the lockers. Storage of items in lockers or
classroom is for duration of class only.

All locks on the lockers must be remaoved after completion of the class.

There are two (2) thermostats insidc the building. Do not adjust the pre-set temperatures. One
of the thermostats is located in the office and it controls part of the classroom and the bathrooms.
The other thermostat is located in the large classroom and it controls part of the classroom and
the hall.

The USER is responsible for providing all dry erase pens, markers, flip charts, etc.

The FACILITY shall be vacated by the USER immediately upon notification by the CITY.

4. CLEANING OF FACILITY:

The USER shall be responsible for cleaning the FACILITY and returning it to a neat and
presentable condition.

If the FACILITY is left in an unacceptable condition as determined by the CITY'S personnel, the
CITY has the right to correct the condition and the USER agrees to pay for any costs incurred.

The USER shall clean the classroom and bathroom areas after each class session and keep the
premises clean during use. Cleaning supplies are kept under the vanities or in the storage room
inside the utility room adjacent to the kitchen area.

Page 2 of 16



REGIONAL FIRE TRAINING FACILITY USE
CONTRACT No. 21300019 - Storey County Fire Protection District

The following is a guide to be utilized when cleaning:

Classrooms: ' Hallway:
Counters/Cabinets/Trash Cans -Dust-mopped
-Wiped down -Damp-mopped
-Cleared off
-Emptied Office:
Sinks -Carpets vacuumed
-Cleaned -Desks/cabinets cleaned
-No items left in sink
Bathrooms:
Floors
-Dust-mopped -Floors damp-mopped
-Damp-mopped -Counter tops wiped down
-Sinks/fixtures cleaned
Chairs/Tables -Showers cleaned
-Left in original classroom configuration -Toilets/urinals cleaned out
-Chairs and tables straightened -Lockers cleared out / cleaned

-Tables wiped off

Dry Erase Boards
-Cleaned

5. BURN BUILDING:

A burn plan following NFPA 1403 Live Fire Burning must be submitted to the Carson City Fire
Department Training Captain and approved by the Carson City Fire Department Fire Chief two
(2) weeks prior to burn.

Agencies utilizing the burn building and the associated appliances are responsible for providing
properly trained operators. These operators must be approved by the Carson City Fire
Department.

Each USER shall provide documentation identifying the operators.

The USER is responsible for providing approved fuels (Class A and straw) for burning. The fuels
must only be used in the proper rooms identified for those specific fuels.

Page 3 of 16



REGIONAL FIRE TRAINING FACILITY USE
CONTRACT No. 21300019 - Storey County Fire Protection District

If the burn building/rooms are left in an unacceptable condition as determined by the CITY’S
personnel, the CITY has the right to correct the condition and the USER agrees to pay for any
costs incurred.

The USER must fully extinguish all fuels before leaving and the ashes must be placed into the
appropriate dumpster.

The USER will monitor ceiling temperatures using the exterior temperature gauge and will not
exceed 1000° F at ceiling height.

6. PROPANE PROPS:

If USER will utilize the propane props, USER must provide properly trained operators to do so.
Carson City Fire Department approval is required for these operators.

The USER shall provide documentation identifying the operators.

The USER must report any problems with the propane props to the Carson City Fire Department
duty Battalion Chief immediately.

The USER must not utilize any propane prop that is not functioning properly.
The USER must re-fill the propane tank to original tank level.
& FACILITY KEYS:

The USER will be required to pick up keys to the FACILITY from the Training Secretary, located
at Carson City Fire Department Station #51, on the date the FACILITY is rented.

The USER must return the keys to the Carson City Fire Department, Station 51, after the
completion of the training.

The USER shall secure the FACILITY at the conclusion of each day of training.
The USER must not allow any other entity or individual to have access to the keys.

Should the USER lose the keys, the USER agrees to pay the CITY two hundred fifty dollars
($250.00) for the cost of replacement.

8. SCHEDULE:

The USER must call the Training Secretary at 775-887-2210 extension 7148 to make
reservations.

Page 4 of 16



REGIONAL FIRE TRAINING FACILITY USE
CONTRACT No. 21300019 - Storey County Fire Protection District

The Carson City Fire Department will provide written confirmation of the date(s) and time(s)
within seven (7) calendar days after receipt of request.

Page 5 of 16



REGIONAL FIRE TRAINING FACILITY USE
CONTRACT No. 21300019 — Storey County Fire Protection District

9. USER'S RESPONSIBILITIES:

The USER shall at all times enforce discipline and good order among its employees, authorized
volunteers, and any others performing work for the USER.

The USER is responsible for informing its employees, authorized volunteers, and any others
performing work for the USER about the risks associated with the use of the FACILITY and of
the conditions and restrictions.

The USER shall be responsible for maintaining a list of the trained individuals. Copies of their
training certificates shall be made available to the Fire Department’s Training Division upon
request. These trained individuals shall provide supervision for all USER activities at the
FACILITY.

The USER agrees that only employees, authorized volunteers, and any others performing work
for the USER will be upon the FACILITY grounds during the training, and that once the training
is complete and the FACILITY is clean and set up for the following day, the employees,
authorized volunteers, and any others performing work for the USER will immediately leave the
premises.

The USER agrees that the FACILITY is only to be used for training purposes.
The USER agrees to be held responsible for the conduct of each of its employees, authorized
volunteers, and any others performing work for the USER, for their conformance with the terms

and conditions of this Contract.

10. CITY’S RESPONSIBILITIES:

The FACILITY will be maintained by the CITY staff.

Should circumstances require cancellation of the class, the USER will be given as much notice
as possible. If USER fails to comply with CITY’s cancellation, this Contract shall be deemed
terminated.

The CITY reserves the right to authorize use of the FACILITY by other entities during dates and
times not assigned to the USER.

11, BASIS OF COMPENSATION:

11.1  The USER shall reimburse the CITY for the salaries of the CITY's personnel utilized at
the FACILITY during the training.

The USER'’s fee schedule will be determined by the Carson City Fire Department.

11.2 The USER shall pay for FACILITY use through a non-refundable annual membership fee
or a non-refundable per-day fee.

Page 6 of 16



REGIONAL FIRE TRAINING FACILITY USE
CONTRACT No. 21300019 — Storey County Fire Protection District

11.2.1 The annual fee schedule is based on the size of USER’s organization
membership. This annual fee provides unlimited scheduled use of the entire
FACILITY for the term of this Contract.

Number of Members Annual Fee
0-50 $3,000

51 -100 $5,000

101 - 200 $7,000

201 - 300 $10,000
300+ $15,000

11.2.2 Should USERS opt out of an annual fee schedule, the per-day fees for use of
the FACILITY are as follows:

$50 per day - Classroom usage only

$150 per day - Grounds usage without classroom

$200 per day - Grounds usage with classroom

$250 per day - Propane Props plus the current cost of fuel per gallon
$500 per day - Live burn in the burn building.

11.3 Fees will be placed into a specialized account for the direct operation, maintenance, and
capital replacement of the FACILITY.

12. INDEMNIFICATION:

12.1 To the extent permitted by law, including, but not limited to, the provisions of Nevada
Revised Statutes Chapter 41, each Party shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend, not
excluding the other’'s right to participate, the other Party from and against all liability, claims,
actions, damages, losses, and expenses, including but not limited to reasonable attorney's fees
and costs, arising out of any alleged negligent or willful acts or omissions of the indemnifying
Party, its officers, employees and agents. Such obligation shall not be construed to negate,
abridge, or otherwise reduce any other right or obligation of the indemnity which would otherwise
exist as to any Party or person described in this paragraph.

12.2 Except as otherwise provided in Subsection 12.4 the indemnifying Party shall not be
obligated to provide a legal defense to the indemnified Party, nor reimburse the indemnified
Party for the same, for any period occurring before the indemnified Party provides written notice
of the pending claim(s) or cause(s) of action to the indemnifying Party, along with:

12.2.1 A written request for a legal defense for such pending claim(s) or cause(s) of
action; and,

12.2.2 A detailed explanation of the basis upon which the indemnified Party believes
that the claim or cause of action asserted against the indemnified Party

Page 7 of 16



REGIONAL FIRE TRAINING FACILITY USE
CONTRACT No. 21300019 — Storey County Fire Protection District

implicates the culpable conduct of the indemnifying Party, its officers,
employees, and/or agents.

12.3 After the indemnifying Party has begun to provide a legal defense for the indemnified
Party, the indemnifying Party shall not be obligated to fund or reimburse any fees or costs
provided by any additional counsel for the indemnified Party, including counsel through which
the indemnified Party might voluntarily choose to participate in its defense of the same matter.

12.4 After the indemnifying Party has begun to provide a legal defense for the indemnified
Party, the indemnifying Party shall be obligated to reimburse the reasonable attorney’s fees and
costs incurred by the indemnified Party during the initial thirty (30) day period of the claim or
cause of action, if any, incurred by separate counsel.

12.5 The Parties do not waive and intend to assert available NRS Chapter 41 liability limitations
in all cases.

13. INDEPENDENT AGENCIES:

Nothing contained in this Contract shall be deemed or construed to create a partnership or joint
venlure, to create relationships of an employer-empioyee or principal-agent, or to otherwise
create any liability for the CITY whatsoever with respect to the indebtedness, liabilities, and
obligations of the USER or any other party.

The USER shall indemnify and hold the CITY harmless from, and defend the CITY against, any
and all losses, damages, claims, costs, penalties, liabilities, expenses arising out of or incurred
in any way because of, but nat limited to, the USER’S obligations or legal duties regarding any
taxes, fees, assessments, benefits, entittements, notice of benefits, employee’s eligibility to
work, to any third party, subcontractor, employee, state, local or federal governmental entity.

Neither the USER nor its employees, agents, or representatives shall be considered employees,
agents, or representatives of the CITY.

This Contract does not contemplate any transfer of property or ownership interest between the
Parties and the Parties will each maintain ownership of their own equipment and facilities.

14. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

14.1 Unless expressly waived in writing by the CITY, the USER must carry policies of
insurance in amounts specified and pay all taxes and fees incident hereunto. The CITY shall
have no liability except as specifically provided in this Contract.

14.2 The USER shall not use the FACILITY before the USER has provided the required
evidence of insurance to Carson City Purchasing and Contracts, and the CITY has approved the
insurance policies provided by the USER.

14.3 Prior approval of the insurance policies by the CITY shall be a condition precedent to any
use of the FACILITY under this Contract and the CITY's approval of any changes to insurance

Page 8 of 16



REGIONAL FIRE TRAINING FACILITY USE
CONTRACT No. 21300019 - Storey County Fire Protection District

coverage during the course of this Contract shall constitute an ongoing condition subsequent in
this Contract. Any failure of the CITY to timely approve shall not constitute a waiver of the
condition.

144 INSURANCE COVERAGE (14.5 through 14.29)

14.5 The USER shall, at the USER'S sole expense, procure, maintain and keep in force for
the duration of this Contract the following insurance conforming to the minimum requirements
specified below. Unless specifically specified herein or otherwise agreed to by the CITY, the
required insurance shall be in effect prior to the use of the FACILITY by the USER and shall
continue in force as appropriate until such time as the insurance is no longer required by the
CITY under the terms of this Contract.

14.6 Any insurance or self-insurance available to the CITY shall be in excess of and non-
contributing with any insurance required from the USER. The USER’S insurance policies shall
apply on a primary basis. Until such time as the insurance is no longer required by the CITY, the
USER shall provide the CITY with renewal or replacement evidence of insurance no less than
thirty (30) calendar days before the expiration or replacement of the required insurance. If at any
time during the period when insurance is required by this Contract, an insurer or surety shall fail
to comply with the requirements of this Contract, as soon as the USER has knowledge of any
such failure, the USER shall immediately notify the CITY and immediately replace such
insurance or bond with an insurer meeting the requirements.

14.7 GENERAL INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (14.8 through 14.29)

14.8 Certificate Holder: Each certificate shall list Carson City c/o Carson City Purchasing and
Contracts, 201 N. Carson Street Suite 3, Carson City, NV 89701 as a certificate holder.

14.9 Additional Insured: By endorsement to the commercial general liability insurance policy
evidenced by the USER, The City and County of Carson City, Nevada, its officers, employees
and immune contractors shall be named as additional insureds for all liability arising from this
Contract.

14.10 Waiver of Subrogation: Each liability insurance policy shall provide for a waiver of
subrogation in favor of the CITY.

14.11 Cross-Liability: All required liability policies shall provide cross-liability coverage as
would be achieved under the standard ISO separation of insureds clause.

14.12 Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions: Insurance maintained by the USER shall
apply on a first dollar basis without application of a deductible or self-insured retention unless
otherwise specifically agreed to by the CITY. Such approval shall not relieve the USER from the
obligation to pay any deductible or self-insured retention. Any deductible or self-insured retention
shall not exceed $5,000 per occurrence, unless otherwise approved by the CITY.

14.13 Policy Cancellation: Except for ten (10) calendar days notice for non-payment of
premium, the USER or its insurers must provide thirty (30) calendar days prior written notice to
Carson City Purchasing and Contracts, if any policy will be canceled, non-renewed or if coverage
and/or limits reduced or materially altered, and shall provide that notices required by this
paragraph shall be sent by certified mail to Carson City Purchasing and Contracts, 201 N.

Page 9 of 16



REGIONAL FIRE TRAINING FACILITY USE
CONTRACT No. 21300019 — Storey County Fire Protection District

Carson Street Suite 3, Carson City, NV 89701. When available, each insurance policy shall be
endorsed to provide thirty (30) days’ notice of cancellation, except for ten (10) days’ notice for
non-payment of premium, to the CITY.

14.14 Approved Insurer: Each insurance policy shall be issued by insurance companies
authorized to do business in the State of Nevada or eligible surplus lines insurers under federal
and Nevada Law, and having agents in Nevada upon whom service of process may be made,
and currently rated by A.M. Best as “A-VII" or better.

14.15 Evidence of Insurance: Prior to using the FACILITY, the USER must provide the
following documents to Carson City Purchasing and Contracts, 201 North Carson Street Suite
3, Carson City, NV 89701:

14.15.1 Certificate of Insurance: the USER shall furnish CITY with a certificate(s) of
insurance, executed by a duly authorized representative of each insurer,
showing compliance with the insurance requirements set forth herein The
Acord 25 Certificate of Insurance form or a form substantially similar must be
submitted to Carson City Purchasing and Contracts to evidence the insurance
policies and coverages required of the USER.

14.15.2 Additional Insured Endorsement: An Additional Insured Endorsement
(CG20 10 or C20 26), signed by an authorized insurance company
representative, must be submitted to Carson City Purchasing and Contracts to
evidence the endorsement of the CITY as an additional insured per Subsection
15.9.

14.15.3 Schedule of Underlying Insurance Policies: If Umbrella or Excess policy is
evidenced to comply with minimum limits, a copy of the Underlyer Schedule
from the Umbrella or Excess insurance policy may be required.

14.16 Review and Approval: Documents specified above must be submitted for review and
approval by Carson City Purchasing and Contracts prior to use of the FACILITY by the USER.
Neither approval by the CITY nor failure to disapprove the insurance furnished by the USER
shall relieve the USER of thc USER’S full responsibility to provide the insurance required by this
Contract. Compliance with the insurance requirements of this Contract shall not limit the liability
of the USER or its sub-contractors, employees or agents to the CITY or others, and shall be in
addition to and not in lieu of any other remedy available to the CITY under this Contract or
otherwise. The CITY reserves the right to request and review a copy of any required insurance
policy or endorsement to assure compliance with these requirements.

14.17 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE: (14.18 through 14.22)

14.18 Minlmum Limits: The USER shall maintain commercial general liability (CGL) and, il
necessary, commercial umbrella insurance with the following, required Minimum Limits:

14.18.1 Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) - General Aggregate

14.18.2 One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) - Each Occurrence
14.19 CGL insurance shall be written on ISO occurrence form CG 00 01 04 13 (or a substitute
Page 10 of 16



REGIONAL FIRE TRAINING FACILITY USE
CONTRACT No. 21300019 — Storey County Fire Protection District

form providing equivalent coverage) and shall cover liability arising from premises, operations, ,
personal injury, civil lawsuits, Title VII liability, and liability assumed under an insured contract
(including the tort liability of another assumed in a business contract).

14.20 This insurance shall apply as primary insurance with respect to any other insurance or
self-insurance programs afforded to CITY. There shall be no endorsement or modification of the
CGL to make it excess over other available insurance; alternatively, if the CGL states that it is
excess or pro rata, the policy shall be endorsed to be primary with respect to the additional
insured.

14.21 There shall be no endorsement or modification of the CGL limiting the scope of coverage
for liability assumed under a contract.

14.22 USER waives all rights against CITY and its agents, officers, directors and employees for
recovery of damages to the extent these damages are covered by the commercial general
liability or commercial umbrella liability insurance maintained pursuant to this Contract. Insurer
shall endorse CGL policy as required to waive subrogation against CITY with respect to any loss
paid under the policy.

14.23 BUSINESS AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY INSURANCE: (14.24 through 14.26)

14.24 Minimum Limits: The USER shall maintain automabile liability and, if necessary,
commercial umbrella liability insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 each accident for
bodily injury and property damage.

14.25 Coverage shall be for “any auto”, including owned, non-owned and hired vehicles. The
policy shall be written on ISO form CA 00 01, CA 00 05, CA 00 25, or a substitute form providing
equivalent liability coverage.

14.26 The USER waives all rights against CITY and its agents, officers, directors and
employees for recovery of damages to the extent these damages are covered by the automobile
liability or other liability insurance obtained by USER pursuant this Contract.

14.27 WORKERS’' COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYER’S LIABILITY INSURANCE: (14.28
through 14.29)

14.28 The USER shall provide proof of worker's compensation insurance as required by Nevada
Revised Statutes Chapters 616A through 617 inclusive and Employer's Liability insurance with
a minimum limit not less than $1,000,000 each accident for bodily injury by accident or
$1,000,000 each employee for bodily injury by disease.

14.29 The USER waives all rights against CITY and its agents, officers, directors, and
employees for recovery of damages to the extent these damages are covered by the workers’
compensation and employer's liability or commercial umbrella liability insurance obtained by
USER pursuant to this Contract. USER shall obtain an endorsement equivalent to WC 00 03 13
to affect this waiver.

15. PUBLIC RECORDS; CONFIDENTIALITY:

Page 11 of 16



REGIONAL FIRE TRAINING FACILITY USE
CONTRACT No. 21300019 - Storey County Fire Protection District

Pursuant to NRS 239.010, information or documents, including this Contract, may be open to
public inspection and copying. The Parties will have the duty to disclose, unless particular
information or documents are made confidential by law or a common law balancing of interest.
To the extent that information or documents are made confidential, the Parties shall keep such
information or documents confidential.

16. RECORDS; RETENTION:

The Parties agree to keep and maintain, under general accepted accounting principles, full, true
and complete records, agreements, books, and documents pertaining to this Contract, and at
the request of the other Party agree to present, at any reasonable time, such records,
agreements, books, and documents for inspection, examination, review, audit, and copying at
any office where such records, agreements, books, and documents are maintained. The Parties
further agree to, upon reasonable request of the other Party, provide any requested records,
agreements, books, and documents that may be necessary for the performance or renegotiation
of this Contract, or for any other reason pertaining to this Contract.

17. COMPLIANCE WITH LEGAL OBLIGATIONS:

The USER shall procure and maintain for the duration of this Contract any state, county, city, or
federal license, authorization, waiver, permit, qualification or certification required by statute,
ordinance, law, or regulation to be held by the USER to provide the goods or services of this
Contract. The USER will be responsible to pay all government obligations, including, but not
limited to, all taxes, assessments, fees, fines, judgments, premiums, permits, and licenses
required or imposed by law or a court. Real property and personal property taxes are the
responsibility of the USER in accordance with Nevada Revised Statutes 361.157 and 361.159.
The USER agrees io be responsibie for payment of any such governimeni obiigations not paid
by its subcontractors during performance of this Contract. The CITY may set-off against
consideration due any delinquent government obligation.

18. REMEDIES; WAIVER OF BREACH:

18.1 Except as otherwise provided for by law or this Contract, the rights and remedies of the
Parties shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by
law or equity, including, without limitation, actual damages, and to a prevalling Party reasonable
attorney’s fees and costs. The Parties agree that, in the event a lawsuit is filed and a Party is
awarded attorney's fees by the court, for any reason, the rate applied to recoverable attormey’s
fees shall not exceed the rate of $125 per hour. The contract liability of the Parties under this
Contract does not include punitive damages. Liquidated damages shall not apply unless
otherwise expressly provided for elsewhere in this Contract.

18.2 Failure to declare a breach or the actual waiver of any particular breach of this Contract
or its material or nonmaterial terms by either Party shall not operate as a waiver by such Party
of any of its rights or remedies as to any other breach.

19. SEVERABILITY:

If any provision contained in this Contract is held to be unenforceable by a court of law or equity,
this Contract shall be construed as if such provision did not exist and the nonenforceability of
Page 12 of 16




REGIONAL FIRE TRAINING FACILITY USE
CONTRACT No. 21300019 - Storey County Fire Protection District

such provision shall not be held to render any other provision or provisions of this Contract
unenforceable.

20. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION:

To the extent that any assignment of any right under this Contract changes the duty of either
Party, increases the burden or risk involved, impairs the chances of obtaining the performance
of this Contract, attempts to operate as a novation, or includes a waiver or abrogation of any
defense to payment by the CITY, such offending portion of the assignment shall be void, and
shall be a breach of this Contract. The USER shall neither assign, transfer nor delegate any
rights, obligations or duties under this Contract without the prior written approval of the CITY.

21. PROPER AUTHORITY:

The Parties hereto represent and warrant that the person executing this Contract on behalf of
each Party has full power and authority to enter into this Contract. The USER acknowledges that
this Contract is effective only after approval by Carson City Purchasing and Contracts and signed
by all Parties, and only for the period of time specified in this Contract. Any use of the FACILITY
by the USER before this Contract is effective or after it ceases to be effective are performed at
the sole risk of the USER.

22. GOVERNING LAW; JURISDICTION:

This Contract and the rights and obligations of the Parties hereto shall be governed by, and
construed according to, the laws of the State of Nevada, without giving effect to any principle of
conflict-of-law that would require the application of the law of any other jurisdiction. The USER
consents and agrees to the jurisdiction of the courts of the State of Nevada located in Carson
City, Nevada for enforcement of this Contract.

23. COUNTERPARTS:

This Contract may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which will be deemed an
original and all of which together will constitute one and the same instrument.

24. FORCE MAJEURE:

Neither Party shall be deemed to be in violation of this Contract if it is prevented from performing
any of its obligations hereunder due to strikes, failure of public transportation, civil or military
authority, act of public enemy, accidents, fires, explosions, or acts of God, including, without
limitation, earthquakes, floods, winds, or storms. In such an event the intervening cause must
not be through the fault of the Party asserting such an excuse, and the excused Party is obligated
to promptly perform in accordance with the terms of the Contract after the intervening cause
ceases.

25. NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARY:

None of the provisions of this Contract, express or implied, are intended or will be construed to
give the public; any member of the public; or any other person or entity the status of a third-
party beneficiary or any legal or equitable right, benefit, remedy, or claim of any nature under or
with respect to this Contract, or any provision of this Contract. The Parties intend that this

Page 13 of 16




REGIONAL FIRE TRAINING FACILITY USE
CONTRACT No. 21300019 — Storey County Fire Protection District

Contract and all of its provisions and conditions are for the sole and exclusive benefit of the
Parties to this Contract and their respective successors and assigns.

26. ENTIRE CONTRACT AND MODIFICATION:

This Contract and its integrated attachment(s) constitute the entire Contract of the Parties and
such are intended as a complete and exclusive statement of the promises, representations,
negotiations, discussions, and other Contracts that may have been made in connection with
the subject matter hereof. Unless an integrated attachment to this Contract specifically
displays a mutual intent to amend a particular part of this Contract, general conflicts in
language between any such attachment and this Contract shall be construed consistent with
the terms of this Contract. Unless otherwise expressly authorized by the terms of this Contract,
no modification or amendment to this Contract shall be binding upon the Parties unless the
same is in writing and signed by the respective Parties hereto and approved by Carson City
Purchasing and Contracts. Conflicts in language between this Contract and any other
agreement between the CITY and the USER on this same matter shall be construed consistent
with the terms of this Contract. The Parties agree that each has had their respective counsel
review this Contract which shall be construed as if it was jointly drafted.

Page 14 of 16



REGIONAL FIRE TRAINING FACILITY USE
CONTRACT No. 21300019 — Storey County Fire Protection District

CARSON CITY CITY'S LEGAL COUNSEL

Attn: Carol Akers, Purchasing and District Attorney

Contracts Administrator | have reviewed this Contract and approve
201 North Carson Street, Suite 2 as to its legal form.

Carson City, Nevada 89701
Telephone: 775-283-7362
Fax: 775-887-2286
cakers@carson.org

By: By:
Carol Akers Deputy District Attorney

DATED ; DATED

| hereby concur with the initiation of this Contract and | certify that the USER will not be
given authorization to use the FACILITY until this Contract has been signed by
Purchasing and Contracts.

CITY’S ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT
Carson City Fire Department

Sean Slamon, Fire Chief

777 S. Stewart Street

Carson City, NV 89701

Telephone: 775-887-2210 Ext. 7722
Fax: 775-887-2209
sslamon@carson.orq

By:

Sean Slamon, Fire Chief

DATED

Page 15 of 16



REGIONAL FIRE TRAINING FACILITY USE
CONTRACT No. 21300019 - Storey County Fire Protection District

Undersigned says: That he/she is the USER; that he/she has read the foregoing Contract; and
that he/she understands the terms, conditions, and requirements thereof.

| further understand that | must not use the FACILITY until this Contract has been
signed by Purchasing and Contracts.

USER

Storey County Fire Protection District
Jeremy Loncar, Fire Chief

P.O. Box 603

Virginia City, NV 89440
775-847-0954

Email: Jloncar@storeycounty.org

,,,,, A

(Signature of the User)

DATE:

Page 16 of 16



St_()rey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 7/20/2021 10:33 AM - Estimate of Time Required: 15 minutes
- BOCC Meeting \
Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

Title: Presentation, discussion and direction regarding suggested ClearGov financial
transparency addition to the County website not to exceed $8500.00

Recommended motion: I, (County Commissioner), motion to direct County staff to
proceed with implanting the financial transparency addition to the County’s website as
presented not to exceed $8500.00

Prepared by: Jennifer McCain
Department: Contact Number: 775-847-1133

Staff Summary: Storey County has always been open and transparent to our residence
and businesses; However, unless the viewer is somewhat financially savvy the online
budget and audit maybe hard to interpret. Deeper information is available upon request,
but that takes time.

When [ take into consideration that | have been charged with ensuring we spend the
taxpayer’s money responsibly I feel it is important that we offer this information is clear
and simple format for all our constituents to understand and view at their leisure.

In researching these types of sites, | found the spectrum of software offers the
information from a very simple and high-level format to one that is extremely involved
and complicated. Wanting something in the middle I think ClearGov hits all our marks
while being economical and within our budget. ClearGov is as “real time” as we choose
to make it. ClearGov is also expandable with a digital budget book and a capital
improvement module if we want to move in that direction in the future.

Presentation Website: ClearGov - https://cleargov.com/nevada/elko/county

Supporting Materials: See attached
Fiscal Impact: Yes
Legal review required: False

Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name:



a CLEARGOV

Service Order

2 Mill & Main; Suite 630; Maynard, MA 01754

Created by | Michael Lepore Order Date May 12, 2021
Contact Phone | 781-254-5044
Order valid if by
Contact Email | mlepore@cleargov.com e J un 1, 2021

Customer | Storey NV Contact | Jennifer McCain Billing Contact
Address | Storey County P.O. Box 176 Title | County Comptroller Title
City, St, Zip | Virginia City, NV 89440 Email | ymccain@storeycounty.org Email
Phone | 775-847-1006 PO # (If any)
Billing Date(s) Amount(s) Notes
Jul1,2021 $8,400.00 Setup Fee & Annual Subscription Fee

Additional subscription years and/or renewals will be billed annually in accordance with pricing and terms set forth herein.

and Deliverables

ClearGov according to
Period Start Date End Date Description
Setup Jul 1, 2021 Jul 1, 2021 ClearGov Setup Services
Initial Jul1, 2021 Jun 30, 2022 ClearGov Subscription Services
> fces Vi >Celve ang U ! or thc /iCe:
Set up Services Tier/Rate Service Fees
ClearGov Setup: Incdludes activation, onboarding and training for ClearGov solutions. Tier 2 $ 1,800.00
Total ClearGov Setup Service Fee - Billed ONE-TIME | $ 1,800.00
Subscription Services Tier Service Fees
ClearGov Transparency - Civic Edition Tier 2 $ 6,600.00
Total ClearGov Subscription Service Fee - Billed ANNUALLY IN ADVANCE| $ 6,600.00
Billing Terms and Conditions
Valid Until Jun 1, 2021 | Pricing set forth herein is valid only if ClearGov Service Order is executed on or before this date.
Payment Net 30 All invoices are due Net 30 days from the date of invoice.
Rate Increase | 3% per annum |After the Initial Service Period, the Annual Subscription Service Fee shall automatically increase by this amount.
. _ General Terms & Conditions
Custonsar Satiafaction During the first thirty (30) days of the Service, Customer shall have the option to terminate the Service, by providing written notice. In
Guarant the event that Customer exercises this customer satisfaction guarantee option, such termination shall become effective immediately
and Customer shall be eligible for a full refund of the applicable Service Fees.
Subject to Customer's approval, ClearGov will format, onboard and categorize Customer's revenue and expense data based on files
provided by Customer (the "Defiverables”). ClearGov will make commercially reasonable efforts to complete the onboarding process in
Financial Data Ont fing a timely fashion, provided that Customer submits the Deliverables and responds to review and approval requests by ClearGov in a

similarly timely fashion. Any delay by Customer in meeting these deliverable requirements may result in a delayed data onboarding
process. Any such delay shall not affect or change the Service Period(s) as set forth in this Service Order. Customer shall be solely
responsible for inputing applicable text narrative, custom graphics, performance metrics, capital requests and personnel data and other
such information for budget books, projects, dashboards, etc.

The Service Fees and Billing amounts set forth above in this ClearGov Service Order DO NOT include applicable taxes. In accordance
with the laws of the applicable state, in the event that sales, use or other taxes apply to this transaction, ClearGov shall include such

Yo taxes on applicable invoices and Customer is solely responsible for such taxes, unless documentation is provided to ClearGov
demonstrating Customer's exemption from such taxes.
Subject to the termination rights and obligations set forth in the ClearGov Service Agreement, this ClearGov Service Order commences
Term & Termination upon the Order Date set forth herein and shall continue until the completion of the Service Period(s) for the Service(s) set forth herein,

Each Service shall commence upon the Start Date set forth herein and shall continue until the completion of the applicable Service
Period.




Auto-Renewal annual periods (each an "Annual Term”), unless either Party provides written notice of its desire not to renew at least sixty (60) days

After the Initial Period, the Service Period for any ClearGov Annual Subscription Services shall automatically renew for successive

prior to the end of the then current Annual Term.

9 have read and agree to the terms and conditions set forth in the ClearGov Service Agreement found at the following URL: http://www.

This ClearGov Service Order shall become binding upon execution by both Parties. The signature herein affirms your commitment to
pay for the Service(s) ordered in accordance with the terms set forth in this ClearGov Service Order and also acknowledges that you

ClearGov.com/terms-and-conditions. This Service Order incorporates by reference the terms of such ClearGov Service Agreement.

T RS A S N . R ClearGov, Inc.

Signature Signature
Name | Jennifer McCain Name | Bryan A. Burdick
Title | County Comptroller Title | President

Please e-mail signed Service Order to Orders@ClearGov.com or Fax to (774) 759-3045




Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

" Meeting date: 7/20/2021 10:33 AM -  Estimate of Time Required: 15 min.
- BOCC Meeting

| Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Aclibn

Title: Consideration and possible action, accept donation to Storey County at no-cost
vacant land including surface rights only located at 347 South “G™ Street (Assessor
Parcel Number 001.134.02; Lot 5, Block 179, Range “G”, Virginia City, Nevada, filed

June 6, 1863, in the office of the Storey County Recorder), Virginia City, Storey County,

Nevada, and as further described in the enclosed exhibits.

Recommended motion: | (commissioner) accept donation to Storey County at no-cost
vacant land including surface rights only located at 347 South “G™ Street (Assessor
Parcel Number 001.134.02; Lot 5, Block 179, Range “G", Virginia City, Nevada, filed

June 6, 1965, in the office of the Storey County Recorder), Virginia City, Storey County,

Nevada, and as further described in the enclosed exhibits.
Prepared by: Austin Osborne
Department: Contact Number: 7758470968

Staff Summary: The subject parcel was offered to Storey County by its current owners
at no cost. The land will enable the county to better develop vehicle ingress and egress
along the “I Street road easement” serving the Virginia City Fairgrounds and F Street
corridor. The county will purchase title insurance on the parcel in an amount under
$1.000 and approximately $500. County Treasurer records show that taxes on the parcel
are current and nothing owed.

Supporting Materials: See attached
Fiscal Impact: none

Legal review required: TRUE

Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other Agency Review:

21



g( TICOR TITLE™

OF NEVADA, INC.

PRELIMINARY REPORT

Proposed Buyer: Storey County
Proposed Lender
Proposed Loan Amount: $0.00

Property Address: 347 S. G Street, Virginia City, NV 89440

Escrow Office: Title Office:

Ticor Title of Nevada, Inc. Ticor Title of Nevada, Inc.

307 W. Winnie Lane Suite #1 307 West Winnie Lane Suite 1

Carson City, NV 89703 Carson City, NV 89703

Phone: (775) 883-7513 Fax: (775) 887-5065 Phone: (775) 883-7513 Fax: (775) 887-5065
Escrow Officer: Dawn Cuellar

Customer No.: / Order No.: 02008890-DC1

The information contained in this report is through the date of
November 23, 2020 at 7:30 a.m.

In response to the application for a policy of title insurance referenced herein, Ticor Title of Nevada, Inc. hereby
reports that it is prepared to issue, or cause to be issued, as of the date hereof, a policy or policies of title insurance
describing the land and the estate or interest therein hereinafter set forth, insuring against loss which may be
sustained by reason of any defect, lien or encumbrance not shown or referred to as an exception herein or not
excluded from coverage pursuant to the printed Schedules, Conditions and Stipulations or Conditions of said policy
forms

The printed Exceptions and Exclusions from the coverage and Limitations on Covered Risks of said policy or policies
are set forth in Attachment One. The policy to be issued may contain an arbitration clause. When the Amount of
Insurance is less than that set forth in the arbitration clause, all arbitrable matters shall be arbitrated at the option of
either the Company or the Insured as the exclusive remedy of the parties. Limitations on Covered Risks applicable to
the CLTA and ALTA Homeowner's Policies of Title Insurance which establish a Deductible Amount and a Maximum
Dollar Limit of Liability for certain coverages are also set forth in Attachment One. Copies of the policy forms should
be read. They are available from the office which issued this report

This report (and any supplements or amendments hereto) is issued solely for the purpose of facilitating the issuance
of a policy of title insurance and no liability is assumed hereby. If it is desired that liability be assumed prior to the
issuance of a policy of title insurance, a Binder or Commitment should be requested.

The policy(s) of title insurance to be issued hereunder will be policy(s) of Chicago Title Insurance Company.

Please read the exceptions shown or referred to herein and the exceptions and exclusions set forth in
Attachment One of this report carefully. The exceptions and exclusions are meant to provide you with notice
of matters which are not covered under the terms of the title insurance policy and should be carefully
considered.

It is important to note that this preliminary report is not a written representation as to the condition of title
and may not list all liens, defects and encumbrances affecting title to the land.

Tammy May, Title Officer

1 Order No.: 02008890-DC1



THE FOLLOWING REQUIREMENTS MUST BE MET PRIOR TO CLOSE
OF ESCROW:

1. In order to complete this report, the Company requires a Statement of Information to be
completed by the following party(s),

Party(s): Paul Graham and Kiah Beverly-Graham

The Company reserves the right to add additional items or make further requirements after review
of the requested Statement of Information.

2. The Company requires that the spouse, if any, of the following named person join in any
conveyance or encumbrance that is the subject of this transaction:

Name: Paul Graham and Kiah Beverly-Graham

2 Order No.: 02008890-DC1



SCHEDULE A
The estate or interest in the land hereinafter described or referred to covered by this report is:
SURFACE RIGHTS ONLY
Title to said estate or interest at the date hereof is vested in:
Paul Graham and Kiah Beverly-Graham

The land referred to in this Report is situate in the State of Nevada, County of Storey and described as
follows:

SEE EXHIBIT "A” ATTACHED HERETO AND MADE A PART HEREOF.

3 Order No.: 02008890-DC1



SCHEDULE B - Section A

The following exceptions will appear in policies when providing standard coverage as outlined below:

0z

(a) Taxes or assessments that are not shown as existing liens by the records of any taxing
authority that levies taxes or assessments on real property or by the Public Records; (b)
proceedings by a public agency that may result in taxes or assessments, or notices of such
proceedings, whether or not shown by the records of such agency or by the Public Records.

Any facts, rights, interests, or claims that are not shown by the Public Records but that could be
ascertained by inspection of the Land or that may be asserted by persons in possession of the
Land.

Easements, liens or encumbrances, or claims thereof, not shown by the Public Records.

Any encroachment, encumbrance, violation, variation, or adverse circumstance affecting the Title
that would be disclosed by an accurate and complete land survey of the Land and not shown by
the Public Records.

(a) Unpatented mining claims; (b) reservations or exceptions in patents or in Acts authorizing the
issuance thereof, (c) water rights, claims or title to water, whether or not the matters excepted
under (a), (b) or (c) are shown by the Public Records.

Any lien or right to lien for services, labor or material not shown in the Public Records.

4 Order No.: 02008890-DC1



SCHEDULE B - Section B

At the date hereof Exceptions to coverage in addition to the printed exceptions to said policy form would
be as follows:

7.

10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

1.

The lien of supplemental taxes, if any, assessed pursuant to the provisions of Nevada Revised
Statutes.

Any liens levied by the Storey County Water System and the Virginia Divide Sewer District, by
reason that subject property is located within said district. (775) 847-0958

Rights of the public, county and/or city in that portion lying within the street as it now exists.
STREET NAME: H Street and G Street

Rights of any Mining Company, or its successors in interest, by reason of any mineral patent to
the subjacent property on which the herein described premises are situate, the rights of the
present owners of said premises being only surface rights.

Any overlaps, encroachments or conflicts in boundary lines with that of adjoining mines or
patented mining claims.

Any loss or damage as the result of contamination, explosion, fire, vibration, fracturing,
earthquake or subsidence or negligence by a person or an entity exercising a right to extract or
develop minerals or other subsurface substances..

Any adverse claim of the adjoining land owners, including owners of unpatented mining claims, in
and to any extralateral rights incidental to the ownership of the mining claims described herein.

Any overlaps, encroachments or conflicts in boundary lines with that of adjoining mines or
patented mining claims.

Any right, title, cause of Action, or claim of adverse Possessory interest in and to the rights
described herein, that may be asserted by the successor-in-interest to the Savage Mining
Company Mining Certificate No. 51 recorded February 4, 1870, in Book 31 at Page 127, Official
Records of Storey County, State of Nevada. The Possessory rights to the surface of the land
described herein have been relinquished by the Mining Certificate holder by document recorded
October 9, 2015 as Document No. 122983, Official Records of Storey County, State of Nevada.

The community interest of the spouse of the vestee named below.
Vestee: Paul Graham and Kiah Beverly-Graham

The Company will require that the spouse of the vestee shown above join in any conveyance or
encumbrance before such transaction will be insured.

The search did not disclose any open mortgages or deeds of trust of record, therefore the
Company reserves the right to require further evidence to confirm that the property is
unencumbered, and further reserves the right to make additional requirements or add additional
items or exceptions upon receipt of the requested evidence.

s Order No.: 02008890-DC1



INFORMATIONAL NOTES

Note: Due to the Nevada Supreme Court's interpretation of N.R.S. §116.3116 (2)(c) in SFR
Investments Pool 1, LLC v. U.S. Bank, N.A. 334 P. 3d 408 (2014), the Company is unwilling to
issue the ALTA 9-06 Endorsement, but instead will issue the ALTA 9.10-06 Endorsement. This
does not apply to common interest communities that are not subject to N.R.S. §116.3116 (i.e.
apartment complexes, commercial condominiums that are exempt or other commercial
properties).

Note: Please be aware that due to the conflict between federal and state laws concerning the
cultivation, distribution, manufacture or sale of marijuana, the Company is not able to close or
insure any transaction involving Land that is associated with these activities.

Property taxes for the fiscal year shown below are PAID. For proration purposes the amounts
are:

Assessor's Parcel No.. 001-134-02

Fiscal Year: 2020-2021

Total Taxes: $29.07

Note: The charge for a policy of title insurance, when issued through this title order, will be based
on the Basic Title Insurance Rate.

Note: There are NO conveyances affecting said Land recorded within 24 months of the date of
this report.

Note: The following information is provided strictly as an accommodation. According to the
Assessor, the address of the Land is as follows:

Type of Dwelling: Vacant Land
Address: 347 S. G Street, Virginia City, Nevada

6 Order No.: 02008890-DC1



Order No.: 02008890-DC1

EXHIBIT A

All that certain real property situate in the County of Storey, State of Nevada, described as
follows:

THE SURFACE RIGHTS ONLY IN AND TO THE FOLLOWING:

Lot 5 in Block 179, Range “G”, Virginia City, Nevada, filed June 6, 1865, in the office of the
County Recorder of Storey County, State of Nevada.

Excepting therefrom any right, title or claim of interest that may be asserted by the successor in
interest to the Savage Mining Company Mining Certificate # 51, recorded February 4, 1870 in
Book 31 of Deeds at Page 127, record of Storey County, Nevada. The possessory rights herein
being situate upon the surface of lands and property described within said Mining Certificate.

FURTHER EXCEPTING therefrom any portion of the herein described lands lying within the
existing public right-of-way for roads and appurtenances thereto.

RESERVING THEREFROM all mineral interests and rights lying below the surface of the above
described property without right of surface entry

APN: 001-134-02



Order No.: 02008890-DC1
EXHIBIT A

All that certain real property situate in the County of Storey, State of Nevada, described as follows:
THE SURFACE RIGHTS ONLY IN AND TO THE FOLLOWING:

Lot 5 in Block 179, Range “G", Virginia City, Nevada, filed June 6, 1865, in the office of the County
Recorder of Storey County, State of Nevada.

Excepting therefrom any right, title or claim of interest that may be asserted by the successor in interest to
the Savage Mining Company Mining Certificate # 51, recorded February 4, 1870 in Book 31 of Deeds at
Page 127, record of Storey County, Nevada. The possessory rights herein being situate upon the surface
of lands and property described within said Mining Certificate.

FURTHER EXCEPTING therefrom any portion of the herein described lands lying within the existing
public right-of-way for roads and appurtenances thereto.

RESERVING THEREFROM all mineral interests and rights lying below the surface of the above
described property without right of surface entry

APN: 001-134-02



® ® ®

A seyosniy ey

\\l | | b | [ |
Y XN STREET Iy
oo o N 3
537 N 60’
gaa \ ——————
I
Cg
9%y N7 -
a3 :
fed °
2
HE
e
o]
723
8% J
Hia )
g3z N
gzo
= !
§§§ N\
g N
J @
b 3
w
5 N
3 N
28 N
Z o \\
A
& N
2 N
a3
B \ R LA o |
; N 4 : =
\ - P —_— m R
: \\ iy g iy a “
H N n &
g > —=""
5
@©
60’

p1baiA

:l'ﬂ
EF
- X
. ‘ﬁﬁ
% .?--U’
Es
;IB

ALNNOD A3HOLS

£41D

£1-10

This map/plat is being furnished as an aid in locating the herein descnbed Land in relation to adjoining streets, natural boundaries and other land, and is
not a survey of the land depicted. Except to the extent a policy of title insurance is expressly modified by endorsement, if any, the Company does not
insure dimensions, distances, location of easements, acreage or other matters shown thereon.



ATTACHMENT ONE (Revised 05-06-16)

CALIFORNIA LAND TITLE ASSOCIATION
STANDARD COVERAGE POLICY - 1990

EXCLUSIONS FROM COVERAGE

The following matters are expressly excluded from the coverage of this policy and the Company will not pay loss or damage, costs,
attomeys' fees or expenses which arise by reason of:

1.

(a) Any law, ordinance or governmental regulation (including but not limited to building or zoning laws, ordinances, or
regulations) restricting, regulating, prohibiting or relating (i) the occupancy, use, or enjoyment of the land; (ii) the
character, dimensions or location of any improvement now or hereafter erected on the land; (iii) a separation in ownership
or a change in the dimensions or area of the land or any parcel of which the land is or was a part; or (iv) environmental
protection, or the effect of any violation of these laws, ordinances or governmental regulations, except to the extent that a
notice of the enforcement thereof or a notice of a defect, lien, or encumbrance resulting from a violation or alleged
violation affecting the land has been recorded in the public records at Date of Policy

(b) Any governmental police power not excluded by (a) above, except to the extent that a notice of the exercise thereof or
notice of a defect, lien or encumbrance resulting from a violation or alleged violation affecting the land has been recorded
in the public records at Date of Policy

Rights of eminent domain unless notice of the exercise thereof has been recorded in the public records at Date of Policy, but

not excluding from coverage any taking which has occurred prior to Date of Policy which would be binding on the rights of a

purchaser for value without knowledge.

Defects, liens, encumbrances, adverse claims or other matters.

(a) whether or not recorded in the public records at Date of Policy, but created, suffered, assumed or agreed to by the insured
claimant;

(b) not known to the Company, not recorded in the public records at Date of Policy, but known to the insured claimant and not
disclosed in writing to the Company by the insured claimant prior to the date the insured claimant became an insured
under this policy;

(c) resulting in no loss or damage to the insured claimant;

(d) attaching or created subsequent to Date of Policy; or

(e) resulting in loss or damage which would not have been sustained if the insured claimant had paid value for the insured
mortgage or for the estate or interest insured by this policy

Unenforceability of the lien of the insured mortgage because of the inability or failure of the insured at Date of Policy, or the

inability or failure of any subsequent owner of the indebtedness, to comply with the applicable doing business laws of the state

in which the land is situated.

Invalidity or unenforceability of the lien of the insured mortgage, or claim thereof, which arises out of the transaction evidenced

by the insured mortgage and is based upon usury or any consumer credit protection or truth in lending law.

Any claim, which arises out of the transaction vesting in the insured the estate of interest insured by this policy or the

transaction creating the interest of the insured lender, by reason of the operation of federal bankruptcy, state insolvency or

similar creditors’ rights laws

EXCEPTIONS FROM COVERAGE - SCHEDULE B, PART |

This policy does not insure against loss or damage (and the Company will not pay costs, attorneys’ fees or expenses) which arise by
reason of:

1

Taxes or assessments which are not shown as existing liens by the records of any taxing authority that levies taxes or
assessments on real property or by the public records

Proceedings by a public agency which may result in taxes or assessments, or notices of such proceedings, whether or not
shown by the records of such agency or by the public records

Any facts, rights, interests, or claims which are not shown by the public records but which could be ascertained by an
inspection of the land or which may be asserted by persons in possession thereof

Easements, liens or encumbrances, or claims thereof, not shown by the public records

Discrepancies, conflicts in boundary lines, shortage in area, encroachments, or any other facts which a correct survey would
disclose, and which are not shown by the public records

(a) Unpatented mining claims; (b) reservations or exceptions in patents or in Acts authorizing the issuance thereof; (c) water
rights, claims or title to water, whether or not the matters excepted under (a), (b) or (c) are shown by the public records

Any lien or right to a lien for services, labor or material not shown by the public records.

CLTA HOMEOWNER'S POLICY OF TITLE INSURANCE (12-02-13)
ALTA HOMEOWNER'S POLICY OF TITLE INSURANCE

EXCLUSIONS

In addition to the Exceptions in Schedule B, You are not insured against loss, costs, attorneys' fees, and expenses resulting from:

1

Governmental police power, and the existence or violation of those portions of any law or government regulation concerning:
a.  building;

b. zoning,

c. land use,

d. improvements on the Land,



e land division; and
f.  environmental protection.
This Exclusion does not limit the coverage described in Covered Risk 8.a., 14, 15, 16, 18, 19, 20, 23 or 27.
2. The failure of Your existing structures, or any part of them, to be constructed in accordance with applicable building codes. This
Exclusion does not limit the coverage described in Covered Risk 14 or 15.
3. Theright to take the Land by condemning it. This Exclusion does not limit the coverage described in Covered Risk 17.
4 Risks
a that are created, allowed, or agreed to by You, whether or not they are recorded in the Public Records,
b, that are Known to You at the Policy Date, but not to Us, unless they are recorded in the Public Records at the Policy Date,
c.  that result in no loss to You; or
d. that first occur after the Policy Date - this does not limit the coverage described in Covered Risk 7, 8 e, 25, 26, 27 or 28.
5. Failure to pay value for Your Title
6. Lack of a right:
a. to any land outside the area specifically described and referred to in paragraph 3 of Schedule A; and
b.  in streets, alleys, or waterways that touch the Land.
This Exclusion does not limit the coverage described in Covered Risk 11 or 21
7. The transfer of the Title to You is invalid as a preferential transfer or as a fraudulent transfer or conveyance under federal
bankruptcy, state insolvency, or similar creditors’ rights laws.
8. Contamination, explosion, fire, flooding, vibration, fracturing, earthquake, or subsidence.
9.  Negligence by a person or an Entity exercising a right to extract or develop minerals, water, or any other substances

LIMITATIONS ON COVERED RISKS

Your insurance for the following Covered Risks is limited on the Owner’s Coverage Statement as follows:
s For Covered Risk 16, 18, 19, and 21 Your Deductible Amount and Our Maximum Dollar Limit of Liability shown in
Schedule A.
The deductible amounts and maximum dollar limits shown on Schedule A are as follows:
Our Maximum Dollar

Your Deductible Amount Limit of Liability

Covered Risk 16: 1.00% of Policy Amount Shown in Schedule A or $2,500.00 $10,000.00
(whichever is less)

Covered Risk 18: 1.00% of Policy Amount Shown in Schedule A or $5,000.00 $25,000.00
(whichever is less)

Covered Risk 19: 1.00% of Policy Amount Shown in Schedule A or $5,000.00 $ 25,000.00
(whichever is less)

Covered Risk 21: 1.00% of Policy Amount Shown in Schedule A or $2,500.00 $ 5,000.00

(whichever is less)

2006 ALTA LOAN POLICY (06-17-06)
EXCLUSIONS FROM COVERAGE

The following matters are expressly excluded from the coverage of this policy, and the Company will not pay loss or damage, costs,
attorneys' fees, or expenses that arise by reason of:
1 (a) Any law, ordinance, permit, or governmental regulation (including those relating to building and zoning) restricting,
regulating, prohibiting, or relating to
(i) the occupancy, use, or enjoyment of the Land,
(i) the character, dimensions, or location of any improvement erected on the Land;
(iii) the subdivision of land; or
(iv) environmental protection;
or the effect of any violation of these laws, ordinances, or governmental regulations. This Exclusion 1(a) does not modify
or limit the coverage provided under Covered Risk 5.
(b) Any governmental police power. This Exclusion 1(b) does not modify or limit the coverage provided under Covered Risk 6.
2. Rights of eminent domain. This Exclusion does not modify or limit the coverage provided under Covered Risk 7 or 8
3 Defects, liens, encumbrances, adverse claims, or other matters
(a) created, suffered, assumed, or agreed to by the Insured Claimant;
(b) not Known to the Company, not recorded in the Public Records at Date of Policy, but Known to the Insured Claimant and
not disclosed in writing to the Company by the Insured Claimant prior to the date the Insured Claimant became an
Insured under this policy;
(c) resulting in no loss or damage to the Insured Claimant;
(d) attaching or created subsequent to Date of Policy (however, this does not modify or limit the coverage provided under
Covered Risk 11, 13 or 14); or
(e) resulting in loss or damage that would not have been sustained if the Insured Claimant had paid value for the Insured
Mortgage
4 Unenforceability of the lien of the Insured Mortgage because of the inability or failure of an Insured to comply with applicable
doing-business laws of the state where the Land is situated.
5. Invalidity or unenforceability in whole or in part of the lien of the Insured Mortgage that arises out of the transaction evidenced
by the Insured Mortgage and is based upon usury or any consumer credit protection or truth-in-lending law.
6. Any claim, by reason of the operation of federal bankruptcy, state insolvency, or similar creditors’ rights laws, that the
transaction creating the lien of the Insured Mortgage, is



(a) a fraudulent conveyance or fraudulent transfer, or
(b) a preferential transfer for any reason not stated in Covered Risk 13(b) of this policy.
7. Any lien on the Title for real estate taxes or assessments imposed by governmental authority and created or attaching between
Date of Policy and the date of recording of the Insured Mortgage in the Public Records. This Exclusion does not modify or limit
the coverage provided under Covered Risk 11(b).
The above policy form may be issued to afford either Standard Coverage or Extended Coverage. In addition to the above
Exclusions from Coverage, the Exceptions from Coverage in a Standard Coverage policy will also include the following Exceptions
from Coverage:

EXCEPTIONS FROM COVERAGE

{Except as provided in Schedule B - Part |1 { t{or T}his policy does not insure against loss or damage, and the Company will not pay
costs, attorneys’ fees or expenses, that arise by reason of:
{PART |

{The above policy form may be issued to afford either Standard Coverage or Extended Coverage. In addition to the above
Exclusions from Coverage, the Exceptions from Coverage in a Standard Coverage policy will also include the following Exceptions
from Coverage:

1 (a) Taxes or assessments that are not shown as existing liens by the records of any taxing authority that levies taxes or
assessments on real property or by the Public Records; (b) proceedings by a public agency that may result in taxes or
assessments, or notices of such proceedings, whether or not shown by the records of such agency or by the Public Records.

2. Any facts, rights, interests, or claims that are not shown by the Public Records but that could be ascertained by an inspection
of the Land or that may be asserted by persons in possession of the Land.

3. Easements, liens or encumbrances, or claims thereof, not shown by the Public Records.

4. Any encroachment, encumbrance, violation, variation, or adverse circumstance affecting the Title that would be disclosed by
an accurate and complete land survey of the Land and not shown by the Public Records.

5. (a) Unpatented mining claims; (b) reservations or exceptions in patents or in Acts authorizing the issuance thereof; (c) water
rights, claims or title to water, whether or not the matters excepted under (a), (b), or (c) are shown by the Public Records.

6. Any lien or right to a lien for services, labor or material not shown by the Public Records }

PART Il

In addition to the matters set forth in Part | of this Schedule, the Title is subject to the following matters, and the Company insures
against loss or damage sustained in the event that they are not subordinate to the lien of the Insured Mortgage:}

2006 ALTA OWNER'S POLICY (06-17-06)
EXCLUSIONS FROM COVERAGE

The following matters are expressly excluded from the coverage of this policy, and the Company will not pay loss or damage, costs,

attorneys' fees, or expenses that arise by reason of:

1 (a) Any law, ordinance, permit, or governmental regulation (including those relating to building and zoning) restricting,
regulating, prohibiting, or relating to
(i) the occupancy, use, or enjoyment of the Land,

(i) the character, dimensions, or location of any improvement erected on the Land,

(i) the subdivision of land; or

(iv) environmental protection;

or the effect of any violation of these laws, ordinances, or governmental regulations. This Exclusion 1(a) does not modify
or limit the coverage provided under Covered Risk 5

(b) Any governmental police power. This Exclusion 1(b) does not modify or limit the coverage provided under Covered Risk 6.

Rights of eminent domain. This Exclusion does not modify or limit the coverage provided under Covered Risk 7 or 8.

Defects, liens, encumbrances, adverse claims, or other matters

(a) created, suffered, assumed, or agreed to by the Insured Claimant;

(b) not Known to the Company, not recorded in the Public Records at Date of Policy, but Known to the Insured Claimant and
not disclosed in writing to the Company by the Insured Claimant prior to the date the Insured Claimant became an
Insured under this policy:

(c) resulting in no loss or damage to the Insured Claimant;

(d) attaching or created subsequent to Date of Policy (however, this does not modify or limit the coverage provided under
Covered Risk 9 and 10); or

(e) resulting in loss or damage that would not have been sustained if the Insured Claimant had paid value for the Title

4. Any claim, by reason of the operation of federal bankruptcy state insolvency, or similar creditors’ rights laws, that the
transaction vesting the Title as shown in Schedule A, is
(a) a fraudulent conveyance or fraudulent transfer; or
(b) a preferential transfer for any reason not stated in Covered Risk 9 of this policy

5. Any lien on the Title for real estate taxes or assessments imposed by governmental authority and created or attaching between
Date of Policy and the date of recording of the deed or other instrument of transfer in the Public Records that vests Title as
shown in Schedule A.

The above policy form may be issued to afford either Standard Coverage or Extended Coverage. In addition to the above

Exclusions from Coverage, the Exceptions from Coverage in a Standard Coverage policy will also include the following Exceptions

from Coverage:

wN



EXCEPTIONS FROM COVERAGE

This policy does not insure against loss or damage, and the Company will not pay costs, attorneys' fees or expenses, that arise by
reason of:

{The above policy form may be issued to afford either Standard Coverage or Extended Coverage. In addition to the above
Exclusions from Coverage, the Exceptions from Coverage in a Standard Coverage policy will also include the following Exceptions
from Coverage:

a7

(a) Taxes or assessments that are not shown as existing liens by the records of any taxing authority that levies taxes or
assessments on real property or by the Public Records; (b) proceedings by a public agency that may result in taxes or
assessments, or notices of such proceedings, whether or not shown by the records of such agency or by the Public Records.
Any facts, rights, interests, or claims that are not shown in the Public Records but that could be ascertained by an inspection of
the Land or that may be asserted by persons in possession of the Land.

Easements, liens or encumbrances, or claims thereof, not shown by the Public Records.

Any encroachment, encumbrance, violation, variation, or adverse circumstance affecting the Title that would be disclosed by
an accurate and complete land survey of the Land and that are not shown by the Public Records.

(a) Unpatented mining claims; (b) reservations or exceptions in patents or in Acts authorizing the issuance thereof; (c) water
rights, claims or title to water, whether or not the matters excepted under (a), (b), or (c) are shown by the Public Records.

Any lien or right to a lien for services, labor or material not shown by the Public Records. }

{Variable exceptions such as taxes, easements, CC&R's, etc. shown here .}

ALTA EXPANDED COVERAGE RESIDENTIAL LOAN POLICY - ASSESSMENTS PRIORITY (04-02-15)
EXCLUSIONS FROM COVERAGE

The following matters are expressly excluded from the coverage of this policy and the Company will not pay loss or damage, costs,
attomeys' fees or expenses which arise by reason of:

1.

10.

(a) Any law, ordinance, permit, or governmental regulation (including those relating to building and zoning) restricting,
regulating, prohibiting, or relating to
(i) the occupancy, use, or enjoyment of the Land,;

(i) the character, dimensions, or location of any improvement erected on the Land;

(iii) the subdivision of land; or

(iv) environmental protection;

or the effect of any violation of these laws, ordinances, or governmental regulations. This Exclusion 1(a) does not modify
or limit the coverage provided under Covered Risk 5, 6, 13(c), 13(d), 14 or 16.

(b) Any governmental police power. This Exclusion 1(b) does not modify or limit the coverage provided under Covered Risk 5,
6, 13(c), 13(d), 14 or 16.

Rights of eminent domain. This Exclusion does not modify or limit the coverage provided under Covered Risk 7 or 8.

Defects, liens, encumbrances, adverse claims, or other matters

(a) created, suffered, assumed, or agreed to by the Insured Claimant;

(b) not Known to the Company, not recorded in the Public Records at Date of Policy, but Known to the Insured Claimant and
not disclosed in writing to the Company by the Insured Claimant prior to the date the Insured Claimant became an
Insured under this policy;

(c) resulting in no loss or damage to the Insured Claimant;

(d) attaching or created subsequent to Date of Policy (however, this does not modify or limit the coverage provided under
Covered Risk 11,16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 27 or 28), or

(e) resulting in loss or damage that would not have been sustained if the Insured Claimant had paid value for the Insured
Mortgage.

Unenforceability of the lien of the Insured Mortgage because of the inability or failure of an Insured to comply with applicable

doing-business laws of the state where the Land is situated.

Invalidity or unenforceability in whole or in part of the lien of the Insured Mortgage that arises out of the transaction evidenced

by the Insured Mortgage and is based upon usury, or any consumer credit protection or truth-in-lending law. This Exclusion

does not modify or limit the coverage provided in Covered Risk 26.

Any claim of invalidity, unenforceability or lack of priority of the lien of the Insured Mortgage as to Advances or modifications

made after the Insured has Knowledge that the vestee shown in Schedule A is no longer the owner of the estate or interest

covered by this policy. This Exclusion does not modify or limit the coverage provided in Covered Risk 11

Any lien on the Title for real estate taxes or assessments imposed by governmental authority and created or attaching

subsequent to Date of Policy. This Exclusion does not modify or limit the coverage provided in Covered Risk 11(b) or 25.

The failure of the residential structure, or any portion of it, to have been constructed before, on or after Date of Policy in

accordance with applicable building codes. This Exclusion does not modify or limit the coverage provided in Covered Risk 5 or

6.

Any claim, by reason of the operation of federal bankruptcy, state insolvency, or similar creditors’ rights laws, that the

transaction creating the lien of the Insured Mortgage, is

(a) a fraudulent conveyance or fraudulent transfer, or

(b) a preferential transfer for any reason not stated in Covered Risk 27(b) of this policy.

Contamination, explosion, fire, flooding, vibration, fracturing, earthquake, or subsidence.

Negligence by a person or an Entity exercising a right to extract or develop minerals, water, or any other substances.



Note: Notice of Available Title Insurance and Escrow Discounts

Your transaction may qualify for one of the discounts shown below. In order to receive these discounts, you will need to
contact your escrow officer or a company representative to determine if you qualify and to request the discount. Your
escrow officer or company representative will provide a full description of the terms, conditions and requirements
associated with each discount.

Available Title Insurance Discounts (These discounts will apply to all transactions where the company is issuing
a policy of title insurance, including such transactions where the company is not providing escrow closing
services.

CREDIT FOR PRELIMINARY TITLE REPORTS AND/OR COMMITMENT CANCELLATION CHARGES ON
SUBSEQUENT POLICIES

Where an order was cancelled and no major change in the title has occurred since the issuance of the original report or
commitment, and the order is reopened within 24 - 36 months, all or a portion of the charge previously paid upon the
cancellation of the report or commitment may be credited on a subsequent policy charge.

SHORT TERM RATE

The Short Term Rate is a reduction of the applicable insurance rate which is allowable only when the current order is
placed within 60 months from the date of issuance of a prior policy of title insurance to the vested owner or an assignee of
the interest insured. The short term rate is 80% of the Basic Rate. Unless otherwise stated, the reduction only applies to
policies priced at 80% or greater of the basic rate. This reduction does not apply to Short Sale transactions or to any
surcharge calculated on the basic rate.

PRIOR POLICY DISCOUNT (APPLICABLE TO ZONE 2, DIRECT OPERATIONS ONLY)

The Prior Policy Discount will apply when a seller or borrower provides a copy of their owner’'s policy upon opening
escrow. The prior policy rate is 70% of the applicable owner’s title premium. This discount may not be used in combination
with any other discount and can only be used in transactions involving property located in Zone 2 (Zone 2 includes all
Nevada counties except Clark, Lincoln and Nye) that are handled by a direct operation of the FNF Family of Companies

CHURCHES OR CHARITABLE NON-PROFIT ORGANIZATIONS

On properties used as a church or for charitable purposes within the scope of the normal activities of such entities the
charge for a policy shall be 50% to 70% of the appropriate title insurance rate, depending on the type of coverage
selected. This discount shall not apply to charges for loan policies issued concurrently with an owner's policy.

EMPLOYEE RATE

No charge shall be made to employees of the Company, its subsidiary or affiliated companies (including employees on
approved retirement) for policies issued in connection with financing, refinancing, sale or purchase of the employee'’s
bonafide home property. Waiver of such charges is authorized only in connection with those costs which the employee
would be obligated to pay, by established custom, as a party to the transaction.

INVESTOR RATE

This rate is available for individuals, groups of individuals or entities customarily engaged in real estate investments. The
parties must provide reasonable proof that they currently hold title to or have transferred title to three (3) or more
investment properties in the State of Nevada within the past twelve (12) months to qualify for this rate. On a sale
transaction, the investor rate is 70% of the basic rate. This reduction does not apply to any surcharge calculated on the
basic rate. On a refinance transaction or where the investor is obtaining a loan subsequent to a purchase, the rate shall
be 85% of the applicable rate with a minimum charge of $385.00. The loan discount shall only apply to transactions priced
under Section 5.1 B (1b) of the title insurance rate manual. This rate is available upon request only.

Available Escrow Discounts These discounts will apply only to the escrow fee portion of your settlement
charges, and the discounts will apply only if the company is issuing a policy of title insurance in conjunction with
providing escrow services.

SENIOR CITIZEN RATE

If a valid identification is provided, principals to a given transaction who qualify as Senior Citizens (55 year of age and
over) shall be charged 75% of their portion of the escrow fee wherein a valid identification is provided. This discount shall
only apply on residential resale transactions wherein the principal resides in the subject property. This discount may not
be used in combination with any other escrow rate discount. This rate is available upon request only.

MILITARY DISCOUNT

Any person on active military duty or a Veteran of the U.S. Armed Forces shall be charged 75% of their portion of the
escrow fee. A copy of a current military identification card or a copy of the DD-214 (Certificate of Release or Discharge
from Active Duty) must be provided. This discount may not be used in combination with any other discount. This rate is for
sale transaction and it is available upon request only.




FIRST TIME HOMEBUYER RATE (APPLICABLE TO ZONE 2 ONLY)

A first time homebuyer of an owner-occupied residential property shall be charged 75% of their portion of the escrow fee,
provided reasonable evidence is presented that this is their first home. Applies to all counties except Clark, Lincoln and
Nye. This discount may not be used in combination with any other discount. This rate is for sale transactions and it is
available upon request only.

EMPLOYEE RATES

An employee will not be charged an escrow fee for the purchase, sale or refinance of the employee's primary residence.
The employee must be a principal to the transaction and the request for waiver of fees must be submitted to Management
prior to approval.

INVESTOR RATE

This rate is available for individuals, groups of individuals or entities customarily engaged in real estate transactions. The
parties must provide reasonable proof that they currently hold title to or have transferred title to three (3) or more
investment properties within the State of Nevada within the past twelve (12) months to qualify for this rate. The charge is
70% of their portion of the escrow fee. This discount may not be used in combination with any other discount. This rate is
for sale transactions and it is available upon request, only.

FIRST RESPONDER RATE

Any person in a given transaction who is a First Responder shall be charged 75% of their portion of the escrow fee,
wherein the principle provides a signed statement that indicates he or she is currently employed as one of the following
emergency professionals:

« Firefighter

e« Law enforcement officer who is sworn to uphold and make arrests for violations of federal, state, county or
municipal laws

e« EMT

e Paramedic

e Search & Rescue team member

This discount shall only be applicable on residential resale transactions wherein the principal resides in, or plans to reside
in, the subject property. This discount may not be used with any other discount and is available upon request only.



“ANIRE SAFE.  rasoveoreauure

Wire Fraud Alert

This Notice is not intended to provide legal or professional advice. If you have any questions, please consult with a lawyer

All parties to a real estate transaction are targets for wire fraud and many have lost hundreds of thousands of dollars
because they simply relied on the wire instructions received via email, without further verification. If funds are to be
wired in conjunction with this real estate transaction, we strongly recommend verbal verification of wire
instructions through a known, trusted phone number prior to sending funds.

In addition, the following non-exclusive self-protection strategies are recommended to minimize exposure to possible wire
fraud.

« NEVER RELY on emails purporting to change wire instructions. Parties to a transaction rarely change wire
instructions in the course of a transaction.

e ALWAYS VERIFY wire instructions, specifically the ABA routing number and account number, by calling the party
who sent the instructions to you. DO NOT use the phone number provided in the email containing the instructions,
use phone numbers you have called before or can otherwise verify. Obtain the phone number of relevant
parties to the transaction as soon as an escrow account is opened. DO NOT send an email to verify as the
email address may be incorrect or the email may be intercepted by the fraudster.

e USE COMPLEX EMAIL PASSWORDS that employ a combination of mixed case, numbers, and symbols. Make
your passwords greater than eight (8) characters. Also, change your password often and do NOT reuse the same
password for other online accounts.

e USE MULTI-FACTOR AUTHENTICATION for email accounts. Your email provider or |IT staff may have specific
instructions on how to implement this feature.

For more information on wire-fraud scams or to report an incident, please refer to the following links:

Federal Bureau of Investigation: Internet Crime Complaint Center:
http://www.fbi.gov http://www.ic3.qov
Wire Fraud Alert Page 1
Original Effective Date: 5/11/2017
Current Version Date: 5/11/2017 WIREQ016 (DSI Rev. 12/07/17)

TM and © Fidelity National Financial, inc. and/or an affiliate. All ights reserved



FIDELITY NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC.
PRIVACY NOTICE

Effective January 1, 2020

Fidelity National Financial, Inc. and its majority-owned subsidiary companies (collectively, “FNF " “our,” or “we") respect and are
committed to protecting your privacy. This Privacy Notice explains how we collect, use, and protect personal information, when and to
whom we disclose such information, and the choices you have about the use and disclosure of that information.

A limited number of FNF subsidiaries have their own privacy notices. If a subsidiary has its own privacy notice, the privacy notice will
be available on the subsidiary’s website and this Privacy Notice does not apply.

Collection of Personal Information

FNF may collect the following categories of Personal Information:

« contact information (e.g., name, address, phone number, email address),

demographic information (e.g., date of birth, gender, marital status),

identity information (e.g. Social Security Number, driver's license, passport, or other government ID number),
financial account information (e.g. loan or bank account information); and

other personal information necessary to provide products or services to you.

We may collect Personal Information about you from:

« information we receive from you or your agent,

« information about your transactions with FNF, our affiliates, or others; and

« information we receive from consumer reporting agencies and/or governmental entities, either directly from these entities or through
others

Collection of Browsing Information
FNF automatically collects the following types of Browsing Information when you access an FNF website, online service, or application

(each an “FNF Website") from your Internet browser, computer, and/or device:

« Internet Protocol (IP) address and operating system;

« browser version, language, and type;

« domain name system requests; and

« browsing history on the FNF Website, such as date and time of your visit to the FNF Website and visits to the pages within the FNF
Website.

Like most websites, our servers automatically log each visitor to the FNF Website and may collect the Browsing Information described
above. We use Browsing Information for system administration, troubleshooting, fraud investigation, and to improve our websites.
Browsing Information generally does not reveal anything personal about you, though if you have created a user account for an FNF
Website and are logged into that account, the FNF Website may be able to link certain browsing activity to your user account

Other Online Specifics

Cookies When you visit an FNF Website, a “cookie” may be sent to your computer. A cookie is a small piece of data that is sent to your
Internet browser from a web server and stored on your computer's hard drive. Information gathered using cookies helps us improve
your user experience. For example, a cookie can help the website load properly or can customize the display page based on your
browser type and user preferences. You can choose whether or not to accept cookies by changing your Internet browser settings. Be
aware that doing so may impair or limit some functionality of the FNF Website.

Web Beacons We use web beacons to determine when and how many times a page has been viewed. This information is used to
improve our websites.

Do Not Track Currently our FNF Websites do not respond to “Do Not Track” features enabled through your browser

Links to Other Sites. FNF Websites may contain links to unaffiliated third-party websites. FNF is not responsible for the privacy
practices or content of those websites. We recommend that you read the privacy policy of every website you visit.

Use of Personal Information

FNF uses Personal Information for three main purposes:

« To provide products and services to you or in connection with a transaction involving you

« To improve our products and services.

« To communicate with you about our, our affiliates', and others’ products and services, jointly or independently

When Information Is Disclosed

We may disclose your Personal Information and Browsing Information in the following circumstances:

» to enable us to detect or prevent criminal activity, fraud, material misrepresentation, or nondisclosure;

« to nonaffiliated service providers who provide or perform services or functions on our behalf and who agree to use the information only
to provide such services or functions;

« to nonaffiliated third party service providers with whom we perform joint marketing, pursuant to an agreement with them to jointly
market financial products or services to you,

FNF Privacy Statement (Eff. 1/1/2020) Copyright © 2020. Fidelity National Financial, Inc. All Rights Reserved

MISC0219 (DSI Rev. 1/2/20) Page 1 Order No. 02008890-010-DC1-TM




« to law enforcement or authorities in connection with an investigation, or in response to a subpoena or court order, or
« in the good-faith belief that such disclosure is necessary to comply with legal process or applicable laws, or to protect the rights,
property, or safety of FNF, its customers, or the public.

The law does not require your prior authorization and does not allow you to restrict the disclosures described above. Additionally, we
may disclose your information to third parties for whom you have given us authorization or consent to make such disclosure. We do not
otherwise share your Personal Information or Browsing Information with nonaffiliated third parties, except as required or permitted by
law. We do share Personal Information among affiliates (other companies owned by FNF) to directly market to you. Please see
“Choices with Your Information” to learn how to restrict that sharing

We reserve the right to transfer your Personal Information, Browsing Information, and any other information, in connection with the sale
or other disposition of all or part of the FNF business and/or assets, or in the event of bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency,
receivership, or an assignment for the benefit of creditors. By submitting Personal Information and/or Browsing Information to FNF, you
expressly agree and consent to the use and/or transfer of the foregoing information in connection with any of the above described
proceedings.

Security of Your Information
We maintain physical, electronic, and procedural safeguards to protect your Personal Information.

Choices With Your Information

If you do not want FNF to share your information among our affiliates to directly market to you, you may send an “opt out” request by
email, phone, or physical mail as directed at the end of this Privacy Notice. We do not share your Personal Information with nonaffiliates
for their use to direct market to you.

Whether you submit Personal Information or Browsing Information to FNF is entirely up to you. If you decide not to submit Personal
Information or Browsing Information, FNF may not be able to provide certain services or products to you.

For California Residents: We will not share your Personal Information or Browsing Information with nonaffiliated third parties, except as
permitted by California law. For additional information about your California privacy rights, please visit the “California Privacy” link on
our website (https.//fnf com/pages/californiaprivacy aspx) or call (888) 413-1748.

For Nevada Residents: You may be placed on our internal Do Not Call List by calling (888) 934-3354 or by contacting us via the
information set forth at the end of this Privacy Notice. Nevada law requires that we also provide you with the following contact
information: Bureau of Consumer Protection, Office of the Nevada Attorney General, 555 E. Washington St., Suite 3900, Las Vegas,
NV 89101, Phone number: (702) 486-3132, email: BCPINFO@ag state.nv.us

For Oregon Residents: We will not share your Personal Information or Browsing Information with nonaffiliated third parties for
marketing purposes, except after you have been informed by us of such sharing and had an opportunity to indicate that you do not want
a disclosure made for marketing purposes

For Vermont Residents: We will not disclose information about your creditworthiness to our affiliates and will not disclose your personal
information, financial information, credit report, or health information to nonaffiliated third parties to market to you, other than as
permitted by Vermont law, unless you authorize us to make those disclosures

Information From Children
The FNF Websites are not intended or designed to attract persons under the age of eighteen (18)We do not collect Personal
Information from any person that we know to be under the age of thirteen (13) without permission from a parent or guardian.

International Users

FNF's headguarters is located within the United States. If you reside outside the United States and choose to provide Personal
Information or Browsing Information to us, please note that we may transfer that information outside of your country of residence. By
providing FNF with your Personal Information and/or Browsing Information, you consent to our collection, transfer, and use of such
information in accordance with this Privacy Notice.

FNF Website Services for Mortgage Loans

Certain FNF companies provide services to mortgage loan servicers, including hosting websites that collect customer information on
behalf of mortgage loan servicers (the “Service Websites”). The Service Websites may contain links to both this Privacy Notice and the
mortgage loan servicer or lender's privacy notice. The sections of this Privacy Notice titled When Information is Disclosed, Choices with
Your Information, and Accessing and Correcting Information do not apply to the Service Websites. The mortgage loan servicer or
lender's privacy notice governs use, disclosure, and access to your Personal Information. FNF does not share Personal Information
collected through the Service Websites, except as required or authorized by contract with the mortgage loan servicer or lender, or as
required by law or in the good-faith belief that such disclosure is necessary: to comply with a legal process or applicable law, to enforce
this Privacy Notice, or to protect the rights, property, or safety of FNF or the public.

Your Consent To This Privacy Notice; Notice Changes; Use of Comments or Feedback

By submitting Personal Information and/or Browsing Information to FNF, you consent to the collection and use of the information in
accordance with this Privacy Notice. We may change this Privacy Notice at any time. The Privacy Notice's effective date will show the
last date changes were made. If you provide information to us following any change of the Privacy Notice, that signifies your assent to
and acceptance of the changes to the Privacy Notice. We may use comments or feedback that you submit to us in any manner without
notice or compensation to you.

FNF Privacy Statement (Eff. 1/1/2020) Copyright © 2020. Fidelity National Financial, Inc. All Rights Reserved
MISC0219 (DSI Rev. 1/2/20) Page 2 Order No. 02008890-010-DC1-TM




Accessing and Correcting Information; Contact Us
If you have questions, would like to correct your Personal Information, or want to opt-out of information sharing for affiliate marketing,
send your requests to privacy « fnf.com, by phone to (888) 934-3354, or by mail to:

Fidelity National Financial, Inc.
601 Riverside Avenue
Jacksonville, Florida 32204
Attn: Chief Privacy Officer

FNF Privacy Statement (Eff. 1/1/2020) Copyright © 2020. Fidelity National Financial, Inc. All Rights Reserved
MISC0219 (DSI Rev. 1/2/20) Page 3 Order No. 02008890-010-DC1-TM



Estimated location of the subject parcel.




Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

" Meeting date: 7/20/2021 10:33 AM - " Estimate of Time Required: 15 minutes
- BOCC Meeting _ 1
Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

Title: Consideration and possible action to approve and authorize the County Manager to
sign an 18-month contract between Storey County and Lakota HRM, LLC a Nevada
limited liability company to provide labor relations guidance and administration, interpret
and guide application of labor agreements and personnel policies; perform and oversee
administrative investigations; and ensure due process and discipline are administered in
compliance with union agreements and personnel policies.

Recommended motion: [, Commissioner () motion to authorize the County Manager
to sign an 18-month contract between Storey County and Lakota HRM, LLC, a Nevada
limited liability company to provide labor relations guidance and administration; interpret
and guide application of labor agreements and personnel policies; perform and oversee
administrative investigations; and ensure due process and discipline are administered in
compliance with union agreements and personnel policies.

Prepared by: Tobi Whitten (on behalf of Austin Osborne)

Department: Contact Number: 7758470968

Staff Summary: Lakota HRM, LLC is an LLC created by Jeanne Greene who has
extensive experience in Human Resources. Ms. Greene served as the Director of
Personnel for the State of Nevada under two Governors and was the General Manager of
HR Services for POOL/PACT, our liability and workers’ compensation carrier.
Additionally, she has been working with Storey County under a previous contract, which
is set to expire in August 2021, since February 2020. She has been able to dedicate her
time and resources to the services outlined in the contract, ensuring compliance with
timeframes, federal and state law, union agreements, personnel policies, and other
applicable requirements. She is able to assume non-legal duties previously performed by
contract legal counsel, which has resulted in substantial financial savings.

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact:

Legal review required: TRUE

A



* Reviewed by:

___ Department Head

County Manager

« Board Action:

Department Name:

Other Agency Review:

[ ] Approved

[ ] Approved with Modification

| ] Denied

[ ] Continued




Storey County Business Licensing
P O Box 526
Virginia City NV 89440

LAKOTA HRM, LLC

GREENE, JEANNE

1611 SONOMA ST Located: 1611 SONOMA ST
CARSON CITY NV 89701 CARSON CITY

Issue Date: 6/08/21 Class OC License #: 22-9940

LAKOTA HRM, LLC, having paid the required Storey County business license fee(s) in
the amount of $ 75.00 is hereby granted permission to transact business under this
OUT-OF-COUNTY license for the period 7/01/21 through 6/30/22 in conformance with
and subject to the County Commissioners of Storey County, Nevada.

Conditions:

Jennifer MeCain = Storey County Compuroller Martin I.. Azevedo = Community Development Director
Fire Marshall

Please Post in Conspicuous Place

Account: # 019527
“* NON-TRANSFERABLE *°

(775) 847-0966 ~ Fax (775) 847-0935 ~ buslic@storeycounty.org




O

%F

GECRETARY OF 747

NEVADA STATE BUSINESS LICENSE
Lakota HRM. LLC

Nevada Business Identification # NV20191662196
Expiration Date: 12/31/2021

In accordance with Title 7 of Nevada Revised Statutes, pursuant to proper application duly filed and
payment of appropriate prescribed fees, the above named is hereby granted a Nevada State Business
License for business activities conducted within the State of Nevada.

Valid until the expiration date listed unless suspended, revoked or cancelled in accordance with the
provisions in Nevada Revised Statutes. License is not transferable and is not in lieu of any local business

license, permit or registration,

License must be cancelled on or before its expiration date if business activity ceases. Failure to do
so will result in late fees or penalties which, by law, cannot be waived.

Certificate Number: B202012041257436
You may verify this certificate

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my
hand and affixed the Great Seal of State, at my
office on 12/04/2020.

MMK.CZ.M,

BARBARA K. CEGAVSKE

\jn[ine at hup://www msos gov

Secretary of State
f’é




Sto;éy County Board of County

- Commissioners
‘ Agenda Action Report

' Meelingidrate: 7/20/2021 10:33 AM - " Estimate of Time Required: 15 min.
BOCC Meeting

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

Title: Update, discussion, and provide direction to county staff and lobbyists regarding
SCR 11 (formerly BDR 1109 and 1148) interim legislative committee to study
Innovation Zone draft legislation, and other properly related matters.

Recommended motion: [ [county commissioner] motion to direct county staff, lobbyists,
and professional services to consider appropriate research, analyses, and action on SCR
11 (Innovation Zone interim study) which will best protect and represent the county; to
continue opposing separatist government concepts; and to promote economic and land
development through existing legal framework and the 2016 Master Plan of Storey
County.

Prepared by: Austin Osborne

Department: Contact Number: 7758470968

Staff Summary: County staff have reached out to the Blockchains group with the
appropriate Storey County codes and processes for submitting a Planned Unit
Development application in accordance with the 2016 Storey County Master Plan, and
which would require a public meeting with the board and planning commission. We are
waiting to hear back.

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact: none

Legal review required: TRUE

Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other Agency Review:

Board Action:

KR



STOREY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS® OFFICE

Storey Counry Cowthouse

26 Sonth "B Street Tetv Canrmona, Chair

X ; hall 17 y
P O.Box 176 Virginia Citv. Nevada 894 10 Cleny Mirchell, Viee-Chai
Phone. 775 8470968 - Fax® 775 847 (0949 Lemee Gilvpanr, Conmuissiones

COMNNSSIANersicd sToreveonimn areg

April 6, 2021

Honorable Governor Steve Sisolak
State Capitol Building

101 N. Carson Street

Carson City, NV 89701

Re:  Storey County’s Position on Innovation Zone bill draft as of 04/06/21

Governor Sisolak:

The Board of Storey County Commissioners on March 2 and 16, and April 6, 2021, directed county staft and
lobbyists to take certain positions on BDR 1109-related draft legislation providing for the creation of Innovation
Zones. Storey County opposes the Innovation Zone bill as presented thus far; however, the board finds merit in
certain elements of the bill including expanding technology uses across the county and developing a mixed-use
residential community at Painted Rock. The following summarize the board’s directives and provides further
explanation on the county’s position on the matter,

1. Technology Support and work with legislature and applicable elected officials to explore Blockchain,
cryptocurrency, stable-coin, and other such technological advances and currency.

Storey County is Nevada’s forerunner in embracing and utilizing new technologies, and the board
finds that new digital platforms such as stable-coin and Blockchain to be the potential digital capital
of the future. We will seek guidance from the Nevada Department of Taxation; county recorders,
clerks, and treasurers; and other such agencies and associations to evaluate the viability of these
technologies and devclop appropriate framework for their implementation.

!‘d

Residential “Smart City” — Continue to support 2016 Storey County Master Plan as applicable to neo-
traditional and new-urbanistic design as proposed by Blockchains® “Smart-City".

The Storey County Master Plan supports large-scale residential development at Painted Rock. A
mixed-use community integrating commercial, residential, and live-work use patterns is preferred
over suburban sprawl. Graphic renditions by Blockchains, LLC and R&R Partners illustrating high-
rise buildings clad in stainless-steel and glass, situated within clustered high-density nodes, and
supported by multi-modal transit and “smart” infrastructure are aligned with the goals and objectives
of the plan for this area.

Storey County to-date has received no development application from Blockchains or its affiliates for
the Painted Rock arca. We engaged with representatives of Blockchains about the draft bill and stated
that an application for a mixed-use development may be submitted for consideration in accordance
with Title 16 Subdivisions, Title 17 Zoning, the master plan, and other local and state statutes. The
representatives were reminded that a master plan amendment is not required, and they were also
reminded that a mixed-use residential development application by another developer at Painted Rock
was approved by the board with action by the planning commission in 2006,

3. Separate Local Government — Oppose separatist governing control and carving up Storey County.

Carving out a separate government within Storey County is not necessary for the advancement of
technology, innovative industries, or residential “smart city” development. Storey County has for 20
years been Nevada's leader in attracting, permitting, and supporting technology, manufacturing, and
energy sectors, and transforming northern Nevada from dependence on gaming to the diversified
economic powerhouse it is today.

Tesla, Panasonic, Switch, Google, Fulerum Bioenergy, and nearly 20 million square-feet of other
companies made Storey County their home because of fast and simple permitting, easy access to
Page | of 2



elected and appointed officials, and a dedicated team capable of finding innovative ways to overcome
economic, social, environmental, and geographic obstacles. The proponents of the Innovation Zone
envision a “sandbox” in which inventive minds are free to develop advanced technologies through
expression and experimentation. We respond that this vision dovetails seamlessly into our current
master plan, zoning allowances, development agreements, and proven business-friendly culture.

Storey County’s master plan, zoning designations, and ordinancces facilitatc a wide range of land uses.
Diverse zoning encourages residential and community development, while also providing for
revenue-generating commercial and industrial uses that offset costs of providing services to the
county’s residents and businesses. The draft legislation stripping Storey County of roughly one-third
of its land, much of which is commercial and industrial designated, will result in persistent fiscal
instability potentially causing its inability to provide public safety protections, social services, and
other core functions to current and future residents and businesses.

Storey County has been a proven leader in the state in economic development. Removing the county
from the proven calculus it formulated may cause adverse economic, social, and environmental
impacts to the county and region, and, morcover, may cause the same for the proposals identified the
draft bill. We will continue exploring ways in which objectives for residential and tech development
in the draft legislation may be achieved within existing local and state regulatory framework.

4. Planning & Development — Reach out to Governor, Blockchains, and others for meaningful and authentic
good-faith discussion to coordinate planning and oversight within existing governing framework.

Conversations about the proposed legislation must consider state and local regulations, and binding
agreements in-place in Storey County such as the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center (TRI-Center)
development agreement, TRI-Center infrastructure payback agreement, the TRI General
Improvement District regulations and responsibilities, the inter-county effluent water line Tax
Increment Arca agreement, economic development and diversification districts for technology and
manufacturing sector abatements, court degrees, utility and other easements and rights-of-ways, and
government services agreements. These obstacles to Innovation Zone legislation have been shared
with Blockchains representatives, and there remains unanswered questions as to how the proposed
legislation will function properly within these frameworks.

5. Progress — Periodically update the Storey County Board of County Commissioners on the status of
Innovative Zone BDR and bill, to and seek amended direction as conditions change and are known.

We will periodically update the board on research findings into the Innovation Zone matters and seek
direction as conditions change and more is known about the draft bill.

We respectfully request a meeting with you and your team to openly discuss the Innovation Zone bill. We look
forward to being part of a conversation about the potential benelits in the draft bill, and ways to overcome
challenging aspects of the proposed legislation within existing fiscal, economic, environmental, and land use
regulatory structures.

Rcspccllhlly)‘ub

miu’cdd_.’__’,_/ -

Austin Oskefne
Storey County Manager

Enc: Storey County Master Plan - https://www.storeycounty.org/292/Master-Plan

Cc.:  Storey County Commissioners
Storey County District Attorney
Storey County [obbyists
Governor’s Office of Economic Development (GOED)
Nevada Association of Counties (NACO)

Page 2 of 2



Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 7/20/2021 10:33 AM - ' Estimate of Time Required: 30 minutes
- BOCC Meeting
Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

+ Title: Annual review and evaluation of the performance of Austin Osborne, County
Manager for the time period of July I, 2020 through June 30, 2021. The Board may,
without further notice, take administrative action against Austin Osborne, County
Manager, if the Board determines that such administrative action is warranted after
considering the character, alleged misconduct, professional competence, or physical or
mental health of Mr. Osborne. At the end of the annual performance evaluation, the
Board may modify existing goals and objectives of the County Manager’s job: determine
whether or not to provide a merit increase, bonus, or other compensation adjustment; take
adverse administrative action up to and including termination; or any other such action
deemed warranted by the Board.

» Recommended motion: Take action as the Board deems appropriate.

* Prepared by: Tobi Whitten
Department: Contact Number: 7758470968

+ Staff Summary: In the Board’s deliberations, the character, competence, and
performance of the County Manager may be discussed and the Board may consider the
job description, job duties, and other matters connected to this agenda item. The County
Manager may be present at the meeting and may present evidence relating to his
character, alleged misconduct, professional competence, or physical or mental health. At
the end of the annual performance evaluation, the Board may modify existing goals and
objectives of the County Manager’s job; determine whether or not to provide a merit
increase, bonus, or other compensation adjustment; take adverse administrative action up
to and including termination; or any other such action deemed warranted by the Board.

« Supporting Materials: See attached

* Fiscal Impact: Unknown

* Legal review required: TRUE

* Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name:

24



County Manager

Board Action:

Other Agency Review:

[ ] Approved

[ ] Approved with Modification

[ ] Denied

| ] Continued




County Manager Annual Evaluation Form County Commissioner’s Evaluation
Evaluation Period: Evaluator:

County Commissioner’s
Annual Evaluation of the
Storey County Manager

Date of Evaluation:

County Manager Being Evaluated:

Evaluator:

Evaluation Period - From: To: (month/day/year)

A. County Manager job description essential function elements:

Develops goals and objectives e Resolves issues and complaints
Motivates staff Assist the board

Fosters team management Fosters team management
Administrates policies Oversees the budget

Advises appropriate policies Serves as a public information officer

Administers contracts Investigates
Evaluates staff Legislative representative
Administers the budget Lobbyist

Promotes economic development Responds to emergencies

B. Primary elements of the County Manager’s duties being evaluated in accordance
with job description:

Economic Development
Personal Character
Emergency Management
Code of Ethics ICMA

Leadership

Organizational Management
Financial Management

Human Resources Development
Public Service

C. Rating scale for each evaluation element. For each category, check which most
closely applies. The commissioners should discuss each element collaboratively and
individually decide what rating to assign for that element. The commissioners should also
review and consider the ratings in the County Manager’s self-evaluation.

Distinguished: The County Manager is so successful at this job criterion that
special note should be made. This performance rank is in the top 10 percent.
Excellent: Performance at this level is one of better performance in the
organization, given the common standards and results. This is better than average
performance.

Satisfactory: Performance is at or above minimum standards. This level of
performance is what one would expect from the most experience and competent
manager.

Needs Improvement: Performance is somewhat below what would be expected
of an experienced and competent manager. However, there appears to be potential
to improve the rating within a reasonable timeframe.

Unsatisfactory: Performance is well below standards and there is serious
question as to whether the person can improve to meet the minimum standard.

Page | of 10




County Manager Annual Evaluation Form County Commissioner’s Evaluation
Evaluation Period: Evaluator:

1. Leadership

Motivates and encourages teamwork, innovation, and problem-solving
Instills confidence and promotes initiative through support and encouragement
Delegates authority appropriately

Affective advocate of county programs

Communicates clearly with board, staff, and departments

Leads in accordance with policies and board directives

Leads according to strategic goals, objectives, and policies

Positive relationship with board

Positive relationship with staff, departments, and elected offices
Represents board’s interest in local and regional issues and projects
Positive relationship with residents, businesses, and public

. Takes ownership of error

m. Builds inter-local relations (local, state, federal)

—ET TR e a0 o

__Distinguished
___Excellent

__ Satisfactory

__ Needs Improvement

Unsatisfactory

Comments:

New or additional goals for the future:

Page 2 of 10



County Manager Annual Evaluation Form County Commissioner’s Evaluation
Evaluation Period: Evaluator:

2. Organizational Management

a. Implements and enforces board directives
b. Follows organization policies and programs
¢. Responds timely to board requests
d. Reports are accurate, comprehensive, concise, and persuasive
e. Effective Public Information Officer (P1O)
f.  Understands, supports, and enforces policies
g. Reviews policies and recommends improvements
h. Efficient and effective
i. Detail oriented and avoids errors
j- Resolves problems
k. Delivers product
Distinguished
Excellent
Satisfactory
Needs Improvement
Unsatisfactory
Comments.:

New or additional goals for the future:

Page 3 of 10



County Manager Annual Evaluation Form County Commissioner’s Evaluation
Evaluation Period: Evaluator:

3. Financial Management

a. Directs preparation of balanced budget
b. Provides service at levels consistent with board policies and directives
¢. Keeps board apprised of major financial issues
d. Monitors budget expenditures to ensure funds are spent correctly
e. Evaluates programs and services and makes appropriate adjustments
f. Meets board policies, guidelines, and directives
g. Exhibits responsible and appropriate expenditures
h. Uses labor and resources efficiently
i. Exhibits financial competency
j. Anticipates and plans for future financial needs
k. Utilizes federal and state grant and funding opportunities
Distinguished
Excellent
Satisfactory
Needs Improvement
Unsatisfactory
Comments:

New or additional goals for the future:

Page 4 of 10



County Manager Annual Evaluation Form County Commissioner’s Evaluation
Evaluation Period: Evaluator:

4. Human Resources Development

Ensures personnel policies conform to law

Carries out personnel policies

Professional manages the compensation and benefits plan
Promotes training and professional development
Maintains staffing according to organizational needs and budget limits
Retains and recruits competent personnel

Treats all employees fairly and equitably

Promptly addresses disciplinary problems

Takes appropriate corrective action

Monitors and evaluates performance

Evaluates and coaches consistently and fairly

AT TR o a0 o

____ Distinguished

___ Excellent

__ Satisfactory
_____Needs Improvement

Unsatisfactory

Comments:

New or additional goals for the future:

Page 5 of 10



County Manager Annual Evaluation Form County Commissioner’s Evaluation
Evaluation Period: Evaluator:

5. Public Service

Positive impression by citizens

Visible, approachable, accessible, and responsive
Displays diplomacy when responding to others
Displays positive public image of the county
Outgoing to meet with citizens and communities
Communicates with citizens

Citizen and customer oriented

Responds timely to citizen complaints

PR e a0 om

___ Distinguished

_ Excellent

__ Satisfactory
_____Needs Improvement

Unsatisfactory

Comments:

New or additional goals for the future:

Page 6 of 10




County Manager Annual Evaluation Form County Commissioner’s Evaluation
Evaluation Period: Evaluator:

6. Economic Development

Builds private-public partnerships

Fosters inter-jurisdictional cooperation

Responds quickly to stakeholder needs

Adapts to changing economic environment

Knows county assets, strengths, weaknesses, and opportunities
Builds positive image of county based on facts

Demonstrates consistency and integrity

e ae o

_____Distinguished

_ Excellent
____Satisfactory

__ Needs Improvement

Unsatisfactory

Commentis:

New or additional goals for the future:

Page 7 of 10



County Manager Annual Evaluation Form County Commissioner’s Evaluation
Evaluation Period: Evaluator:

7. Personal Character

a. Shows originality in approaching problems

b. Takes rational, impersonal, and unbiased approach based on facts and qualified
opinions
Energetic and willing to spend time to do exceptional work

e,
d. Reaches quality decisions in timely fashion
e. Honest and forthcoming in professional capacities
f.  Reputation in community for honesty and integrity
g. Accepts constructive criticism and takes ownership for mistakes
Distinguished
_ Excellent
Satisfactory
Needs Improvement
__Unsatisfactory
Comments:

New or additional goals for the future:

Page 8 of 10



County Manager Annual Evaluation Form County Commissioner’s Evaluation
Evaluation Period: Evaluator:

8. Emergency Management
a. Leads and manages effectively during crises
b. Inter-jurisdictional cooperation
¢. Supports emergency management planning
d. Maintains conformance with emergency management requirements

____ Distinguished

_ Excellent

____ Satisfactory
____Needs Improvement

Unsatisfactory

Comments:

New or additional goals for the future:

Page 9 of 10



County Manager Annual Evaluation Form County Commissioner’s Evaluation
Evaluation Period: Evaluator:

9. ICMA Code of Ethics: The County Manager has exhibited excellent conformance with
the Code of Ethics of the International County Manager’s Association ICMA

Conformed to the ICMA Code of Ethics

Did not conform to one or more of the ICMA Code of Ethics (Circle which of the
tenant(s) above with which conformance did not occur.)

ICMA Code of Ethics

Tenet 1 — Be dedicated to the concepts of effective and democratic local government by
responsible elected officials and believe that professional general management is essential to the
achievement of this objective.

Tenet 2 — Affirm the dignity and worth of the services rendered by government and maintain a
constructive, creative, and practical attitude toward local government affairs and a deep sense of
social responsibility as a trusted public servant

Tenet 3 — Demonstrate by word and action the highest standards of ethical conduct and integrity
in all public, professional, and personal relationships in order that the member may merit the
trust and respect of the elected and appointed officials. employees, and the public.

Tenet 4 — Recognize that the chief function of local government at all times is to serve the best
interests of all people.

Tenet 5 — Submit policy proposals to elected officials; provide them with facts and advice on
matters of policy as a basis for making decisions and setting community goals; and uphold and
implement local government policies adopted by elected officials.

Tenet 6 — Recognize that elected representatives of the people are entitled to the credit for the
establishment of local government policies: responsibility for policy execution rests with the
members.

Tenet 7 — Refrain from all political activities which undermine public confidence in professional
administrators. Refrain from participation in the election of the members of the employing
legislative body.

Tenet 8 — Make it a duty continually to improve the member's professional ability and to
develop the competence of associates in the use of management techniques.

Tenet 9 — Keep the community informed on local government affairs: encourage communication
between the citizens and all local government officers; emphasize friendly and courteous service
to the public; and seek to improve the quality and image of public service.

Tenet 10 — Resist any encroachment on professional responsibilities, believing the member
should be free to carry out official policies without interference. and handle each problem
without discrimination on the basis of principle and justice.

Tenet 11 — Handle all matters of personnel on the basis of merit so that fairness and impartiality
govern a member's decisions, pertaining to appointments, pay adjustments, promotions, and
discipline.

Tenet 12 — Public office is a public trust. A member shall not leverage his or her position for
personal gain or benefit.

Page 10 of 10



County Manager Annual Evaluation Form Self-Evaluation
Evaluation Period: Evaluator:

County Manager’s Self-Evaluation
Annual Evaluation of the
Storey County Manager

Date of Evaluation:

County Manager Being Evaluated:

Self-Evaluator:

Evaluation Period - From: To: (month/day/year)

A. County Manager job description essential function elements:

Develops goals and objectives e Resolves issues and complaints
Motivates staff e Assist the board

Fosters team management Fosters team management
Administrates policies Oversees the budget

Advises appropriate policies Serves as a public information officer
Administers contracts Investigates

Evaluates staff Legislative representative
Administers the budget Lobbyist

Promotes economic development Responds to emergencies

B. Primary elements of the County Manager’s duties being evaluated in accordance
with job description:

Economic Development
Personal Character
Emergency Management
Code of Ethics ICMA

Leadership

Organizational Management
Financial Management

Human Resources Development
Public Service

C. Rating scale for each evaluation element. For each category, check which most
closely applies. This self-evaluation will be considered by the board during its
evaluation.

Distinguished: The County Manager is so successful at this job criterion that
special note should be made. This performance rank is in the top 10 percent.
Excellent: Performance at this level is one of better performance in the
organization, given the common standards and results. This is better than average
performance.

Satisfactory: Performance is at or above minimum standards. This level of
performance is what one would expect from the most experience and competent
manager.

Needs Improvement: Performance is somewhat below what would be expected
of an experienced and competent manager. However, there appears to be potential
to improve the rating within a reasonable timeframe.

Unsatisfactory: Performance is well below standards and there is serious
question as to whether the person can improve to meet the minimum standard.

Page 1 of 10




County Manager Annual Evaluation Form Self-Evaluation
Evaluation Period: Evaluator:

1. Leadership

a.

ol K -

Motivates and encourages teamwork, innovation, and problem-solving
Instills confidence and promotes initiative through support and encouragement
Delegates authority appropriately

Affective advocate of county programs

Communicates clearly with board, staff, and departments

Leads in accordance with policies and board directives

Leads according to strategic goals, objectives, and policies

Positive relationship with board

Positive relationship with staff, departments, and elected offices
Represents board’s interest in local and regional issues and projects
Positive relationship with residents, businesses, and public

Takes ownership of error

m. Builds inter-local relations (local, state, federal)

_____Distinguished

_ Excellent

____ Satisfactory
____Needs Improvement

Unsatisfactory

Comments:

New or additional goals for the future:

Page 2 of 10




County Manager Annual Evaluation Form Self-Evaluation
Evaluation Period: Evaluator:

2. Organizational Management

a. Implements and enforces board directives
Follows organization policies and programs
Responds timely to board requests
Reports are accurate, comprehensive, concise, and persuasive
Effective Public Information Officer (P10O)
Understands, supports, and enforces policies
Reviews policies and recommends improvements
Efficient and effective
Detail oriented and avoids errors
Resolves problems
Delivers product

AT TR e as T

__ Distinguished

_ Excellent

____ Satisfactory

__ Needs Improvement

Unsatisfactory

Comments:

New or additional goals for the future:

Page 3 of 10



County Manager Annual Evaluation Form Self-Evaluation
Evaluation Period: Evaluator:

3. Financial Management
a. Directs preparation of balanced budget

b. Provides service at levels consistent with board policies and directives
c. Keeps board apprised of major financial issues
d. Monitors budget expenditures to ensure funds are spent correctly
e. Evaluates programs and services and makes appropriate adjustments
f. Meets board policies, guidelines, and directives
g. Exhibits responsible and appropriate expenditures
h. Uses labor and resources efficiently
i. Exhibits financial competency
j.  Anticipates and plans for future financial needs
k. Utilizes federal and state grant and funding opportunities
Distinguished
Excellent
Satisfactory
Needs Improvement
Unsatisfactory
Comments:

New or additional goals for the future:

Page 4 of 10



County Manager Annual Evaluation Form Self-Evaluation
Evaluation Period: Evaluator:

4. Human Resources Development

FTTET@ Mo an op

Ensures personnel policies conform to law

Carries out personnel policies

Professional manages the compensation and benefits plan
Promotes training and professional development
Maintains staffing according to organizational needs and budget limits
Retains and recruits competent personnel

Treats all employees fairly and equitably

Promptly addresses disciplinary problems

Takes appropriate corrective action

Monitors and evaluates performance

Evaluates and coaches consistently and fairly

_____Distinguished

_ Excellent
____Satisfactory

_ Needs Improvement

Unsatisfactory

Comments:

New or additional goals for the future.

Page 5 of 10




County Manager Annual Evaluation Form Self-Evaluation
Evaluation Period: Evaluator:

5. Public Service

Positive impression by citizens

Visible, approachable, accessible, and responsive
Displays diplomacy when responding to others
Displays positive public image of the county
Outgoing to meet with citizens and communities
Communicates with citizens

Citizen and customer oriented

Responds timely to citizen complaints

@ moe oo g

____ Distinguished

_ Excellent
____Satisfactory

_ Needs Improvement

Unsatisfactory

Comments:

New or additional goals for the future:

Page 6 of 10



County Manager Annual Evaluation Form Self-Evaluation
Evaluation Period: Evaluator:

6. Economic Development

Builds private-public partnerships

Fosters inter-jurisdictional cooperation

Responds quickly to stakeholder needs

Adapts to changing economic environment

Knows county assets, strengths, weaknesses, and opportunities
Builds positive image of county based on facts

Demonstrates consistency and integrity

© e as o

____ Distinguished

_ Excellent

_____ Satisfactory

_ Needs Improvement

Unsatisfactory

Comments:

New or additional goals for the future:

Page 7 of 10



County Manager Annual Evaluation Form Self-Evaluation
Evaluation Period: Evaluator:

7. Personal Character
a. Shows originality in approaching problems
b. Takes rational, impersonal, and unbiased approach based on facts and qualified
opinions

c. Energetic and willing to spend time to do exceptional work
d. Reaches quality decisions in timely fashion
e. Honest and forthcoming in professional capacities
f. Reputation in community for honesty and integrity
g. Accepts constructive criticism and takes ownership for mistakes
Distinguished
Excellent
Satisfactory
Needs Improvement
Unsatisfactory
Comments.

New or additional goals for the future:

Page 8 of 10



County Manager Annual Evaluation Form Self-Evaluation
Evaluation Period: Evaluator:

8. Emergency Management
a. Leads and manages effectively during crises
b. Inter-jurisdictional cooperation
¢. Supports emergency management planning
d. Maintains conformance with emergency management requirements

____Distinguished

_ Excellent
____Satisfactory
____Needs Improvement

Unsatisfactory

Comments:

New or additional goals for the future:

Page 9 of 10



County Manager Annual Evaluation Form Self-Evaluation
Evaluation Period: Evaluator:

9. ICMA Code of Ethics: The County Manager has exhibited excellent conformance with
the Code of Ethics of the International County Manager’s Association [CMA

Conformed to the ICMA Code of Ethics

Did not conform to one or more of the ICMA Code of Ethics (Circle which of the
tenant(s) above with which conformance did not occur.)

ICMA Code of Ethics

Tenet 1 — Be dedicated to the concepts of effective and democratic local government by
responsible elected officials and believe that professional general management is essential to the
achievement of this objective.

Tenet 2 — Aftirm the dignity and worth of the services rendered by government and maintain a
constructive, creative, and practical attitude toward local government affairs and a deep sense of
social responsibility as a trusted public servant

Tenet 3 — Demonstrate by word and action the highest standards of ethical conduct and integrity
in all public, professional. and personal relationships in order that the member may merit the
trust and respect of the elected and appointed ofticials, employees. and the public.

Tenet 4 — Recognize that the chief function of local government at all times is to serve the best
interests of all people.

Tenet 5 — Submit policy proposals to elected officials: provide them with facts and advice on
matters of policy as a basis for making decisions and setting community goals; and uphold and
implement local government policies adopted by elected officials.

Tenet 6 — Recognize that elected representatives of the people are entitled to the credit for the
establishment of local government policies; responsibility for policy execution rests with the
members.

Tenet 7 — Refrain from all political activities which undermine public confidence in professional
administrators. Refrain from participation in the election of the members of the employing
legislative body.

Tenet 8 — Make it a duty continually to improve the member's professional ability and to
develop the competence of associates in the use of management techniques.

Tenet 9 — Keep the community informed on local government affairs; encourage communication
between the citizens and all local government officers; emphasize friendly and courteous service
to the public: and seek to improve the quality and image of public service.

Tenet 10 — Resist any encroachment on professional responsibilities, believing the member
should be free to carry out official policies without interference, and handle each problem
without discrimination on the basis of principle and justice.

Tenet 11 — Handle all matters of personnel on the basis of merit so that fairness and impartiality
govern a member's decisions. pertaining to appointments, pay adjustments, promotions, and
discipline.

Tenet 12 — Public office is a public trust. A member shall not leverage his or her position for
personal gain or benefit.

Page 10 of 10



RESOLUTION NO. 21-625

A RESOLUTION SETTING SALARIES OF EMPLOYEES FIXED
BY ORDINANCE OR RESOLUTION PER NRS 245045 FOR
APPOINTED OFFICIALS.

BE 1T HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD
OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS. STOREY COUNTY. NEVADA:

WHEREAS, for the purposes of NRS 245.045, the Storey County Board of County
Commissioners has authority to establish the salaries of all appointed and non-
represented County employees by the enactment of a resolution.

WHEREAS, the salanies of all appointed officials and non-represented county
employees, except certain Shenff™s Office employees set by collective bargaining
agreement, are consistently to be derived from a similar step and grade range salary
system shown in the General Salany Schedule (Antachment A) for appointed
officials and non-represented employ ees of the county.

WHEREAS, the salary grade range of appointed officials and non-represented
employees shall be as follows for the 2021-22 fiscal period:

£ Position | ) -Salar_v_ Grade
;[ Administrative Assistant | Grade 110
" Administrative Assistant 11 Grade 116 -
Administrative Assistant 11 Grade 119 —‘
:;—'\lj_mnnislf&ti\c()lﬁccr_ - Grade 144 4
Assistant Public Works Director Grade 144 '
F_‘-\ummnli\c_imid_ana_g:-r_ - Grade 133 m
" Bailiff Count Services Officer Grade 124
Bailiff Director of Securil__\ _ Grade 140 T
Building Official N "Grade 144
Chief Deputy District Allbmc_x - o Grade 153
Chief Deputy Sheriff B T Grade (3000
" Communications Director  Grade 144 %Eﬁ]
(‘umm;_n_il__\_l)_evelopmbhi Director Grade 132 N ' ]
Community Relations Coordinator T Grade 140 1
Comptroller | Grade 182
Corrections Officer Grade 117 7
'. County Manager ) 777%(}!"&]&' 157
Deputy District Attomey Grade 152
" Dispatch Manager " Grade 140 —
N mcrgén;;_\ 7\Tanégcmcm Director i Grade 190
" Eventand Site Manager  Grade 124 ) |

Iire Marshal

CGirade 144




WHEREAS, the flat-rate salaries for the positions below shall be set by the Storey
County Board of Commissioners as follows:

Emergency Management Director $21.678
s s ; $30.000
Government AfTairs Director o 5
(salary split 50/50 with SCSD)
Justice of the Peace §71.361

WHEREAS, salaries are set by the Nevada Legislature and County
Commissioners for elected positions as follows:

Assessor $71.361
Commissioners $30.806.31
Clerk Treasurer §71.361
District Attorney $122,678
Recorder §71,361
ShentT $96,937

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE STOREY COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, by unanimous vote, to adopt
Resolution 21-625 providing for the setting of salaries for the appointed ofticials and non-
represented emplovees
I'his resolution shall be effective on the Ist day of July. 2021
PROPOSED AND ADOPTED this 6” day of July, 2021

4 ! ) .

[HOSE VOTING AYE: (Lvemcrice
Mitchell

I'HOSE VOTING NAY: P————
Apsent cdma N

STOREY COUNTY

/
B()'\;fl‘{ Ji coun

COMMISSIONERS

ATTEST: ' £ : 1L
Yt A i %ﬁe‘.ﬁ hiaA,
CLERK TO THF BOARD

J

L



Fire Marshal Community Development Director | Grade 152

HR Director Grade 144
HR Generalist Grade 124
Information Technology Director Grade 152
Information Technology Officer T Grade 140 ]

" Grade 129
" Grade 131

Management Analyst |

Management Analyst 1|

| Management Anal_\s!_l'l_l_ 7 " Grade 133
Planning Manager 7 [ Grade 436114
Public Works Director T Grade 152
Senior Center Site Manager i Grade 119
Senior Services Director Grade $ 33150
Tourism Director Grade 152 ]
Tourism Marketing Manager Grade 135

WHEREAS, the salary grade and step range of casual intermittent part-time
positions in the General Salary Schedule (Attachment A) shall be as follows for the
2021-22 fiscal period:

IPT Administrative Assistant | Grade 110
IPT Administrative Assistant [l Grade 116
IPT Facilities Maintenance Worker Grade 110
IPT Tourism Assistant Grade 110
IPT Visitor Liaison Grade 110
IPT Lifeguard Grade 97
IPT Pool Supervisor Grade 105
IP1 Park Maintenance Worker Grade 105
IP1T Road Worker Grade 110
IPT Pool Maintenance Worker Grade 110
IPT Maintenance Worker Heavy g
Equipment Operator ' Crads 119

WHEREAS. cach employee who is capped in the ten-step General Salary Schedule
shall receive a Cost of Living increase equal to fifty (50%) percent of any PERS increase
for that year, if there is no PERS increase (every other year) each employee who is
capped in the ten-step General Salary Schedule shall receive a two (2%) percent Cost
of Living increase July . Each employee who is not capped in the ten-step General
Salary Schedule shall receive a Cost of Living increase equal to fifty (50%) percent of
any PERS increase for that year, if there is no PERS increase (every other year) no Cost
of Living increase will be granted.



10 adwy

10021101 S| 6¥00£°(6 S| 19 96E v6 Slsvvoll S|veoiles S| EEOvISH S| et 19¢'cw S| iveiv'es S| 0¢ 16279 B ECEDT S |6kt
99 £S986 S| SS/1656 S| SCve0l6 S |S66/6B8 S| /60/6%8 S| €/ €90€8 S|Z8vszo8 S|emowss¢ S| Ec@l6wL S |STseels S |eEl
IV iPL 96 S| ii1166C6 S| vOBYE6E S |0/60898 S| ilw/8E8 S| 6/ €018 S| BE/6Z'8 S| vI6¥IS: S| PYIBOEL S ) S RIGOM slet |
(6668E6 S| 19vl/06 5| (99%9¢8 S|6Ez69v8 S|overets S|Szi1906f S|B9(8E9 S|EsvOREs S| cBOELL S| IE /688 S |9E1
Zi60916 S|1811588 S| 99BI1SSR S|2¢979¢8 S[eszemesr S|E6ZEV4e  S|iSwlSve  S|ivw00'Zr S| BP69SES S |ERGIZ/9 S |SEL
EESLEGB S| B6CSE9B 5| EBLEVES S| evII908 S| wwse®is S| €91S&Se  S|68904%e S| LEBRLOL S| 9989 S |SvLLss9 S vl
SvS6I (8 S| 189vZ P8 G| BBL6E18 S|OES¥PIBL S| 6L5B6S. S| EZ9IvEL S| SSEE60: S| ERwESBY S| E€2 /1299 S| 00R/BE9 $ [EEI
v BI90SE S| 10C6L¢8 S| (Selvbl S| EL (&9 S|6peEl® s]6562917 S|iveore9 S| 9r€9899 S [8LZ09W9  S|/sclvia S [eel
EBEGB LB S| CE/BLOB S| 695/v il S| ELSSBP. G| BEwledl 6| £98/869 S|8SSI5¢9 S|SwZer's9 S| e59Z0€9  S|6156809 ¢ [IEl
969608 S| SSIEIBL S| vo9BS S/ S | 66 6Z0°E¢ 5 | 8t 09504 S[8zw/1B9  S[/889859 S|Zvivaed S| 6Z68Y19 S| v660res S |Okl
6/ v66 B/ Slivereu S| evivies S|BLavlL Slovees®s S|0S11699 S| 1eZ9¢v9 S| 6168079 S| 9568665 S| e6 0965 $ |eclt
BOBI0L. S|i619vw/ S| /BEp6lr S|6601569 $|9E091/9 S|scestvd S|e6v6979 S| 18w/S09 S| 6E9ISBS S| ET/pSGs SR
(EBB1SI S| 415v92f S|SI6BLO S|09S18¢9 S|eeeess9 S| 6590€€9 S|6£%91'19 S| BEs606S S| I6860¢S S| E0RITSS S |47
0S WSE €/ S| 166€/80/ G| tciiv89 S|9519199 S|tzwee€9 S|es?90'19 S| €6€49'65 S| ¢659945 S Sr90ess S| iveiwes S [9rl
(659514 S|BIS¥I69 S| w0Oi0899 S|9B(vS¥e S|BOS9EZ9 S| 2195209 $|iv@ies S| ec6wr9s S| iSepEWPS S| L6058 § Sl ]
88 61869 S| zeesvi9 S|094L1%9 S| ES EL6 L9 S| 66 Ev8'09 HELEITY S S| 1s86s9% S| 6 reges %] 20 ZZO'ES s|1oe2zs s [vtt
9691189 S|BPEIBSY S| L6/BSE9 S|6SLEvI9 S| 6665665 S|S9ISE(S  S|6LEIpSS S| LEGESES S| O08BILIC  S|ISE/E6r 5 JELL
B9SSr99 S| 61800F9 S| 669E079 S| 166665 S| 071645 S| I9E565C 5| S9190%5 S| @veeZZs 6| €1/9v0% S |isoas sy sfret |
GOVEB Y9 S| CZI¥9C9 6| BRECSO09 S| Bi//wBS S| 6966v95 S|/o6BS S  S|/0EwiZs S| Bvese0s S| IrofTey S| Iriesev S Jizt
CEESTEY  S|eewil’te S| O/ (v0O'6S $] 760505 s]991zt'ss $ | v9 (STES S| 999¢k 18 s|esots'er S| vESEOEY B ESGITED s jott
1901219 S| 4762965 S| 1540945 S| €v6596S S| €2 ece'6s S| ¢98861S S| 2910008 S|B6E0SBY S |[SC €989y S| BEBiISy  Sell
SPSOL09 S| ¢s 6918 S|EveoC9s S| (BI0EPS S| ess9ves S | 8€ 169705 Sleveen'sr S| we0zEiw S| ZeOfLSy S| 19wilwy S |8t
E0(EL 8BS S| S/05/95 S| valeBwps S|evii6es S| e6681IS  S[oossver  S|t19zeciv S| 79919y S| 8SS09vy S| BI/60EW S i1
EVPOE LS S| 0999655 S| OFEweweS S| TESB9Ls S|osze66y  S|[6c8pZ’8y S| 61¢199r S|9/0v0'Sy S| S9/ISTER S| E09vO¢w S [9ll
S£906'55 S| BIGIOW s ss6812s S|69kev0s S|oselssy  S[86t/0dy  s|siosvsy  S|ocewetr  S]EZ9svIy  S|Isozo'ty S |51
LUEPSPS S| 12 869725 s|e99t60s S|igverer S| eztes v S| ABEZeSy S| 060wy S| prOLBIV sltcoze'ty S| toozooy el
9B Z1Z €S S| GEEIVIS S| (Zvi96F S|G6webiv G| E61/69v S| OBE08wYr S|69887Er S| ewZ8iv S |ovolr BT GO
616 1S S| 6E65105 S |BLEIrBr S| ceviB9 S|o060v2sy S|lotlier  S|98ee’eyv  S|orvosor S| E@wivet S| 9le0wE S Uil
SLBr905 S| 665668y S| SLiBZir S|izIBosy  S[oviet'vy S| 6Bwr9lv  S|6/20Z1v  S|Ov6086E S| STEI¥WERE S |9sorse S full
IVELRGY S| ewiwiiv 5|9 /19y S| 9089Svr S| w6090ty S|B/v09ty Slse/6tOr S|osefsee S| ErSzSyf  S]otaszer ¢ |Oll
DLE91BY G |B6PES9r S |EE 196wy S |O6OPvEr S | BB I/61r S| vSss0v S |oOTiBU6E S | €Z9SELE S| £09(59F  $ |OT 6EF Sf ¢ [e0t
€L Pv69r 6 | LZ/SESP S |OvEZgEy S |SvipEcy 6| Z96060r S |0Z9ZS6E S [(S681BE S |EUEEE9E S | (EO0S9SE S |08 wevwf < [eot
SeZBiSy S| Siwelww S| Ov@ELIv S| WUERI IV S | 9/ 968'6f S| 6sevs8E  S|sOvvie S| BSPRESE S| ZLl90¥E S |0OI6S $ |01
TSBYORY S | 998ElEy S| (B6/91v S |OvOiZor S| 09RO6BE S |SBIBS/E  S|O09NZE9E S| EEEROSE S| 09906€f S [00 09 I 5 |90t
E6IVSEY S |(v0c0CZr S| OBiv90r S|ETEiZ6E S |SUswese S| 861999 S|tz ezecE S| sewZZ've S| 10O/90EE S |0BEVA If S [sot
orsovty S| 996201 sletevoee S |e9toe8e S |ov900ce  S[BewSssE S eeovSweE S |99s/f€E S [ve@wIZE S [OvRSIIE s [vot
89Ir iy S [sZ9100r S| vOE99°BE S | 6SSSE/E S [96 2609t S| SBU/B¥E S|T9Z69EE S| wZESSZE S| IwISYILE S |OHEEi Of 5 [eot
E6(9t0r 6 |EBCZOO6GE S |GBEBI/E G |9S60OVOE S| CEB/ISE S| [/BB6EE S |VEGERZE S | €8BI/ 1E S| (855908 S JoIselses S |01
GELVE6E S |OBR9IOBE S | LZ1E{9F G |6OGAYGE S |RBABZWE S | Sv6ZLEE S| E1600Zf S |699260f S |980BR6Z S [OpO/8SY7 s Jrot
O7SSERE S |/1BSO/E S |66POBSE S |OZweS®E S |wEvipEE S [SOveZ'ZE S |BEI0ZIE S| wHOvl0f S| BE (U6 S JOv IvIR § oot |
Qe 16E¢E S |I692t9t S |vrsoeve S| egviiEe S| tvewsee S |esisvie  S|o6/iv0e S| /T6RERE S| EVSEERE S [0ZSEvid 5 |86
(BSSy9E S [90ezz’se S| veleo'we S |oriseze S |BUG9IE S [98ve9'0f S| ¢B9S96Z S [BEESOBZ S| 10SRILL S JOBEY/ I < [re
2UBPSSE S| 6SovEvE S| tUsBlUEE S| 16l90¢E S |998b0f S |/OUE66Z S| T6mI6®Z S |BEOPELZ S| 1196692 S |0 EROW S [¢6
(¥3am oy opl | 30vHD
A/san0y QROZ
01 [ L 9 S v [ 1 dils
aas aang aais a3 aang aag aag 1334
TToT-1T07

(paiuasaiday-uoN pue [eQ paluioddy) apesg pue daig
FINAIHIS AHVIVS TWHINID
ALNNOD AJHOLS




2o aley

- - + — — + ‘

4 . = — . | =

INPIYIS 4IIMNIOM JNOU-Op A4l 01 TUBSNIND 31 U110;a3uay $23A0(WA ||y 33U3I3J3) BAIIIEOIIB, 0] PAPN|IUI §1 JAAIMOY ‘UWIN{03 ay) Auno) Aao1s ui Buinsom saakoidwa inoy of 1aBuo; ou 21e 31ay) 310N,

] C9LSTZ6L S| wS6S9SBL  SIOZIBE6L1 S| (USTEELl S| eZwswy91 S[9S1647191 S| SEDZE9IST S| 91 wEOTST 6| 2292651 S ] 00Z660%T S |Sat
T SBO/P (Bl  S|STUIETIBL S| w0900°S/1 $]96(80°691 S| TOOLEEIL S| ZvSwReSl S| S9£05251 S| GEOSEZPL S| €SL9EEVl S| {1 ESSZET S |vol
GEBEB'ZBL S| EVEL/ 91 SIT9/EL'0OL1T S|/RE9E'PIL S| BESBEGST S| PSS66ESI S| 96 /8 8v1 S| 699G EFl S| SUSGBBEL S| ZZB6LPEl G |E91
SPLEPBLL S| PEEOPZLT S| £ZE45991 S| 9€0we'091 S| E6/6¥'SST S| SSBEZOSI S| B6BSLSYL S| £Z0SZOPI S| 9vZOSSEL S| 6052601 S |Z91
t ) ZESB0v/L S| BEMGI'BIL S| ISOISZIT S| 66WI0ZST S| OESOL1ST S| L1GIS9¥1 6| CSBIT TPl S| 6r6Z89E1 S| IveOZ2el S| 6L1cc 221 5191
R SEBGERE9L S| 66S60%IT S| SEOpSEST S [OESBUEST S| BISO0'8KI S| (TDOOEWI G| Zv vl BEl S| 61 L6GVEEl S| 964681 | 6Ealavcl & 091
16969°S91 S| p9€6009T S| SB6.9°vST S| ELGFY6YT S| 6ZSGEPPT S | 9F ZISBEL 6| SS b6l WEl | BZOECOEl 5| ST ZE®SZT S| 96975121 5 651
T 16559191 S| 06881951  S[S1¢06'051 S| 10WOB'SYl S| vv'E/BO¥l S| 09601961 S| 98905 1El S| £(6S0CZ1 & | 0€9ZZZ1 & 39119811 & 851
| LLTNL'LST S| EveLeest S| 0S9zTiwl S| Z8ivZivl S| ISEvIEl S| (86BLCEl | GEGBZBL S| 9/ 096EL1 S| SBE9. 611 S| 0L 81.GIT & ]zst
| 90998'6ST 5 198799°8vT S| 29SE9'erl S| /EB/('BEl S| 6ESBOPET S| OTISS621 S| ¥LOLUSIL S| WEZEGOZL S| (9.vB911 S| O£ 968ZIT & |951
1 ZTELU'OST S| €6960°SpT S| OEZETOVL S| ESEGEGET S| OOSUBOEL G| OE 16E9CT  §| 0ZLITEZT S| WOIBEZLL S| CZZ66ELT S| 2Z 2p1 01T § 551
T61Sp'rT S| weebrIvT S| Evvil9El S| pZ160°¢El  S|eevzaczl S| 65BOEEZT S| ELBEUGIT S| 88GOTSIL S| BZLILTLT S| [E9sp/0l & |wSl
| E66/8'Zv1 S| vZAv0'8El S| A 6LEEET S| 165698821 S| 09TISWIL S| (OTOE0Z1 S| I6ZEZ9LL 5| EE COECIT S| (9905801 S| EFSEavOl & JESI
| i SOSBEGEL S| 1Z1BWEL S| £L9ZVDEl S| SE9ZLSZT S| wiwib 121 S| D699E LL1 5| [6L6EEIT S| SZE95601 S| 1285801 S| cveiczor 5 lzst
T BIS66'SEL S| TE96ETET S| S6256'921 S [ 996597721 S| wb11SBIL S| 6ZwOSPIT S| LT ZEI0II 6| B6068 901 S| TEQLLEOT S| (BEBL &6 5 Ls1
I TZ8/97E1 S| IST6I'8ZL S| ES9SHEZT S [STBI96I1 S| OvIZISIT S| OSLIZ ULl S| IBEE6LO1 G| BREBZ VOl S | LELGL00T S| 1105646 & oSt
LTTev'6Zl S| 68990°SZ1 S| S9SERDIT S| Zv6vZ 9Ll S| [ELOBCIl 5| €8986801 S| BZIDESOl 5| (EOW/ 101 S| 866086 S| FCS/6%6 5 |6v1
E0SBZ'OZL S| 2SwloTel S| ZvesdsIl S| 99 106EIL  §| 01 0SDOIT S| 09BZEQOL 5| S6CE/ 201 S| 688SI66 S| LEZ06S6 S| EC65976 & |@vl
T 16 POZEZL S| 9SBEO'6IT  S|OTETOSIT S[ZLEZUIIT S| 96S9E(OT 5| EZSELE0l S| LCLCL001 G| W6 (€896 S| €7 E95€6 S| 976606 S |Lpl
= 16661021 S|8USErstt S| teco’ett  S[wretv's0t S| 8Tivev0l S| OUSOZIOT | 1/ZBL L6 G| SOOLvwe S| OZ18C16 S|ovesiss & |opl
1ZRSZU1T S TI9Z0EETT S| ZUisv's0l S| 0T69.S0L S| iveet'zol S| 899686 5| 9L (6ES6 S| SL1L1C6 S| EBvSO68 S| LEEFO9E S |5kl
T 0ROV Pl S| SIGES'OTL S| 11108901 S|Bv681'E0l S| 8666966 S| SvBIE96 5|00 (/0E6 G| (9EZ668 6| {7 (8898 S| I ep6Eg S [evt
(519111 S| 90€p8Z01 S| 0796T'VOl S| 592/9°001 S| 9289216 5| O06/6E6 5| /600806 S| OvOEL (8 S| /9t9/p8 S| izi681s S lEvl
61568'801 S| woZtz'sor S| zaws9'tol S| ezizee S| 98GERW6 S| €998916 5| OE 98BS 88 G | €906558 S | 9Z 9698 S| [/ 668 6¢ S Jevt
OZGEL'901 S| /S9v9'201 S| EpS/I'66 S[/9128°6 S| EEI1BSZ6 S| 950SP68 G| 09GZp98 S| SOEOSEE S| BZ 6908 5| 66056 ¢ $ ftet
Z0BYY'E01 S| TOEYI'00L S| €595/96 S| /SvBr'e6 S| 9TEZED6 S| SBWILLB S| ELLLEWE S| Or99vi® S| OSiL.B S| 9z 6v0'9s s Jovt
zToz-1z02
(paiuasasday-uop pue [eRyO paiuvioddy) apes pue dals
FINAIHIS ABVIVS TYHINID

ALNNOD A3¥OLS



Storey County Job Description

County Manager

Class Title: County Manager

Reports to: Board of Storcy County Commissioncrs
FLSA Status: Exempt

Represented Status: Non-Represented

Created: March 2007

Last Revised 02-20-2018

02-04-2020

1. Job summary. The county manager is the county's chicf administrative officer and reports to
the Storey County Board of County Commissioners (board). The board considers and sets policy
and the county manager is tasked with implementing these policies. Without limiting the specific
dutics and responsibilitics that the county manager may be assigned by the board, the broad
activity arcas for measurced achicvement arc:

A. Exccutive Icadership and development of goals for the county
B. Managerial and organizational cffectivencss

C. Financial planning and preparation of the budget

D Human resource development

E. Public service and communication

F. Economic development in the county

G. Emergency management

H. Any job duties listed here or sct by the board

2. Distinguishing characteristics: The county manager is responsible for the lcadership.
supervision, and management of county stafl, and management of county rcsources consistent
with the administrative and policy direction of the board. An employcc in this position is
unclassified and "at-will.” scrving at the pleasure of the board.

3. Evaluation of job performance.The county manager will be given a yearly cvaluation by the
board on the county manager's annual anniversary. The board may cvaluate the county manager
at other times as deemed appropriate. The board may consider an increasc in salary. including a
merit increase consistent with the amount given unclassified personnel and a possible
performance based bonus. The administrative officer and/or personnel dircctor (director) is
responsible for placing the review on the board’s agenda, providing any requircd legal notice,
and providing material for the agenda packet including salary comparisons and any matcrial
requested by the board. In accordance with Storey County personncl policy, if a performance
cvaluation is not completed within 30 days of the employec's anniversary date it shall be
considered a satisfactory performance cvaluation and the personnel dircctor/administrative
officer shall authorize a step advancement retroactive to the employce's anniversary date.



4. Examples of duties: The county manager's duties arc authorized by action by the board. The
dutics listed below are examples of the work typically performed by an employee in this position
that are authorized by the board. The board may take action to include or climminate other dutics
for the county manager.

A. Assist the board in the development of overall goals of the county: provide Icadership
and dircction in the development of short- and long-range plans for achicving overall goals; work
with the board and others to develop community and ecconomic development plans.

B. Develop, evaluate, and implement administrative policies bascd on federal and state
law and regulations, and the organizational goals and objectives of the board. Recommends
policy changes where appropriate to the board for approval. Informs the board of operational
problems.

C. Facilitate tcam management approach for decision making: promote opportunitics for
cmploycee involvement in collaborative and participatory problem solving: sclect, direct, develop,
and cvaluate management personnel and other staff; administers discipline for inadequate
performance or improper behavior.

D. Subjcct to the limitations of law and board direction; is designated the authorized
representative to be responsible for the development, award and proper administration of all
purchascs and contracts made pursuant to the local government purchasing law, necgotiates and
supervises county contractual agreements, and after approval of the contract by the board,
administers the agreements and if authorized by the board, cnforces agreements.

E. Oversee the development of the annual county budget in conjunction with the
comptroller for approval by the board; monitor cxpenditures to cnsure compliance with budgets:
account for variances between projected and actual expenditures, initiate remedial action, and
reports significant variances to the board.

F. Administer the preparation of board mecting agendas; attend board meetings: makes
oral and written presentations to the board of county commissioners and to other public and
private groups; provide information to the news media and the public regarding County
operations; represent the County with other government agencics and in meetings with the
public.

G. Analyze proposed legislation and administrative regulations for their impact on
County operations; revicw and makes recommendations to the board regarding legislative
activitics; participate in the lobbying process by presenting oral and written testimony to
appropriate bodics.

H. Receive, investigate, and resolve complaints and concerns regarding County
programs, services, employces, and facilitics: act as liaison with citics. counties, regional, state,
and federal agencics on a broad range of matters.

I. Engage with the county cconomic development team, transfer knowledge attracting and
enhancing private enterprisc and building public-private relationships.

J. May respond to call out in cmergencies, other than during normal working hours, as
needed. For example, may respond to and actively participate in all hazard Incident Command
Systems.

QUALIFICATIONS FOR EMPLOYMENT:

Knowledge and Ability:



The county manager must have knowledge of: public administration and public finance
principles and methods; organizational principles and relationships, principles of strategic
planning; Nevada public finance laws, regulations and practices; conflict resolution techniques;
principles and practices of supervision and employce devclopment.

The county manager must have the ability to: synthesizc large volumes of data, interpret and
evaluate; exercisc initiative, ingenuity, independent analysis and judgment in solving difficult
and complex administrative, managerial and technical problems; understand and interpret
complex regulations, laws and policies; demonstrate exccutive lcadership and management
skills; supervisc cffectively; establish and maintain effective community relations; make
cffective oral and written presentations; advocate cffectively for the benefit of the county's
interest; gain and maintain the confidence and cooperation of clected and appointed officials and
the public.

5. Licensing, education, and other requirements.
A county manager must have:
* Any combination of training, cducation. and cxpericnce that would provide the required
knowledge and abilitics. A typical way to gain the required knowledge and ability is:

o Bachelor's Degree or cquivalent from an accredited college or university with
courscwork in public or business administration, management. accounting,
cconomics, or a similar ficld. Other cducation may be considered based on other

qualifications and experiencc.

o Master's Degree or higher with such major or significant courscwork may be
preferred.

o Atleast § years of increasingly responsible professional experience in
management, human resources, or administrative capacity that includes
experience in supervision and/or personnel management in an open political
cnvironment,

o Professional certifications, such as ICMA Credentialed Manager, applicable to the
position may be preferred.

*  Must posscss a valid Nevada Class C Driver Licensc.

»  Ability to pass a criminal background investigation.

6. Physical demands.

The requirements described here are representative of those that must be met by an employce to
successfully perform the essential functions of the job.

*  Physical Requirements. Strength, dexterity, coordination, and vision 1o usc keyboard
and video display terminal for prolonged periods. Strength and stamina to bend, stoop,
sit, and stand for long periods of time. Dexterity and coordination to handle files and
single picces of paper; occasional lifting of filcs, stacks of paper or reports, references,
and other materials. Some reaching for items above and below desk level. Some
reaching, bending, squatting, and stooping to access files and records 1s necessary. The



manual dexterity and cognitive ability to operate a personal computer using word
processing and databascs. The ability to communicate via tclephone. Light lifting (up to
50 pounds) is occasionally requircd. In compliance with applicablc disability laws,
reasonable accommodations may be provided for qualificd individuals with a disability
who require and request such accommodations. Incumbents and individuals who have
been offered employment are encouraged to discuss potential accommodations with the
employer.

«  Waorking Environment. Work is typically performed indoors in an officc environment
where a portion of work is performed at a desk and on a computer. Work is typically
performed independently with reporting directly to the board of county commissioncrs as
appropriatc. Position may occasionally be required to travel by motor vehicle to on- and
off-site locations. Environment is generally clcan with limited exposure to conditions
such as dusl, fumes, noise, or odors. Frequent interruptions to planned work activity by
telephone calls, office visitors, and responsc to unplanned cvents.

Effective this 4th day of February, 2020.

na

(8] sion Vice- 'h'/'.r,imln
; /42} oo i R

Tance Gilman
('orannssmncr

CERTIFIED COPY
_ The document to which this certificate s
is attached is a full. true, and correct copy of the original oa

file and of record in this ofTice.
Date Qé ) i e —.é( i gy )

Storey County Clerk and Ex-Officio Clerk of the First
Judicial District of the State of Nevada.

1 or Storey County
By . Deputy



STOREY COUNTY HUMAN RESOURCES
HEAILTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Tobt Whitten
Human Resources Director
26 So “B” Street. PO Box 176, Virginia City, NV 89440
Phone (775) 847-0968 - Fax (775) 847-0949

July 8, 2021

Austin Osborne
26 South “B” Street
Virginia City, NV 89440

Via: In-person hand-delivery

Re: Notice of meeting of the Storey County Board of County Commissioners to conduct an
annual performance evaluation of the County Manager, which may consider his character,
alleged misconduct, professional competence, or physical or mental health on July 20, 2021 at or
about 10:00 a.m. The meeting will be held in the Storecy County Courthouse at 26 South B
Street, Virginia City, and via Zoom.com.

Mr. Osborne:

You are hereby provided notice pursuant to Nevada Revised Statute (NRS) 241.031 through
241.034 that the Board of County Commissioners will consider the following agenda item at the
board’s meeting on July 20, 2021, at or about 10:00 a.m.:
Discussion and possible action: Annual review and evaluation of the performance of
Austin Oshorne, County Manager. The board may, without further notice, take
administrative action against Austin Osborne, County Manager, if the board determines
that such administrative action is warranted after considering the character, alleged
misconduct, professional competence, or physical or mental health of Mr. Osborne.

In the board’s deliberations, your character, competence, and performance as County Manager
may be discussed and the board may consider your job description, job duties, and other matters
connected to this agenda item. You are welcome to be present at the meeting and you may
present evidence relating to your character, alleged misconduct, professional competence, or
physical or mental health. You may choose to be represented by an attorney or other
representative.

You are also hereby provided a County Manager's Self-Evaluation form. You are welcome, but

not required, to complete this self-evaluation and share it with the board during the evaluation
process.

Page 1 of 2



At the end of the annual performance cvaluation, the board has the right to make changes to the
existing goals and objectives of your job, the right to determine whether or not to provide a merit
increase, bonus, or other compensation adjustment, the right to take adverse administrative
action up to and including termination, or any other such action deemed warranted by the board.

Sincerely.

f

_"}(-'(4;;"_,/?'( 3 I ——

Tobi Whitten
Human Resources Director

Cc.:  Board of Storey County Commissioners

Enc.: County Manager’s Sclf-Evaluation form

Proof of Service
I, TGEBL UJ%\\TH n) . hereby swear to affirm under penalty of perjury, that in accordance

with NRS 241.033, [ served this Notice of Meeting of the Storcy County Board of County
Commissioners by personally serving it to Austin Osborne on this &' day of

oy v 2021

Signature of person making service

Page 2 of 2



Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
‘ Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 7/20/2021 10:33 AM - _ Estimate of Time Required: 0-5

BOCC Meeting

Agenda Item Type: Consent Agenda

Title: Consideration and possible approval of Business License second readings:

A. Atypical Consulting and Events — Out of County / 18124 Wedge Pkwy. #156 ~ Reno,

NV

B. Big Bear Springs — General / 162 S. C St. ~ Virginia City, NV

C. Dad’s Family Automotive LL.C — General / 351 N. C St. ~ Virginia City, NV

D. EC Construction, LLC — Contractor / 105 E. Parr Blvd. ~ Reno, NV

E. Gomez Roofing LLC — Contractor / 14 Grosh Ave. ~ Dayton, NV

F. Refined Technologies, Inc. — Out of County / 480 Wildwood Forest Dr. Ste. 400 ~
Spring, TX

G. Tahoe Rim Realty — General / 915 C St. ~ Virginia City, NV

H. The Biggest Little Vape Shop — General / 440 USA Pkwy. Ste. 104 ~ Sparks, NV
[. The Boldt Company — Contractor / 2525 N. Roemer Rd. ~ Appleton WI

Recommended motion: Approval

Prepared by: Ashley Mead
Department: Contact Number: 7758470966

Staff Summary: Second readings of submitted business license applications are
normally approved unless, for various reasons, requested to be continued to the next
meeting. A follow-up letter noting those to be continued or approved will be submitted
prior to the Comission Meeting. The business licenses are then printed and mailed to the
new business license holder.

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact: None

Legal review required: False

Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other Agency Review:




Storey County Community Bevelopment

110 Toll Road ~ Gold Hill Divide
P O Box 526 ~ Virginia City NV 89440

(775) 847-0966 ~ Fax (775) 847-0935
CommunityDevelopment@storeycounty.org

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s office July 12, 2021
Austin Osborne, County Manager Via Email

Er Ashley Mead

Please add the following item(s) to the July 20, 2021 COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda:
SECOND READINGS:

. Atypical Consulting and Events — Out of County / 18124 Wedge Pkwy. #156 ~ Reno, NV
Big Bear Springs — General / 162 S. C St. ~ Virginia City, NV

. Dad’s Family Automotive LLC — General / 351 N. C St. ~ Virginia City, NV

. EC Construction, LLC — Contractor / 105 E. Parr Blvd. ~ Reno, NV

Gomez Roofing LLC - Contractor / 14 Grosh Ave. ~ Dayton, NV

Refined Technologies, Inc. — Out of County / 480 Wildwood Forest Dr. Ste. 400 ~ Spring, TX
. Tahoe Rim Realty — General / 915 C St. ~ Virginia City, NV

. The Biggest Little Vape Shop — General / 440 USA Pkwy. Ste. 104 ~ Sparks, NV

The Boldt Company — Contractor / 2525 N. Roemer Rd. ~ Appleton W1

FEROTMEOO® >

Ec: Community Development Planning Department Sheriff’s Office
Commissioner’s Office Comptroller’s Office



